DOO
SOUTH TEXAS
COLLEGE

Board of Trustees

Regular Board Meeting

Tuesday, April 28, 2015
5:30 p.m.

Pecan Campus
Ann Richards Administration Building
Board Room
McAllen, Texas

Online Board Packet




SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, April 28, 2015 @ 5:30 p.m.
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room
Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501

AGENDA

“At anytime during the course of this meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session under Texas Government Code
551.071(2) to confer with its legal counsel on any subject matter on this agenda in which the duty of the attorney to the Board of
Trustees under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of
the Texas Government Code. Further, at anytime during the course of this meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive
Session to deliberate on any subject slated for discussion at this meeting, as may be permitted under one or more of the exceptions
to the Open Meetings Act set forth in Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Texas Government Code. At this meeting,
the Board of Trustees may deliberate on and take any action deemed appropriate by the Board of Trustees on the following subjects:”

VI.

Call Meeting to Order
Determination of Quorum
Invocation

Public Comments

P eSS ENIALIONS. ... e 1-8

A. Acknowledgement of the Friends of the Library-McAllen Gift to Support South
Texas College Students

B. Presentation on May 2015 Graduation Ceremonies

C. Presentation on First Quarter Delinquent Tax Collection Report by Linebarger
Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP

Consideration and Action on Consent Agenda

A. Approval of MINUEES .......cooiiiiiiii 9-38
1. March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

B. Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s) ...........ccceeeeeeeeennnn. 39-40

1. The “Skills for Small Business” Grant from the Texas Workforce Commission
in the Amount of $20,000.

2. Additional Funds for the “Nursing Shortage Reduction Program — Regular”
Fund from the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board in the Amount of
$35,516.10.

3. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award



VIl.  Consideration and Action on Committee Items
A. Education and Workforce Development Committee

1. Review of Items Presented to the Education and Workforce Development
(O0] 1010 4111 =TI PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPP 41 - 43

1) Presentation on March 26, 2015 Women in Technology Event
2) Presentation on Building a Pathway to Baccalaureate Degrees

B. Finance and Human Resources Committee

1. Discussion and Action as Necessary to Adopt Tax Abatement
GUIBIINES ...t e et e e e e e e eeeenes 44

2. Discussion and Action as Necessary on Hidalgo County Tax Resale
Properties and Resolution Authorizing Tax Resale........................... 45 - 46

3. Presentation on Bond Market, Engagement of Underwriting Firm(s), and
Bond Issuance Debt Structure of the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015 .......

4. Approval of Timetable of Events for the Sale of the Limited Tax Bonds,
Series 2015 and Authorize the President and Staff to Proceed Based on
TIMeEtable Of EVENTS ... 69 -70

5. Review and Action as Necessary on the Engagement of Underwriting
Firm(s) for the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015..........ccccceeeevvvvvennnnns 71-81

6. Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Purchases,
Renewals, License Agreement, and Contract Extension................... 82-91

1) District Wide Special Event Venue Audio Visual Upgrades (Award)

2) Programmable Direct Connect Power Supply (Award)

3) Video Projectors (Awards)

4) Computers, Laptops, and Tablets (Purchase)

5) Computer Server Appliance (Purchase)

6) Furniture (Purchase)

7) Monitoring Hardware and Software (Purchase)

8) Network Hardware (Purchase)

9) Phones and Network Devices (Purchase)

10)Armored Car Services (Renewal)

11)Clean Address Software Support and Maintenance Subscription
(Renewal)

12)Software Maintenance and Support Agreements (Renewal)

13)Graduation Facility (License Agreement)

14)Internal Auditor Services (Contract Extension)



7. Review and Action as Necessary to Renew the Hidalgo County Agreement
for Tax Assessment and Collection .............cccccccimiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinns 92-94

8. Review and Action as Necessary to Renew the Starr County Agreement For
Tax Assessment and Collection............ooouuiiiiiiiiiiieeii e 95 - 97

9. Review and Action as Necessary to Revise Policy #4118: Provision of
Faculty Letter of Appointment ..., 98 - 100

10.Review and Action as Necessary on Disposal of Surplus Property .............
...................................................................................................... 101 -103

11.Review and Action as Necessary to Issue a Request for Proposals for Call
CONLEI SEIVICES ..ovviii it e e 104 - 126

. Facilities Committee

1. Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program ................ 127 - 132

2. Review and Action as Necessary on Selection of Firms for Geotechnical
Engineering and Materials Testing Services for the 2013 Bond Construction
PrOgram ... 133 -138

3. Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Manager-At-
Risk Firms for the 2013 Bond Construction Program.................... 139 - 150

4. Review and Action as Necessary on Approval of Change Order for the
Nursing & Allied Health Campus Entry Drive............ccceeeiiiieieieeeeiiiinnnnn. 151

5. Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Services for
the Pecan Campus Portable Buildings Infrastructure ................... 152 - 155

6. Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Services for
the Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along Alley Side of Building..............
..................................................................................................... 156 — 159

7. Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Services for
the District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades ...........cccccvvvuennn.. 160 - 163

8. Review and Action as Necessary on Schematic Design for the Pecan
Campus Art Building Covered Area for Ceramic Arts ................... 164 - 169

9. Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial or Final Completion for the
FOOWING ProJECES.. ..o 170 -177

1) Pecan Campus Buildings A, G, H, and X Electrical Disconnects

2) Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building
Grants/Accountability Office Improvements



VIII.

XI.

10. Discussion and Action as Necessary Regarding STC vs Chubb Insurance
for Hail Damage Claim Settlement...............oiiiiiiiiieiiieeicce e, 178

11.Update on Status of Non-Bond Program Construction Projects ... 179 - 184

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports .......... 185 - 187

The Checks and the Financial Reports presented for approval are included in
the Board Packet under SEPARATE COVER

Executive Session

A. Update Regarding Cause No. CL-14-3342-A; Thelma Saldana vs. South
TEXAS COllEOE .....coiieieiice e e e 188

B. Update Regarding Cause No. CL-14-1526-B; Veronica Flores vs. South
TEXAS COllEQE ... .o e 189

C. Review and Action as Necessary on the Assessment of the College

President and the Self-Assessment of the Board of Trustees................ 190
(=1 191
o  President’'s REPOIT ... 192 - 205
e Board Committee Meeting Minutes from April 13, 2015:

0 Education and Workforce Development..............oeevvvveeveeeennnee. 206 - 210

O FACIIES oo 211 - 226

0 Finance and HUMAN RESOUICES ......ceuvieiieeee e 227 - 238
AN OUN M BN S ..ttt e e e e e e e e e e, 239

A. Next Meetings:

Thursday, May 14, 2015

» 3:30 p.m. — Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting
» 4:30 p.m. — Facilities Committee Meeting
» 5:30 p.m. — Finance and Human Resources Committee Meeting

Tuesday, May 26th, 2015
» 5:30 p.m. — Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees




B. Other Announcements:

e South Texas College will be holding its 20" Annual Spring Commencement
Ceremony with Graduations on Friday, May 15, 2015 and Saturday, May 16, 2015
at the State Farm Arena in Hidalgo, Texas:

Friday, May 15, 2015

11:00 a.m. Business and Technology Division
Information Technology Graduates

3:00 p.m. Liberal Arts Division

6:00 p.m. Social & Behavioral Sciences

Saturday, May 16, 2015

10:00 a.m. Math, Science, and Bachelor Programs Division

Business and Technology Division

2:00 p.m. Nursing and Allied Health Division

e South Texas College will be closed Monday, May 25, 2015 in observance of
Memorial Day.



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 1

Presentations

Acknowledgement of the Friends of the Library-McAllen Gift to Support South Texas College
Students

Mrs. Wanda Garza, Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management, will
introduce Ms. Faye Cook with Friends of the Library-McAllen. Ms. Cook’s organization has gifted
$37.000.00 to establish the South Texas College Student Assistance Fund.

The South Texas College Student Assistance Fund will provide students undergoing financial
hardships with a grant award to assist with tuition, fees, and book expenses.

Recipients will be required to demonstrate need, and this process and fund awards will be
administered through the Office of the Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment
Management.

Presentation on May 2015 Graduation Ceremonies

Mrs. Wanda Garza, Vice President for Student Affairs and Enroliment Management, and Mr.
Matthew Hebbard, Dean for Enrollment Services and Registrar, will present the plans for the
May 2015 Graduation Ceremonies to the Board of Trustees.

The ceremonies will take place on Friday, May 15 and Saturday, May 16, 2015 at the State Farm
Arena in Hidalgo, Texas as follows:

Friday, May 15, 2015

11:00 a.m. Business and Technology Division
Information Technology Graduates

3:00 p.m. Liberal Arts Division

6:00 p.m. Social & Behavioral Sciences

Saturday, May 16, 2015

10:00 a.m. Math, Science, and Bachelor Programs Division
Business and Technology Division

2:00 p.m. Nursing and Allied Health Division

Presentation on First Quarter Delinquent Tax Collection Report by Linebarger Goggan Blair &
Sampson, LLP
A representative from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP, will provide the Board with the

Delinquent Tax Report on Collection and Collection Efforts for Hidalgo and Starr Counties.




ASTC

South Texas College

Second Quarter
Delinquent Tax Collection Report

Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP

205 S. Pin Oak Ave., Edinburg, Texas 78539 Phone: 956-383-4500 Fax: 956-383-7820



LAW OFFICES
OF
LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
205 S Pin Oak Ave.
EDINBURG, TEXAS 78539

Telephone: (956) 383-4500
Facsimile: (956) 383-7820

April 28, 2015

Dr. Shirley A. Reed, President
Roy de Ledn, Chair

Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Vice Chair
Paul R. Rodriguez, Secretary
Rose Benavidez, Member
Graciela Farias, Member
Gary Gurwitz, Member

Jesse Villarreal, Member
South Texas College

3201 West Pecan Boulevard
McAllen, Texas 78501

RE: Delinquent Tax Collection Report from December 1, 2014 through February 28,
2015

Dear Dr. Reed:

Our firm is pleased to submit a summary of our collection efforts on behalf of South Texas
College. We present this summary in an effort to keep you and the Board of Trustees informed as to
our efforts and activities.

Enclosed, you will find summaries of the different collection efforts made by our office.
Understanding the need of each County is unique, we have developed a team approach that
individualizes the collection efforts in each area. The Hidalgo County team is led by Mrs. Lucy
Canales and the Starr County team is led by Mr. Gustavo Martinez. Each attorney brings many years
of experience to this endeavor and coordinates a team effort in which will result in better collections for
South Texas College.

Very Truly Yours, Very Truly Yours,

Lttoy <. Canaliys 0%
Lucy G. Canales Gustavo Martinez
Capital Partner Attorney



LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON APPROACH

Demand Mailings

Litigation Statistics
Taxpayer Contact
Personal Visits
Constable’s Sales

Over 7,597
Incoming/Outgoing
Calls

Over 109 Payment

Agreements Initiated
Over 1,071 Personal
Visits

Over 1,222 Pay Off
Requests

The delinquent tax collection program for the South Texas College
continues to emphasize two basic premises: work with individual
taxpayers to collect taxes owed to South Texas College and use tool of
litigation as a final option.

DEMAND MAILINGS

Our extensive mailing program is designed to advise people who have not
paid their South Texas College taxes of their delinquency. During the
course of this quarter, we sent delinquent notices, with varying degrees
of intensity to the delinquent taxpayer. The intensity of the notice varies
on factors, such as, time of year, type of property and the particular
needs of the jurisdiction.

Hidalgo County: One (1) Mailing was completed for the Hidalgo County
area with a total of 19,924 statements that were mailed out.

Starr County: One (1) Mailings Completed for the Starr County area
with a total of 13,166 statements that were mailed out.

LITIGATION SUMMARY

Filing a lawsuit to collect delinquent taxes is used as a final resort; after
diligent efforts to contact and work with taxpayers are fully exhausted.
Once the decision to file suit has been made, a complete property title
search is conducted, the taxable property is further identified and all
interested parties including all lien holders, are identified and served with
notice of the lawsuit.

Hidalgo County
Litigation Activity Cases

Base, Penalty and

Interest
e Lawsuits Filed 343 $168,154
e Interventions 132 $88,856
e Lawsuits Disposed 136 $185,656
e Judgments Taken 184 $132,848
e Tax Warrants 17 $5,392
e Pending Litigation as of 4/11/15 3,926 $2,510,201



Starr County

e QOver 2,065

Incoming/Outgoing Litigation Activity Base, Penalty and
Interest
s its Fi 141 $152,190
e Over 174 Personal * lawsuits Filed ’
. e Judgments Taken 3 $2,464
e Pending Litigation as of 1/15/15 566 $769,264

e Over 671 Taxpayer
Walk-Ins

Tax Sale Activity

Hidalgo County

Our Office regularly monitors all judgments we take on behalf of South
Texas College. During this reporting period, one (1) tax sale was
conducted in Hidalgo County placing forty six (46) properties for sale.

$1.350 m Struck Off (17)

B Pulled-Payment Agreement
(2)
m Sold (8)

M Pulled-Paid Before Sale (10)

M Pulled-Other (7)

m Pulled-Bankruptcy (2)

$394



Starr County

During this reporting period, one (1) tax sale was conducted in Starr
County placing forty seven (47) properties for sale.

M Pulled-Payment
Agreement (12)

m Sold (7)
m Struck Off (15)
B Pulled-Paid

Before Sale (6)
M Pulled-Other (7)

BANKRUPTCY CLAIMS FILED

All Bankruptcy Filings

Ch. 7 80
CH. 11 60
Ch. 12 3
Ch.13 898
Total 1,041

$108,874
$194,194

$1,554
$196,172
$500,794

South Texas College is represented in all bankruptcies involving a
delinquent taxpayer in your jurisdiction. Representation includes filing
claims, monitoring the bankruptcy process, attending hearings, engaging
in active litigation and doing everything to protect and maximize the
South Texas College interest. Our program identifies accounts dismissed
and discharged from bankruptcy that are now ready for collections or law
suit.

Chapter Seven: Complete liquidation of a debtor's non-exempt assets.
Chapter Eleven: This allows a Corporation to devise a plan to reorganize
its debts and obligations to allow extended repayment of its creditors.
Chapter Twelve: Same as Chapter 13 but specifically designed for
agricultural businesses.

Chapter Thirteen: Entitled "Adjustment of Debts of an Individual with

Regular Income," permits a person to retain that amount of earned
income necessary for living expenses while paying the court the
remainder to be distributed among the individual's creditors to pay off
debts on an installment basis.



COLLECTION HIGHLIGHTS

Hidalgo County Collections

$1,200,000 -
$1,000,000 - $981,486
$815,832
$800,000 - $312,292
$231,501
$600,000 -
M P&I
$400,000 - e
1 x
$584,331 $669,195 Ta
$200,000 -
$0 -
Dec. 2013-Feb. 2014 Dec. 2014-Feb. 2015
DTR $8,267,168 DTR $8,047,177

Source: Hidalgo Co. Tax Office

Starr County Collections

$200,000 -
$182,532
$180,000 -
$160,000 - $155,612
$64,790
$140,000 -
$47,632
$120,000 -
$100,000 - mP&I
$80,000 T M Base
Tax
$60,000 - $107,980 $117,742
$40,000 -
$20,000 -
$0 -
Dec. 2013-Feb. 2014 Dec. 2014-Feb. 2015
DTR $2,670,914 DTR $2,851,840

Source: Starr Co. Tax Office



FUTURE OVERVIEW

Review of Pending Judgments and the Filing of Additional Lawsuits

e During the next quarter we will continue to work pending lawsuits for
full payment or payment agreements. We will also continue
researching the delinquent tax roll for possible new lawsuits; both real
and personal property accounts.

e We will place high priority on top delinquent accounts for collections
that are in litigation.

e We will continue filing lawsuits every month on delinquent accounts
owing 3 or more years.

Continued Monitoring of Bankruptcy Accounts
e As a continuation of our standard operating practice, we will actively
monitor and verify accounts in bankruptcy for the payment of taxes,
penalties, and interest owed to South Texas College.
e We will continue to represent the District in court on all bankruptcy
matters.

Mailing Program
Scheduled mailings on behalf of the South Texas College for the following

months:
e March 2015 (Completed)
e April 2015
e May 2015

Scheduling of Property Sales

As properties are taken to judgment, they will be reviewed and checked
for payment. Those judgments with no taxpayer response will be further
reviewed and scheduled for possible tax sale.

Property Visits
On site visits are being conducted on targeted accounts weekly.

Execution of the work plan established for the South Texas College will include the constant
monitoring of collection figures in order to adjust resources and enforce the collection of
delinquent taxes. Our collection efforts will also include prosecuting pending suits to
conclusion, mailing monthly letters, and filing new suits in order to maximize the collection of
taxes. We will continue to work closely with you and your administrative staff to provide
assistance and advice on all property tax matters, including changes in the law brought about
by amendments to the Texas Property Tax Code.



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 2

Approval of Minutes

The following Minutes are submitted for Board approval:

March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and adopt the
Minutes for the March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting as presented.
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and adopts the Minutes for the March
31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting as presented.
Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 1

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, March 31, 2015 at 5:30 p.m.
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room
Pecan Campus, McAllen, TX 78501

Minutes

Call Meeting to Order:

The Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on
Tuesday, March 31, 2015 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at the
Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas. The meeting commenced at 5:30 p.m. with Mr. Roy
de Ledn, Chair, presiding.

Members present: Mr. Roy de Leon, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mr. Paul Rodriguez, Ms. Rose
Benavidez, Mr. Gary Gurwitz, and Mr. Jesse Villarreal.

Members absent: Mrs. Graciela Farias

Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mr. Chuy Ramirez, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Dr. Anahid
Petrosian, Dr. David Plummer, Mrs. Wanda Garza, Mr. Gerry Rodriguez, Mrs. Becky
Cavazos, Ms. Myriam Lopez, Mr. Cody Gregg, Dr. Robert Gonzalez, Ms. Cindy Blanco,
Mr. Daniel Ramirez, Dr. Ety Bischoff, Mr. Ricardo de la Garza, Mr. Paul Varville, Ms.
Maricela Silva, Mrs. Brenda Balderaz, Ms. Lizette Moreno, Mr. Gilbert Gallegos, Mr.
Rolando Garcia, Ms. Diana Bravos Gonzalez, Mr. Gus Martinez, Mr. Eddie Vela, Mr. Ben
Macias, Mr. Michael Hovar, Ms. Danya Hernandez, and Andrew Fish.

Determination of a Quorum

A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted.

Invocation:

Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, said the
invocation.

Public Comments:

No public comments were given and a notice of the meeting was posted.

Presentations

Presentation on State Employee Charitable Campaign at South Texas College

Mrs. Brenda Balderaz, Director of Human Resources, spoke briefly about the State
Employee Charitable Campaign and introduced Ms. Lizette Moreno, Human Resources
Staffing Specialist. Ms. Moreno serves as the College’s State Employee Charitable
Campaign (SECC) Co-Coordinator and as the Vice-Chair of the local SECC.

10 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 2

The State Employee Charitable Campaign is a program set up by the Texas Comptroller,
and allows state employees to set up payroll deductions to support qualified charities of
their choice.

The local campaign was managed by the United Way of South Texas, and on Thursday,
March 12, 2015 the United Way of South Texas recognized South Texas College as the
“#1 State Support of Texas” for the generous contributions of its employees through this
program.

From 2005 through 2011, South Texas College faculty and staff were the largest
contributors to this campaign within the region. In 2012, UTPA was the top contributor,
but South Texas College regained the honor of becoming the Top State Supporter for
2013 and again for 2014.

South Texas College employees pledged $$41,268 in donations for 2014, with a total of
143 employees patrticipating.

Presentation on McAllen ISD Bond Proposal

A team from McAllen Independent School District attended the meeting to share a brief
video and presentation on the school district’s proposed bond and tax ratification election.
The team consisted of:

Dr. James Ponce, Superintendent of McAllen Independent School District,
Erica Lopez de la Garza, Board President

Hilda de Shazo, Trustee

Lawrence Esparza, Trustee

Dr. Mike Barrera, Assistant Superintendent for District Operations,

Gina Millin, Facilities Forecast Advisory Committee Co-Chair, and

Norma Zamora-Guerra, Community Information Director.

The team shared their plan to continue providing community meetings to give the public
information about the districts plans to address facilities needs for the students and
families served by McAllen ISD.

No action was requested at this meeting. The South Texas College Board offered to

consider a formal resolution at the April 28", 2015 Regular Board Meeting if the school
district wished to present one for consideration.

Approval of Minutes
The following Minutes were submitted for Board approval:

February 24, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

11 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 3

Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de Ledn and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the Minutes for the February
24, 2015 Regular Board Meeting as written. The motion carried.

Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s)

Authorization to accept and approve the following grant awards and use of related funds
as authorized by each grant was requested. The second grant item was received after
publication of the Board packet, and was distributed to the Board for review and
consideration at the meeting, with additional information provided by Dr. Shirley A. Reed,
College President.

1. Additional “Nursing Shortage Reduction Program-Regular’ Funds from Texas
Higher Education Coordinating Board in the amount of $81,551.51

2. The “Jobs and Education for Texans (JET)” Grant from the Texas Comptroller of
Public Accounts Office in the amount of $113,189.31

The presented grants would provide up to $194,740.82 in additional funding for the
College to provide services and opportunities throughout the region.

Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de Ledn and a second by Mr. Gary Gurwitz, the Board of
Trustees approved and authorized acceptance of the grant awards as presented and use
of related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent upon official award as
appropriate. The motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary to Offer the Fast Start Certificate for
Precision Manufacturing Technology

The Board was asked to approve the proposed new Fast Start Certificate for Precision
Manufacturing Technology.

As part of the Fast Start Programs in Precision Manufacturing Technology and Computer
Systems Management Technician grant from the Texas Workforce Commission, South
Texas College developed a new certificate program: Fast Start Certificate for Precision
Manufacturing Technology. Grant funds of $97,999 supported the design of a Certificate
program to allow individuals with working experience to earn a Certificate in a
compressed amount of time.

Students would engage in coursework to test and gain necessary technical skills.
Through the use of a credit-by-exam system, some skills could be demonstrated and
awarded with college credit, allowing experienced and proficient students to earn their

12 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 4

credential more quickly than traditional programs. Other classes would be offered online
or as a hybrid combination of classroom and online courses.

Students completing this program would need to complete at least three National Institute
of Metalworking Skills (NIMS) credentials to complete the program. Because this
program was developed as a stackable credential, graduates would then have the option
to build upon their Fast Start Certificate for Precision Manufacturing Technology to
complete the one year Certificate or the Associate of Applied Science Degree.

The packet included:

The Program Summaries;

Expected Enrollment;

Occupational Needs in the region, state, and nation;
Estimated Wages;

Proposed Degree Plan; and

South Texas College Program Evaluation Plan

The Education and Workforce Development Committee recommended Board approval of
the proposed new Fast Start Certificate for Precision Manufacturing Technology program
as presented.

Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Gary Gurwitz, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposed new Fast Start
Certificate for Precision Manufacturing Technology program as presented. The motion
carried.

Review of Other Items Presented to the Committee

Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. presided over the March 19, 2015 Education and Workforce
Development Committee Meeting. At this meeting, there were two items presented for
the Committee which did not require formal Board action. Dr. Salinas reported on these
items to keep the full Board informed of the presented information:

1) Committee Approval to Develop Associate of Applied Science Degree in Law

Enforcement with Specialization in Crime Scene Technology and a
Certificate in Crime Scene Technology

The Education and Workforce Development Committee was asked for approval to
develop two new programs:

13 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 5

a. Associate of Applied Science Degree in Law Enforcement with Specialization in
Crime Scene Technology (AAS)
b. Certificate in Crime Scene Technology

Development of these programs could begin with Committee authorization. Upon
development, each program would be presented to the Education and Workforce
Development Committee for review and recommendation and the Board of Trustees for
approval before being offered to students.

The Education and Workforce Development Committee approved the development of the
proposed new Associate of Applied Science Degree in Law Enforcement with
Specialization in Crime Scene Technology and the Certificate in Crime Scene Technology
as presented. Once these programs are developed, they will be presented to the
Committee and the Board for approval.

2) Report on Programs Offered through Continuing, Professional, and
Workforce Education

Mr. Juan Carlos Aguirre, Associate Dean for Continuing, Professional, and Workforce
Education provided a report on continuing, professional, and workforce education
programs offered at South Texas College.

These items were for the Committee’s information and feedback to staff, and no Board
action was requested.

Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposal, Purchases,
and Renewal

Approval of the following proposal award, purchases, and renewal was requested as
follows:

1) Fiber Optic Transceivers (Award): award the proposal for fiber optic transceivers
to Optimum, Inc. (Omaha, NE), at a total cost of $21,774.65;

2) Computers, Laptops, Tablets and Printers (Purchase): purchase of computers,
laptops, tablets and printers from the State of Texas Department of Information
Resources (DIR) approved vendors Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), Apple, Inc.
(Dallas, TX), Computer Repair Center (McAllen, TX), and from the National Joint
Powers Alliance (NJPA) approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon Hills, IL), in
the total amount of $150,410.23;

3) Furniture (Purchase): purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award
Schedule (TXMAS) and the Texas Association of School Boards — Buyboard
approved vendors, at a total amount of $41,408.50

14 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 6

t# Vendor Amount

A | Allsteel, Inc./ $3,031.70
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

B | Cramer, LLC./ $762.02
Gateway Printing and Office Supply Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

C | Datum Filing Systems, Inc./ $2,155.35
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

D | Exemplis Corporation/ $3,172.70
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

E | The Hon Company/ $3,453.28
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

F |ISE, Inc./ $1,259.40
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

G | Lone Star Furnishing, LLC. (Edinburg, TX) $27,574.05

Total $41,408.50

4) Graduation Production Services (Purchase): purchase graduation production
services from Backstage Productions, LLC. (McAllen, TX), a sole source vendor,
at an estimated cost of $18,500.00; Graduation ceremonies will be held at the
State Farm Arena in Hidalgo, Texas on May 15 and May 16, 2015.

5) Network Cable Analyzers (Purchase): purchase network cable analyzers from
Black Box Network Services, Inc. (Lawrence, PA), The Interlocal Purchasing
System (TIPS) approved vendor, at a total cost of $15,363.23;

6) Network Equipment (Purchase): purchase network equipment from Insight
Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas Department of
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $24,801.28;

7) Network Switches and Software Licenses (Purchase): purchase network
switches and software license from Insight Public Sector (Tempe/AZ/McAllen, TX),
a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at
a total cost of $229,192.40;

8) Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) (Purchase): purchase uninterruptible
power supply (UPS) from Anixter, Inc. (Glenview, IL), a State of Texas Department
of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $15,743.06;

9) Travel Services (Renewal): renew the contract for Travel Services with Shands-
Brooks Travel (McAllen, TX), for the period beginning May 20, 2015 through May
19, 2016, at a service fee of $25.00 per airline ticket.

SUMMARY TOTAL:

15 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM

Page 7

The total for all proposal award, purchases, and renewal was $517,193.35.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposal award,
purchases, and renewal as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary to Revise Policy #3800: Full Time
Regular Faculty (On Board Approved Staffing Plan) Assignments and

Workloads As Conditions of Employment

Approval to revise Policy #3800: Full Time Regular Faculty (On Board Approved Staffing
Plan) Assignments and Workloads As Conditions of Employment was requested.

Revisions to the policy were necessary for the following reasons:

Change to Item #2.
= Additional language was recommended to expand the description of the time

and locations that faculty may be required to work. This language was included
in the current letter of appointment.

Change to Item #6:
= The purpose of the requirement for approvals of faculty overloads was to

monitor faculty workload and ensure quality instruction. The current LHE
approvals listed in Policy 3800 were established to require a one course
overload to be approved by the Chair, a two course overload by the Dean, and
more than a two course overload by the Vice President for Academic Affairs.

= A small number of courses included lab components that increased the course

LHE to a fraction above five hours (5.1 LHE of 5.2 LHE). When instructors
taught these courses as overload assignments, the current wording of the
policy treated anything above five hours as two courses and above ten hours
as three courses, meaning these faculty required Dean or Vice President
approval for the first and second overload, respectively. The proposed revision
created consistency regarding the number of courses requiring approval by
Chair, Dean, and Vice President across all disciplines and departments.

This change was approved by the Academic Council and as part of the 2014-
2015 Pay Plan, and the policy needed to be updated to reflect the current Pay
Plan.

The revised policy was provided in the packet for the Board’s information and review. The
additions to the policy were highlighted in yellow and the deletions were designated with
a strikeout.

16 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 8

The revised policy was reviewed by staff, the President's Cabinet, President’s
Administrative Staff, Planning and Development Council Staff, and the Academic Affairs
Council.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the
revisions to Policy #3800: Full Time Regular Faculty (On Board Approved Staffing Plan)
Assignments and Workloads As Conditions of Employment as presented and which
supersedes any previously adopted Board policy.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the revisions to Policy
#3800: Full Time Regular Faculty (On Board Approved Staffing Plan) Assignments and
Workloads As Conditions of Employment as presented and which supersedes any
previously adopted Board policy. The motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary to Revise Policy # 4209: The Whistle
Blower Act

Approval to revise Policy # 4209: The Whistle Blower Act was requested.
Revisions to the policy were necessary for the following reasons:

e To clarify and update the state statute, Texas Government Code Chapter 554,
Protection for Reporting Violation of Law which governs the provisions of The
Whistle Blower Act.

The revised policy was provided in the packet for the Board’s information and review. The
additions to the policy were highlighted in yellow and the deletions were designated with
a strikeout.

The revised policy was reviewed by staff, the President's Cabinet, President’s
Administrative Staff, Planning and Development Council Staff, and by South Texas
College’s legal counsel.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the
revisions to Policy # 4209: The Whistle Blower Act as presented and which supersedes
any previously adopted Board policy.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the revisions to Policy #
4209: The Whistle Blower Act as presented and which supersedes any previously
adopted Board policy. The motion carried.

17 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 9

Review and Action as Necessary on Investment Advisory Services
Agreement
Approval to award the Investment Advisory Services agreement to Valley View
Consulting, L.L.C. for the initial period of April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2017, with the

option to renew for two additional one (1) year periods was requested.

Need for Investment Advisory Services

South Texas College’s previous bank depository contract with BBVA Compass allowed
investments of cash on hand in Certificates of Deposit. The interest rate earned was
based on the LIBOR rate. The depository bank would also pay interest on all College’s
demand deposit accounts (checking accounts) regardless of the balance on the account
also based on the LIBOR rate.

Under the new depository contract with BBVA Compass, the interest rate structure
changed. The bank would pay an interest rate of 10 basis points per annum for demand
deposits in an amount not to exceed $100,000,000. For demand deposits exceeding
$100,000,000, the bank would pay a lower interest rate. For Certificates of Deposit, the
Bank agreed to pay interest regardless of the amount based on the LIBOR index and
would independently evaluate each CD rate upon request, however, there was a
possibility that the interest rate may be lower than the demand deposit accounts (checking
accounts) of 10 basis points per annum.

Legal Authority for College to Contract for Investment Advisory Services

In accordance with Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, the Public Funds Investment
Act, and the College’s Investment Policy & Investment Strategy Statement, the Board of
Trustees may contract with an investment management firm registered under the
Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or with the State Securities Board to provide for the
investment and management of public funds under its control.

By acquiring the services of an investment advisory firm, the college would have access
to professional advice related to types of investments, yield rate, risks, accuracy and
completeness of College's investment policy and other important information on an as
needed basis.

Board and Committee Oversight of Investments

In order to properly and safely expand into new types of investments and maximize the
yield rate on the College’s investment, administration recommended to the Finance and
Human Resources Committee at their September 11, 2014 meeting that the services of
an investment advisor would provide professional guidance regarding the College’s
investment portfolio.

The investment advisor would augment the College's effort to be fiscally responsible and
minimize risk in its investment activities. The investment advisor would stay abreast of
investment markets and would provide the investment options to the College for review
by the Finance and Human Resource Committee and approval by the Board of Trustees,
as applicable.

18 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 10

Solicitation of Qualifications

The request for qualifications were advertised in The Monitor and online at the South
Texas College Purchasing Department website on Monday, February 16, 2015 and
Monday, February 23, 2015 and issued to six (6) firms. Three (3) responses were received
and evaluated by the Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, the
Comptroller, an Accounting Group Manager, and the Associate Director of Purchasing.
This team evaluated the proposals and prepared a proposal summary and evaluation that
were included in the packet. The respondents were:

e First Southwest Asset Management, LLC

e Patterson Capital Management LP, dba Patterson & Associates

e Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.

Recommended Firm — Background and Qualifications

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. was a Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
registered investment advisory firm serving public entities in a variety of cash and
investment management and consulting roles. They had a total of seven senior managers
and associates with a combined Texas public funds experience exceeding 130 years.
Each member would play an integral role in providing their expertise to fulfill the
investment contract objectives of the College. Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.’s office of
record and registration is in Virginia and maintains an office in Horseshoe Bay, Texas.

Additional positive information related to Valley View Consulting L.L.C. was provided as
follows:

e Exclusively provided investment and consulting services to public entities since
inception (1998).

e Two Investment Advisors, Richard Long and Susan Anderson, have provided
Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) required public fund investor training through
the University of North Texas for almost two decades and were involved with the
original drafting of the PFIA and subsequent reviews of proposed amendments.

e One of the Investment Advisors, Susan Anderson, held an officer position in the
Government Treasurers’ Organization of Texas and also chaired their Legislative
Committee.

e Staffs a Chief Compliance Officer who is responsible for ensuring that activities are
compliant with all laws, rules and regulations and resolving and disclosing conflicts
of interest.

e Maintains an online reporting system that the College staff may access for real-
time data.

e Maintains a client/consultant ratio of 7 to 1.

References of Recommended Investment Advisory Firm

At the request of the Finance and Human Resources Committee meeting, Mrs. Mary
Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, conducted additional
reference checks with the Investment Officers at peer institutions in the State of Texas
that currently receive investment advisory services from the recommended firm. In
addition to the University of Texas Pan American Foundation, four colleges were
contacted, Austin Community College, Houston Community College, Lone Star College,

19 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 11

and Tyler Junior College. The college’s Investment Officers indicated that Valley View
L.L.P. has provided excellent services and was highly recommended. Mrs. Elizondo will
be available at the Board Meeting to respond to questions from the Board.

At the request of the President, staff surveyed ten (10) other community colleges in Texas
regarding their use of investment advisors. Valley View L.L.P. currently provides
investment advisory services to four (4) of these colleges.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the
award of the Investment Advisory Services agreement to Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
for the initial period of April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2017, with the option to renew,
with Board approval, for two additional one (1) year periods as presented.

Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez abstained from the Finance and Human Resources Committee
vote to recommend Board approval on this item.

A representative from Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. attended the meeting and
responded to questions from the Trustees regarding the nature of advising services and
general compensation structure that would be provided under an agreement. The
consultant would advise the College on investment options, but would not directly handle
financial transactions. Furthermore, the fee would be based upon the volume of
investments, rather than the performance of investment funds.

Furthermore, the consultant stated that the investment of public funds would explicitly
focus on security as the primary focus any investment advice, with a secondary focus of
scheduling investment opportunities to provide for liquid assets as needed for college
operations. Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. would not prioritize return on investment
above security and liquidity as described.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the award of the Investment
Advisory Services agreement to Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. for the initial period of
April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2017, with the option to renew, with Board approval, for
two additional one (1) year periods as presented. The motion carried.

Discussion and Action as Necessary on Proposed New Staff
Positions for the In-House Internal Audit Function for FY 2015-2016

Approval of the proposed new staff positions for the In-House Internal Audit Function for
FY 2015-2016 in the total amount of $126,000 was requested.

The Board of Trustees, at their January 27, 2015 Board Meeting, approved the plan for
the transition of out-sourced internal audit function to an in-house function. An internal
auditor position and a staff audit specialist position were approved as part of this function
as follows:

20 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM

Page 12
Position Classification Salary Benefits Total
Internal Auditor Administrative $90,000 $27,000| $117,000
Grade E
Staff Audit Specialist Professional/ $36,000 $10,800 $46,800
Technical
Non Exempt
Grade B
$126,000 $37,800| $163,800

The College administration recommended the following plan for transitioning to an in-
house internal audit function.

The contract with Burton McCumber & Cortez, LLP would be extended for a period
of three months after the end of their current contract. The extended period would
be from September 2015 through November 2015.

During the period of January 2015 through November 2015, Burton McCumber &
Cortez, LLP would continue to perform internal audits, as approved by the board.

An internal auditor position and a staff audit specialist position would be included
in the FY 2015-2016 Staffing Plan and Budget, which would begin on September
1, 2015. Budgets for operating, travel, and capital expenses would also be
included.

The internal auditor would functionally report to the Board of Trustees and
President and administratively to the Vice President for Finance and Administrative
Services.

The internal auditor would be expected to follow the provisions of the Texas
Internal Auditing Act and comply with the Code of Ethics and the Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as promulgated by the Institute of Internal
Auditors.

The department’s budget and job descriptions for the internal auditor and the staff audit
specialist follows in the packet.

These new staff positions are recommended for FY 2015-2016 subject to the availability
of funding and Board approval of the final budget.

Advertising of the proposed new staff positions can begin in April 2015, with the
understanding that the positions will not be filled until final approval of the Staffing Plan
for FY 2015-2016 and the Budget for FY 2015-2016.

The budget for the in-house internal audit function for the first year was estimated to be

21 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 13

$200,000.00, including salaries and benefits. This total included salaries, benefits, and
operating costs for the department. The requested Board action was limited to approving
the position salaries, contingent upon the availability of funding and Board approval of a
budget and staffing plan for FY 2015-2016. Because the action was limited to salaries,
the Board was only asked to approve the proposed positions and proposed salaries
totaling $126,000.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the
proposed new staff positions for the In-House Internal Audit Function for FY 2015-2016 in
the amount of $126,000 as presented and subject to the availability of funding and Board
approval of the final budget and staffing plan.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposed new staff
positions for the In-House Internal Audit Function for FY 2015-2016 in the amount of
$126,000 as presented and subject to the availability of funding and Board approval of the
final budget and staffing plan. The motion carried.

Review and Acceptance of South Texas College Police Department
Racial Profiling Report

Pursuant to Texas Occupations Code 1701.164, the Texas Commission on Law
Enforcement (TCOLE) is required to collect incident-based data, including racial profiling
reports based upon vehicle traffic stops, in accordance with the Code of Criminal
Procedure Article 2.131-2.138. Chief administrators of law enforcement agencies must
submit the racial profiling reports to their governing body, in addition to TCOLE.

During calendar year 2014, the South Texas College Police Department conducted traffic
stops within its jurisdiction in accordance with Texas Education Code section 51.203.

The Code of Criminal Procedure Article 2.132 is shown below:

Title 1. Code Of Criminal Procedure, Chapter 2. General Duties Of Officers, Art.
2.132. Law Enforcement Policy On Racial Profiling.

(7) Require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the
administrator is elected, employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report
of the information collected under Subdivision (6) to:

(A) The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement; and

(B) The governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency,
if the agency is an agency of a county, municipality, or other political
subdivision of the state.

The South Texas College Police Department Racial Profiling Report for 2014 was
provided in the packet for the Board’s information and review. This report was submitted

29 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 14

to the State of Texas, through the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE), on
January 5, 2015. TCOLE confirmed receipt of the report, and the confirmation was
included with the report.

The state would utilize this report in any investigation of any complaint of racial profiling
against a law enforcement agency. The South Texas College Police Department has
received no such complaints.

This item was presented to the Finance and Human Resources Committee on March 19,
2015 for a preliminary review. It is now presented to the Board of Trustees of South
Texas College as required by the State of Texas.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board
of Trustees of South Texas College accepted the South Texas College Police Department
Racial Profiling Report as presented. The motion carried.

Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program

Mr. Gilbert Gallegos from Broaddus & Associates attended the March 31, 2015 Regular
Board meeting and provided an update on the 2013 Bond Construction Program.

The Board packet included a copy of the presentation prepared by Broaddus &
Associates for the March 19, 2015 Board Facilities Committee meeting as an update on
the status of the 2013 Bond Construction Program.

Mr. Gallegos briefly outlined the ongoing projects, and announced that Construction-
Manager-at-Risk proposals had been received and that Broaddus & Associates and staff
were preparing to review them for a recommendation to the Facilities Committee. He
informed the Board that approximately seven firms had responded as of March 31, 2015.

This item was for the Board’s information and feedback, and no action was taken.

Review and Action as Necessary on Mechanical and Civil Engineering
and Surveying Fees for the 2013 Bond Construction Program

Approval of the negotiated mechanical and civil engineering and surveying fees for the
2013 Bond Construction Program was requested.

Broaddus & Associates staff completed fee negotiations with all engineering firms which
were previously approved for the 2013 Bond Construction Program projects. The packet
included a list of projects and associated fees as negotiated with each firm. Mr. Gilbert
Gallegos from Broaddus & Associates attended the March 19, 2015 Board Facilities
Committee meeting to review the proposed fees for each project, and was present for the
Board discussion as well.

23 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 15

The contract for these engineering services, as approved by the Board, included the
option to add additional surveying services to accompany civil engineering projects. The
Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of those services, and the adjusted
fees were included in the recommendation and total fees shown in the table included in
the Board packet.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed mechanical and
civil engineering and surveying fees for the 2013 Bond Construction Program as
presented.

Mr. Gary Gurwitz moved for Board approval of the proposed mechanical and civil
engineering and surveying fees for the 2013 Bond Construction Program as presented,
and Mr. Jesse Villarreal seconded the motion.

Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez noted a discrepancy between the recommended fees for
mechanical engineering services to the Starr County Campus and Pecan Campus as
compared to the negotiated fee for mechanical engineering services at the Mid Valley
Campus. He asked Mr. Gallegos whether the scope of work and services would be
comparable at each location, and Mr. Gallegos stated that they were reasonably
comparable.

Mr. Gerry Rodriguez stated that they had confirmed the scope of services with the firm
agreeing to the 7% rate, and that firm intended to deliver the full scope for that fee.

Mr. Rodriguez then asked Mr. Gallegos whether Broaddus & Associates would be able
to return to the firms recommended for the Pecan Campus and Starr County Campus
projects offer a best-and-final fee of 7%, to match the lowest negotiated fee for
mechanical engineering services for 2013 Bond Construction Program projects.

Mr. Gallegos confirmed that Broaddus & Associates would be willing to provide a best-
and-final counter offer to the firms if instructed to do so by the Board.

Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. indicated that there was currently a motion, and the motion would
need to be modified or rescinded to permit the Board to discuss any other action.

Mr. Gary Gurwitz offered to rescind or modify the motion; however Mr. Jesse Villarreal
chose not to rescind the second to the motion as presented, requiring the Board to vote
on the motion as originally presented. This motion included the mechanical and civil
engineering fees and additional surveying fees negotiated as follows:

Mechanical Engineering Services:

Project Scheduled Fee Final Fee
Pecan Campus Thermal Plant 7.73% 7.52%
$4,300,000 $332,390 $323,360

Halff Associates

24 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 16

Project Scheduled Fee Final Fee
Mid-Valley Thermal Plant 7.87% 7.00%
$3,800,000 $299,060 $266,000
DBR Engineering
Starr County Thermal Plant 7.87% 7.66%
$3,800,000 $299,060 $291,080
Sigma Engineering

Civil Engineering and Surveying Services:
Scheduled Final *Survey

Project Fee Fee Fee Total
Technology Campus Site Imp. 9.20% 9.05%
$650,000 $59,800 $58,825 $10,000 $68,825
Hinojosa Engineering
Nursing & Allied Health Site 8.75% 8.64%
$1,100,000 $96,250 $95,040 $9,431 $104,471
R. Gutierrez Engineering
Mid Valley Parking & Site Imp 8.65% 8.50%
$2,000,000 $173,000 $170,000 $10,000 $180,000
Halff Associates
Starr Co. Parking & Site Imp 8.75% 8.25%
$1,000,000 $87,500 $82,500 $6,500 $89,000
Melden & Hunt Eng.
Pecan Parking & Site Impr. 8.65% 8.15%
$2,000,000 $173,000 $163,000 $10,000 $173,000

PCE Engineers

*Note: Survey Fee is requested as an additional service

By a vote of 4 — 2, with Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez dissenting, the
Board of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposed
mechanical and civil engineering and surveying fees for the 2013 Bond Construction

Program as presented. The motion carried.

25

03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes




Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 17

Discussion and Action as Necessary to Designate Location of New
Library Building for the Pecan Campus

Approval of the new location of the South Academic Building and designation of the
location of any future library in the former location of the South Academic Building was
requested.

The need for a new library building on the Pecan Campus was a priority facility need.
While a new library was eliminated from the 2013 Bond Program, the need remained for
a new library building on the Pecan Campus.

Boultinghouse Simpson Gates Architects were ready to begin the design of the South
Academic building located at the main entrance to the Pecan Campus while this is the
preferred location for a new library.

Need for Library Space on Pecan Campus

Administration recently evaluated future facility needs for the Pecan campus and
determined that the highest priority and concern is the need for a new larger library.
Boultinghouse Simpson Gates Architects previously determined that the present library
would be difficult and costly to expand. Even if the present library could be expanded, it
would have to be vacated in order to complete the renovation. Therefore, it is
recommended that a new building be built in order to maintain library operations in the
existing building until a new building is ready - no disruption. The existing library could
then be retrofitted for new classrooms and computer labs or could serve as a location for
student services functions.

The 2013 Bond Construction Program did not include the library even though it was a
high priority. The library was eliminated from the projects included in the 2013 Bond in
an effort to reduce the total amount of the bond. The proposed new library was included
in the Master Plan; however, it was scaled back and then placed on the list of second
level priorities.

A new library is being built in Starr County, the Mid Valley Campus library will double in
size, and the Nursing Campus will have a new library.

Adequate library space on the Pecan Campus is equally important. The attached New
Pecan Campus Library Talking Points outline the need and justification for the new facility.

Master Plan Information

The District-Wide Campus Expansion Master Plan developed by Freese and Nichols in
2010 identified the following space/construction needs:

26 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 18

Library, Center for Learning Excellence and Information Commons

a. New Library stacks, CLE and Information Commons space — 100,500 GSF

Retrofitting of Existing Library into Classroom and Offices

a. Renovate existing library building for classroom use and faculty offices.

The current Master Plan completed in 2010 identified the need for a 100,000 square foot
library for the Pecan Campus to serve the number of students attending that campus.
The current Library has a total of 67,000 square feet and no room for future growth. As
part of their master plan development for the Pecan Campus, Freese and Nichols, Inc.
recommended the construction of a new 100,000 square foot library building.

Options for Location of a New Library on Pecan Campus

The Master Plan recommendation included possible locations on the Pecan Campus for
the construction of a new library Building. The library could be located at any of the four
new facility locations on the Pecan Campus South Side.

Staff has reviewed the possible locations and recommends switching the locations of the
South Academic Building with the location of the future Library, as approved by the Board
on May 27, 2014, for the following reasons:

e Centrally located for most beneficial access

e Creates afocal point at the Campus entrance to enhance the “heart of the campus”
image

e A north facing entrance would capitalize on the environmental conditions and
permit greater use of glass in the design

e Location would be appropriate for a four story structure

Other Considerations

Staff presented options for parking, funding, and other construction issues as necessary
to the Facilities Committee and these issues will be discussed further at subsequent
meetings.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approve the new location of the South
Academic Building and designate the location of any future library to the former location
of the South Academic Building as presented.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the new location of the South
Academic Building and designate the location of any future library to the former location
of the South Academic Building as presented. The motion carried.

27 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 19

Review and Action as Necessary on Proposed Facility Lease
Agreement with McAllen Chamber of Commerce Creative Incubator

Approval of proposed facility lease agreement with McAllen Chamber of Commerce
Creative Incubator was requested.

STC’s Continuing Education Department continued to offer art classes in the McAllen
Chamber of Commerce Creative Incubator (formerly the McAllen Library). The current
lease agreement expired and therefore staff recommended that the agreement be
approved for an additional year in order to continue using this facility.

Below are the proposed lease terms and a description for the proposed use:

Proposed Use Estimated
Cost
E:Arcgtlﬁ/r; Two classrooms érc:nct:ﬁi?r? >or $3,000.00 9/1/2014 to
Incubator Education ($10/student) | 8/31/2015

Staff recommended approval of this facility lease agreement for use during the period
beginning September 1, 2014 through August 31, 2015. Funds for this lease would be
generated by students’ fees. It was estimated about 300 students would enroll in these
art classes during the fiscal year.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed facility lease
agreement with McAllen Chamber of Commerce for use of Creative Incubator facility as
presented.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposed facility lease
agreement with McAllen Chamber of Commerce for use of Creative Incubator facility as
presented. The motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Architectural Design
Services for the Technology Campus Building B Main Door and Frame
Replacement and Building C Conference Room
Approval to contract architectural design services for the design of the Technology
Campus Building B Main Door and Frame Replacement and Building C Conference

Room project was requested.

Funds for this project were included in the FY 2014-2015 construction budget. The packet
included a floor plan depicting the locations of the proposed improvements. The

28 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 20

improvements to the main door would replace the existing door and frame to prevent
water leaks. An exterior cover would be added to the main entrance to provide shade and
to prevent blowing rain from entering. The conference room would serve the NAAMREI
Department and would be built in a space that was currently underutilized.

Five architectural firms listed below were previously approved by the Board for one year
to provide professional services as needed for projects under $500,000.

Boultinghouse Simpson Gates Architects
EGV Architects, Inc.

ERO Architects, Inc.

PBK Architects

Rike Ogden Figueroa Allex Architects

agrwnE

Based on the following criteria, Rike Ogden Figueroa Allex Architects (ROFA) was
identified as the most qualified firm from the current list of approved architects and
therefore recommended to provide architectural design services for this project.

Criteria:
e Previous experience with facilities on the Technology Campus
e Project architect when this building was previously readapted for its current
use
e Experience with other STC campus projects

Funds in the amount of $110,000 were budgeted in the FY 2014-2015 construction
budget for these improvements and $16,500 were budgeted for design services with final
amount to be negotiated.

Project Budget
Budget Amount
Components Budgeted Actual Cost
Design $16,500 A_ctual c_ies[gn fees.are estimated at_$1p,450 and
will be finalized during contract negotiations.
Construction $110,000 Actual cost Wlll be determined after the solicitation
of construction proposals.

Staff would negotiate design fees with architect to determine an acceptable amount.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract architectural design
services with Rike Ogden Figueroa Allex Architects (ROFA) for the design of the
Technology Campus Building B Main Door and Frame Replacement and Building C
Conference Room project as presented.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting architectural
design services with Rike Ogden Figueroa Allex Architects (ROFA) for the design of the

29 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 21

Technology Campus Building B Main Door and Frame Replacement and Building C
Conference Room project as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting MEP Design Services
for the Starr County Campus Building E Data Center Generator

Approval to contract mechanical, electrical, and plumbing (MEP) engineering design
services for the Starr County Campus Building E Data Center Generator project was
requested.

As a result of the recent college-wide Business Impact Analysis (BIA), it was
recommended that a backup Data Center be prepared at the Starr County Campus. This
Data Center would serve as a backup for the main Data Center currently located on the
Pecan Campus. The existing Data Center housed the necessary computer servers which
supported the College’s business operations and telecommunications. Preparing the
backup Data Center at the Starr County Campus to include an electrical generator, would
allow the College to continue operating in the event of a disaster, fire, or extended power
outage affecting the Pecan Campus Data Center.

The three MEP engineering firms listed below were previously approved by the Board for
one year to provide professional services as needed for projects under $300,000.00.

1. DBR Engineering Consultants, Inc.
2. Halff Associates, Inc.
3. Sigma HN Engineers, PLLC

Based on the following criteria, Halff Associates was identified as the most qualified firm
from the current list of approved engineers and therefore recommended to provide
architectural design services for this project.

Criteria:
e Previous experience with facilities on the Starr County Campus
e Project engineer for the building where the generator will be installed
e Experience with other STC generators

Funds were available in the FY 2014-2015 construction budget for design and
construction of these improvements, with final engineering fees to be negotiated.

30 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 22

Project Budget
Budget Components | Available Funds Estimated Cost
Actual design fees are estimated
between $22,000and $24,000 and will
be finalized during contract
negotiations.
Actual cost will be determined after
Construction $225,000 the solicitation of construction
proposals.

Design $25,000

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract Mechanical,
Electrical, and Plumbing (MEP) engineering design services with Halff Associates for the
Starr County Campus Building E Data Center Generator project as presented..

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting Mechanical,
Electrical, and Plumbing (MEP) engineering design services with Halff Associates for the
Starr County Campus Building E Data Center Generator project as presented. The
motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary on Pool of Firms for Civil
Engineering Services

Approval of a pool of firms to provide civil engineering design services as needed for non-
bond projects with construction costs of less than $500,000 was requested.

The previously approved pool to provide civil engineering design services expired on
November 28, 2014. It was recommended that a minimum of four (4) firms be approved
for a period beginning March 31, 2015 through March 30, 2016 with the option to renew
for two one-year periods.

On January 2, 2015, a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for solicitation of these services
was made available and responses were received on January 27, 2015. A total of fifteen
(15) firms submitted responses to the RFQ. The evaluation team provided a summary of
scoring and ranking for review by the Board.

Once a pool of firms was selected and approved by the Board of Trustees, the firms would
be available to provide the College with civil engineering design services as needed for
non-bond projects. Staff would recommend use of firms from the proposed pool, for non-
bond projects as needed. Some of the anticipated engineering services which may be
provided were as follows:

e Preparation of subdivision plats

e Preparation of property surveys
e Preparation of topographic surveys

31 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 23

Preparation of meets and bounds surveys
Design of parking lots

Design of sidewalks and ADA accessible routes
Design of site drainage systems

Design of underground infrastructure

Design of landscape improvements

Design of irrigation systems

Design of roadways and drives

Resurfacing of existing parking lots and drives

Fees for these services could range from $1,000 to $48,000 depending on the scope and
complexity of each construction project. As part of the fee negotiations process, each firm
would be asked to submit a proposal after they have been assigned to a project. Each
fee proposal would be reviewed by staff and negotiated to reach a fair and reasonable
amount.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of a pool consisting of the top
four (4) ranked firms, listed alphabetically as: Halff Associates, Inc.; Melden & Hunt, Inc.;
Perez Consulting Engineers, LLC; and R. Gutierrez Engineering Corporation, to provide
civil engineering design services as needed for district-wide non-bond projects for the
period beginning March 31, 2015 through March 30, 2016 with the option to renew for two
one-year periods.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the pool consisting of the top
four (4) ranked firms, listed alphabetically as: Halff Associates, Inc.; Melden & Hunt, Inc.;
Perez Consulting Engineers, LLC; and R. Gutierrez Engineering Corporation, to provide
civil engineering design services as needed for district-wide non-bond projects for the
period beginning March 31, 2015 through March 30, 2016 with the option to renew for two
one-year periods. The motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction
Services for the Pecan Campus Student Support Services Building
Second Floor Re-carpeting

Approval to select a contractor for the Pecan Campus Student Support Services Building
Second Floor Re-Carpeting project was requested.

Carpeting in some areas of these buildings was greater than ten years old and was in
need of replacement. Staff proposed to replace the carpet with carpet tile which was the
current STC standard due to its higher quality and reduced maintenance.

STC staff issued the necessary plans and specifications for the solicitation of competitive
sealed proposals. Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for this project began on
February 9, 2015. A total of seven (7) sets of construction documents were issued to
general contractors, sub-contractors, and suppliers and a total of four (4) proposals were
received on February 24, 2015.

32 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM

Page 24
Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals
Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals.
February 9, 2015 Seven (7) sets of construction documents were
iIssued.
February 24, 2015 Four (4) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and prepared the attached proposal summary. It was
recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for Board approval.

Funds were available in the FY2014-2015 Renewals and Replacements budget for this
project.

Source of Funding Budget Available Highest Ranked Proposal

Renewals & Replacements $35,000 $31,336

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services
with Diaz Floors & Interiors in the amount of $31,336 for the Pecan Campus Student
Support Services Building Second Floor Re-Carpeting project as presented.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting construction
services with Diaz Floors & Interiors in the amount of $31,336 for the Pecan Campus
Student Support Services Building Second Floor Re-Carpeting project as presented. The
motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction
Services for Technology Campus West Academic Building Re-roofing

Approval to select a contractor for the Technology Campus West Academic Building Re-
roofing project was requested.

As part of the current fiscal year Facilities Deferred Maintenance Plan, facilities staff
included the replacement of the roof over the campus’ original building. The existing roof
was in place seventeen years and met its expected life cycle. Maintenance on the existing
roof surpassed normal levels and reoccurring leaks were a concern. This proposed repair
was not related to the March 2012 hail storm. The Technology Campus building roofs
were inspected for hail damage after the hail storm in March of 2012 and it was confirmed
that the roof for Building B was not damaged by hail.

Funds for the re-roofing of the West Academic Building at the Technology Campus were
included in the FY 2014-2015 renewals and replacements budget.

Amtech Building Sciences, Inc. assisted STC staff in preparing and issuing the necessary
plans and specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals. Solicitation
of competitive sealed proposals for this project began on January 8, 2015. A total of seven

33 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 25

(7) sets of construction documents were issued to general contractors, sub-contractors,
and suppliers and a total of three (3) proposals were received on January 28, 2015.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

January 8, 2015 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began.

January 28, 2015 Three (3) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and included a proposal summary in the packet. It was
recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for Board approval.

Funds were budgeted in the FY 2014-2015 Renewals and Replacements budget for this
project.

Source of Funding Amount Budgeted Highest Ranked Proposal
Renewals & Replacements $1,698,900 $1,296,000

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services
with Rio Roofing, Inc. in the amount of $1,296,000 for the Technology Campus West
Academic Building Re-roofing project as presented.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting construction
services with Rio Roofing, Inc. in the amount of $1,296,000 for the Technology Campus
West Academic Building Re-roofing project as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial Completion of the
Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building
Grants/Accountability Office Improvements

Approval of substantial completion of the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration
Building Grants/Accountability Office Improvements project was requested.

Architects with EGV Architects and STC staff visited the site and developed a construction
punch list. As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate
of Substantial Completion for the project was certified on February 6, 2015. Substantial
Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor
agreement for this project. A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate was provided
in the packet.

5 Star Construction would continue working on the punch list items identified and would
have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for
approval. It as anticipated that final acceptance of this project would be recommended
for approval at the April 2015 Board meeting.

34 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 26

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the substantial completion of
the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building Grants/Accountability Office
Improvements project as presented.

U[on a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the substantial completion of
the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building Grants/Accountability Office
Improvements project as presented. The motion carried.

Discussion and Action as Necessary Regarding STC vs Chubb
Insurance for Hail Damage Claim Settlement

The College was in discussion with Chubb Insurance regarding the Hail Damage Claim
Settlement, and this item was included to provide legal counsel with an opportunity to
update the Board of any updates on the claim.

Legal Counsel wished There were no updates provided and this item was skipped without
deliberation or action.

Update on Status of Non-Bond Program Construction Projects

The Facilities Planning & Construction staff prepared and provided a design and
construction update. This update summarized the status of each capital improvement
project currently in progress.

This item was for the Board’s information only. No action was requested.

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports

Board action was requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports
for the month of February 2015. The approval was for checks submitted for release in
the amount greater than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00
that were released as authorized by Board Policy No. 5610.

Upon a motion by DS and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board of Trustees
approved the submitted checks for release in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks
that were released as authorized by Board Policy #5610, and the financial reports
submitted for the month of February 2015. The motion carried.

35 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 27

Executive Session:

The South Texas College Board of Trustees convened into Executive Session at 6:57
p.m. in accordance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code for the specific
purpose provided in:

» Section 551.071, Consultations with Attorney

» Section 551.072, Deliberation Regarding Real Property

1. Discussion and Action as Necessary Regarding STC vs Chubb Insurance for
Hail Damage Claim Settlement

2. Discussion and Action as Necessary on Disposition of an Interest in Certain
Real Estate

Open Session:

The South Texas College Board of Trustees returned to Open Session at 7:40 p.m. No
action was taken in Executive Session.

Discussion and Action as Necessary on Disposition of an Interest in
Certain Real Estate

Dr. Reed, Mr. Jesus Ramirez, and Mr. Gustavo Martinez, reviewed the status of issues
related to real property and recommended actions as necessary with the Board in
Executive Session.

No action was taken.

Update Regarding Cause No. CL-14-3342-A; Thelma Saldana vs.
South Texas College

Legal action was taken against the College by Thelma Saldana. The lawsuit was
submitted to the College’s insurance carrier, TASB. TASB assigned Edward Garza from
Esparza & Garza, L.L.P to handle the case.

Mr. Garza was unable to attend the meeting, and no update was provided.

36 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 28

Update Regarding Cause No. CL-14-1526-B; Veronica Flores vs. South
Texas College

Legal action was taken against the College by Veronica Flores. The lawsuit was
submitted to the College’s insurance carrier, TASB. TASB assigned Edward Garza from
Esparza & Garza, L.L.P to handle the case.

Mr. Garza was unable to attend the meeting, and no update was provided.

Review and Action as Necessary on the Assessment of the College
President and the Self-Assessment of the Board of Trustees

Approval to conduct the assessment of the College President and the self-assessment of
the Board of Trustees by the Trustees was granted by the Board on January 27, 2014.
The evaluations were distributed with addressed, postage-paid envelopes to the Board
Members and were returned to Mr. Roy de Leén, Board Chair.

Mr. de Leon postponed this item to a subsequent meeting when all Trustees could be
present. No review was held and no action was taken.

Informational Items

The following informational items were included in the packet for the Board’s review:
e President’s Report
e Board Committee Meeting Minutes from March 19, 2015:

0 Education and Workforce Development
o Facilities
o Finance and Human Resources

Announcements
A. Next Meetings:

e Thursday, April 16th, 2015

» 3:30 p.m. — Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting
» 4:30 p.m. — Facilities Committee Meeting
» 5:30 p.m. — Finance and Human Resources Committee Meeting

e Tuesday, April 28th, 2015
» 5:30 p.m. — Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees

37 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Minutes — March 31, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/22/2015 4:16:26 PM
Page 29

B. Other Announcements:

e South Texas College will be closed Thursday, April 2, 2015 through Sunday,
April 5, 2015 for Semester Break

Adjournment:

There being no further business to discuss, the Regular Meeting of the South Texas
College Board of Trustees adjourned at 7:43 p.m.

| certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Tuesday, March 31, 2015
Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees.

Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez
Secretary

38 03-31-2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 3

Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s)

Authorization to accept and approve the following grant award(s) and use of related funds as
authorized by each grant is requested:

1. The “Skills for Small Business” Grant from the Texas Workforce Commission in
the Amount of $20,000.

The “Skills for Small Business” grant from the Texas Workforce Commission Skills Development
Fund in the amount not to exceed $20,000 will provide resources for a program to support local
employers, with services beginning April 6, 2015 and running through April 30, 2016. These
resources will cover the costs for tuition, fees, and administration costs.

In the grant funded program, STC’s Continuing, Professional and Workforce Education will
administer the “Skills for Small Business” grant through which participating employers request
training in both credit and non-credit programs.

2. Additional “Nursing Shortage Reduction Program-Regular” Funds from Texas
Higher Education Coordinating Board in the amount of $35,516.10

The additional “Nursing Shortage Reduction Program-Regular” funds from Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board are for the current fiscal year, beginning September 1, 2014 and
continuing through August 31, 2015, and the College would have a deadline of August 31, 2019
to expend these additional funds in compliance with the original grant. This award in the amount
of $35,516.10 adds to the newly amended awarded amount of $207,638.51. The total award will
not exceed $243,154.61.

The 83 Texas Legislature appropriated funding to the Texas Higher Education Coordinating
Board for the Professional Nursing Shortage Reduction Program for distribution to institutions.
This “Regular” program evaluates nursing programs based on the increased number of nursing
graduates at the associate, baccalaureate, master’'s and doctoral degree level from 2012.

These additional grant funds will be used for costs exclusively related to enrolling additional
students, nursing faculty enhancement, recruitment and retention innovation, development and
implementation of innovative methods involving curriculum and/or preceptorships, as well as
other expenses as approved in the contract.

This State Appropriation funding meets South Texas College’s Strategic Direction Two: South
Texas College is committed to increasing the college-going and college-completing rates in the
region.

3. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award

The presented grants would provide up to $55,516.10 in additional funding for the College to
provide services and opportunities throughout the region.

39



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 4

Recommendation:

It is recommended the Board of Trustees approve and authorize accepting the following grant
award(s) and use of related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent upon official award
as appropriate:

1. The “Skills for Small Business” Grant from the Texas Workforce Commission in the
Amount of $20,000.

2. Additional “Nursing Shortage Reduction Program-Regular” Funds from Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board in the amount of $35,516.10

3. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes accepting the following

grant award(s) and using related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent upon official
award as appropriate:

1. The “Skills for Small Business” Grant from the Texas Workforce Commission in the
Amount of $20,000.

2. Additional “Nursing Shortage Reduction Program-Regular’” Funds from Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board in the amount of $35,516.10

3. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

40



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 5

Review of Items Presented to the Education and Workforce Development
Committee

The following items were presented to the Education and Workforce Development Committee
on Monday, April 13, 2015. These items were for the Committee’s information and feedback to
staff, and no action was taken.

1) Presentation on March 26, 2015 Women in Technology Event

On March 26, 2015 South Texas College hosted the 8" Annual Women in Technology event at
the Technology Campus, an initiative to build the education and motivation of women to explore
opportunities for careers in the various technology fields offered at South Texas College.

Dr. Anahid Petrosian introduced Mr. Mario Reyna, Dean of Business & Technology, and Ms.
Sara M. Lozano, Assistant Professor of Computer Assisted Drafting & Design (CADD)
Technology. Mr. Reyna reviewed the background of the Women in Technology event and its
successes in motivating female students to consider and succeed in traditionally male-
dominated fields in technological areas.

Ms. Lozano spoke as Chair of the committee that oversees this event and provided more detail
about the great success of the 2015 Women in Technology event and the increase to the scope
of the event over previous years, outreach to local partnerships, and plans for future Women in
Technology events.

The Women in Technology annual event started in 2008 as “Ladies in Technology Night” and
was designed to bring females from the community onto the Technology Campus to learn about
the technological fields and careers they could pursue at South Texas College. This was borne
out of recognition that female professionals were underrepresented in many high-skilled
technical fields. The event provided students and prospective students with an opportunity to
hear from and meet females in high-skilled technology professions and to encourage these
women to consider a wide range of careers.

In 2015, the event was renamed to Women in Technology, and was expanded to a full day of
work sessions, presentations, and opportunities, including day time breakout sessions
specifically for three hundred high school students and evening sessions for the community at
large.

Due to space and time limitations, only three hundred high school students from the school
districts in Hidalgo and Starr County were able to participate. All area high schools were invited
to send 25 students, and the first respondents up to the set capacity were accepted. Plans for
subsequent years will include considerations to expand the capacity to serve additional
participants. Additionally, sponsorships from the community will be sought to help support the
addition of live entertainment and refreshments for attendees.

In addition to the daytime program that specifically served local high school students, there were
evening sessions for the general community. Ms. Lozano reported that there were many high

41



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM

Page 6

school students from the daytime session that brought their friends and families back to the
evening to share the wonderful and inspiring programs.

Many local partners were brought on board to support the program, and showcases of our
technology programs were provided to engage and encourage participants. Current students in
these programs were on hand to provide a “Model your Career” fashion show, which comprised
entirely of female South Texas College students participating in technical programs. These
students represented their chosen field of study, carrying the tools of the trade and providing
concrete examples of women pursuing, and succeeding, in high-skilled technical trades.

Dr. Vanessa Nelson, DNA Analyst with the Texas Department of Public Safety Crime Lab, was
the keynote speaker, and Dr. Nelson also provided a break out session entitled So You Want to
be a Forensic Scientist. Dr. Nelson was joined by several female members of her team in the
Crime Lab, and they also hosted a Q&A session with attendees.

The March 2016 event was scheduled to be expanded to two full days, and coordinators are
reaching out to community partners to develop further support for this expanded offering.

In addition to providing a review of the event and plans for the future, Mr. Reyna and Ms. Lozano
shared the data of increased enrollment of female students in technical programs. Ms. Lozano
shared that uniform standards are upheld for each program, and female students are achieving
tremendous success competing on an equal basis with male colleagues in the same programs.

2) Presentation on Building a Pathway to Baccalaureate Degrees

Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President for Academic Affairs, introduced Dr. Ali Esmaeili, Dean of
Math, Science, and Bachelor Programs, and Mrs. Laura Boyer Sanchez, Associate Dean of
Curriculum and Student Learning. This team presented on the College’s pathway to
baccalaureate degrees.

Dual Enrollment

The “pathway to a baccalaureate degree” starts for many students with developmental education
and dual enrollment opportunities to help students on the pathway toward a successful college
career. South Texas College has the largest dual enrollment program in the State of Texas,
serving 23 districts at 77 sites in Hidalgo and Starr counties. This included 26 Early College
High Schools and 6 Academies, each of which provided opportunities for students to earn a
certificate or associate’s degree concurrently with their high school diploma. Over 12,500 high
school students completed over 1,500 college course sections this semester.

42



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 7

Stackable Credentials

Stackable Credentials were designed to provide clear value for recipients and to directly build
toward a subsequent credential. From the first earned credit through the completion of a
bachelor degree, students were provided many opportunities to attain a new credential, each of
which could help them compete for a new job or earn new opportunities with a current employer:

Marketable Skills
Certificates
Associate’s Degree
Advanced Certificate

These credentials were designed to provide the students with marketable value in the regional
work force, and the College worked closely with advisory committees and independent labor
market research to keep the programs aligned with regional need. Additionally, the College
worked with its school district partners to align credentials with high school endorsements as
developed under state law.

Bachelor Programs

In April 2015, the College offered four baccalaureate degrees. In May 2015, the College
anticipated it would have conferred 917 bachelor degrees since the beginning of these programs
in 2005.

The Committee packet included additional details showing the demographics of bachelor degree
program graduates, including information on prior developmental coursework by graduates, dual
enrollment credits held by graduates, and current baccalaureate degree graduates with
stackable credentials. This data was compiled for the 802 baccalaureate degrees awarded thus
far, and did not include the 115 expected graduates for May 2015.

These items are presented for review by the Board, and no action is requested.

43



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 8

Discussion and Action as Necessary to Adopt Tax Abatement Guidelines

South Texas College Legal Counsel, Mr. Jesus Ramirez, has drafted tax abatement guidelines
for consideration by the South Texas College Board of Trustees. These guidelines are included
within the Board packet for the Trustees’ consideration and feedback to legal counsel and staff.

The Board is asked to discuss the proposed tax abatement guidelines with legal counsel and
administration and to take any action as necessary.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
any action as necessary to adopt tax abatement guidelines as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes any action as necessary
to adopt tax abatement guidelines as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

44



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 9

Discussion and Action as Necessary on Hidalgo County Tax Resale
Properties and Resolution Authorizing Tax Resale

Approval of the Hidalgo County Tax Resale Properties and the Resolution Authorizing the Tax
Resale is requested.

The law offices of Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP have requested consideration and
possible action on the tax resale of twenty-two (22) properties.

On February 3, 2015 Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP held a Tax Resale Auction at
the Hidalgo County Clerk Records Management Facility for struck off properties located within
Hidalgo County. The tax resale auction was published in The Monitor and several other
newspapers throughout Hidalgo County.

The total amount the College will receive is $16,157.09.

Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP submitted the analysis of the bids received for the
Board of Trustees’ consideration.

The Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale follows in the packet for the Board’s consideration.
A listing of the bids, the legal description for each property, as well as the amount of the bid, the
South Texas College amount, and the Analysis of Bids Received are included under separate
cover for your information and review.

A representative from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP will be present at the meeting.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the Hidalgo
County Tax Resale Bids and the Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale to Linebarger Goggan
Blair & Sampson, LLP as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize the
the Hidalgo County Tax Resale Bids and the Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale to Linebarger
Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the Hidalgo County Tax
Resale Bids and the Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale to Linebarger Goggan Blair &
Sampson, LLP as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

45



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE

RESOLUTION NO.

On the 28" day of April 2015, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the South Texas
College Board of Trustees, a motion was duly made and seconded to resell properties described
on the attached list, which were acquired by the South Texas College through previous tax
foreclosure proceedings. The properties were sold in accordance with Texas Tax Code Ann.
§34.05.

Discussion was then conducted, and upon completion of the same the Board Chair for
South Texas College called for a vote on the motion, and the same was passed by majority. Now

therefore:

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of South Texas College approved the bids received
on the properties described in the attached list and authorizes the Board Chair for South Texas

College to execute tax resale deeds conveying the approved properties.

SIGNED on this day of , 2015.

Roy de Ledn
Board Chair

ATTEST:

Paul R. Rodriguez
Secretary

46



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 10

Presentation on Bond Market, Engagement of Underwriting Firm(s), and
Bond Issuance Debt Structure of the Limited Tax Bonds,
Series 2015
Presentation on the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015:
Mrs. Anne Burger Entrekin with First Southwest will provide the Board with information on the
bond market and the proposed timetable of events for the sale of the Limited Tax Bonds, Series
2015.
The presentation will also cover the proposed options for selection of underwriter firm(s) and
recommendations of firms that the Board may choose to engage as senior or co-managing firms
to underwrite the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015.

The Presentation follows in the packet for the Boards review and discussion.

The Board will be asked to take action on each of these items as identified in the agenda.

47



aba|0D sexa] yinos

GT0Z ‘8¢ |udy

a|NpPayods aouenss| pasodoid pue sisAjeuy 10edw| xe] ‘ayrepdn 19x4en

abajjoD spxa] yjnos

LS

610V €96'v1¢ 1991d
T0CG. sexal ‘se|eq
008 9UNS "1S |ned Jures "N S¢e

WI0d " MS]SIj@opebjap abiol
1sAleuy
opebjeq ablior

16607989956 19310
T0S8. Sexal ‘us||von
D auNns ‘J0O2N Y1oN 00t

WOJ MSISIT@B[oA SIID
JuapIsald DI/ Joluas

B[aA SUD

0022°'80€°0TZ 109110
9TZ8/ Sexa ‘oluojuy ues
0T/ 8UNS ‘0T doo 1seayuoN 0/

WI0d MSISIlj@UDBjajuaiabing auue
lo10a11q Buibeuep

ujanug Jabing suuy

S10elu0D

& 159MYIN0SIS I

48



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © T & Hmwgr—usomumu-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

arealpuAs Bunumiapun pasodoud e 10) uonepUBWWOIDY —

SJUBAS JO 3|Npayds pasodold -

sIsAreue 19edwl ajel xe) Jno 0] arepdn —

SUONIPUOD 18)Jew Juaind uo ayepdn —

:(u)e sopinoud uonejuasaid siyy =

92IAI3S 1gap aimny Joj Aoeded azAjeue
0] Jeis abs||0D sexal yinos yum uonaunluod ul bupjiom uaaqg sey 1SoMyinosiSil{ =

Alewiwing aAIINdaX3

49



abeg|j0D sbxa] Yynos

LS

439317700 SVvVX3I ] HLNOS

arepdn 1IN

50



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © e & Hmmgf—uzomumu-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

[e Je 1sIxa Aew JaxIewW Ou IO JaXJew wid) Hoys ayl ul suondnuaiur®

ag Aew aiay) Jey) Buipueisiopun ay) se |jam se puiw ul sabueyd [ennualod asayl Yim pamalA ag PINoYS S)NSal aSayL "Sajel 1Salalul 9N109 448 pue sdiysuoiie|al 8yi10a e Ajeraew pinod  uoljeuiquod

Aue ur10 AjlenpiApul s1019€ J 4ons ul safueyd Jo 19948 syl suollesapisuod Aousbe Buiyes pue Ayenb ypaid ul sebueyo se |jsm se ‘suoirenfial pue ssjni ‘sme| ul sabueyd ‘SaNLNdSS WIS] LoYS JO puewsp
pue Alddns ay) ‘sayel xe} ‘spuai) alel 1saIalul ‘0 pajiwwi| Jou Ing ‘se yons sio0joe} Auew uodn juspuadap are sarelisalaiulaining  “sdiysuole|al a Alldadsal 1oy} pue salel 1sasaiul [edtiolsy s1aidap ydelb siyL

N

LR NN R I A I AR I I QP R I QR R I
FEFTECEFLFPLELETETETETEEPE R L

0oe

00'S

%Sv'€ %.C°€
GT0Z ‘9T |udy ZT0Z ‘9 Jagquiedeq

m INTHHND — MO A 00'2

| 006

¥ - 00°TT

%yET
86T ‘¥ Arenuer L 00°eT

HOIH

00'ST
GTOZ ‘9T |udy JO se [enmoy Apeam
186T ‘T Atenuer aouIS sajey [edlI0ISIH
spuog edidiunip 0g 4o xapuj ,s,49Ang puog,

spuog [ediaiunin 0z JO Xapuj s,48Ang puog

51



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © 14 &“ Hmwgf—“:omuml-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

Ile 1e 1sIXa Aew josew Ou 1o 19yJew wis) Loys ay} ul suondnusiul

aq Aew a1ay) yey) Buipueisiapun ay; Se [|om Se pulw ul sabueyd [efualod 8say) UM PamalA 4 PINOYS SHNSa1 9SaYL “Sajel 1SaIajul 9109 449 pue sdiysuolie|al ay3ioaje Ajjeualew pjnod uoljeulquod

Aue ui 1o Ajrenpi Alpul s1010B} 4ons Ul sabueyo Jo 109448 syl “suoliesapisuod Aousbe Buires pue Anjenb 1paio ul sabueyo se |jam se ‘suoienBbal pue ssjni ‘sme| ul sabueyd ‘saIllN8S WISl LOYS JO pueWwSp
pue Ajddns ay3 ‘sayes xe) ‘spuai) 93el 1Saiajul ‘03 pajwi| Jou Ing ‘se yans siojoe Auew uodn juspuadap ase sajel jsassiulaining  sdiysuolie|al 8 Aljoadsal J1ay) pue sajel 1sasalul [eanolsiy syoidap ydelb siyp

I I I R R < s S I I I s I R I T I T < T s T s I I I I R R s s TR S I T Y
e P T T S T T S
1 I L I A I A 1 I 1 I I A A I I I L I 1 I I I I 1 I A I A I Oo.m

%LC’E
2102 ‘9 Jaquiadeg
> MO

< 0S¢
} 00'v

ﬁ N 05t

> 00's

\'4
%St'E .
| gTO0Z ‘9T |udy %IY'S 0S's
AINIHAND TTO0Z ‘TT Arenuer
HOIH
009
059

GTOZ ‘9T |Udy JO se [emdy Apeam
AI01SIH JeaA-g

spuog [edidiuniy 0z Jo xapuj ,S,4eAng puog,

spuog [edidiunin 0z 4o Xapuj s, JaAng puog

52



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

0717 ‘AuedwoD 1S8MyINoS 18114 GTOZ @ S
OdIS ® VNI Joquisy

& JSoMYyinosjsii4

< N N < < N < <
& /OA & ﬁon R /OA R /OA & /OA & /OA & /OA &
d ¢ Q¢S
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 mQQ O
3
()
- sdgqos
@
Py
>
@D
- sdqoot @
®
QD
o
o
sd P
q 0ST 2
>
(=)
o))
<3
(7))
sdqooc 2
o
5
7y
AP99M ST0Z/9T/v - 8002/T/T 1A 0S AN VVV - 1A 0E QNN VYV ~
AIX99 M STOZ/9T /7 - 800Z/T/T 1A OE ANIN YVV - 1K 0 ANIN V e sdqosz
A99M STOZ/9T/Y - 800Z/T/T 1A 0E AW VYV - 1K 0 ANIN YV € emmmm
sdqg 00¢g

spealds 11patd

53



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

0711 ‘Auedwod 1s8MyINoS 1sii4 GTOZ @ 9
OdIS % VHNIH J1aquisiy

& JSoMYyinosjsii4

W VVvE SLIEBLY —— (AN Y SLOCP LY am

\ \
sdqglz
= peaidg
] VYWY JAOE
sdq g6 = peaidg - WYY IAL
‘Bay wwa-vvy

S10Z ‘91 ludy jo Se SyJewyauag dAIND PIAIA
ejeq Joyde jedisunpy

%001

%00°¢

%00°E

%00 ¥

%00°S

%009

suostedwo) pIaIA ANIN

54



abeg|j0D sbxa] Yynos

LS

439317700 SVvVX3I ] HLNOS

10edw| ayey Xe|

55



TEXAS COLLEGE

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © 8 & Hmwgsusomum‘-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

SJI910A 10J paroaloid ueyy ssa| ag pinoa 10edwi arel
xe)] pajosloid ay) ‘pun4 32IAIBS 109 aYl ul 8duejeq puny Jo uonezinn payodaloid ayy uanl -
sIeak 9aly) ul spaadoid puoq Jo ainjipuadxa 9,68 BulAaIyoe Jo uoneoadxs ajgeuoseal
3y} 198w 0] 3d|ge aq p|noys D1S ‘9INpPayds uondonisuod pajosloid ayl uo paseg -—
92INJIBS 18P 9y} JO 1S09D [e101 8y} ul Bupoo| Ag ysil a1el 1salalul ainmny sayebiiw siyy  —
SaNSS| puoq Jo Jaquinu ay) buionpal Ag aouenssi JO 1S0J |[eJ9A0 padNpal Ul }nsal [IM SIyL  —
S19]0A 10} pauljino suonodaloid a1es xel ayl ulylim auop aq ued siyl  —
reak siy1 000'020'66%
JO uonezuoyine Bulurewal ayl anssi 01 Alljige ayl sey D1S ayl eaA siyr ybnoiayr panunuod
Sey Jeyl JUBWUOIIAUS 3leJ 1SaJIdJul MO| 38Ul pue pazinn suondwnsse aAIJRAISSUOD 8U) UBAID) =
s108(04d ul uolIW Q9$ puny 01 pasealoul 8q 0] 3|qe
SeM anssI 3yl ‘04G8°E JO Bkl 1Salalul Ue aAaIyde 0] 9|ge alam spuog $T0Z 9yl asnedag —
%GZ 7 JO 81kl B Je pue uol||lw GG/ 6E$ a9 01 pajoaloid sem anss| puog #TOZ 9yl =
SJ1910A YlM passnasip ajel xe) palabie) ayl ansiyode 0} Japlo
Ul %G/ 1 01 94GZ v Bulbuel sajel 1salaiul yum /T0zZ Yybnoiyl #T0Z WOl Sanssi puoq pawnsse
uonaale ayl Jo sasodind 1o} pazinn sisAjeuy weibold uswanoidw| euded jeulbuo ayl =

91N9NNS GTOZ Sa148S pasodoid

56



TEXAS COLLEGE

SOUTH

277 ‘Auedwo) 1samyInos 1sii4 ST0Z © 6 & Hmwgr—usomumu-_m

OdIS ® VdNId IsqusiN

20195 1qop Buipuelsino jo yoedwi Jaye (o506 g6 -S)el suonaa|ioa xe} 157 (g)

000°020°'66$ 1o pun)aaloid ay) 0} isoda(] e pue wNIWald SAWNSSE Junowny 1ed (Z)

-ebueyo 01108lgns ‘Ajuo uonensn||i jo sesodind 1o} yymolb ou sawnssy “slosi| |esielddy senunon uels pue objepiH ay Aq pauodal

Se 199°¢6£'00S L £$ )0 UOnEN|BA POSSOSSY B|qEXE] G| 07 JEOA [BOSIH "SAq 0G + G10TZ ‘L £ YOI JO SE Seley 1Saldju| J8N e JUsln) ,ZeYAY, Sewnssy (|)

:suogdwnssy
%P9 %EP9°€ %6€9°¢ %0€9°¢ %SP9°E (D11) 3509 3sas93u] anu|
(¢)9€02-6102
6070°0 60¥0'0 20¥0°0 20¥0°0 LLPO'0
siea) a)ey xe] abelany
) . ) ) ) )8+02-9102
zzroo ov¥0'0 10¥0°0 SZ¥0°0 0S¥0°0
siea) a)ey xe] abelany
(o00‘000°21L) $ (o00‘000°0L) $ (000‘000°%L) $ (000‘000°'%L) $ (oo0‘0¥28) $ pPazinNn spund S|

Ge0e-6102

00099298 $ 00006598 $ 000°0e.68 $ 0000808 $ 00005698 $ sieaj [ediouud ayebaibby

o00‘'sz.  $ 00008 $ 000°062°F $ 000'6€0°c  $ - $ sIeoA _mm___%m_u_wvammmm._mg
000°020°66 $ 000°020°66 $ 000°020°66 $ 000°020'66 $ 000°020°66 $ punjjosfoid o) usodaq
00006698 $ 00002698 $ 000020°8 $ 000°SLL°28 $ 00005698 $ e e

3 oURUIIG { oueuddg 7 OUBUIIS € OLUBUIDS Y OLBUdIS

066107 SOXO] UINOS Em_m>_m=< aley xe| pajoafoid jo Aewwng

Uhm@ G10Z Sauag ‘spuog xe] pajwi] 000°020°'66$
9ba||09 sexa] yinosg

SOlJeuads 1oedw| arey xe] jo Arewwns

57



abeg|j0D sbxa] Yynos

LS

439317700 SVvVX3I ] HLNOS

SJUaAT JO 3|npayds pasodoid

58



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

277 ‘Auedwod 1SamMUINOS 15114 STOZ © I
2dIS B VHNI- Jaquai

& JSoMYyinosjsii4

skepljoH = _H_ sajeq Aoy = _u

T€ [0€ | 6¢ |82 | L¢ |9¢

G¢ |vC [€¢ | ¢ | T¢ |0 | 6T s waalby aseyoind
gt |t lor st vt et |2t puog ay: jo uonndaxa ayy buzoyine pue Bunoidde JapiO ay) Bundope pue spuogxe] Jo aduenssi

Spaadoid puog jo Aianiaq ‘buisold GTOZ ‘TZINC 'senL

papasu se sannidy Buyaug

GTOZ ‘e unc ‘sanL

mwlotlels]z]9 s Buzuoyiny JapiO ayr jo uondope sy} JapISUOD “spuogxe] PaliwiT 0 8|eS JoNpuUod 0} pieog ay jo Bunaspy

v]e€|c|T Buiold , ST0C'€C®

S|d(L|M|L|[N]|S gz unr'senl @ UoN
ST-INC Bunsod o4 s1sgam [eag-1 0} S80b Juswalels [ewo Areujwijaid GTOZ ‘ST unr ‘uop

sbuney aneoay GTOZ ‘2T ung ‘L

0¢ | 6¢ | 8¢
L2 [9¢ |S¢ [ve |€¢ | cc | T
0¢ [6T | 8T [ LT [9T |ST | ¥T
EL(CT|ITJOT (6 |8 | L

‘U Walels |eIowO Aleulwi|ald JO YeIp PASINaI U0 aNnp SIUsWWo)D

‘AIlessadau se uopoe puawwodal pue

GTOZ ‘TT unC ‘sinyL
aimonas 1gap Areurwijaid payepdn manal pue ayepdn 19yew SSNISIp 0} 9apIW W0 ddueuld yim Bunasiy

“JuaWalelS [e1oO AleulwiBid 40 Yelp [eul uo anp slusawwo) GT0Z ‘8 Unr ‘Uop

T aung Jo %83

selouaby buney yum s|jed 81euIploo)

59

-un
sTune “SJUSWIWO0D pue MaAai 1oy dnolb o1 Juswarels [eldo Aleulwi|aid 40 Yelp [euly puss
Te 'sajouabe Bunes 0] SJUBWNIOP pale|al pue UsWaleIS [eIoWO Aleulwiald puas  GTOZ ‘82 A8 ‘sinyL
0€ |62 |8¢C | LC S¢ |72 e eUOWS e BN
€2 | zz |12 |0z | 6T |81 |47 QTEHOWAN — gT0¢ ‘Se/en o
oT | ST |¥T | €T TT | 0T ‘dnoJB BujJom WOl YeIp PUOISS UO BNP SIUBWIWOYD  GTOZ ‘TZAeN ‘sinylL
6[8[L]°9 v]E€ *dnoib Bupjiom ay) 01 SJUBWINJOP pale|al pue JuaWaleIS eI Aleulwi|aid J0 Yelp puodas  GT0Z ‘vTAen ‘sinyl
¢ |7
‘dnoJb Bupjiom woly anp sjusWwWo ‘TT Ae ‘uo
slal1m NS b } anp s} o) STOC 'TTABNA ‘UON
ST-AeN *21monAs 1qag Areutwijaid Buiprebal
uopoe a|qissod pue ayepdn 19xJEN SSNISIQ ‘UONI3IBS 9¥eIIPUAS Bunumiapun lojpue ssadoid uondales GT0Z ‘82 Jdv ‘sanL
J81mIapun ‘sluang jo ajqelawi] pasodold ay) bumnoidde Japisuod pue ssnasip 0} preog ayr yum Bunaasiy
0€ | 6¢ Le|% SlUBW WO pue manal 1o} dnoib 0y Judwaels [elO Areulwijald Jo yelp 1sily puas GT0Z ‘/Z 1dv ‘Uop
GC |ve |€c|2c 0C | 6T
SUENTEIe]e] T a0y g
ST|LT |91 |51 7 pale|al J1ayio pue uawalels [eoo Areuiwilaid jo uonesedald uibag [9SUN0D puog pue 1SaMYINoSISiiH §10¢ L1 :
TT|0T |6 |8 918§
vlelzlt auljawil pasodoid 6702 ‘€T I ‘UON
sT3 11 m NI pue ‘a1nonis 108 aduenss| puog 18yiew puog [edidiuni SSNISIP 0} 8801 W W0 adueuld ay yum Bunaspy
STady IN3INT 31va

SJUSAT JO 3|qelawl ] pasodold



abeg|j0D sbxa] Yynos

LS

439317700 SVvVX3I ] HLNOS

U0I1199]9S 91edIpuAs pasodoid

60



TEXAS COLLEGE

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © eT & Hmw;r—u:omum‘-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

paJlapisuod Buiaq azis pasodoid sy Jo uonoesuel) e axyeuapun o} sanljigeded
3yl sey a1edlpudhs sIyl eyl ‘Yssp Bunumispun INO YIM pPawliuod aAey sp\  —
uonoesuel) GTOZ pasodoid ay) 10} a1edIpuAs swes ay) Jo uonezi|in IapIsuod D1S
puawiwodal am ‘uonoesuell yTOZ dYl ul a1edipuAs ayl Jo aouewlopdad ay) uo paseg =
“0D 79 SNBJ0JIN |9J11S pue sawer puowAdey ‘sauayar — siabeueN-0) —
esoloulH epesns3 — 1abeuey Ioluss —
P3109|8s alaMm Sswily Buimojjo) 8yl ‘ssadoud ajelaqiap e 1By =
M3IABJ 10] papIAoId a1oMm SMBIAIBAO Wl ‘Ajreuonippy  —
SpuUOQ Sexa] pue spuoq pale[al uonednpa Bunumiapun ul suuly
Buipes| ‘9ba|j00 ay1 yum asualiadxs Joud pey eyl swliy ‘absjjod ayl yium Bujiom
ul 1salajul ue passaldxa pey eyl swuy ayl buifuapr pspnoul ssaododd SIyl —
UON23|9S 31eIIPUAS Jal1lIMIBPUN BY] J0) SWI) 91eNn|eAa 0] anssl
puog T0Z 9yl 01 Joud ssadoid aAlsuayaldwod e yoouapun 1S ‘sieytew [edidiunw
3yl ul sabueyd ayl pue anssl puoq uedliubis 1se| ayl 8ouls awil JO uoneinp ayl USAIS) =
uoneziowe Jeak (9) XIS e Yim
uoljjlw §G5'6TS$ Al@rewixoidde Jo 0TOZ ul sbuines o) Buipunjal e uaaq pey alsyl -

£00Z 92uls
uol|[iw 0Z$ J9A0 anss| puog wisl-buo| e pey 10U pey D1S ‘enssi puog #TOZ 94l 01 IOl =

U01199]3S 91edIPUAS pasodold

61



TEXAS COLLEGE

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © VT & Hmwgsusomum‘-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

anss| puoq

Buiwoadn sIyl uo noA 1sisse 01 pue OIS yim diom 01 Allunuoddo ayy Buiney areroaidde app =

suoneolignd sapnjoul yaiym ssasold Bumss ajel xe)l
3y} pue ‘adueleq pun4 a2IAI8S 198 Buizinn pue anssi puog ay) Buunionns oy jewndo
SI YoIyM uoneneA passasse ajgexel Mau ayl JO uoljeulwalap Janag e aAey 03 S1oulsIq
[esreisddy syl wody uonewuojul Jo Bulwn syl usamiaq adueeq e sapinoid auldwin SIyl -
uoIeISPISUOD 10) auljdwil ajdwes e papinoid aAneYy O\ =

SJI910A 10J paroaloid uey) ssa| ag pinod 1oedwi arel
xe)] pajdaloid ay) ‘pun4 921AI8S 1go@ aYl ul aduejeq punj Jo uonezijn pajoaloid ay) uanln —
SLI 1S848]ul 81Mny sayebniw pue S}S0d
9oUeNSS| S8IoNpaJ ‘SIBIOA 10} paulpno uondsloid 81es xey ayl ulyum auop agq ued SIyl -—
Jeak syl uonezuoyine Bulurewal ayy anssi 01 Aljige
ayl sey OIS ay “eak siyr ybnolyr panunuod sey eyl Jeak 1se| JUSWUOIIAUS Blel 1Saldlul
MO| 8Y} pue SS820id uon9a|3 puog ayl Buunp paziinn suondwnsse aARBAIBSUOD dY) UBAIS) =

Arewwns

62



439317700 SVvVX3I ] HLNOS

abeg|j0D sbxa] Yynos

LS

SO1IRUDIS SISAjeUY a1ey Xe| pajle1aq — VY Xipuaddy

63



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

077 ‘Auedwo) 1S8myInos 1sii4 GT0Z © 9T
OdIS ® VNI Joquisy

41 1SOMYINoS)Sld

%05'86

alel suon29|[09 Xe] 153 (9)

000°'020'66$ J0 puny108[oid 8y 01 31sodap e sawnssy ()
'6T0Z1snBny uluswAed jediound 1siy ay) pue ‘9Tz Areniga- ulluawAed 1Salalul 1Sl ‘GTOZ SUNC Ul 9dUBNSS| SaWNSSY ({)
©S¥9'€ © D1L) sdqg 05 + STOZ ‘TE YOIB JO Se Saley 1saIalul 193IeN 2BV, Sawnssy (g)
‘abueyo 01198lgns ‘Ajuo uonensn||i jo sasodind 1o} YIMOIB OU SBWNSSE UOKBN[BA POSSASSY a|gexe ] palrewnsd (2)
‘sjousIg |estelddy sanuno) lels pue obepiH ayl Aq pauodal Se uonenjeA passassy a|qexel GTOZ JeaA [edsiH (T)

:suondwnssy

- $ ¥5.'19€'89z ¢ (000'0¥L'8) $  ¥SL'TOT'Z.2$ |Ceg'Tter'syT ¢ 222'TLT'8S $ 000'056'98% 2€S'086'TET $

- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE  8E0T
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6E'005'TE LEOC
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 9€0¢
- 15200 0S¢'SLL'L - 062'S..'L 0S2'SLL'L 0S2'0L€ 000'S0V'L - - %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE  GEOC
- TIP0'0  0S2'6€L'CT - 0S2'6€L'2T 000'8LL'L 000'€2. 000'S50°L 09100 0S¢'196'v %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE  VEOC
- TI¥00  0S2'0v.L'CT - 0SZ'0v.'ZT 000'6LL'L 000'650'T 000'02.'9 09100 0S2'196'V %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE  €E0C
- TI¥00 00S'6€L'CT - 00S'6€£L'2T 000'6L.L'L 000'6LE'T 000'00%'9 09100 005'096't %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE 2€e0c
- TI¥0'0  0S2'8EL'CT - 0Ge'8eL'eT 0S2'8L2'L 0G2'€89'T 000'S60'9 09100 005'656't %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE T€0¢C
- TI¥0'0 0G6.°,€2'CT - 0G.'L€L'2T 000'6.L'L 000'vL6'T 000'S08'S 09100 0S.'856't %000 T99'€6E'005'TE 0€0¢
- TI¥0'0  0S2'6€.'2T - 0S2'6€L'2T 00S'08L'L 005'052'2 000'0€S'S 09T0°0 05.'856'v %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE  620¢
- TI¥0'0  0S.'8EL'CT - 0S.'8€L'CT 052'8L1'L 0S.'€TS'2 000'592'S 09T0°0 000'096'% %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE  820¢
- TI¥00 0Geg'LeL'eT - 0Ge'LeL'eT 005'6L2'L 005'v9.'C 000'ST0'S 091700 0SL',LS6'V %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 120¢
- 0T¥0'0  0G.'GEL'CT - 0s.'seL'eT 0S2'8LL'L 0G2'€00'E 000'SLL'V 09100 005'.G6'V %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 920¢
- 0T¥0'0  0S2'SEL'CT - 0ge'seL'et 00S'GLL'L 00s‘0€2'e 000'SYS'v 09100 0S.'656't %000 T99'€6E£'00S'TE Geoc
- 0TY0'0  0S.'9€L'CT - 052'9€.'2T 000°2L2'L 000°'L¥1'e 000°'0€€'Y 09100 05.'656'v %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE  t20¢
- 0T¥0'0  000'9€L'CT - 000'9€.'2T 0S¢'8LL'L 0S2'€S9'€ 000'SeT'v 09100 0S.'LS6'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE  €20C
- TI¥0'0 000'6€L'2T - 000'6€L'2T 0S.'6LL'L 0S.'6¥8'€ 000'0€6'E 09100 0S¢'656't %000 T99'€6E'00G'TE  220C
- 0T¥0'0  0GZ'9eL'CT - 0sz'9gL'eT 0S2'9L2'L 0G.2'9€0'Y 000'0vL'E 091700 005'656't %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE Tc0c
- TI¥0'0 0G.'8EL'CT - 0G.2'8eL'2T 000'082°'L 000'STZ'Y 000'595'E 09700 0S.'856'v %000 T99'€6€£'00S'TE 0¢0¢
- TIP0'0  0ST'8EL'CT - 0ST'8€.'2T 00S'266'9 00S'LVE'Y 000'059'2 G8T0'0 059'0v2'S %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE  6T0¢
- 0S70'0  00S'0L6'€T (000'05€'2) 005'02€'9T 00S'LvE'Y 00S'LVE'Y - 98€0°0 000'€L6'TT %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE 8T0¢C
- 0S70'0  0SS'€S6'ET (000'0v8'2) 0SS'€62'9T 00S'LYE'Y 00S'LvE'Y - T0Y0'0 0S0'9v¥'2T %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE  LT0T
- 0S¥00  2CT'SSH'ET (000'055'€) 2eT'S0S'LT 2Lv'SLe'Y ¢ cLv'sLe'y $ - $] ¥0¥00 059'625'2T %000 T99'€6E'005'T€ 9T0¢C
- $ 0SY0O0 Z8T'TO6'VT $ - $  2Z8T'T06'VT $ |- - - 0S¥0°0 Z8T'T06'YT $ T99'€6E'00G'TES STOC
GI0C  (gorey s/a spund ERIINETS s/a 1s818Ul lediound | erey xeyr s/a @UIMOID  yuonenjep  TE/8

S9l18S 104 Xel SB| |elol a|ge|leAy 1qad [eloL S®I pauoddns AV 183 passassy JAd

sbueyd 198 18N 5597 [eolL (©)©ST0Z SBLBS ‘spuog xel paywi] 198a -xe] S7| a|qexel

aley xel perewns3 paoaloid 000'020'66$ pesodoid Bunsixg Bunsixg

S%®I |e10L pajaloid

abajjoo sbxa] yjhog

LS

V OLIBUDS - SpuOg Xe L Paliwi] 000'020'66$ - SIsAfeuy aley xeL paloaloid
a69|]0D sexal yinos

W OlIeUdIS —1oedwi| arey Xel Bupuis 7 1Sa1slu] palewnsy

64



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

277 ‘Auedwo) 1s8myINos 1siid ST0Z © LT
2dIS ® VNI Joquisy

41 1SOMYINoS)Sld

%05'86

a)el suonods||o0d xer 1s3 (9)

000'020'66$ 40 puny 108foid 8y} 0} sodap e sawnssy (S)
‘970z 1snbny ulluawAed [ediound 1s1y 3y pue ‘9Tz Areniga uluawAed 1Sala)ul 1S11 ‘GTOZ SUNL Ul 3dUBNSS] SAWNSSY (V)
©0€9°€ @ DI1) sdq 0G + GTOZ ‘TE YDJB JO SB Sarey 1S3I81U] 1MIBN ,ZBYYY, SSWNSSY ()

*abueyo 01108lgns ‘Ajuo uonensn|i jo sasodind 1o} ymoib ou sawNsse uoneneA Passassy ajgqexe] parewns3 (2)
‘spsiq [esresddy sanunod Lels pue objepiH syl Aq paliodal Se uonenjeA passassy a|qexe] GT0Z JedaA [edsld (T)

:suondwnssy

- $ 969'989'T92 $ (000'000'tT) $ 969'989'G/2 $ ¥9T'90L'EVT $ Y9T'T6G'9S $ 000'STT'.8% 2ES'086'TET $

- - - - - - - - - - %000  T9Y'EBE00STE  8E0Z
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6E'005'TE LE0¢C
- - - - - - - - - - %000  T9Y'EBE00STE  9E0Z
- ZvZ00  0ST'ETS'L - 052'€25'L 052'€25'L 052'85¢€ 000'59T'L - - %000  T99'E6E'00S'TE  SEOZ
- 20¥0°0  00S'08%'CT - 00S'08¥'2T 0S2'6TS'L 052'669 000'028'9 09100 0S2'T96'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE €02
- Z0Y0'0  005'S8Y'TT - 005'S87°2T 0SZ'vesL 052'720'T 000°005°9 09T00  0SZ'T96% %000  T9YEBE00STE  €E0Z
- Z0v0'0  0SZ'Y8Y'TT - 052'v8Y'ZT 05.'€25'L 0SL'€EE'T 000'06T'9 09T0'0  00S'096'Y %000  TOY'EBE00STE  ZE0Z
- 200’0  000'€8¥'CT - 000'€8¥'CT 005°€es'L 00S'829'T 000'G68'S 09700 00S'656't %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE T€e0¢
- Z0Y0'0  000'€8¥'ZT - 000'€87°2T 0S2'v2sL 052'606'T 000'5T9'S 09T00  0S.'856% %000 T9Y'EBE00STE  0E0Z
- Z0v0'0  00'S8Y'ZT - 005'S8Y'ZT 05.'925'L 0SL'9T'2 000'05€'S 09T0'0  0S.'856'Y %000  T9YEBE00STE 6202
- 200’0  0S2'18¥'2T - 0S2'T8¥'CT 0S2'12S' L 0§2'1eV' 000'060'S 09T00 000'096'% %000 T99'€6€'00G'TE 8¢0¢
- 20¥0°0  00S'18Y'CT - 00S'T8Y'2T 0G.'€eS'L 0S.'€19'2 000'058'v 09100 0G.'1S6'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE Lc0¢
- Z0v0'0  0SZ'Z8Y'TT - 052'28Y'ZT 0S.'v2S'L 05.'706'Z 000'029't 09T0'0  00S'LS6'Y %000  T9Y'EBE00STE 9202
- 200’0  00S'v8¥'2T - 00S'v8¥'2T 0S.'ves'L 0G.'veT'e 000'001'v 091700 0G6.'656't %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE Gcoe
- 20¥00  000'v8Y¥'CT - 000'¥81'2T 0S2'ves'L 0seg'vee'es 000'06T'V 09100 0G.'656'V %000 T99'€6E'005'TE 20¢c
- Z0v0'0  00S'T8Y'ZT - 005'T8Y'ZT 05.'€25'L 05.'€€5'E 000'066'E 09T0'0  0GL'/G6'Y %000  T9Y'EBE00STE €202
- 200’0  000'€8¥'CT - 000'€8Y'CT 0G.2'ees'L 0G.'eel'e 000'008'E 09100 0G62'656't %000 T99'€6£'00S'TE [44014
- 2000 0S2'v8Y'eT - 0S2'v8Y'eT 0G.'ves'L 0G.'706'E 000'029't 09700 005'656'Y %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE Tcoc
- ZOY0'0  0S.'08%°CT - 05.'08%°2T 0002252 000'220'% 000'GV7'E 09T00  0S.'856% %000  T9YEBE00STE 0202
- 2000 059'v8¥'2T - 059'v8¥'2T 000'v¥.L'9 000'v0Z'v 000052 G8TO0 059‘'0v.'S %000 T99'€6E'00G'TE 6T0¢
- GZv0'0  00S'6LT'€T (000°00T*Y) 005'6.2'LT 005'90€'S 005'95Z'y 000'050'T 98600 000'EL6'TT %000  T9Y'EBE00STE  8T0Z
- SZv0'0  008'8LT'ET (000°009't) 008'824°LT 05.'2€€'S 0S.'L0EY 000'620°T TOY00  0S0'9V¥'CT %000  T9Y'EBE00STE  LT0Z
- SZV0'0  YOS'PLT'ET (000°00€') ¥95' v L' 8T vIETe's $  vIEV8EY $ 000096 $| vov0o0  059'625°2T %000  T99'E6E'00S'TE  9T0Z
- $ 0SY00 Z8TTO6YT $ - $  Z8T'TO6'WT $ |- - - 0Sv0'0  Z8T'TO6'YT $ T99'€6£'005'TE S STOZ
ST0C (g ored s/a spund ERINES s/a 1sau01U| lediould [ erey xel s/a @UIMoID  uoneniep  T€/B

sa119S Jo4 Xel s3I [eloL a|qe|reAy 19a@ [e10L S panoddns AV 1S3 passassy  JAd

abueyo  19eq 19N 's597] [eloL (©)©ST0C SB1IS ‘spuog Xel paiiwi 198 -xe| S| ajgexel

arey xel parewns3y pajaloid 000'020'66$ pasodoid Bunsixa  Bunspg

SI [e10L pa1aloid

aba|j0D spxs] ynos

LS

g 0LIeUSDS - SpUOd Xe1 PalWI1 000'020'66$ - SISA[euyY a1y xel pa1dsfoid
aba||0D sexa] yinos

g oleuads — 19edw| a1ey Xe] BuqulsS 79 1Sa491u| parewsy

65



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

077 ‘Auedwo) 1S8myInos 1sii4 GT0Z © 8T
OdIS ® VNI Joquisy

41 1SOMYINoS)Sld

%0586

arel suonoa||09 xel 1s3 (9)

000'020'66% 40 puny10afoid auyi 03 1isodap e sawnssy (S)
'9T0Z Isnbny uluswAed [edound 1Sy sy pue ‘910z Arenigad uljuawAed 1sa1a)ul 1S4y ‘GTOZ SUNC Ul 8dUBNSS| SBWNSSY (V)
©66€9'€ @ D11) sdq 05 + STOZ ‘TE Y2JB JO Se Sarey 1Saialu| 1o ,Zev/vY, Sawnssy (g)
*abueyd 0)109lgns ‘Ajuo uonensn||i jo sasodind 1o} YIMoI6 OU SBWNSSE UONeN|eA PASSASSY a|qexe] parewnsd (g)
‘sjousig |estelddy sanuno) uels pue objepiH ayrAg pauodal se uonen|e) passassy a|qexe)l GTOZ JeaA [edsid (T)

:suondwnssy

- $ 015'661'292 $ (000'000'%T) $ 01S'667'9.2 $ 8/6'8IS'VVT $ 8/6'86%'LS $ 000'020°'28% 2ES'086'IET $

- - - - - - - - - - %000 199'€6€'00S'TE  8E0Z
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6€'00G'TE 1€0¢
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6E'005'TE 9€0¢
- L¥20'0  0S2'0L9'L - 052'029'2 052'029'2 052'59€ 000'50€'2 - - %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE  GEOZT
- L0¥0°0 062'629'CT - 062'629'CT 000'899°'2 000'€T. 000'G56'9 09700 0G2'T96't %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE €02
- L0¥0°0 005'0€9'2T - 005'0€9'2T 062'699°'L 0S2'v¥0'T 000'G29'9 097100 0S2'T96'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE €€0¢
- LOY0'0  0G2'0£9'ZT - 052'0£9'2T 05.'699'2 05.'6S€E'T 000°0TE'9 09100  00S'096'% %00°0 T99'€6€'00S'TE  2€0T
- L0¥0'0  0S2'629'CT - 05.'629'2T 052'029'2 052'099'T 000°0T0'9 09100  005'656'% %000 199'€6€'00S'TE  TEOZ
- L0¥0°0 0G2'0€9'2T - 052'0€9'2T 00S'T.9'L 00S'976'T 000'GeL'S 09700 0G6.'856't %000 T99'€6€'00G'TE 0€0¢
- LOY0'0  0G2'229'CT - 05.'229'21 000'699'2 000'612'2 000'0St'S 09100  0S.'8S6'Y %00°0 T99'€6£'00S'TE 6202
- L0700 005'829'CT - 005'829'2T 005'899'2 005'8.1'2 000'06T'S 09100  000'096'% %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 8202
- L0¥0°0 00S'829'2T - 005'829'CT 062'0.9'2 06.'Gel'e 000'SY6'y 09700 0G.'/G6'v %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 1202
- L0¥0°0 06/.'829'2T - 06.'829'2T 0S2'TL9'L 052'T96'2 000'0TL'V 09700 006'LS6'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 9¢0¢
- LOY0'0  0G2'0£9'ZT - 052'0£9'2T 0050292 005'S8T'E 000'G81'y 09100  0S.'656'V %00°0 T99'€6€'00S'TE  S20T
- L0700 0S2'829'CT - 05.'829'2T 000'699'2 000'66€'E 0000227 09100  0S.'656' %000 199'€6€'00S'TE 7202
- L0¥0°0 0G2'0€9'2T - 062'0€9'2T 00S'2.9'L 005'209' 000'0L0'% 09700 0S.'LS6'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE €2¢0¢
- LOY0'0  00S'0£9'ZT - 005'0£9'2T 052'T29'2 052'96.'c 000'G.8'€ 09100  0SZ'656' %00°0 T99'€6€'00S'TE 2202
- L0700 0SZ'0£9'ZT - 052'0£9'2T 052'029'2 05.'086'€ 000°069'€ 09100  005'656'% %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 1202
- L0¥0°0 0G2'0€9'2T - 052'0€9'CT 00S'T.9'L 00S'9ST'V 000'STG'E 09700 0G6.'856't %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 020¢
- L0¥0°0 0GT'229'2T - 0S6T'229'2T 005'988'9 005'982'v 000'009'2 G8T00 0S9'07.'S %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 610¢
- L0v00 005'T29'2T (000'00T'Y) 00S'T2.2'9T 00S'8V.L'v 00S'80€'V 000'0¥1 98€0°0 000'€L6'TT %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 8T10¢
- L0v0°0 0GS'9T9'2T (000'009'%) 0GS'9TZ LT 00S'0LL'v 00S'0€E'Y 000071 T0v0°0 0S0'9vv'2T %000 T99'€6€'00G'TE yANIA
- L0700 82ZT'6T9'CT (000'00€'S) 82T'6T6'LT 8/¥'68€'S $ 8.V'6.6'Y $ 000'0TY $ 0v0'0 059'625'2T %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 9T0¢
- $ 0S¥00 28T'T06'VT $ - $ Z28T'TO6'VT ¢ - - - 0Sv0°0 28T'T06'VT $ T99'€6€'00G'TE$ STOC
ST0Z (@ ored s/a spung ERITVETS s/a ISETET fediould | erey xel s/a (@WMoID @uonenep  T€/8

S91I8S 104 Xel S®| [elolL a|qe|reay 198a [eroL S®I psuoddng AV 153 passassy IAd

abueyp 19ed 18N SS9 lelol ©)(r)(©STOC Sa1IaS ‘spuog xe] pa)ywi] 19ed -Xe] S| a|qexe]
arey xe| pajewns3 paaloid 000'020'66$ pasodo.d Bunsixg Bunsixg
S%| [el0L pajoaloid

aba||0D spxa] yinos

S

O 0LBUSDS - SpUOg Xe] PaliwiT 000'020'66$ - SISAleuy arey xe| psiosfoid
aba||j0D sexa] yinos

D 0LIeUadS —joedw| 81ey Xel BuuIS 79 1S8J81U| palewls]

66



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

077 ‘Auedwo) 1S8myInos 1sii4 GT0Z © 6T
OdIS ® VNI Joquisy

41 1SOMYINoS)Sld

%0586

a1eJ SUORI9||09 Xel 153 (9)

000'020'66$ 40 puny108(oid 8L o11sodsp e sawnssy (S)
'9T0Z Isnbny uruswAed jediound 3siy sy pue ‘910z Areniga4 urjuswAed 1sa1siul 1S1l) ‘GTOZ SUNC Ul 9dUBNSS] SBWNSSY ()
©er9'€ © D1L) sdq 05 + STOZ ‘TE YOIBN JO Se Saley 1SaIalu] 193N ,ZBYYY, SaWnssy (g)
‘abueyo 01108lgns ‘Ajuo uonensn||i jo sasodind 1o} YMoI6 ou SaWNSSE UoBN[BA POSSASSY a|gexe] palrewnsd (2)
‘sjosiq [esrelddy sanuno) Lels pue obepiH aylAq pauodal se uonenjeA passassy a|qexe] GTOZ JeaA [edsid (T)

:suondwnssy

- $ 6VT'T26'99C $ (000°000°0T) $ 6VT'T26'9.2 % LT9'0V6' VYT $ 119'0.6'LS $ 000'0.6'98% 2ES'086'TIET $

- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE  8E0T
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6£'00G'TE L€0¢
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 9€0¢
- 05200  0S.'evl'L - 0S2'evl'L 0S2'evl'L 052'89¢ 000'G.€'2 - - %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE  SEOT
- 0T¥0'0 062'90.'2T - 062'90.'2T 000'sv.'L 000'02L 000'G20°'. 09700 0G2'T96't %000 T99'€6€'00G'TE ¥€0¢
- 60700 0§2'50.2'2T - 062'G02'2T 00S'vv.'L 005'vS0'T 000'069'9 091700 0G2'T96'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE €€0¢
- 60700  00S'€0L'ZT - 00S‘€0L'2T 000'€YL'L 000'€LE'T 000°0LE'9 09100  00S'096'% %00°0 T99'€6£'00S'TE  2E0T
- 0T¥0'0  000'90.'ZT - 00090221 00S'9¥2'2 005'9.9'T 000'020'9 09100  005'656'Y %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE  TE0T
- 60700 0SZ'v0.L'CT - 0G2'v0.L'2T 00S'GP. . 00S'G96'T 000'08.'S 09700 0G.'856't %000 T99'€6£'00G'TE 0€0¢
- 60v0°0  00S'v0L'ZT - 005'702'2T 0S2'svL'L 0s.'ove'e 000'505'S 09T00  0S.'8S6'% %00°0 T99'€6€'00S'TE 6202
- 0T¥0'0  000'80L'ZT - 000'802'2T 000'8YL'L 000'€05'2 000'5¥2'S 09100  000'096'% %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 8202
- 60¥70°0 00S'G0.'2T - 00S'G0.'2T 0GL'.vL'L 06.'25.' 000'S66't 09700 0G.'1S6'Y %000 T99'€6€'00G'TE 120¢
- 0T¥0'0 052'80.'2T - 062'80.'2T 0S.2'0S.'L 05.'066' 000'09.'v 09700 005'2S6'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 9¢0¢
- 0T¥0'0  000'20L'ZT - 000°202'2T 0S2'LvL'L 0sz'.12'e 000'0£S'Y 09100  0S.'6S6'% %00°0 T99'€6£'00S'TE  S20T
- 0T¥0'0  0S.'20L'ZT - 0S.'20L'2T 000'872'2 000‘€Et'E 000'STE'Y 09100  0S.'6S96'% %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE Y202
- 0T¥0'0  0S2'90.'CT - 0G62'90.2'2T 00S'8¥.'L 005'8€9'E 000'0TT'V 09700 0G/.'.S6'V %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE €¢0¢
- 60v0°0  0S2'€0L'ZT - 052'€0L'2T 00072 L 000'v€8'E 000'016'E 09100  0SZ'6S6'Y %00°0 T99'€6£'005'TE 2202
- 60700  0S.'¥0L'ZT - 0S2'702'2T 0S2'SvL'L 052'020'% 000'52L'e 09100  005'656'Y %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 1202
- 0T¥0'0 00S'90.°2T - 00S'90.'2T 0S.'.v1'L 0G.'/6T'v 000'0SG'E 09700 0G.'856't %000 T99'€6£'00G'TE 0c0¢
- 6000 0ST'S0.'CT - 0ST'50.2'2T 00S'796'9 005'6¢2E'V 000'G€9' G8T00 059'0¥L'S %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 610¢
- 070’0  000'6S9‘€T (000'082°2) 000'6EY'9T 000'99%'v 000'9€E'V 000'0€T 98€0°0 000'€.6'TT %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 810¢
- Or¥0'0  00£'€99°'ET (000'052'€) 00E'€T6'9T 0G2'L9t'y 0Ge'eve'v 000'S2T T0¥0°0 050'9V¥'ZT %000 T99'€6£'00G'TE ,L10¢
- ovv0'0 192'T99'ET (000'026'€) 192'T€9'LT LT9'T0T'S $ 119'9.6'V $ 000'G2T $ 7000 059'625'2T %000 T99'€6E'00S'TE 910¢
- $ 0S¥00 Z28T'T06'VT $ - $ 28T'106'vT $ - - - 0S10°0 28T'T06'vT $ T99'€6€'00G'TE$ STOC
ST0Z @ored s/a spung ERITVETS s/a 1salaiu| [ediound | arey xel s/a (@WMoID @uonenep  T€/8

S81I8S 104 Xel S¥| [eiol a|qe|leny 19eQ [eloL S®I pauoddng AV 153 passassy 3Ad

abueyd 192d 19N SS9 lelol (©)(r)(©)STOC S8U8S ‘spuog xe] pajwi] 19ad -xe] S¥| a|qexe]
aley xe]| parewns3 pa1alfoid 000'020'66$ pasodoid Bunsig Bunsixg
S%| [el0L pajoalold

ab8|j0D spx8] Yynos

LS

@ 01/eUddS - SpUOg Xe | paliwl] 000'0Z0'66$ - SISAeuY arey xel pajosfoid
aba|j0D sexal yinos

g OLIeUBIS — 1ordWw | a1ey Xel BuuIS 79 1S8l81u] parew s

67



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

0717 ‘AuedwoD 1S8MyINoS 18114 GTOZ @ (014
OdIS ® VNI Joquisy

41 1SOMYINoS)Sld

%0586

alel suonoa||09 Xel 1s3 (9)

000'020'66$ J0 puny103[oid ay 0} yisodap e sawnssy ()
*9T0Z 1snbny uluswAed rediound 11y ay) pue ‘9Tz Areniga- ullua wAed 1Sa481ul 1Sl ‘GTOZ dUNC Ul 8duenss] sawnssy ()
@o2r9'€ @ DIL) sdq 05 + STOZ ‘TE YOIB JO Se Saley 1saiaiul 193eN 2BV, Sawnssy (g)
*abueyd 0110algns ‘Ajuo uonensn|| jo sasodind 1o} Yymolb ou sawnsse uonen|eA Passassy ajqexe] parewnsd (z)
‘s1usiq [esresddy sanuno) Leis pue objepiH ayiAq pauodal se uonenjes passassy a|qexe] GTOZ JeaA [easid (T)

:suondwnssy

- 3 €62',9.792$  (000°000ZT)$  €6279.°9.2$ | 19.°98.%vT $  19.96/.G $  000°066'98$ ZEG'086°TET $

- - - - - - - - - - %000  T99'E6E'00STE  8EOZ
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE L€0¢
- - - - - - - - - - %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 9€0¢
- 61200 00S°LTL'L - 00G'LTL'L 00S'.T.'L 005°29¢€ 000°0S€E'L - - %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE GE0C
- 60700 062'819'CT - 062'8.9'CT 00S.TL'L 00S'.LTL 000'000°'2 09700 0S2'T96't %000 T99'€6E'005'TE €0C
- 60700 000'229'CT - 000'229'CT 0G.'ST.'L 0G.'0S0'T 000'G99'9 09100 0S2'T96't %000 T99'€6E'005'TE €€0¢
- 60700  0S2°8.9°ZT - 05.'829°2T 052'8TL'L 052'89€°T 000'05€'9 09T00  005096'% %000  T99'E6E'V0STE  2€0T
- 60700  000°G.9°ZT - 000'629°2T 00§'STZ'L 005'029°T 000'G70°9 09T00  005'656'% %000  T99'E6E'00STE  TEOZ
- 60V00  0SZ'2L9'TT - 052'229'2T 005'8T.'L 005'856'T 000'09.'S 09700  0S.'856'% %000  T99'E6E'00STE  0£0Z
- 60700  005'929'ZT - 005'929'ZT 0SL'LTL'L 05,2822 000'58Y'S 09700  05.'856'F %000  T99'E6E'00STE 6202
- 60Y0°0  000'6.9'ZT - 000'6.9'ZT 000'6TL'L 000'767'Z 000'522'S 09T00  000°096'% %000  T99'E6E'00STE 8202
- 60700 005'G29'CT - 005'G29'CT 0G.2'LTL'L 0Sl'evl'e 000'G.6'Y 09100 0G.'/S6't %000 T99'€6€'00S'TE 120¢
- 60700 062'219'CT - 062'219'2T 0G.'6TL'L 05.'6.6'C 000'07L'Y 09100 00S'256't %000 T99'€6€'005'TE 920¢
- 60700 000'G29'2T - 000'G29'2T 0G2'ST.'L 062's02'€ 000'0TS'v 09700 0S5.'656't %000 T99'€6E'005'TE Srdor4
- 80700 0S.'719'CT - 0S.'v19'2T 000'STZ'L 000'02t'e 000'S62't 09700 0S5.'656't %000 T99'€6E'005°TE 20¢
- 60700  0052.9°ZT - 00§'229°2T 0SL'6TL'L 0S.'729'E 000'G60'% 09T00  0S.'/56'% %000  T99'E6E'V0STE  £20C
- 60700 0006.9°CT - 000'629°2T 0SL'6TL'L 0S.'6T8'E 000'006°€ 09T00  0SZ'656'% %000  T99'E6EV0STE  220Z
- 80V00  0S.%.9'TT - 0S.'729'2T 052'STL'L 052'500'y 000'0TL'E 09700  005'656'7 %000  T99'E6E00STE  T20Z
- 60V00  0S.'SL9'TT - 05'G29'ZT 000'LTLL 000'Z8T'% 000'GES'E 09700  0S.'856'F %000  T99'E6E'V0STE 0202
- 60Y0°0  006'8L9'ZT - 006'8.9'ZT 052'8€6'9 0SZ'€TE Y 000'629'Z S8T00  0S9'07L'S %000  T99'E6E'00S'TE  6TOT
- 2Zv0'0  000'SOT'ET (000'0L1'E) 000'625°9T 000'209'% 000'22€'Y 000'5/2 9800 000°€L6'TT %000  T99'E6EV0STE  8T0C
- f4A440N0] 0SS'SOT'ET (000'0£6'€) 0GG'GE0'LT 00S'68S't 00S'6EE'Y 000'0S2 T0¥00 0S0'9v1'2T %000 T99'€6€'005'TE LT0C
- f4440N0] TIV'L0T'ET (000°009'v) TTV'20L'LT T9.'2.T'S $ T9.'L16'V $ 000'002 $ 0v0°0 059'62S'2T %000 T99'€6E'005'TE 9T0¢
- $ 0SY00 Z8T'TO6'VT $ - $  Z8TTO6VT $ |- - - 0SY0'0  Z8T'TO6YT $ T99'€6E'00S'TE S  STOZ
ST0C g ored s/a spund ERINERS s/a 1s9u81U| lediound [ e1ey xel s/a QWMo juoneniea  1e/8

sal1as 104 Xel S| relol a|qe|reAy 19e@ [e1o0L Sl pauoddns AV 1s3 passassy  JAd

abueyd  1ge@ 18N 'ss9°7 [elol ©)©STOZ SA1IaS 'spuog xe] pajwi 10e@ -xe| S| a|qexel

arey xel parewins3y pajoaloid 000'020'66$ pasodoid Bunsixa  Bunspg

S [e101 paoaloid

abajjoD spxa] Yyhog

LS

3 0LeUDS - SpUOg Xe L PallwiT 000'020'66$ - SISAfeuy aley xel paloaloid
969]|0D sexa] yinos

3J oleuUddS —1oedwi| arey Xel Bupuis 7 1Sa1s)u] palewsy

68



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 11

Approval of Timetable of Events for the Sale of the Limited Tax Bonds,
Series 2015 and Authorize the President and Staff to Proceed Based on
Timetable of Events

Approval of the proposed timetable of events for the sale of the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015
and action by the President and staff as necessary to follow the Timetable of Events is requested.

Anne Burger Entrekin from First Southwest Company will be present at the meeting to discuss
the Proposed Timetable of Events for the sale of the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015.

The Proposed Timetable of Events follows in the packet for the Boards review and discussion.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee reviewed the proposed timetable with Ms.
Entrekin and provided feedback, but no action was requested or taken.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize the
Proposed Timetable of Events for the sale of the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015 and action by
the President and staff as necessary to follow the Timetable of Events as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the Proposed Timetable
of Events for the sale of the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015 and action by the President and
staff as necessary to follow the Timetable of Events as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

69



COLLEGE

TEXAS

SOUTH

277 ‘Auedwod 1SamMUINOS 15114 STOZ © I
2dIS B VHNI- Jaquai

& JSoMYyinosjsii4

skepljoH = _H_ sajeq Aoy = _u

T€ [0€ | 6¢ |82 | L¢ |9¢

G¢ |vC [€¢ | ¢ | T¢ |0 | 6T s waalby aseyoind
gt |t lor st vt et |2t puog ay: jo uonndaxa ayy buzoyine pue Bunoidde JapiO ay) Bundope pue spuogxe] Jo aduenssi

Spaadoid puog jo Aianiaq ‘buisold GTOZ ‘TZINC 'senL

papasu se sannidy Buyaug

GTOZ ‘e unc ‘sanL

mwlotlels]z]9 s Buzuoyiny JapiO ayr jo uondope sy} JapISUOD “spuogxe] PaliwiT 0 8|eS JoNpuUod 0} pieog ay jo Bunaspy

v]e€|c|T Buiold , ST0C'€C®

S|d(L|M|L|[N]|S gz unr'senl @ UoN
ST-INC Bunsod o4 s1sgam [eag-1 0} S80b Juswalels [ewo Areujwijaid GTOZ ‘ST unr ‘uop

sbuney aneoay GTOZ ‘2T ung ‘L

0¢ | 6¢ | 8¢
L2 [9¢ |S¢ [ve |€¢ | cc | T
0¢ [6T | 8T [ LT [9T |ST | ¥T
EL(CT|ITJOT (6 |8 | L

‘U Walels |eIowO Aleulwi|ald JO YeIp PASINaI U0 aNnp SIUsWWo)D

‘AIlessadau se uopoe puawwodal pue

GTOZ ‘TT unC ‘sinyL
aimonas 1gap Areurwijaid payepdn manal pue ayepdn 19yew SSNISIp 0} 9apIW W0 ddueuld yim Bunasiy

“JuaWalelS [e1oO AleulwiBid 40 Yelp [eul uo anp slusawwo) GT0Z ‘8 Unr ‘Uop

T aung Jo %83

selouaby buney yum s|jed 81euIploo)

70

-un
sTune “SJUSWIWO0D pue MaAai 1oy dnolb o1 Juswarels [eldo Aleulwi|aid 40 Yelp [euly puss
Te 'sajouabe Bunes 0] SJUBWNIOP pale|al pue UsWaleIS [eIoWO Aleulwiald puas  GTOZ ‘82 A8 ‘sinyL
0€ |62 |8¢C | LC S¢ |72 e eUOWS e BN
€2 | zz |12 |0z | 6T |81 |47 QTEHOWAN — gT0¢ ‘Se/en o
oT | ST |¥T | €T TT | 0T ‘dnoJB BujJom WOl YeIp PUOISS UO BNP SIUBWIWOYD  GTOZ ‘TZAeN ‘sinylL
6[8[L]°9 v]E€ *dnoib Bupjiom ay) 01 SJUBWINJOP pale|al pue JuaWaleIS eI Aleulwi|aid J0 Yelp puodas  GT0Z ‘vTAen ‘sinyl
¢ |7
‘dnoJb Bupjiom woly anp sjusWwWo ‘TT Ae ‘uo
slal1m NS b } anp s} o) STOC 'TTABNA ‘UON
ST-AeN *21monAs 1qag Areutwijaid Buiprebal
uopoe a|qissod pue ayepdn 19xJEN SSNISIQ ‘UONI3IBS 9¥eIIPUAS Bunumiapun lojpue ssadoid uondales GT0Z ‘82 Jdv ‘sanL
J81mIapun ‘sluang jo ajqelawi] pasodold ay) bumnoidde Japisuod pue ssnasip 0} preog ayr yum Bunaasiy
0€ | 6¢ Le|% SlUBW WO pue manal 1o} dnoib 0y Judwaels [elO Areulwijald Jo yelp 1sily puas GT0Z ‘/Z 1dv ‘Uop
GC |ve |€c|2c 0C | 6T
SUENTEIe]e] T a0y g
ST|LT |91 |51 7 pale|al J1ayio pue uawalels [eoo Areuiwilaid jo uonesedald uibag [9SUN0D puog pue 1SaMYINoSISiiH §10¢ L1 :
TT|0T |6 |8 918§
vlelzlt auljawil pasodoid 6702 ‘€T I ‘UON
sT3 11 m NI pue ‘a1nonis 108 aduenss| puog 18yiew puog [edidiuni SSNISIP 0} 8801 W W0 adueuld ay yum Bunaspy
STady IN3INT 31va

SJUSAT JO 3|qelawl ] pasodold



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 12

Review and Action as Necessary on the Engagement of Underwriting
Firm(s) for the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015

Approval of the engagement of underwriting firm(s) for the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015 is
requested.

Anne Burger Entrekin from First Southwest Company is recommending that the College consider
utilization of the same syndicate that was used in the 2014 transaction be used for the proposed
2015 bond transaction.

The firms selected for the 2014 transaction were

e Senior Manager — Estrada Hinojosa
e Co-Managers — Jefferies, Raymond James and Stifel Nicolaus & Co.,

STC undertook a comprehensive process prior to the 2014 Bond issue to evaluate firms for the
underwriter syndicate selection. This process included identifying the firms that had expressed
an interest in working with the college, firms that had prior experience with the College and
leading firms in underwriting education related bonds and Texas bonds.

Anne Burger Entrekin will discuss other options and processes at the meeting, including the
underwriting syndicate selection process.

The Proposed Syndicate presentation and the Underwriting Firm Summary follows in the packet
for the Board’s review and discussion.

The selections of the underwriting firm(s) will allow the College to proceed with the proposed
timetable of events and allow for the sale of $99,020,000 in bonds according to the earliest
timeline as proposed.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize the
engagement of the underwriting firm Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc. as the senior manager
and the three firms Jefferies LLC, Raymond James, and Stifel Nicolaus Co., Inc. as co-managers
for the Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015 as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the engagement of the
underwriting firm Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc. as the senior manager and the three firms
Jefferies LLC, Raymond James, and Stifel Nicolaus Co., Inc. as co-managers for the Limited Tax
Bonds, Series 2015 as presented.

Approval Recommended:
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

71



UNDERWRITING SYNDICATE SELECTION PROCESS

The South Texas College Board has several options related to the selection of the underwriting
syndicates for the upcoming bond issues. Each of these options is utilized by other political
subdivisions, so it is a matter of preference by the Board. Additionally, STC may utilize a
combination of the methods described below.

Experience with STC — Utilize underwriting firms that (i) have supported STC’s bond sales and
have a proven track record and/or (ii) have called on STC and offered proposals and ideas of
value

Rankings — Select firms that have high rankings based on Texas bond issues, Education bond
issues and/or Higher Education bond issues

Request for Proposals — This entails drafting a request for proposal with a broad solicitation
that includes questions related to experience and other criteria that would be valuable in
selecting an underwriting syndicate. May (i) be difficult to evaluate based on objective criteria
(rankings can vary depending on time period and universe (i.e. TX vs all US)) and (ii) not be in
STC’s best interest to select firms based on proposed expenses or pricing

Based on a discussion with our underwriting desk and on the projected size of the first
transaction, our desk recommends a syndicate of four firms would be appropriate. Additionally,
we suggest being sure to have firms that will reach different sectors of the market to ensure a
broad distribution of the bonds.

Considerations for the Underwriting Syndicate

We believe it is important for underwriters to demonstrate their engagement in the early phases
of a transaction, such as preparation of the authorizing documents and preliminary official
statement. Active participation on conference calls and submission of written comments on
documents demonstrate the importance of a transaction to the banker and their firm, and is
often indicative of their level of engagement on the date of pricing. We inform our clients of
underwriters’ level of participation, allowing them the opportunity to take action to correct such
behavior, and/or consider it in the determination of liabilities, as well as future engagements.

During pre-pricing discussions, we consider the timeliness and quality of information provided
by the members of the underwriting syndicate. It is important for underwriters to submit their
initial price views timely, reflect current market conditions, and with realistic market levels for
that specific credit. We expect a representative from each firms’ underwriting desk to actively
participate in pre-pricing calls, allowing us to monitor level of engagement of the underwriting
desk and the firm’s sales force.

During pricing, expectations of Senior Managers and Co-Managers is different. We expect a
Senior Manager to have frequent and effective communication with our client and ourselves, as
well as the other members of the underwriting team. Effective communication helps to minimize
both misunderstandings and surprises that may occur during the pricing process, leading to a
better outcome. With respect to the order period, it is important for the Senior Manager to set

April 23, 2015 Prepared by FirstSouthwest Page 1

72



the tone, and generate strong investor demand across the maturity spectrum from a broad
range of investors. Key “anchor orders” will always drive a pricing, however generating demand
in the form of smaller orders can help solidify a book of orders and drive down yields, or
minimize the need to increase yields in a repricing.

With respect to Co-Managers, we evaluate the number and quality of the orders for bonds
submitted. While the majority of orders will flow through the Senior Manager, it is important for
Co-Managers to place priority orders to achieve the best possible pricing. We also view Co-
Managers performance positively when they place member orders in the amount of their liability
for maturities that are undersubscribed early in the order period. Conversely, we view
negatively the submission of member orders late in the order period for maturities that are
already oversubscribed. This practice can negatively impact the order book, by showing orders
that are not real and therefore create unnecessary tension during repricing discussions. To
monitor this practice, we track orders from co-managers during the order period, including the
time the order was placed.

With the completion of the pricing, we evaluate a Senior Manager based on their proposed
allocation of bonds. We review proposed allocations, and encourage our clients to take an
active role as well, to ensure fair treatment of the participating underwriters. We believe
consistent fair and equitable treatment of all members of the underwriting syndicate will result in
the best results for a client, as their underwriters will know their efforts to sell bonds will be
rewarded. We have also found post-pricing de-briefing calls with each firm beneficial to
understand how the order period was conducted and ensure the allocation process was done in
accordance with all applicable regulations and expectations of our client.

April 23, 2015 Prepared by FirstSouthwest Page 2

73



abeg|j0D sbxa] Yynos

LS

439317700 SVvVX3I ] HLNOS

U0I1199]9S 91edIpuAs pasodoid

74



TEXAS COLLEGE

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © eT & Hmw;r—u:omum‘-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

paJlapisuod Buiaq azis pasodoid sy Jo uonoesuel) e axyeuapun o} sanljigeded
3yl sey a1edlpudhs sIyl eyl ‘Yssp Bunumispun INO YIM pPawliuod aAey sp\  —
uonoesuel) GTOZ pasodoid ay) 10} a1edIpuAs swes ay) Jo uonezi|in IapIsuod D1S
puawiwodal am ‘uonoesuell yTOZ dYl ul a1edipuAs ayl Jo aouewlopdad ay) uo paseg =
“0D 79 SNBJ0JIN |9J11S pue sawer puowAdey ‘sauayar — siabeueN-0) —
esoloulH epesns3 — 1abeuey Ioluss —
P3109|8s alaMm Sswily Buimojjo) 8yl ‘ssadoud ajelaqiap e 1By =
M3IABJ 10] papIAoId a1oMm SMBIAIBAO Wl ‘Ajreuonippy  —
SpuUOQ Sexa] pue spuoq pale[al uonednpa Bunumiapun ul suuly
Buipes| ‘9ba|j00 ay1 yum asualiadxs Joud pey eyl swliy ‘absjjod ayl yium Bujiom
ul 1salajul ue passaldxa pey eyl swuy ayl buifuapr pspnoul ssaododd SIyl —
UON23|9S 31eIIPUAS Jal1lIMIBPUN BY] J0) SWI) 91eNn|eAa 0] anssl
puog T0Z 9yl 01 Joud ssadoid aAlsuayaldwod e yoouapun 1S ‘sieytew [edidiunw
3yl ul sabueyd ayl pue anssl puoq uedliubis 1se| ayl 8ouls awil JO uoneinp ayl USAIS) =
uoneziowe Jeak (9) XIS e Yim
uoljjlw §G5'6TS$ Al@rewixoidde Jo 0TOZ ul sbuines o) Buipunjal e uaaq pey alsyl -

£00Z 92uls
uol|[iw 0Z$ J9A0 anss| puog wisl-buo| e pey 10U pey D1S ‘enssi puog #TOZ 94l 01 IOl =

U01199]3S 91edIPUAS pasodold

75



TEXAS COLLEGE

SOUTH

2577 ‘Auedwo) 1semyinos 1sii4 GT0Z © VT & Hmwgsusomum‘-_m

OdIS ® VdNId 19qusiN

anss| puoq

Buiwoadn sIyl uo noA 1sisse 01 pue OIS yim diom 01 Allunuoddo ayy Buiney areroaidde app =

suoneolignd sapnjoul yaiym ssasold Bumss ajel xe)l
3y} pue ‘adueleq pun4 a2IAI8S 198 Buizinn pue anssi puog ay) Buunionns oy jewndo
SI YoIyM uoneneA passasse ajgexel Mau ayl JO uoljeulwalap Janag e aAey 03 S1oulsIq
[esreisddy syl wody uonewuojul Jo Bulwn syl usamiaq adueeq e sapinoid auldwin SIyl -
uoIeISPISUOD 10) auljdwil ajdwes e papinoid aAneYy O\ =

SJI910A 10J paroaloid uey) ssa| ag pinod 1oedwi arel
xe)] pajdaloid ay) ‘pun4 921AI8S 1go@ aYl ul aduejeq punj Jo uonezijn pajoaloid ay) uanln —
SLI 1S848]ul 81Mny sayebniw pue S}S0d
9oUeNSS| S8IoNpaJ ‘SIBIOA 10} paulpno uondsloid 81es xey ayl ulyum auop agq ued SIyl -—
Jeak syl uonezuoyine Bulurewal ayy anssi 01 Aljige
ayl sey OIS ay “eak siyr ybnolyr panunuod sey eyl Jeak 1se| JUSWUOIIAUS Blel 1Saldlul
MO| 8Y} pue SS820id uon9a|3 puog ayl Buunp paziinn suondwnsse aARBAIBSUOD dY) UBAIS) =

Arewwns

76



Underwriting
Firm
Summary




UNDERWRITING FIRM SUMMARY

Estrada Hinojosa & Co, Inc. —This Firm has previously served in an underwriting role to South Texas
College

Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc. is headquartered in Dallas with offices in Austin, Houston
and San Antonio. Trading and underwriting is conducted out of Dallas. Estrada Hinojosa
operates primarily as a broker of publicly traded securities and investments in Texas. Estrada
Hinojosa financial advisory experience includes cities, counties, community college districts,
school districts and special districts. The firm has also served as underwriters on numerous
financings in the Southwest particularly by Texas issuers along the Texas-Mexico border.

Jefferies LLC - This Firm has previously served in an underwriting role to South Texas College

Jefferies Public Finance is present in the following Texas locations: Houston and Dallas.
Trading and underwriting is conducted out of New York. Jefferies Group, Inc. is a publicly-
traded holding company whose subsidiaries comprise a global, full-service investment banking
and institutional securities firm. Services provided include: institutional securities broker-dealer,
which includes several types of financial services, such as principal and agency transactions in
equity, high yield, corporate bond, mortgage-and asset-backed, municipal, government and
agency, convertible and international securities, as well as investment banking and fundamental
research. Jefferies Group LLC (jefferies.com) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leucadia National
Corporation (NYSE: LUK), a diversified holding company.

Raymond James - This Firm has previously served in an underwriting role to South Texas College

Raymond James is a diversified financial services holding company engaged primarily in
investment banking, asset management, and financial planning. The Public Finance group has
in-depth experience and expertise in providing financing solutions for a broad range of tax-
exempt issues which include general obligation, airports, utilities, higher education, school
districts, and healthcare. Raymond James is headquartered in St. Petersburg, Florida and is
present in the following Texas locations: Dallas, Houston, and San Antonio. Publicly traded on
the NYSE under the symbol “RJF”.

Stifel Nicolaus - This Firm has previously served in an underwriting role to South Texas College.

Stifel Nicolaus is a full-service brokerage and investment banking firm that is based out of St.
Louis, Missouri with a Texas location in San Antonio. Stifel Nicolaus has worked with a diverse
number of public and non-profit entities, including municipalities, hospitals, long-term care
facilities, educational institutions, public agencies, and other state and local governments. Stifel
Nicolaus is a subsidiary of Stifel Financial Corp. which was formed as a holding company and is
publicly traded on the NYSE under the symbol “SF”.

April 23, 2015 Prepared by FirstSouthwest Page 1

78



State of
Texas
Top
Underwriters/
General
Education



The table below illustrates the most current information for the companies:

Firm Excess Net Information S&P Moody's Fitch
Capital as of

Estrada Hinojosa & Co, Inc.” $ 2,717,452 12/31/2014 NR NR NR

Jefferies LLC” $ 859,014,838 12/31/2014 BBB- Baa3 BBB-

Raymond James* $ 425,565,000 12/31/2014 BBB Baa2 NR

Stifel Nicolaus” $ 357,900,000 12/31/2014 BBB- NR BBB-

" These firms have previously served in an Underwriting role to the College.

UNDERWRITER RANKINGS (TEXAS ONLY)

Texas Higher Education Underwriter Rankings Texas Education Underwriter Rankings
January 1, 2014 to Year-to-Date January 1, 2014 to Year-to-Date
Par Amount Par Amount
Rank Firm (US$ mil) Rank Firm (US$ mil)

1 Estrada Hinojosa $ 1,461.89 1 Raymond James $10,022.62
2 RBC Capital Mkts 1,346.45 2 RBC Capital Mkts 7,456.66
3 Piper Jaffray 1,336.87 3 Piper Jaffray 4,944 .42
4 Samuel A. Ramirez 1,333.91 4 Wells Fargo Secs 4.902.51
5 Raymond James 1,194.93 5 BOSC 4,883.07
6 Barclays Capital 1,087.76 6 FirstSouthwest 4.,083.96
7 Morgan Stanley 1,083.24 7 Estrada Hinojosa 3,869.49
8 Wells Fargo Secs 977.89 8 Citigroup 3,858.72
9 JPMorgan 866.40 9 JPMorgan 3,671.00
10 Citigroup 819.46 10 Robert W. Baird 3,139.00
11 Siebert Brandford 807.15 11 Frost Bank 3,127.60
12 Loop Capital 733.58 12 Southwest Securities 3,071.20
13 Fidelity Capital 707.81 13 Jefferies 2,868.93
14 FirstSouthwest 681.70 14 Coastal Securities 2,804.38
15 Frost Bank 638.42 15 Loop Capital 1,882.57
16 Jefferies 558.62 16 Stifel Nicolaus 1,608.17
17 George K. Baum 538.82 17 Edward Jones 1,465.60
18 Mesirow Financial 452.13 18 FTN Fin Cap Mkts 1,350.94
19 Robert W. Baird 404.80 19 SAMCO Cap Mkts 1,333.48
20 Southwest Securities 360.83 20 CIBC World Markets 1,085.28

Senior and CO-Managing Underwriter Senior and CO-Managing Underwriter

Source: MuniAnalytics Source: MuniAnalytics

April 23, 2015 Prepared by FirstSouthwest Page 2

80



April 23, 2015

Texas Underwriter Rankings
January 1, 2014 to Year-to-Date

Par Amount
Rank Firm (US$ mil)

1 Raymond James $23,825.59
2 RBC Capital Mkts 20,695.85
3 Citigroup 17,282.01
4 Wells Fargo Secs 14,476.55
5 Morgan Stanley 13,644.68
6 Jefferies 9,375.71
7 Frost Bank 9,251.37
8 BOSC 8,620.84
9 Estrada Hinojosa 7,524.79
10 FirstSouthwest 6,067.73
11 Robert W. Baird 5,447.91
12 Coastal Securities 5,102.13
13 SAMCO Cap Mkts 4,630.00
14 Stifel Nicolaus 4.166.03
15 Southwest Securities 3,931.94
16 BLNS Securities 1,037.40
17 M. E. Allison 1,023.75
18 WNJ Capital 1,008.51
19 Crews & Associates 944 .61
20 Ross Sinclaire 859.58

Senior and CO-Managing Underwriter

Source: MuniAnalytics

Prepared by FirstSouthwest

81

Page 3



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 13

Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Purchases,
Renewals, License Agreement, and Contract Extension

Approval of the following proposal awards, purchases, renewals, license agreement, and
contract extension is requested.

1) District Wide Special Event Venue Audio Visual Upgrades (Award)
Award the proposal for the district wide special event venue audio visual upgrades to Audio

Visual Aids Corp (San Antonio, TX), at a total cost of $157,743.50.

Several special event venues across the district, including the auditoriums at the Technology,
Starr, and Mid-Valley campuses, as well as the Pecan Campus Cooper Center, are in need of
upgrading. The currently installed analog equipment ranges in age from 7 to 12 years and is
experiencing connectivity issues and lacks the ability to support current technologies such as
streaming, recording and archiving. This upgrade will replace the older analog audiovisual
infrastructure with an up-to-date digital infrastructure capable of supporting current technologies

Proposal documents were advertised on March 9, 2015 and March 16, 2015 and issued to five
(5) vendors. One (1) response was received on March 26, 2015 and reviewed by Instructional
Technologies and the Purchasing Department.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Instructional Technologies budget for FY 2014-
2015.

2) Programmable Direct Connect Power Supply (Award)
Award the proposal for programmable direct connect power supply to Mouser Electronics

(Mansfield, TX), at a total cost of $16,438.00.

The two (2) programmable direct connect power supply will be used in the Engineering Program
in the Division of Math and Science. They will combine two or more channels of output power to
cost-effectively characterize and test a wide range of devices, circuit boards, modules and
products that require more than one power source. The power supplies will provide hands on
training for students in the Engineering and Digital Electronics labs.

Proposal documents were advertised on March 16, 2015 and March 23, 2015 and issued to four
(4) vendors. One (1) response was received on March 31, 2015 and reviewed by Chemistry
Program and the Purchasing Department.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Engineering budget for FY 2014-2015.

3) Video Projectors (Award)
Award the proposal for video projectors to Audio Visual Aids Corp (San Antonio, TX), at a total

cost of $35,964.00.

82



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM

Page 14

The thirty six (36) video projectors are replacements for circulating projectors that are delivered
to portable buildings and other venues that lack installed equipment throughout the district.
These projectors are no longer under warranty, and their performance has tested as
substandard in tests performed by the Instructional Technologies Department.

Proposal documents were advertised on February 16, 2015 and February 23, 2015 and issued
to fifteen (15) vendors. Six (6) response was received on March 3, 2015 and reviewed by
Instructional Technologies and the Purchasing Department.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Instructional Technologies budget for FY 2014-
2015.

4) Computers, Laptops, and Tablets (Purchase)
Purchase of computers, laptops, and tablets from the State of Texas Department of Information

Resources (DIR) approved vendors Dell Marketing, LP (Dallas, TX), and from the National Joint
Powers Alliance approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon Hills, IL), in the total amount of
$144,153.15.

All purchase requests for computers, laptops, and tablets have been evaluated by Technology
Resources Department and the Chief Information Officer. An itemized list with justification is
included for your review and information.

The purchases can be summarized as follows:

e Staff-Use Computer
= 1 Computer for Division of Math, Science & BA Programs

e Faculty-Use Computers

2 Computers for Mathematics Program

5 Computers for English Program

1 Computer for Paralegal Program

1 Computer for Welding Program

1 Computer for Music Program

3 Computers for Technology Renewal Fund (PMT Department)

e duddl

e Student Lab-Use Computers
= 39 Computers for Instructional Resource Open Lab

e Work-Study Station Computer
= 1 Computer for Division of Math, Science & BA Programs

e Staff-Use Laptop
= 1 Laptop for Purchasing Department

e Faculty-Use Class-Instruction Laptops
= 1 Laptop for Division of Liberal Arts & Social Sciences
= 5 Laptops for Sociology Program
= 2 Laptops for Business Administration Program

83



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 15

e Circulation Student-Use Laptops
= 38 Laptops for Starr Campus/Technology Renewal Fund (Instructional Technologies)
= 25 Laptops for Pecan Campus/Technology Renewal Fund (Instructional Technologies)
= 6 Laptops for Mid-Valley Campus/Technology Renewal Fund (Instructional
Technologies)

e Student-Use Laptops
= 10 Laptops for Electronic & Computer Maintenance Program

e Staff-Use Tablets
= 2 Tablets for Facilities Planning & Construction

e Faculty-Use Tablets
= 2 Tablets for Pharmacy Technology Program

Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the requesting department budgets for FY 2014-
2015 as follows: Division of Math, Science & BA Programs, Mathematics, English, Paralegal,
Welding, Music, Technology Renewal Fund, Instructional Resource Open Lab, Purchasing,
Division of Liberal Arts & Social Sciences, Sociology, Business Administration, Electronic &
Computer Maintenance, Facilities Planning and Construction, and Pharmacy Technology.

5) Computer Server Appliance (Purchase)
Purchase a computer server appliance from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $17,661.76.

The computer server appliance will be used to automate the maintenance and software upgrades
for the growing number of computer servers district wide. The appliance will conduct health
checks on the servers which will allow for pro-active measures to be taken before a server fails.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Infrastructure budget for FY 2014-2015.

6) Furniture (Purchase)
Purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award Schedule (TXMAS), U.S.

Communities and Provista approved vendors, at a total amount of $172,577.99.

All purchase requests for furniture have been evaluated by Department’'s Financial Managers
and Planning and Construction. The request are for new classrooms, new conference rooms,
additional pieces, or replacements.

Vendor Amount

A | Allsteel, Inc./ $41,371.40
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

Computer Comforts, Inc. (Kemah, TX) $11,946.96

C | Cramer, LLC./ $1,056.80
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

84



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM

Page 16

# Vendor Amount

D | Exemplis Corporation/ $8,056.90
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

E | National Office Furniture/ $19,853.41
Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)

F | The Hon Company/ $2,784.06
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

G | Krueger International/ $49,064.29
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

H | Herman Miller / $36,971.29
Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)

I | VIA, Inc./ $1,472.88
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

Total | $172,577.99

The purchases can be summarized as follows:

A. Allsteel, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

= Mid Valley Campus

» 28 Tables for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Nursing Allied Health Campus

» 16 Tables for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Pecan Campus

> 28 Tables for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Starr Campus

» 24 Tables for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Technology Campus

» 20 Tables for the Active Learning Classrooms
Computer Comforts, Inc. (Kemah, TX)
= Pecan Campus

» 2 Podiums for Human Resources Department
= Mid-Valley Campus

» 1 Podium for Instructional Technologies
= Starr Campus

» 1 Podium for Instructional Technologies
= Technology Campus

» 1 Podium for Instructional Technologies

C. Cramer, LLC./Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

85




Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 17
= Nursing Allied Health Campus
» 4 Stools for the Sonography Program
D. Exemplis Corporation/Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)
= Mid Valley Campus
» 3 Chairs for the Student Assessment Center
= Pecan Campus
» 17 Chairs for the Student Assessment Center
= Starr Campus
» 3 Chairs for the Student Assessment Center
E. National Office Furniture/Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)
= Pecan Campus
» 24 Chairs, 6 Tables and 29 Panels for Library
F. The HON Company/Gateway Printing and Office Supply Inc. (Edinburg, TX)
= Nursing Allied Health Campus
» 1 Desk for the Respiratory Therapy Department
= Pecan Campus
» 1 Bookcase for Admissions & Records
» 1 Desk, 1 Vertical File and 1 Bookcase for the Research and Analytical Services
Department
= Starr Campus
» 1 Hutch for Starr County Administration Office
G. Krueger International, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply Inc.(Edinburg, TX)
= Mid Valley Campus
» 43 Chairs for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Nursing Allied Health Campus
» 25 Chairs for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Pecan Campus
» 1 Desk and 1 Keyboard Tray for Admissions & Records
» 43 Chairs for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Starr Campus
» 37 Chairs for the Active Learning Classrooms
= Technology Campus
» 31 Chairs for the Active Learning Classrooms
H. Herman Miller/Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)
= Pecan Campus
» 10 Stools, 6 Student Chairs and 4 Lounge Chairs for Library
l. VIA, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply Inc. (Edinburg, TX)
= Pecan Campus
» 4 Chairs for the Vice President of Finance & Administrative Services

Fund for these expenditures are budgeted in the requesting department budgets for FY 2014-
2015 as follows: Admissions & Records, Finance & Administrative Services, Human Resources,
Library Services, New Furniture, Research and Analytical Services, Respiratory Therapy, Starr
County Campus, STC in Focus and Student Assessment Center.

86



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 18

7) Monitoring Hardware and Software (Purchase)
Purchase monitoring hardware and software from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of
Texas Multiple Award Schedule (TXMAS) approved vendor, at a total cost of $17,682.46.

The monitoring hardware and software will replace outdated technology used in the main data
center and computer server rooms throughout the college to monitor environmental information
such as temperature and humidity levels in those rooms. Monitoring environmental conditions
is critical to prevent equipment failure which could result in extended downtime or even data loss.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Infrastructure budget for FY 2014-2015.

8) Network Hardware (Purchase)

Purchase network hardware from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of
Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of
$19,250.00.

The network hardware is for the implementation of a new network edge router that will support
higher internet bandwidth. It will connect the network firewall and other network appliances at a
faster speed.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Infrastructure budget for FY 2014-2015.

9) Phones and Network Devices (Purchase)

Purchase phones and network devices from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a
State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period
beginning April 29, 2015 through August 31, 2015, at an estimated cost of $25,000.00.

The phones and network devices will be used district wide to replace failing equipment, out of
warranty equipment or out of life equipment such as access point, phones SFP modules, fiber
patch cords, special power cords, etc.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Telecom and Technology Support budgets for FY
2014-2015.

10)Armored Car Services (Renewal)

Renew the contract for armored car services with American Surveillance Co., Inc. (Brownsville,
TX) for the period beginning June 1, 2015 through May 31, 2016, at an amount not to exceed
$1,328.70 per month or $15,944.40 per year. Special trips will be scheduled on an as needed
basis at an estimated cost of $10,305.15. The total approximate cost for armored car services
for the year is $26,249.55.

The armored car services is required daily for cashiers at the Pecan Campus, Technology
Campus, Business Office, Mid-Valley Campus, Starr County Campus and Nursing and Allied
Health Campus.

The Board awarded the contract for armored car services at the April 22, 2014 Board of Trustees

meeting for one year with two one-year options to renew. The first renewal period begins June
1, 2015 through May 31, 2016.

87



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 19

The vendor has complied with all the terms and conditions of the contract and services have
been satisfactory.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the requesting Armored Car Services budget for FY
2014-2015 and FY 2015-2016 pending Board approval.

11)Clean Address Software Support and Maintenance Subscription (Renewal)

Renew the clean address software support and maintenance subscription with Runner
Technologies, Inc. (Boca Raton, FL), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning March 6,
2015 through March 5, 2016, at a total cost of $10,011.29.

The clean address software support and maintenance subscription provides verification and
standardization of addresses in the College’s Banner System for students, employees and
vendors. As addresses are created in Banner, it will verify and correct the address to comply
with the U. S Postal System.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Admissions & Records budget for FY 2014-2015.

12)Software Maintenance and Support Agreements (Renewal)
Renew the software maintenance and support agreements with Evisions (Irvine, CA), a sole
source vendor, for the period of April 1, 2015 through July 31, 2016, at a total cost of $20,379.00.

The software maintenance and support is for the following Banner forms: purchase orders,
student bills, invoices, accounts payable checks, payroll checks, student refund checks,
employee W-9 forms, report writing and direct deposit.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Business Office and Infrastructure budgets for FY
2014-2015.

13)Graduation Facility (License Agreement)

Lease the graduation facility from the City of Hidalgo — Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation
(State Farm Arena) (Hidalgo, TX), an interlocal license agreement for December 11, 2015
beginning at 8:00 a.m. through December 12, 2015 at midnight, at an estimated cost of
$14,500.00.

The ceremonies will be held on Saturday, December 12, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m.

The facilities will be used for South Texas College graduation ceremonies in December 2015.
The cost includes the use of the facility, audio visual equipment and personnel.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Graduation budget for FY 2015-2016 pending
Board approval of the budget.

14)Internal Auditor Services (Contract Extension)

Contract extension for purchase of internal auditor services with Burton McCumber & Cortez,
LLP. (McAllen, TX), for the period beginning September 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015, at
a cost of approximately $10,000.00.

The Board awarded the contract for internal auditor services at the June 26, 2012 Board of

Trustees meeting for one year with two one-year annual renewals. The last renewal period
began September 1, 2014 through August 31, 2015. A contract extension to the current contract

88



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 20

period is requested for three additional months to provide service for the Board approved
projects.

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Audit Services budget for FY 2015-2016 pending
Board approval of the budget.

Recommendation:

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the proposal
award, purchases, renewals, license agreement, and contract extension

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

District Wide Special Event Venue Audio Visual Upgrades (Award): award the
proposal for the district wide special event venue audio visual upgrades to Audio Visual
Aids Corp (San Antonio, TX), at a total cost of $157,743.50;

Programmable Direct Connect Power Supply (Award): award the proposal for
programmable direct connect power supply to Mouser Electronics (Mansfield, TX), at a
total cost of $16,438.00;

Video Projectors (Awards): award the proposal for video projectors to Audio Visual Aids
Corp (San Antonio, TX), at a total cost of $35,964.00;

Computers, Laptops, and Tablets (Purchase): purchase of computers, laptops, and
tablets from the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved
vendors Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX) and from the National Joint Powers Alliance
approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon Hills, IL), in the total amount of $144,153.15;
Computer Server Appliance (Purchase): purchase a computer server appliance from
Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources
(DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $17,661.76;

Furniture (Purchase): purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award
Schedule (TXMAS), U. S. Communities and Provista approved vendors, at a total amount
of $172,577.99;

# Vendor Amount

A Allsteel, Inc./ $41,371.40
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

B | Computer Comforts, Inc. (Kemah, TX) $11,946.96

c Cramer, LLC./ $1,056.80
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

o Exemplis Corporation/ $8,056.90
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

c National Office Furniture/ $19,853.41
Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)

. The Hon Company/ $2,784.06

Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

89



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 21

# Vendor Amount

Kruger International/ $49,064.29
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

Herman Miller/ $36,971.29
Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)

VIA, Inc./ $1,472.88
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

Total $172,577.99

7) Monitoring Hardware and Software (Purchase): purchase monitoring hardware and
software from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Multiple Award Schedule
(TXMAS) approved vendor, at a total cost of $17,682.46;

8) Network Hardware (Purchase): purchase network hardware from Insight Public Sector
(Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
approved vendor, at a total cost of $19,250.00;

9) Phones and Network Devices (Purchase): purchase phones and network devices from
Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas Department of
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning April 29, 2015
through August 31, 2015, at an estimated cost of $25,000.00;

10)Armored Car Services (Renewal): renew the contract for armored car services with
American Surveillance Co., Inc. (Brownsville, TX) for the period beginning June 1, 2015
through May 31, 2016, at an amount not to exceed $1,328.70 per month or $15,944.40
per year. Special trips will scheduled on an as needed basis at an estimated cost of
$10,305.15. The total approximate cost for armored card services for the year is
$26,249.55;

11)Clean Address Software Support and Maintenance Subscription (Renewal): renew
the clean address software support and maintenance subscription with Runner
Technologies, Inc. (Boca Raton, FL), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning March
6, 2015 through March 5, 2016, at a total cost of $10,011.29;

12)Software Maintenance and Support Agreements (Renewal): renew the software
maintenance and support agreements with Evisions (Irvine, CA), a sole source vendor,
for the period of April 1, 2015 through July 31, 2016, at a total cost of $20,379.00;

13)Graduation Facility (License Agreement): lease the graduation facility from the City of
Hidalgo- Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation (State Farm Arena) (Hidalgo, TX), an
interlocal license agreement for December 11, 2015 beginning at 8:00 a.m. through
December 12, 2015 at midnight, at an estimated cost of $14,500.00;

14)Internal Auditor Services (Contract Extension): contract extension for purchase of
internal auditor services with Burton McCumber & Cortez, LLP. (McAllen, TX), for the
period beginning September 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015, at a cost of
approximately $10,000.00.

SUMMARY TOTAL:

The total for all proposal awards, purchases, and renewals is $687,610.70

90



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 22

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposal award,
purchases, renewals, license agreement, and contract extension as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

91



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 23

Review and Action as Necessary to Renew the Hidalgo County Agreement
for Tax Assessment and Collection

Approval to renew the Hidalgo County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current
and delinquent taxes collected from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016 is requested.

According to Texas Property Tax Code, Sec. 6.27 (c) Compensation for Assessment and
Collection, the assessor or collector is entitled to a reasonable fee, not to exceed actual costs
incurred, for which it assesses and collects taxes. The Inter-Local Cooperation Agreement
requires the County, after reviewing actual collection costs, to submit a proposed fee to the
College, which may include a cost increase of no more than 5% per year, prior to May 1st. The
College will then have until June 1st to accept the recommended fee.

The Board of Trustees approved the Inter-Local Cooperation Agreement for Tax Assessment
and Collection with Hidalgo County on March 11, 1996 with an option to renew for subsequent
tax years. The contract was last renewed on April 22, 2014, and the annual fee approved was
$98,304.00, which represented a cost increase of 5%, or $4,678.00, as allowed per the Inter-
Local Cooperation Agreement for Tax Assessment and College. Mr. Pablo Villarreal, Jr., RTA
for Hidalgo County, has advised the College that the annual fee for tax year 2015 will remain at
$98,304.00. The monthly collection fee of approximately $8,192.00 is reduced from taxes
collected during the month and the remaining funds are wired to the South Texas College’s bank
depository account.

Below is a summary of Hidalgo County assessment and collection fee charges and
corresponding fee increase percentages for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 through Fiscal Year 2015-
2016.

Seven Year History of Fees for Hidalgo County Tax
Assessment and Collection

Increase over

Year Fee Previous Year
2015 - 2016 $98,304.00 0%
2014 - 2015 $98,304.00 5%
2013 - 2014 $93,626.00 0%
2012 - 2013 $93,626.00 0%
2011 - 2012 $93,626.00 0%
2010 - 2011 $93,626.00 5%
2009 - 2010 $89,167.20 0%

92




Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM

Page 24

The Inter-local Cooperation Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection follows in the packet
for the Board'’s review and information.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the renewal
of the Hidalgo County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and delinquent
taxes collected at an annual fee of $98,304.00, representing a 0% increase, from September 1,
2015 through August 31, 2016 as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
the renewal of the Hidalgo County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current
and delinquent taxes collected at an annual fee of $98,304.00, representing a 0% increase, from
September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016 as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the renewal of the
Hidalgo County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and delinquent taxes
collected at an annual fee of $98,304.00, representing a 0% increase, from September 1, 2015
through August 31, 2016 as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

93



Office of Tax r4scesson - (ollector
COUNTY o HIDALGO
Pable “Pal” Villaweal, . B4

PR mm—::.::\-x:-—u ..-."..‘!.I.I;'-‘...-‘:‘::_f':ﬂz‘.:“:—-_.
A B %

s 1 : e i
o alt s s it e st et g et i s

March 31, 2015
P.O. Box 178
. Edinburg, Texas 78540-0178
Ms. Myrlam Lopez, Comptroller Ph. (956) 318-2157
South Texas College Fax (956) 318-2733
P.O. Box 9701 www.hidalgocountytax.org

McAllen, TX. 78502
Dear Ms. Lopez:

As per Clause VI, consideration of our Collection of Taxes Contract, be advised that the fee for
the taxable year 2015 will remain at $98,304. Effective September 1, 2015

Please sign, date and return this letter to us as soon as possible.

Sinc
blo (Paul) Villarreal, Jr. PCC

Hidalgo County Tax Assessor-Collector

XC: Hon. Ramon Garcia
Hidalgo County Judge

Mr. Ray Eufracio
Hidalgo County Auditor

Accepted & Agreed:

By:

Signature Date

“3H.L

e X e 2804 S. Bus. Hwy 281 « Edinburg, Texas 78539
94



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 25
Review and Action as Necessary to Renew the Starr County Agreement
For Tax Assessment and Collection

Approval to renew the Starr County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current
and delinquent taxes collected from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016 is requested.

According to Texas Property Tax Code, Sec. 6.27 (c) Compensation for Assessment and
Collection, the assessor or collector is entitled to a reasonable fee, not to exceed actual costs
incurred, for which it assesses and collects taxes. The Inter-Local Cooperation Agreement
requires the County, after reviewing actual collection costs, to submit a proposed fee to the
College, which may include a cost increase of no more than 5% per year, prior to May 1st. The
College will then have until June 1st to accept the recommended fee.

The Board of Trustees approved the Inter-Local Cooperation Agreement for Tax Assessment
and Collection with Starr County on June 18, 2001, with an option to renew for subsequent tax
years. The contract was last renewed on April 22, 2014, and the annual fee approved was
$87,886.00. Mr. Carmen Pefia, RTA for Starr County, has advised the College that the annual
fee for tax year 2015 will remain at $87,886.00 and is scheduled to be approved by the Starr
County Commissioners Court on April 27, 2015. She provided a signed memo to this effect, as
included in this packet. Upon approval of the contact by the Starr County Commissioner’s Court
an agreement will be provided to the College for the taxable year 2015.

The monthly collection fee of $7,323.83 is reduced from taxes collected during the month and
the remaining funds collected are paid to the College.

Below is a summary of Starr County assessment and collection fee charges and corresponding
fee increase percentages for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 through Fiscal Year 2015-2016.

Seven Year History of Fees for Starr County Tax
Assessment and Collection

Increase over

Year Fee Previous Year
2015 - 2016 $87,886.00 0%
2014 - 2015 $87,886.00 0%
2013 - 2014 $87,886.00 0%
2012 - 2013 $87,886.00 0%
2011 - 2012 $87,886.00 0%
2010 - 2011 $87,886.00 0%
2009 - 2010 $87,886.00 0%

95




Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 26

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the renewal
of the Starr County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and delinquent
taxes collected at an annual fee of $87,886.00 from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016
as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
the renewal of the Starr County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and
delinquent taxes collected at an annual fee of $87,886.00 from September 1, 2015 through
August 31, 2016 as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the renewal of the Starr
County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and delinquent taxes collected
at an annual fee of $87,886.00 from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016 as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

96



Apr. 14, 2015 8:32AM No. 9916 P, 2

COUNTY COURT HOUSE
STARR COUNTY
Ric GRANDE CiTy, TEXAS 78582

CARMEN A. PENA, RTA

Tax Assessor-Collector
STARR CQUNTY
RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS 78582

April 14,2015

I am submitting the following item for the next Commissioner’s Court Meeting.

1. Discuss and take action to approve South Texas College collection fee contract for
taxable year 2015 ($87,886.00), Carmen A. Pefia, RTA-Tax Assessor/Collector.

™\ COUNTYOFSTARR
N CARMEN A.PENA, RTA /A
TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR ( !’ U// A

Carmen A. Pefia, RTA

Tax Assessor/Collector

100 N. FM 3167 Ste. 20| * Rio Grande Clty, Texas 78582 % (956] 716-4822 % (956] 716-4820 * Fax (956 716-8178

97



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 27

Review and Action as Necessary to Revise Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty
Letter of Appointment

Approval to revise Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment is requested.
The revisions to the policy are requested for the following reasons:

e To update the method of issuance to include electronic distribution due to automation of
services within the Office of Human Resources.

e To stipulate the acceptance of letter of appointment is due by stated deadline on offer
and failure to do so would constitute a rejection of the offer.

e To clarify procedure of providing adequate notice to resign in good standing as it is not
limited to the end of the contract period.

The revised policy follows in the packet for the Board’s information and review. At the
Committee meeting, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. recommended additional changes, which have been
incorporated into the proposed revisions. The additions to the policy are highlighted in yellow
and the deletions are designated with a red strikeout.

The revised policy, including the revisions proposed during the Committee meeting, has been
reviewed by staff, the President’s Cabinet, and by South Texas College’s legal counsel.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed
revisions to Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment as presented and which
supersedes any previously adopted Board policy.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
the proposed revisions to Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment as presented
and which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed revisions
to Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment as presented and which supersedes
any previously adopted Board policy.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

98



MANUAL OF POLICY
Title Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment 4118
Legal Authority Approval of the Board of Trustees Page 1 of 2

Date Approved by Board Board Minute Order dated February 21, 2002
As Amended by Board Minute Order dated April 28, 2015

Notice of Letter of Appointment Renewal or Non-renewal

The College shall notify-writing; each faculty member whose Letter of Appointment is about to expire
whether the College proposes to renew or not renew the Letter of Appointment for the next academic year
as follows: Faculty members who have already completed a year of employment as full time regular
faculty members with the College shall be given notice not later than February 15. Faculty members who
are in their first year of employment with the College shall be given notice not later than April 15.

The College shall be deemed to have given the faculty member timely notice if it provides notice
electronically or hand delivers the notice to the faculty member or deposits the notice to the custody of the
U.S. Postal Service by the deadline date in a sealed envelope addressed to the faculty member to the address
specified by the faculty member.

The College’s failure to provide this notice by the specified date shall be deemed an election by the
College to employ the faculty member in the same professional capacity for the following academic year.

Acceptance of Offer of Appointment

The College shall provide notice to each faculty member who is proposed to be renewed for the next
academic year, an offer of appointment for the upcoming academic year. The letter of appointment, if
accepted, must be electronically or manually signed by the respective employee and returned to the Office
of Human Resources by the stated deadline. Failure to respond by the deadline date indicated on the
letter of appointment will constitute a rejection of the offer.

Notice Under Letter of Appointment

Before a Faculty Member with employed under acurrent Letter of Appointment may be terminated,
or suspended without pay, or released because of a necessary reduction of personnel, the President
must notify the Faculty Member in writing of the proposed action and the grounds for the action.

Hearing Under Letter of Appointment

If a Faculty Member with employed-—under a current Letter of Appointment desires a hearing after
receiving notice of the proposed termination, proposed non-renewal, or proposed suspension without pay,
the Faculty Member shall notify the President in writing not later than the 10th day after the date the Faculty
Member receives the notice of the proposed action. The President shall schedule a hearing to be held not
later than the 30th day after the date the President receives the request for a hearing unless the parties
agree in writing to a different date.

Italics denote addition

99



MANUAL OF POLICY
Title Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment 4118
Legal Authority Approval of the Board of Trustees Page 2 of 2

Date Approved by Board Board Minute Order dated February 21, 2002
As Amended by Board Minute Order dated April 28, 2015

At the hearing, the Faculty Member may:
(1) be represented by a representative of the Faculty Member’s choice;
(2) hear the evidence supporting the reason for the proposed action;
(3) call witnesses;

(4) cross-examine witnesses; and

(5) present evidence.
Decision of President

If the Faculty Member does not request a hearing, the President shall:

(1) proceed on the intent te-take-the-appropriate-action to terminate the or suspend the faculty member
without pay without further notice to the Faculty Member before taking such action; and

(2) notify the Faculty Member in writing of that action not later than the 30th day after the date the notice
of proposed action was sent to the Faculty Member.

If the Faculty Member requests a hearing, following the hearing the President shall notify the Faculty
Member in writing of that action not later than the 15th day after the date on which the hearing is
concluded.

Resignation Under Letter of Appointment

To resign in good standing at-the-end-of the-contractperiod, a Faculty Member employed under a Letter of
Appointment shall be required to file a written resignation with the Office of Human Resources or the

President’s designee not later than the 45th day before the first day of instruction of the following
academic year. A written resignation mailed by prepaid certified or registered mail to the Office of Human
Resources, the President or the President’s designee at the post office address of the College is considered
filed at the time of mailing.

A Faculty Member employed under a Letter of Appointment may request a release from the Letter of
Appointment in good standing at any other time with the consent of the President or the President’s
designee.

A Faculty Member who does not resign in good standing shall not be eligible for re-employment.

Termination or Suspension Under Letter of Appointment

The President may terminate a Letter of Appointment and discharge a Faculty Member at any time for
good cause or a financial exigency or program change that requires a reduction in personnel as determined
by Board Policy.

Italics denote addition

100



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 28

Review and Action as Necessary on Disposal of Surplus Property

Approval of disposal of surplus property valued at $1,000 and over through a live auction is
requested.

The surplus property goes through an evaluation process by the departments to determine if the
items are damaged beyond repair and unable to be utilized district wide.

The auction items are located at the South Texas College Receiving Department, 3700 W.
Military Hwy., McAllen, TX. The auction will be scheduled during the month of June.

A listing of the items to be auctioned follows in the packet for the Board’s review and information.

The items valued at $1,000 and over are included in the College’s inventory through the Banner
system.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the disposal
of surplus property valued at $1,000 and over through a live auction as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
the disposal of surplus property valued at $1,000 and over through a live auction as presented..

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the disposal of surplus
property valued at $1,000 and over through a live auction as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

101



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
SURPLUS PROPERTY OVER $1,000

APRIL 28, 2015

Silver Purchase

Pallet | Qty Description Tag Ptag Serial Number Green Tag | Amount |Net Value | Condition
120 [1ea Shelving Main Item 0000017040 000011956 $ 245814 | $ - Obsolete
120 [1ea Shelving Main ltem 0000017041 000011957 $ 245814 | $ - Obsolete
120 [1ea Shelving Main Item 0000017044 | 000011958 $ 245814 | $ - Obsolete
120A [1ea Shelving Main Iltem 17046 000011940 $ 6,807.74 | § 227.02 | Obsolete
121 [1ea Metal Master Vertical & Horizontal Milling Machine 0000007879 | 000009004 5000004498 | $25,350.00 | § - Damage
128 [1ea Canon RE350 Video Visualizer 0000006812 | 000007457 2321100218 5000003863 § 141423 [§ - Obsolete
128 [1ea Canon RE350 Video Visualizer 0000006815 | 000007454 2321100153 5000003866 $ 1,414.23 [§ - Obsolete
128 [1ea Canon RE350 Video Visualizer 0000006813 000007456 2321100134 5000003864 § 141423 [§ - Obsolete
128 |1ea| PACE Thermal Flo Ball Grid Arrary /Surface Mount Technology [ 0000003840 | 000004489 03000192 5000002161[ $§ 2,71850 [ § - Obsolete
128 |1ea| PACE Thermal Flo Ball Grid Arrary /Surface Mount Technology [ 0000003839| 000004488 03000199 5000002160 $§ 2,718.50 [ § - Obsolete
128 |1ea| PACE Thermal Flo Ball Grid Arrary /Surface Mount Technology [ 0000003838 | 000004487 03000198 5000002162 $§ 2,718.50 [ § - Obsolete
128 |1ea Martin Yale Auto Folder 14495 N00016971 $ 169575 % - Obsolete
128 |1ea GBC Modular Series CC2700 Binding Machine 0000004562 | 000006572 NOC77927301081 $ 166405|8 - Obsolete
128 [1ea Electrical Machines and Control Circuit Trainer 0000004287 000004873 403G007925 5000000853 [ $10,016.40 [ § - Obsolete
128 [1ea Electrical Machines and Control Circuit Trainer 0000004288 | 000004874 403F007840 5000000854 § 964140 [§ - Obsolete
128 |1ea Electrical Machines and Control Circuit Trainer 0000004290 | 000004876 4031F00281155 5000000856 $§ 964140 [§ - Obsolete
128 [1ea Electrical Machines and Control Circuit Trainer 0000004291 000004877 4031F00281140 5000000857 § 964140 [§ - Obsolete
128 [1ea Electrical Machines and Control Circuit Trainer 0000004289 000004875 5000000855[ § 964140 [§ - Obsolete
129 |1ea PACE ARM-EVAC 1200 Fume Extractor 0000003635 | 000004336 910094 5000000498 § 9,240.00 [§ - Obsolete
129 [1ea Microtest PentaScanner with Accessories 0000001796 000002348 38P98BA0002 $ 3542008 - Obsolete
130 |1ea Sony Mini DV Handycam Vision with Mic Accessory 0000003260 | 000003930 260512 $ 1,70595|8% - Incomplete
131 |1ea Magnisight Camera 0000001213 | 000001895 500342 $ 1234008 - Incomplete
132 |1ea Medical Plastics Laboratory Wooden Base Only 0000003254 | 000003928 $ 100957 |§ - Incomplete
133 |1ea Fotec Mini with Accessories 0000006165| 000007612 $1562 5000003531 § 3,906.01|$ - Obsolete
133 |1ea Fotec Mini with Accessories 0000006154 | 000007605 $151336 5000003524 $ 3,906.01 [§ - Obsolete
133 |1ea Fotec Mini with Accessories 0000006162 | 000007609 $15138 5000003528 $ 3,906.01 [§ - Obsolete
133 |1ea Fotec Mini with Accessories 0000006157 | 000007608 $151336 5000003527 $ 3,906.01[§ - Obsolete
134 |1ea AVCOM PSA-37D Portable Spectrum Analyzer 0000004634 | 000006306 F1272 5000002047 § 2,232.75[§ - Obsolete
135 |1ea ELMO EV-2000AF Visual Presenter 14138 N00016351 421094 $ 1335008 - Obsolete
136 |1ea Canon Visualizer RE-455X Projector 0000004655 | 000006182 SG0CT220655D $ 6,800.00 |8 - Obsolete
137 [1ea JohnsonDiversey TrailBlazer 13848 N00019727 $ 1,050.00|$ - [ Incomplete
138 |1ea Wilton VS A5816 Drill 0000002551 | 000003496 810368 5000000194 § 18350 [§ - Obsolete
142 |1ea Heathkit EWT-3567 Education System 0000006177 | 000007774 50721299 § 232070|$ - Obsolete
140 |1ea Heathkit EWT-3567 Education System 0000004683 | 000007776 50721295 $ 23270 |$ - Obsolete
141 |1ea Fotec Mini with Accessories 0000006164 | 000007611 5000003530 $§ 3,906.01 [§ - Obsolete
139 [1ea Microwave 3301 Training System 22991 000007698 $ 200201 |8 - Obsolete
139 [1ea Microwave 3301 Training System 22992 000007699 $ 2,00201 |8 - Obsolete
139 [1ea Microwave 3301 Training System 23008 000007700 $ 2,00201 |8 - Obsolete
143 |1ea Datamation Systems Laptop Storage Cabinet 0000006700 | 000009412 $ 286695|8 - Obsolete
144 |1ea ProMaxima P-120 Biceps Curl Exercise Machine 15133 N00014709 $ 148486 |8 - Broken
145 |1ea ProMaxima P-145 Leg Extension Machine 15181 N00014706 $ 153986 |8 - Broken
146 |1ea ProMaxima P-127 Triceps Curl Extension Machine 15139 N00014708 $ 148486 |8 - Obsolete
147 |1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 0000011818 | 000011990 U1050521437 5000006263 $§ 1,25141[§ - Damage
148 |1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 0000011820| 000011992 U1050517268 5000006265( $§ 1,25141[§ - Damage
148 |1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 0000011819| 000011991 U1050517270 5000027788 $§ 1,25141[§ - Damage
149 |1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 18829 N00017930 U1100203976 5000019509 § 142128 [§ - Obsolete
149 |1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 18824 N00017927 U1100203966 5000019506 $§ 142128 [§ - Obsolete
149 |1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 13133 N00014189 U1060119051 5000010065( § 1,246.25 [§ - Obsolete
150 |1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 14811 N00018200 U1100503190 5000019206 $ 1,406.50 | § - Obsolete

Grant Asset
Capital Asset

102

Grant and Capital Asset




SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE

APRIL 28, 2015

SURPLUS PROPERTY OVER $1,000

Silver Purchase

Pallet | Qty Description Tag Ptag Serial Number Green Tag | Amount | Net Value | Condition
150 [1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 14812 N00018206 U1100406430 5000019553 $ 1,406.50 [§ - Obsolete
152 [1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 17783 N00017819 U109074776 5000027787 $ 1,379.00 [ § - Obsolete
152 [1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 16532 N00017940 U1100202254 5000019510( § 1,400.00 [§ - Obsolete
153 [1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 16533 N00017941 U1100403372 5000019511 § 1,400.00 [§ - Obsolete
153 [1ea Lincoln 250 Welding Machine 16536 N00017944 U1100303816 5000019534 § 1,400.00 [§ - Obsolete
156 [1ea Colours Sports Wheel Chair (Rehab In Motion) 0000007490 000009053 00165; S32595 5000004760 $ 1,500.00 [§ - | Incomplete
157 [1ea Cress 2121 Heat Treating Furnace 9723 000010659 0409 $ 714959 |§ - Damage
157 |1ea Cress C2121 Heat Treating Furnace 9723 000010659 0409 $ 714959 8§ - Damage
158 |1bx Books § -
159 [1ea Classroom Lectern 0000006925 000007532 $ 744132|8 - Obsolete
160 [1ea Classroom Lectern 0000006905 000007534 $ 744132|8 - Obsolete
160 [1ea Classroom Lectern 0000006949 000007530 $ 744132|8 - Obsolete
161 [1ea VI Customized Lectern 0000006136 000006857 $ 3696848 - Obsolete
162 [1ea Sony Wireless Lab 0000008512 000009333 $18231.20 | § - Obsolete
163 |1ea Classroom Lectern 0000006921 | 000007533 $ 744132|8 - Obsolete
164 [1ea VI Customized Lectern 0000006110 000006859 $ 3696848 - Obsolete
165 |1ea Sony Wireless Lab 0000008513 | 000009336 $16,20880 | § - Obsolete
166 [1ea VI Customized Lectern 0000006128 000006855 $ 3696848 - Obsolete
167 [1ea VI Customized Lectern 0000006112 000006861 $ 3696848 - Obsolete
168 |1ea Multimedia SEI-503 Cabinet 0000008172| 000008950 SEI-2241 $ 373960 |8 - Obsolete
169 [1ea VI Customized Lectern 0000006107 | 000006850 $ 3696848 - Obsolete
170 [1ea VI Customized Lectern 0000006105] 000006858 $ 3696848 - Obsolete
171 |1ea Buckstaff Wood Desk with 7 Drawers 0000001357 | 000001199 $ 240384 |8 - Obsolete
172 [1ea Definity Prologix with DCS Networking 0000004896 000005715 $7697349 |§ - Obsolete
173 [1ea 1992 Blue Ford Taurus Wagon 0000000176 000000165 1FACP55 $11,70800 | § - Damage
173 |1ea 1993 White Ford Taurus Wagon 0000000157 | 000000216 | 1FACP57U9PG324666 $14,500.00 | § - Damage
174 |1ea Marquee(Tsb) Electronic Sign 22657 | 000006989 $38999.00|$ - | Obsolete
175 |1ea 1997 Beige Lincoln Town Car 17487 | NO0012881 | 1LNLM82W8VY744225 $ 3270.00|$ - | Obsolete
176 |1ea 2000 Chevrolet Astro Van 0000003595 | 000004312 | 1GCDM19W3YB179248 $1757628 | § - Obsolete

Grant Asset
Capital Asset

103

Grant and Capital Asset



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 29

Review and Action as Necessary to Issue a Request for Proposals for
Call Center Services

Approval to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit call center services is requested.

The College is seeking Call Center Services to support and enhance all Student Enrollment
Services (Financial Aid, Admissions, Registration, Payment, General Advising, and General
College Information). Call Center Services will also be utilized to increase Enroliment Services
hours through a 24/7 schedule, support for students on all campuses and online.

During peak enrollment times, the college experiences high inbound call volumes in the existing
Call Center, Financial Aid, Admissions, Cashier's and Distance Learning departments. In the
past year, the College received approximately 247,000 calls to these departments. While many
calls are answered and/or transferred to the appropriate service area, departments are not able
to handle the high-volume demand during peak periods. Additionally, the existing services are
utilized to maximum capacity for outbound calls for enroliment follow-up, payment and financial
aid drives, returned calls and general student inquiries.

Call Center services will be used to meet the demand of inbound calls and outbound campaigns
at various stages of the student lifecycle increasing the likelihood that prospective students
complete the enrollment process and persist to degree completion. A committee has drafted a
Request for Proposals which has been reviewed by the following college departments: Student
Financial Services, Distance Learning, College Connections and Admissions, Technology
Resources, and the Purchasing Office.

The proposed timeline for the Request for Proposals (RFP) is as follows:
May 4, 2015 Advertisement of RFP
May 19, 2015 Deadline for responses
May 20-27, 2015  Evaluation of responses by staff
June 11, 2015 Review by Finance Committee
June 23, 2015 Approval by Board of Trustees

The agreement for the Call Center Services will be for the period beginning July 1, 2015 and
ending August 31, 2016, with an option to renew for two additional one (1) year periods.

The Request for Proposals (RFP) follows in the packet for the Board’s review and information.

During the Finance and Human Resources Committee meeting, Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez
recommended that the College test existing Call Center services to see how callers are treated.
Mrs. Graciela Farias volunteered to place several calls to the Kentucky Community and
Technical College System, whose Call Center Services system was influential to the
development of South Texas College’s proposal.

104



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 30

Staff and student volunteers have placed several calls to the Kentucky Community and
Technical College System and lvy Tech Community College System in Indiana. Their reviews
were very favorable; the first operator reached on each call was friendly, helpful, and
knowledgeable and were able to address general admissions questions concerning admission
procedures, in-state and out-of-state tuition differences, and programs of study.

Mrs. Farias will be available to report to the Board on her experiences as a “Mystery Shopper”
caller to test the college systems’ call center services as well.

The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval to issue a
Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit call center services as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit call center services as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the issuance of a
Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit call center services as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

105



O
Y,
Al
SOUTH TEXAS
COLLEGE

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

RFP NUMBER
14-15-1049

RESPONSES MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE:
2:00 P.M, on (Pending Approval on Date)
Opening will be public

If by US Postal Service, Hand Deliver or Express Mail
Mail to: (Overnight, 2" day, etc) to:

South Texas College South Texas College

Purchasing Department Purchasing Department

P.O. Box 9500 3200 W. Pecan Blvd, Bldg N, Ste 145
McAllen, TX 78502-9500 McAllen, TX 78501

Show RFP Number, Opening Date and Time on Return Envelope

NOTE: RESPONSES must be time stamped at South Texas College Purchasing
Department before the hour and date specified for receipt of responses.

Responses shall be submitted in a sealed envelope plainly marked with the name and address of the entity
submitting a response. The response envelope must contain the following: CALL CENTER SERVICES and the
date and time of the submittal deadline.

106



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page #
Section 1 ] X oo (1 od o] o 1RSSR 4
1.1 BaCKground 0N STC .....oiieiece ettt et nre e 4
1.2 PUIPOSE AN ODJECTIVES. ....c.eiiiiiiiiieii ettt 4
1.3 Historical Call VOIUME ........ooiiie e 4
Section 2 SCOPE OF SEIVICES ..ovvieeie ettt e e e e te e te e e e sre e teeeesneenrs 5
2.1 SCOPE OF SEIVICES-OVEIVIEW........ciiiiiiieiieieie sttt bbb sn e 5
2.2 Service Phase SChETUIE ..o 5
2.3 SEIVICE PrOVISIONS .....eeiieiieiiesiieste ettt sttt sttt sttt sreesbe et esreesbeeneeaneenteeneenn 5
Section 3 Instructions and RespoNnse REQUITEMENTS ..........cccuiiiiiieieiene s 7
3.1 Submittal and Acceptance 0f RESPONSES ........cciviiieiiiiicie it 7
3.2 Preparation INSTFUCTIONS ..........uiiiiiieieie et 7
3.3 SUDMILEAl DOCUMENTS. .....cviiieieiesie ettt et e e e ste e e e ereenreenee s 7
3.4 Submittal Deadling and LOCALION ........c.cocviiiiieiieie e 7
3.5 [V LT L3V =1 ¢ oo SRS 8
3.6 STC CONTACES ...ttt ettt b et e et e e et e e sbe e e beesbeeennee s 8
3.7 Addenda ACKNOWIEAGEMENL...........ccviiiiie e 8
3.8 OPEN RECOIMS. ...t bbb bbbttt bbb 8
3.9 AWAId OF CONLFACE .....c.veiiiiic ettt sreeens 8
Section 4 Evaluation Criteria for AWArd ... oo 9
3.1 Evaluation INfOrmMation...........cooieiiieiice e 9
3.2 Evaluation Criteria and WeIghtS..........cccvoiiiiiii it 9
Section 5 Respondent QUESLIONNAITE ...........coiiieiie ettt 10
5.1 ComMPANY PrOfIE ... 10
5.2 Background and EXPEIIENCE ........ccuviiiieccie ettt sre e 10
5.3 SEIVICE EIBMENLS ...ttt te e nre e reenee e 11
5.4 Metrics and REPOMING ......ccveiieiieie ettt ra e reesreenne s 12
Section 6 General Terms and CoNdItiONS .........ccccoiiiiiiiiie e e 13
6.1 TIME OF PEITOIMANCE .....eiieeeiieeee et nee e 13
6.2 Acceptance Of Products and SEIVICES .........ccciveiiiiieie et 13
6.3 DETAUIT et re e re et e reere s 13
6.4 INAEMINITICALION ......viiie et e e be e te e ree s 13
6.5 COomMPHANCE WITH LAW ...t 13
6.6 PaAYIMEBNTS it r e nb e e nnaas 13
6.7 BLIC=] 0011 LA o SR 14
6.8 CoNtraCt AMENAMENTS .......viiiieiie e e et e et e e s e beeennas 14
6.9 Independent CONEFACIOr STALUS.........cueieriiiieiieiie et 14
6.10 NON-DISCIOSUIE ...ttt e e e e be e e e s beesraeareeas 14
6.11 PUBIICITY oot bbb 14
6.12 SEVEIADIIILY ..o ——————————— 14
6.13 NON-WaIVEr Of DEFAUIL.........cveiieii e 15
6.14 FOICE IMIQJBUIE ...ttt ettt b et b et e st st e b e s e nneers 15
14-15-1049 Call Center Services 2



6.15 GOVEIMING LBW ...ttt sttt et nbe et s e 15

6.16 N [0 0] 0 1T | RSOSSN 15

6.17 INSUFBNCE oottt e st e e e st e e e sab e e e abb e e e st e e e nnbeeennneeea 15
Section 7 COSE PIrOPOSAL ... bbb 16
Section 8 Addenda ChECKIIST..........ooiiiiieiee et es 17
Section 9 EXECUTION OF OFF@I ...t 18
Section 10  Notification of Criminal HISTONY ..o s 19
Conflict of INtereSt QUESTIONNAIIE. .......cciiiiiieiieie ettt ree e ste et esbeesbesreesbeetesreesreeneens 20
Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification ...........cccoccovvviiiiiin e 21
14-15-1049 Call Center Services 3

108



11

1.2

13

14-15-1049 Call Center Services

SECTION 1
INTRODUCTION

Background on STC

South Texas College (“STC”) is a comprehensive community college serving the counties of
Hidalgo and Starr in South Texas. It has six campuses, including three which are in McAllen:
the Pecan Campus, the Technology Campus, the Ramiro R. Casso Nursing and Allied Health
Campus; the Mid-Valley Campus in Weslaco; the Starr County Campus in Rio Grande City;
and a full service virtual campus at http://elearn.southtexascollege.edu. Established in 1993,
STC serves an area with a population of approximately 700,000 and has an enrollment over
30,000. It offers more than 100 degree and certificate programs, including the Bachelors of
Applied Technology.

Purpose and Objectives

STC is soliciting proposals from qualified firms for call center services. STC seeks to partner
with a firm to provide telephone and email support to respond to inbound and outbound
communications for callers contacting the college. The selected firm will be expected to assist
with questions concerning enrollment/registration, financial aid, tuition payments, learning
management system support, and other related questions.

Historical Call VVolume
The college receives an approximate annual call volume of 250,000 calls. The specific
departments receiving the volume are as follows: Distance Education, Student Information

Center, and Financial Aid.

109


http://elearn.southtexascollege.edu/

SECTION 2
SCOPE OF SERVICES

2.1  Scope of Services Overview
South Texas College is soliciting call center services that will offer a high level of customer
service support. The call center will respond to questions relating to the following: enrollment
at the college; admission status; how to apply for financial aid such as grants, loans,
scholarships, work study, learning management system support, etc.; required documentation
and how to fill out; and other related questions.

The successful respondent will provide comprehensive training to its staff members on those
categories of services for which they will be expected to respond.

STC s situated in an area of the country with a large bilingual (Spanish and English)
population, including recent immigrants who may have little or no English speaking ability.
For this reason, availability of bilingual staff is critical.

STC expects to award a contract to the successful respondent for a initial period of 14 months
from July 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016, with the option to renew for two additional one-year
periods.

2.2 Service Phase Schedule
STC seeks to implement services in two phases. The first phase will be for a period of two
months and be limited to outbound phone campaigns; the second (and ongoing) phase will
involve inbound services.

Phase | — July 1%, 2015 — August 31%, 2015
Outbound targeted enrollment campaigns that will include the following:

Fall 2014 semester stop-out students

Applicants who have not registered for classes
Applicants not complete with financial aid process
Registered students on unpaid status reports
Students on academic suspension

Phase Il - September 1, 2015 — August 31%, 2016
Inbound Call Center support full-services implementation

2.3 Service Provisions
The selected contractor will be expected to comply with the following provisions:

A. 24/7 inbound call support; flexibility to provide services during peak enrollment and
high call volume periods

B. Consistently high customer satisfaction;

14-15-1049 Call Center Services S
110



C. Bilingual services in English/Spanish;

D. Support of students attending virtual campus;
E. Provide data analysis and submit periodic reports on calls received,
F. Must have extensive experience in provider services to institutions of higher education;

G. Provider staff must be located with the United States.

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 6
111



SECTION 3
INSTRUCTIONS AND RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS

3.1  Submittal and Acceptance of Responses
A. STC reserves the right to accept or reject any or all responses, to waive informalities
and minor technicalities, or to cancel this RFP in part or in its entirety, according to
what is in the best interest of STC.
B. Only sealed, paper copy responses will be accepted. Responses submitted through
facsimile or email attachment will NOT be accepted.
C. Responses received after the stated deadline for submittal will not be accepted under
any circumstances and will be returned to the respondent unopened.
D. Unsigned response will NOT be considered.
E. All accepted responses shall become the property of STC upon submission, whether or
not a contract is awarded.
F. All costs incurred in the preparation and delivery of responses shall be borne by the
respondent.
3.2  Preparation Instructions
A Responses shall be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward and
concise description of respondent’s ability to meet the requirements of this RFP.
Emphasis shall be on completeness, clarity of content and responsiveness to the RFP
requirements.
B. Responses must be typed or printed on letter size (8-1/2 x 11) white paper suitable for
copies.
C. All pages of the response should be numbered sequentially.
D. Respondents must submit one original and four (4) copies of the complete response.
3.3  Submittal Documents
The following documents, at a minimum, must be filled out, signed by an authorized
representative, and returned as part of your response submittal:
A. Responses to Section 5
B. Cost Proposal (Section 7)
C. Addenda Checklist (Section 8)
D. Execution of Offer (Section 9)
E. Notification of Criminal History (Section 10)
3.4 Submittal Deadline and Location
A. Proposals must be received by STC no later than 2:00 P.M. (CST), , 2015,
Opening will be public.
B. Hand deliver or mail to:
If by US Postal Service, Hand Deliver or Express Mail
Mail to: (Overnight, 2" day, etc) to:
South Texas College South Texas College
Purchasing Department Purchasing Department
P.O. Box 9500 3200 W. Pecan Blvd, Bldg N, Ste 145
McAllen, TX 78502-9500 McAllen, TX 78501
14-15-1049 Call Center Services 7

112



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Validity Period
Responses are to be valid for a minimum of 60 days from the submittal deadline date to allow
time for evaluation, selection, and any unforeseen delays.

STC Contacts
Any questions or concerns regarding this Request for Proposals shall be directed to:

Fernando Lamas Becky Cavazos

Assistant Director of Purchasing Director of Purchasing

3200 W. Pecan Blvd, Bldg N, Ste 145 3200 W. Pecan Blvd, Bldg N, Ste 145
McAllen, Texas 78501 McAllen, Texas 78501

956-872-4683 956-872-4680

Email: flamas@southtexascollege.edu Email: beckyc@southtexascollege.edu

STC specifically requests that Respondents restrict all contact and questions regarding this RFP
to the above named individual(s).

Addenda Acknowledgement
Addenda must be acknowledged with the proposals submittal. An addenda acknowledgement
form is included as part of this RFP (Section 8) and must be returned with the response.

Open Records

All the information that you submit to STC, in response to this solicitation for proposals, shall
be subject to public disclosure under the provisions of the Texas Government Code §552.001
et. seg.(commonly known as the “Texas Public Information Act”). If you consider any
information that you submit to STC to be trade secrets and/or commercial or financial
information that if disclosed would cause substantial competitive harm to you or your company
you must submit a written statement, along with your submittal, clearly identifying the
information. You may, additionally, identify the information in your submittal by enclosing it
in brackets, highlighting the text, or by some other similar method. In the event that STC
receives a public request for disclosure of the information which you identified as being a trade
secret or confidential commercial or financial information STC will decline to release it and
follow the procedure set out in Texas Government Code 8552.305 to request an opinion from
the Attorney General on whether or not it must disclose the information. In its request to the
Attorney General, STC will not take a position on whether or not the information should be
disclosed.

Award of Contract

STC is requesting responses to this RFP with the intent to award a contract for the requirements
contained herein. However, STC is not obligated to award a contract under this solicitation and
reserves the right to reject any and all response. STC shall reserve the right to award a contract
for all or any of the requirements in this RFP, to award multiple contracts, or to not award any
contract, according to what is in the best interest of STC.

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 8

113


mailto:flamas@southtexascollege.edu
mailto:beckyc@southtexascollege.edu

SECTION 4
EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR AWARD

4.1 Evaluation Information

STC will utilize an evaluation team for the evaluation of this RFP. The evaluation will include
the overall response to the RFP and the general requirements defined in the RFP. STC must be
confident that the respondent’s good/services will perform and meet the needs of STC. STC
will evaluate and make the award on the proposal that is determined to be the best value to STC

based on the criteria listed below.

All proposals must be complete and convey all of the information requested to be considered
responsive. If the proposal fails to conform to the essential requirements of the RFP, STC alone

will determine whether the proposal is a candidate for further consideration.

4.2 Evaluation Criteria and Weights

14-15-1049 Call Center Services
114

The purchase price 40 points
The reputation of the vendor and the vendor’s goods or services 18 points
The quality of the vendor’s goods or services 18 points
The extent to which the vendor’s goods or services meet the College’s needs 15 points
The vendor’s past relationship with the College 3 points
The impact on the ability of the College to comply with laws and rules relating to | 1 points
historically underutilized businesses
The total long-term cost to the College to acquire the vendor’s goods or services 5 points
TOTAL POINTS 100

9




SECTION 5
RESPONDENT QUESTIONNAIRE

The Respondent recognizes that in selecting a provider of the requested services, STC will rely, in part,
on the answers provided in response to this Section. Accordingly, Respondent warrants to the best of
its knowledge that all responses are true, correct and complete. STC reserves the right to confirm this
information listed below.

5.1  Company Profile

A. Number of Years in Business:

B. Type of Operation: Sole Proprietorship Partnership Corporation
Limited Liability Company Government

C. Number of employees:  Full-time: Part-time:

D. Provide a brief history of your organization and its experience providing the type of
services requested herein.

E. Provide evidence of your company’s financial status and stability, such as a Dun and
Bradstreet report, if available, or your company’s financial statements.

F. Is your firm involved in any litigation that would impact its performance under a
contract with STC? If yes, provide details.

G. Has your firm had any previous contracts for services terminated for cause? If yes,
provide details.

H. Provide a customer reference list of at least three (3) entities for which you currently
provide services or have provided services of the type and scope requested herein over
the past five years. References must include company name, contact person, telephone
number and length of business relationship. References from past or current clients in
higher education are preferred.

l. Is your company currently certified as a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) by
the State of Texas, or certified as a woman, minority or small business under any U.S.
Government agency? If yes, please attach a copy of the certificate or other proof of
such certification.

5.2  Background and Experience

Please provide a response on the firm’s experience and/or qualifications relating to each of the

items below:

A. Relevant call center experience specific to each of the types of services requested;

B. Experience in serving higher education students and/or public sector clients;

C. Quialifications of call center staff to handle support responsibilities;

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 10

115



H.

Experience serving Ellucian Banner, Luminis, and Blackboard;

Security and training measures taken to properly handle confidential student
information;

Support for ADA compliance, including any limitations;

Call center staffing- do your sites or offerings include multiple locations or home-based
staff;

Links to any demonstrations/simulations of your service.

5.3  Service Elements
Describe the following service elements:

A

B.

C.

14-15-1049 Call Center Services

How the firm would build a centralized call center to support anticipated call volume;
Detailed implementation plan and timeframes;
How representatives will be trained to meet minimum service standards;

How representatives handle contacts that include multiple student service and/or
supportissues;

Measures the firm takes to ensure confidentiality and security in dealing with personal
datain relation to FERPA, to meet federal financial aid compliance regulations and
ADA considerations;

How the firm maintains the representatives’ level of training for the duration of the
contract;

How a “knowledge base” will be maintained to ensure relevance and how utilization of
knowledge base articles will be tracked; how representatives maintain/update
knowledgebase; details regarding STC’s access to the knowledgebase and/or written
procedures;

How staffing will be managed during call volume peaks;

How callbacks will be handled and resolution tracked:;

How service escalations occur, and what will be done to track resolution;

What ticketing system is used by the firm, and whether or not it integrates with other
vendors’ solutions;

Outline experience with non-English speaking customers and proposed resolution
process;

Detail plans for initial and ongoing training and development and how that training will
betracked;

116

11



What is the training approach for regulatory compliance and updates to Title IV
regulatory issues;

Will calibration calls be part of the proposed services, and if yes, what is the proposed
schedule?

Outline organizational criteria to assess representatives’ knowledge and ability to
perform;

Will software/hardware or licensing purchases be required;
Will training staffing for peak volume be an additional cost;

What assessment tools are used to determine representative’s knowledge, as well as
stepstaken if knowledge is deficient; and

What is the existing or proposed conflict of interest methodology for employees who
become STC students or are family members of students.

5.4  Metrics and Reporting
Describe how metrics and reporting will be handled:

A
B.

C.

Company Name:

List all metrics to be captured, frequency of capture and how the data will be accessed;
How monthly and annual service level metrics will be provided;
How long customer interactions are stored for quality tracking purposes;

How employee performance is measured, including corrective action, recognition, and
performance measurements.

Describe the process whereby the College can request removal ofa customer service
representative for poor performance; and

How customer satisfaction is tracked and handled. Please provide examples of periodic
surveys used for students, faculty and staff.

Signature of Authorized Representative

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 12

117



SECTION 6
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

These General Terms and Conditions shall be made a material part of and govern any Purchase Order
and/or contract resulting from this Request for Proposals.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Time of Performance

Time is of the essence in the rendering of services and delivery of products hereunder.
Contractor agrees to perform all obligations and render services set forth in the requirements in
this Contract and according to any service schedule(s) agreed upon by STC and Contractor.

Acceptance and Ownership of Materials

All services performed under this Contract shall be to the satisfaction of STC and in accordance
with the specifications, terms, and conditions of the Contract. STC reserves the right to inspect
the final product furnished and/or the services performed, and to determine the quality,
acceptability, and fitness of such product and/or services. Contractor agrees that the copyright
to all market research results and materials developed for STC shall become the property of
STC. This shall include, but not be limited to, all rights to photos, advertisements,
questionnaires, survey instruments, and other creative materials developed for STC during the
contract period.

Default

In the event that Contractor fails to carry out or comply with any of the terms and conditions of
the Contract with STC, STC may notify Contractor of such failure or default in writing and
demand that the failure or default be remedied within ten (10) days. In the event that Contractor
fails to remedy such failure or default within the ten (10) day period, STC shall have the right
to cancel the Contract.

The cancellation of the Contract, under any circumstances whatsoever, shall not effect or
relieve the Contractor from any obligation or liability that may have been incurred or will be
incurred pursuant to the Contract and such cancellation by STC shall not limit any other right
or remedy available to STC at law or in equity.

Indemnification

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
STC, its officers, employees, and agents harmless from and against any and all claims,
damages, losses and expenses of whatever kind or nature, including but not limited to
attorneys’ fees, of any nature or kind arising out of or caused from the performance of services,
or provision of goods, by the Contractor pursuant to this contract, which are caused, in whole
or in part, by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor.

Compliance with Law

Contractor is aware of and in full compliance with its obligations under existing applicable law
and regulations, including the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Fair Labor
Standards Act (as amended), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 13

118



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Payments

Payment for services/goods will be made after acceptable performance of services and/or
receipt of items in good condition and after receipt of a valid invoice. Payment shall be in
accordance with the State of Texas Prompt Payment Act, Chapter 2251, Government Code
VTCA.

Termination
A STC shall have the right to terminate the contract for convenience and without cause
upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to Contractor.

B. STC may terminate this Contract, without penalty, either in whole or in part, if funds
are not appropriated by STC in its budget specifically for this contract.

In no event shall such termination by STC, as provided for under this Section, give rise to any
liability on the part of STC, including, but not limited to, claims of the Contractor for
compensation for anticipated profits, unabsorbed overhead, or interest on borrowing. STC’s
sole obligation hereunder is to pay Contractor for products and/or services ordered and received
prior to the date of termination.

Contract Amendments

The Contract may be amended, in writing, within the Contract period by mutual consent of the
parties. No modification or amendment to the Contract shall become valid unless in writing
and signed by both parties. All correspondence regarding modifications or amendments to the
Contract must be forwarded to the STC Purchasing Department for prior review and approval.

Independent Contractor Status

The Contractor shall supervise and direct the work, using its best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over means, methods, techniques,
sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work, and acknowledges that
it is being engaged by STC as an independent contractor.

Non-Disclosure

Contractor and STC acknowledge that they or their employees may, in the performance of this
contract, come into the possession of proprietary or confidential information owned by or in the
possession of the other. Neither party shall use any such information for its own benefit
outside this Agreement. Subject to Section 3.8, neither party shall make such information
available to any person, firm, corporation, or other organizations, whether directly or indirectly
affiliated with Contractor or STC, unless required by law.

Publicity

Contractor agrees that it shall not publicize this Contract or disclose, confirm or deny any
details thereof to third parties or use any photographs or video recordings of STC’s name in
connection with any sales promotion or publicity event without the prior express written
approval of STC.

Severability

If any provision of this Contract, or the application of any provision to any party or
circumstance is held invalid, unenforceable, or illegal in any respect, the remainder of the
Contract and the application of the provision to other parties or circumstances shall remain

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 14

119



valid and in full force and effect.

6.13 Non-Waiver of Defaults
Any failure of STC at any time, to enforce or require the strict keeping and performance of any
of the terms and conditions of this Contract shall not constitute a waiver of such terms,
conditions, or rights, and shall not affect or impair same, or the right of STC at any time to
avail itself of same.

6.14 Force Majeure
If either STC or Contractor is delayed at any time in the performance of its obligations under
this contract by economic industry-wide strikes, fire, floods, acts of government, unavoidable
casualties, or other causes reasonably beyond the control of either party and which could not
have been reasonably anticipated, then the party affected by such an event shall give notice to
the other party of the probable extent to which the affected party will be unable to perform or
be delayed in performing its obligations hereunder. If the performance of either party is
delayed or prevented by such an event, both parties shall be excused from performing their
obligations hereunder while and to the extent the conditions arising from the event exist, after
which the parties’ performance shall be resumed. A delay or failure in performance by either
party under this paragraph shall not constitute default hereunder, or give rise to any claim for
damages.

6.15 Governing Law
This contract will be governed and construed according to the laws of the State of Texas. Both
parties agree that venue for any litigation arising from this contract shall lie in Hidalgo County,
Texas.

6.16  Assignment
The Contractor shall not sell, assign, transfer or convey this contract, in whole or in part,
without the prior written consent of STC.

6.17 Insurance
Contractor shall obtain and keep in effect during the term of this contract, insurance coverage
in the below listed types and amounts. As evidence of insurance coverage, Contractor shall
furnish to STC copies of the policies of insurance before commencement of any work under
this contract.

TYPE OF COVERAGE LIMITS
A Worker’s Compensation Statutory
B. Comprehensive General Liability $1,000,000 each occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

C. Professional Liability $1,000,000 each occurrence

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 15

120



SECTION 7
COST PROPOSAL

Please enter cost information in this section. Respondent may attach pricing information on his own
form or format, but the price proposal form must include name of company/entity and signature of
authorized person. Enter all applicable charges for services.

Phase | Pricing
Please enter pricing information relating to Phase | (Outbound phone campaign). Provide pricing
model used (i.e., per student, per call, per minute, etc.)

Phase Il Pricing
Please enter pricing information for Inbound services. Provide pricing model used (i.e., per call, per
minute, full time equivalent, etc.)

Other Charges
Enter any other applicable charges related to the services (e.g. implementation/setup, training,
reporting, etc.)

Escalation
Enter the price escalation, if any, for the second and third renewal periods of a contract. (Escalation
charges will be considered in evaluation of proposals.)

2" year: %
3" year: %
Company/Entity Name:

Authorized Signature

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 16
121



SECTION 8
ADDENDA CHECKLIST

Any addenda issued by STC to this RFP will become part of the RFP. Addenda will be numbered
sequentially. Respondent must indicate on this sheet the receipt of any and all addenda.

Receipt is hereby acknowledged of the following addenda to this RFP.

No. 1

No. 2

No. 3

No. 4

Company/Entity Name:

Authorized Signature

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 17
122



SECTION 9
EXECUTION OF OFFER

In compliance with this solicitation, and subject to all the conditions herein, the undersigned offers and agrees to
furnish any or all commodities or services at the prices quoted. Failure to sign the offer, or signing it with a
false statement, shall void the submitted offer or any resulting contract, and the Respondent may be removed
from STC vendor lists.

By signature hereon, the Respondent hereby certifies that he/she is not currently delinquent in the payment of
any franchise taxes owed the State of Texas under Chapter 171, Tax Code.

By signature hereon, the Respondent hereby certifies that the firm is not debarred, suspended or otherwise
declared ineligible to contract by any federal, state or local public agency.

By executing this offer, Respondent affirms that he/she has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at
anytime hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip,
favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer.

By the signature hereon, the Respondent hereby certifies that neither the Respondent nor the firm, corporation,
partnership, or institution represented by the Respondent or anyone acting for such firm, corporation, or
institution has violated the antitrust laws of this State, codified in Section 15.01, et seq., Texas Business and
Commerce Code, or the Federal antitrust laws, nor communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any
competitor or any other person engaged in such line of business.

By signature hereon, Respondent certifies that the individual signing this document and the documents made
part of this solicitation is authorized to sign such documents on behalf of the company and to bind the company
under any contract which may result from the submission of this proposal.

By signature hereon, Respondent affirms that he has not prepared, or assisted in the preparation of, the
specifications or other requirements for this solicitation.

Proposal must include Taxpayer Identification Number, full firm name and address of Respondent. Failure to
manually sign proposal will disqualify it. The person signing the proposal should show title or authority to bind
his/her firm in contract.

Taxpayer ldentification Number:

Respondent/Company:

Signature:

Name (Typed/Printed):

Title:

Street:

City/State/Zip:

Telephone No.:

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 18
123



SECTION 10
NOTIFICATION OF CRIMINAL HISTORY

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED,
SIGNED, AND RETURNED WITH
PROPOSAL

Texas Education code 844.034, Notification of Criminal History, Subsection (a) states

“a person or business entity that enters into a contract with a school district must give advance notice to the district if the
person or an owner or operator of the business entity has been convicted of a felony. The notice must include a general
description of the conduct resulting in the conviction of a felony.”

Subsection (b) states “ a school district may terminate a contract with a person or business entity if the district determines
that the person or business entity failed to give notice as required by Subsection (a) or misrepresented the conduct resulting
in the conviction. The district must compensate the person or business entity for services performed before the termination
of the contract.”

THIS NOTICE IS NOT REQUIRED OF A PUBLICLY-HELD CORPORATION

Please check off one box and sign the form in the appropriate space

I, the undersigned agent for the firm named below, certify; that the information concerning notification of felony
convictions has been reviewed by me and the information furnished is true to the best of my knowledge.

VENDOR’S NAME:

AUTHORIZED COMPANY OFFICIAL’S NAME (PRINTED):

|:| A. My firmisa publicly held corporation; therefore, this reporting requirement is not applicable.

SIGNATURE OF COMPANY OFFICIAL

|:| B. My firm is not owned nor operated by anyone who has been convicted of a felony.

SIGNATURE OF COMPANY OFFICIAL

|:| C. My firm is owned and/or operated by the following individual(s) who has/have been convicted of a felony:

Name of Felon(s)

Details of Conviction(s)

SIGNATURE OF COMPANY OFFICIAL

14-15-1049 Call Center Services 19
124




CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE FORM CIQ

For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 1491, 80th Leg., Regular Session. OFFICEUSEONLY

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code [ pate Received
by a person who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local
governmental entity and the person meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental
entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the person becomes aware of facts
that require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

1| Nameof person who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
g |:| Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not
later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

Name of local government officer with whom filer has employment or business relationship.

Name of Officer

This section (item 3 including subparts A, B, C & D) must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has an
employment or other business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a), Local Government Code. Attach additional
pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment
income, from the filer of the questionnaire?

[ ] ves [ o

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the
direction of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not received from the local
governmental entity?

[ ] Yes [ ]no

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire employed by a corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

[ ]ves [ ]no

D. Describe each employment or business relationship with the local government officer named in this section.

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Adopted 06/28/2007

14-15-1049 Call Center Services
125



Form w-g

{Rev. August 2013)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

Name (as shown on your income tax return)

Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

Check appropriate box for federal tax classification:

[ Individual/sole proprietor [] ¢ Gorporation

Print or type

|:| Other (see instructions) >

D S Corporation

|:| Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership) ™

Exemptions (see instructions):
D Partnership D Trust/estate
Exempt payee code (if any)
Exemption from FATCA reporting
caode (if any)

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.)

Requester’s name and address (optional)

City, state, and ZIP code

See Specific Instructions on page 2.

List account number(s) here (optional)

Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on the “Name” line
to avoid backup withholding. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). However, for a

resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part | instructions on page 3. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a

TIN on page 3.

Note. If the account is in more than one hame, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose

number to enter.

| Social security number

| Employer identification number

X  Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and

2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding, and

3. lam a U.8. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below), and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and
generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the

instructions on page 3.

Sign Signature of
Here U.S. person >

Date >

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. The IRS has created a page on IRS.gov for information
about Form W-9, at www.irs.gov/w9. Information about any future developments
affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) will be posted
on that page.

Purpose of Form

A person who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your
correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for example, income paid to
you, payments made to you in settlement of payment card and third party network
transactions, real estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made
to an IRA.

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to
provide your correct TIN to the person requesting it (the requester) and, when
applicable, to:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number
to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If

applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of
any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the

withholding tax on foreign partners’ share of effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are
exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct.

Note. If you are a LS. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form
W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if it is substantially
similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S.
person if you are:

e Anindividual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,

¢ A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the
United States or under the laws of the United States,

¢ An estate (other than a foreign estate), or
* A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in
the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section
1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively connected taxable income from
such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received,
the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a
foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a
U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status
and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. 8-2013)



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 31

Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program

A representative from Broaddus & Associates will be present at the April 28, 2015 Regular Board
meeting to provide an update on the 2013 Bond Construction Program.

The Board packet includes a copy of the presentation prepared by Broaddus & Associates for

the April 13, 2015 Board Facilities Committee meeting as an update on the status of the 2013
Bond Construction Program.

127



mmrQQUOmmﬁ@%

SNAAdws Omm—

ST0T ‘€T |udy
3UI193|A 991snJ] JO pJeog

ANITIINIL ONINODdN
NVHO0dd NOILONILSNOD dNO4d €T0C

4931100 SVXd1l HLNOS

128



6
8
L
$994 10911421V JO
aouejeqg parenobaN o
10e43U0D
Burtsauibug S
pJepuels
XIU1eN
S)uB)NSU0)D Aupgisuodsay
1uR)NSU0D Ayerdads
1uswabeue|n 1%
ubisa@ Aueaqi JO UOIIePI|OSU0D e
& paziejusy UOIIONAISUOD
Juswiabeue uonepuswWodsy | S84 Bulassuibug d4d 3|npayds
- )SIY 1e aabeuen €
senIoe4d N9 [e91Uy281099) [IA1D parenofsN LOIINIISUOD 994 Jeaulbu3
S S e e W e
r._o:o::w:oo oo_aosbmcoo [ewsy ] parenobsN o P 10911Y24V paepuels
(uonoy oN) arepdn | (Uonay oN) arepdn | (Uonoy oN) a1epdn | (Uonoy oN) arepdn | 8INPayYdS JaISeN 1

[enoaddy paeogq

GT, AReiN

GT, |dy

ST. YoIeN

GT. Aaenuga

GT/E€T/E0 — auldwil Buiwoadn

wreaboiad uoldNJIISuU0D puog €102

ab9||0D sexal yinos

SINFLl TVAO4dddVY ddVvOd

GT. Adenuer

129



0T
6
8
L
9
q
uonsjdwo)
MBIASY Saul|apIND
7 SpJepuelS v o
ubisaq sanijioe 3
SUOISSAS Burures | :o_ﬂhw/w_n_ S
JO-913 BuiobuQ 91IS-U] 18UMQ Ewhmquhn_ B:W__E:u_ € 2
ey | oo O3 st o o] :
: : : uoISsasS JJO - MaIy [186png Ateuiwijaid
91N29%3 [e21UY291099)
sjesodoad
SUGNENGOaTy s1y 1e Jabeuey Aluo pa1noax3 (YSY)
a|npayas weuboad e uonoNIISU0D s108load Aaolad | uonisinbay a21A18S T
191SeIA 81epdn "JOND JO uoneNnjeAs |- paadodd 01 92110N| [euonIppyY 1I/AVY
[ealuyoa L
GT. AeiN GT. Udy GT. YoIey GT. Arenuga- GT, Arenuer

auljswi] Butwoadn
wreabold uononuaisuo) puog £102
aba||0D sexal Yyinos

SN4Ll TVNOILVHddO

130



(O |M~| 00|

selba1e.a]S
JUBWaINJ0.1d
awnjo/\/Buiseyaind
sSe

Alunuoddo
Upai1d xe |

weaboad sgueansu
Pa]]041U0D 18UMQO

XsIY s,49pjing
uoI1oNJIsuo)d

$59004d MSIY
© 1uswabeue|n
uoI19NIISU0D

SUOIRIUSSaId/[euoITewLIoU|

GT. ke

SWLl NOILVLINISddd ® NOILVINHOINI

GT. [idy GT. Yaden GT. Adenuga- G, Adenuer

auljswi] Butwoadn
wea601d uononisuo)d puog €102
aba||0D sexal yinos

131



S)RNyoIY >wm__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ l syuawanosdwi sqeq Sulured|
('SHO3 J181ed Awwir) 8us Buiyoes| eAore] LS

agl - sjuawanosdwi 331 pue Supjed

aal Ayjoe4 Sujuies

1reyd - aoua||9ax3 A1aJes aljqnd 10} 191ua) [euoibiay

BuuaauiBu3 unH 3 uspeN syusawanoldw) 31iS pue Supjied

sigauibug NH ewbis

jue|d [ewJay L

1031101 BIOIRD) + EIE uojsuedx3 Suip|ing S3IHAIIDY JUBPNIS
1031101 BIOIRD) + EIE uojsuedx3 Suip|ing S3JIAISS JUBPNIS
S10311Y0IY BIOIRD) + EIE Adeaqn

S840V AD3T uojsuedx3 423ua) Suluies] 32JOPIOM
S10311Y0IY BIOIRD) + EIE Suip|INg 22UBIDS puE SUOISS3404d Y3|eaH

sndwe) Ajuno) 1els

s198UIBU3 ZaliaNg 'y

syuawanosdw| 3yIs pue Supjied

SI8IYIY 0¥3

uoisuedx3 sndwe)

sndwe) yieaH pal||y pue Buisiny

Buusauibu3 esolouH

sjuawanosdwi 311 pue Supjed

S109)IY2IY ADJ uoneAouay Sulp|ing 1s9myinos
sndwe) Abojouydsa]
S91e120SSY JileH syuawanosdw| 3yIS pue Supjied

Bunsauibuz ¥yga

Jue|d [ewJayL

S10011Y01Y Y40 uojsuedx3 Suip|ing Sa2IAJS JUBPNIS
S199)1UY2.Y BIOIES) + BIE) uolsuedx3 Aieaqny
S100MYaIY A9 uolsuedx3 421ua) ujuled] 921040
10001y Y40d Suip|ing 32U312S pue SUOISS?}0.d Y3|eaH
sndwe) As|eA pIN

30d sjuawanosdw| 311 pue Supjed

S1RI00SSY HeH uoisuedx3 jue|d |[ewuayL

s1081yaly dnoio uaiem

e1191948D pUE BUIp|INg SAIARDY JUDPNIS

Suiping N3LS

Bulp|ing Jlwapedy yinos

8uIp|Ing dIWBPEIY YHON

sndwe) uedad

NOILdIYOS3A 103rodd

S1031YAIY ¥VSg
S1031YAIY ¥VSg
S191IY2IY Mdd
O

2|8 (a |88 |8 2 glg|8|8|g (2|5 |8 |=

s (8IRIR|R|R(E B [E|IR|2(2|51(28 |28 |8

R ) o o S 3 S8 |2 |

o < > > S |a [ [2

= =3 S = 2 |= S |o

3 @ - @ S 91F |8 |8

S g s |2 > [2 & |3 |2

3 = < =] > =] < @

= = S k=] = | = |2 | S

S D = = o ) k=]

(=} b=l = [=]

@) S |3 || |3

) 213 (2 [Z18

5 = mo=

sfesodold
10}081U0D JaauibugnoaNydly aseyd uononnsuo) ool aseyd ubisag juswdojanaq 108loid

1BquwnN
108l01d

G702 ‘8 1MdY - 140d3H SSIHO0Ud WYH90Hd NOILONYLSNOD ANOd €102

132



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 32

Review and Action as Necessary on Selection of Firms for Geotechnical
Engineering and Materials Testing Services for the 2013 Bond Construction
Program

Approval on selection of firms to provide geotechnical engineering and materials testing services
for the 2013 Bond Construction program is requested.

These services will be necessary during the design and construction phases of these construction
projects. It is recommended that a minimum of four firms be contracted and assigned projects
as follows:

Recommended Project Assignments

Campuses Top Ranked Firms

1 | Pecan Campus Terracon Consultants, Inc.

Nursing & Allied Health Campus and

2 Technology Campus Millennium Engineering Group
Mid Valley Campus and Regional Center for . .

3 Public Safety Excellence L&G Consulting Engineers, Inc.

4 Starr County Campus and La Joya Teaching Raba Kistner Consultants, Inc.

Site

On March 2, 2015 a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for solicitation of these services was made
available and responses were received on March 25, 2015. A total of seven (7) firms submitted
responses to the RFQ. The evaluation team including staff and Broaddus & Associates prepared
the attached summary of scoring and ranking for the Board’s review.

Once firms are selected and approved by the Board of Trustees, the firms will be available to
provide the College with geotechnical engineering and materials testing services as assigned for
Bond construction projects. Staff in consultation with Broaddus & Associates will recommend
use of firms from the proposed pool. Some of the anticipated engineering services which may
be provided are as follows:

Testing of soil conditions for proper foundation design

Testing of select fill dirt for proper compaction

Testing of concrete samples during concrete pours

Testing of sub-grades, caliche base, and asphalt for parking areas
Testing of structural steel reinforcing

Testing of steel welding

Testing of floors for levelness

Testing of fireproof materials

Testing of environmental conditions including air quality

Testing for identifying asbestos containing materials

Fees for these services could range from $5,000 to $45,000 depending on the scope and
complexity of each construction project and testing needed. As part of the fee negotiations

133



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 33

process, each firm will be asked to provide unit costs for a standard list of possible services.
These unit costs will be used as basis for each future project fee proposal.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the selection of the top four (4) ranked
firms with projects assignments as identified to provide geotechnical engineering and materials
testing needed for the 2013 Bond construction projects for the period beginning April 29, 2015
through April 28, 2016 with the option to renew for two one-year periods as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize the
top four (4) ranked firms with projects assignments as identified to provide geotechnical
engineering and materials testing needed for the 2013 Bond construction projects for the period
beginning April 29, 2015 through April 28, 2016 with the option to renew for two one-year periods
as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the top four (4) ranked
firms with projects assignments as identified to provide geotechnical engineering and materials
testing needed for the 2013 Bond construction projects for the period beginning April 29, 2015
through April 28, 2016 with the option to renew for two one-year periods as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

134



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE

L&G Millennium Raba-Kistner Terracon
VENDOR EarthCo, LLC. Consulting Engineers, Inc. Engineers Group, Inc. Professional Service Industries, Inc. Consultants, Inc. Consultants, Inc. T.S.I. Laboratories, Inc.
ADDRESS 1110 W Jackson St 2100 W Expressway 83 P O Box 4569 2020 N Loop 499 Ste 302 800 E Hackberry 1506 Mid Cities Dr 901 E Expressway 83
CITY/STATE/ZIP Harlingen, TX 78550 Mercedes, TX 78570 Edinburg, TX 78540 Harlingen, TX 78550 McAllen, TX 78501 Pharr, TX 78577 La Feria, TX 78559
PHONE 956-428-2443 956-565-9813 956-702-8500 956-423-6826 956-682-5332 956-283-8254 956-797-9031
FAX 956-202-0491 956-565-9018 956-702-4180 956-423-5735 956-682-5487 956-283-8279 956-797-2056
CONTACT Jaime Cantu Jacinto Garza Raul Palma Hector J. Lopez Isidro Arjona Jorge A. Flores Murphy G. Scurry

2.1 Statement of Interest

2.1.1 Statement of Interest for
Project

Firm stated their commitment to each
project. They emphasized the 40
plus years experience of the two
principals.

Firm pointed out their extensive
experience in providing the services
requested. The firm summarized the
detailed services they provide.

The firm emphasized their local
history and experience and the
experience of project manager in
performing work in the Rio Grande
Valley.

Pointed out the firm's nationwide
presence and experience, but also
their 25 years of experience in the
Rio Grande Valley.

Emphasized the 46 years of
continuous service by the same
executive management and their
work on more than 100 projects for
STC.

Provided an extended statement that
mentions the firm's strong local
presence, their full service
capabilities and their previous
experience in providing services to
STC.

Firm presented a summary of the
firm's 20 years' experience and that
of its main staff.

2.1.2 History and Statistics of
Firm

- Located in Harlingen, TX
- Established in 2008
- Staff of 8, including principals

- Firm has been in business for over
12 years

- Two offices: Mercedes and Mission
- 60 staff members

- Firm was established in 2001
- Staff of 15
- Offices in Pharr and Harlingen

- Has operated for over 100 years
- 2,500 staff nationwide

- 125 office nationwide

- over 25 years experience in RGV

- Firm was founded in 1968 in San
Antonio

- Has 24 years experience in the Rio
Grande Valley

- Over 400 total staff with over 50
staff in the Rio Grande Valley offices

- Firm established in 1965
- 3,000 employees nationwide
- Over 500 staff in Texas offices

- 20 years in business
- Offices in Victoria, San Antonio,
Houston and La Feria

2.1.3 Statement of Availability and
Commitment

Stated that firm has the experience
and resources to meet project needs.

Stated that any and all work product
for STC will be completed in a timely|
manner. Pointed out to current work
projects, but indicated this would not
detract from providing service to
STC.

Indicated their commitment to STC
by providing staff and resources to
be responsive to South Texas College
projects. Added that key personnel
would be available for the life of the
project.

Indicated their availability and
commitment to provide the necessary
services and personnel as required
for the project.

Made a statement of commitment to
provide the necessary staff for STC.
Added that current workload will
allow them to meet STC schedules
and deadlines.

Indicated the commitment of the key
professionals to providing services to
STC. Pointed to the previous work
performed for the college.

Did not directly address this item.
Commitment is implied in their
submittal and willingness to perform
work for college.

2.1.4 Preference on Project
Groups

Listed the order of preference on
projects as follows:

Mid Valley Campus

Pecan Campus

Starr County Campus
Technology Campus

Nursing & Allied Health Campus

Listed the order of preference on
projects as follows:

Pecan Campus

Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Technology Campus

Mid Valley Campus

Starr County Campus

Listed order of preference on projects
as follows:

Pecan Campus

Mid Valley Campus

Starr County Campus

Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Technology Campus

Listed order of preference on projects
as follows:

Mid Valley Campus

Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Starr County Campus

Technology Campus

Pecan Campus

Listed order of preference on projects
as follows:

Pecan Campus

Mid Valley Campus

Starr County Campus

Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Technology Campus

Listed order of preference on projects
as follows:

Pecan Campus

Mid Valley Campus

Starr County Campus

Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Technology Campus

Order of preference on projects was
not provided.

2.2 Prime Firm

2.2.1 Resumes of Principals and
Key Members

Provided resumes for the following:
- Jaime M. Cantu, PE
- Rudy Martinez

Provided resumes for the following:
- David A. Saenz, PE, Project
Manager

- Mark McClelland, PE, Assistant
Project Manager

- Ricardo Gallaga, PE, Assistant
Project Manager

- Ricardo A. Gil, Geotechnical &
CMT Laboratory Manager

- Jacinto Garza, PE, Project Principal

Provided Resumes for the following:
-Raul Palma, PE, Principal Engineer
- Andres Palma, PE, Geotechnical
Engineer

- Rick Riggins, PE, Senior Project
Engineer

- Humberto Palma, CWI, CMT
Laboratory Manager

Provided resumes for the following
staff:

- Hector Lopez, PE, Branch Manager
- Lucas Castillo, EIT, Graduate
Engineer

- Juan Rodriguez, Construction
Services Manager

Provided resumes for the following
staff:

- Isidoro Arjona, PE, Project
Manager

- Katrin M. Leonard, PE,
Geotechnical Engineering Task
Leader

- Dennis C Charkow, Supervisor
Construction Materials Testing

- Chris L. Schultz, PE, PMP

- Carlos Ceballos, Jr., PE

- Jorge L. Perez, Graduate Engineer
- Tomas Crus, Jr., Environmental
Scientist

- Juan M. Carrillo, Construction
Materials Testing Laboratory

Provided resumes for the following
staff:

- Jorge Flores, P.G., Principal

- Alfonso A. Soto, PE, Geotechnical
and CMT Manager

- Stephany Chacon, EIT,
Geotechnical Specialist

- Juan M. Borjon, EIT, CMT Project
Manager

- Guadalupe Leal, CMT Project
Manager

- Eloy Palacios, Environmental
Project Manager

- Christopher Albright,
Environmental Specialist

Provided resumes for the following
staff:

- Michael Tater, President

- Daniel Tesfai, PE, Chief Engineer
- Murphy G. Scurry, P.E. Branch
Manager

- Herman Garza, Department
Manager

2.2.2 Project Assignments and
Lines of Authority

Lines of authority are indicated in the
organization chart.

Specific project assignments were
not stated, but are implied by the
titles of the staff whose resumes were
provided. The lines of authority are
indicated in the organization chart
provided.

Indicated that Mr. Palma, the
Principal Engineer, will serve as task
leader for services for STC. The
lines of authority are shown in an
organization chart.

Provided the names and positions of
the staff who would comprise the
project team. These included three
staff in engineering and project
management plus engineering
technicians, administration, materials
testing and other additional
personnel.

Presented assignments of three
named staff member as follow:
Project Manager-40%; Geotechnical
Engineering Task Leader-40%;
Supervisor Construction Materials
Testing-40%. Lines of authority are
shown on organization chart.

Pointed out the duties of the top staff
of the project team, but also included
other staff who would be assigned to
projects. Indicated that time

dedication by staff would be between
20 and 40 percent of the project time.

Summarized the duties of each staff
member and the percentage time each
would devote to projects.

135

Page 1 of 2



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE

VENDOR

EarthCo, LLC.

L&G
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

Millennium
Engineers Group, Inc.

Professional Service Industries, Inc.

Raba-Kistner
Consultants, Inc.

Terracon
Consultants, Inc.

T.S.1. Laboratories, Inc.

2.3 Project Team

2.3.1 Organization chart with
Role of Prime Firm and
Consultants

Included organization chart that
shows all staff by position and their
occupational titles. No consultants
are shown.

Included organization chart with the
main staff who would be involved in
projects. They show one consultant
firm, which is also a division of the
prime firm.

Included organization chart which
shows role of each staff member. It
includes one consultant.

Included organization chart with
duties of staff and lines of authority.
No consultants were included.

Organization chart was included with
main staff and other project team
members. One drilling consultant is
included.

Provided a detailed organization
chart with clear lines of authority. It
includes one consultant (Southwest
Drilling) for geotechnical drilling.

Provided organization chart that
includes main staff with lines of
authority. No consultants were
included.

2.4 Representative Projects

2.4.1 Representative Projects
Information

- City of Harlingen - Bass ProShop
Infrastructure Improvements

- Valley Baptist Hospital - Parking
and Pavement Improvements

- Weslaco ISD - Dr. Armando
Cuellar Middle School

- City of Donna - Western Colonias
Collection System

- Weslaco ISD - Sam Houston
Elementary

- Concordia Management Services
Santana Textile

- Texas Department of
Transportation: Pharr District
Geotechnical and CMT

- La Joya ISD: School district
projects

- Cameron County: Carrizales-
Rucker Detention Center

- Hidalgo County: Linn-San Manuel
Emergency Services Center

- Cameron County Regional Mobility
Authority: State Highway 550

- South Texas College - Nursing
Allied Health Campus Addition

- South Texas College - Institutional
Support Services Building

- South Texas College - Information
and Technology Building

- PSJA ISD - Jaime Escalante Middle
School

- Valley View ISD - 9th Grade
Campus

- UT-Pan American - Fine Arts
Auditorium

- Harlingen CISD - Building and
Canopy Additions

- Edinburg CISD - Fine Arts
Auditorium

- Brownsville I1SD - Hanna High
School Lab Science Building

- Brownsville ISD - Gladys Porter
High School Lab Science Building

- South Texas College-West
Academic Building

- South Texas College - CAAT
Building - Technology Campus

- South Texas College - Parking Lot -
Mid Valley Campus

- South Texas College - District-
Wide Site Improvements 2008

- South Texas College - A, B, & K
Renovations

- South Texas College - Welding Lab
Expansion-Technology Campus

- UT-System South Texas Medical
Academic Building

- Texas State Technical College -
Campus Building 20SS

- IDEA Public Schools - IDEA
Public Schools Headquarters - Pike
Blvd

- South Texas ISD - Academy for
Medical Professions

- Brooks County ISD - Lasater
Elementary School

- South Texas ISD - Med High Lab
Addition

- Sharyland I1SD - Sharyland ISD
Natatorium

- Broaddus & Associates (Owner
representative)- Santa Lucia
Apartments

2.5 References

2.5.1 List of References

- City of San Benito

- City of Harlingen

- Brownsville PUB

- City of San Juan

- Weslaco ISD

- San Benito CISD

- Los Fresnos CISD

- DOS Logistics

- City of Port Isabel

- City of Pharr

- Cruz-Hogan Consultants
- City of Laguna Vista
- Pesado Construction

- Texas Department of
Transportation

- LaJoya ISD

- Carrizales-Rucker Detention Center
- Cameron County

- Cameron Count Regional Mobility
Authority

- Linn-San Manuel Emergency
Services Center-Hidalgo County

- South Texas College
- PSJA ISD

- Valley View ISD

- City of Pharr

- City of Edinburg

- City of Harlingen

- City of Hidalgo

- City of Alamo

- Sullivan City

- City of Roma

- City of Weslaco

- Hidalgo County

- Texas Department of
Transportation

- Port of Brownsville

- UT-Pan American
- Harlingen CISD

- Edinburg CISD

- Brownsville ISD

- South Texas College
(included three STC staff as
references)

- South Texas College

- UT-System - OFPC

- Texas State Technical College
- IDEA Public Schools

- South Texas ISD

- Brooks County ISD

- South Texas ISD

- Sharyland ISD

- Broaddus & Associates

2.6 Execution of Services

2.6.1 Willingness and ability to
expedite services. Ability to
supplement production.

Indicated that they are operating at
50% capacity and would be able to
accommodate client needs
immediately. Indicated that they
would increase personnel to keep up
with demands of clients.

Indicated that firm has adequate
staffing to get a project done under
any circumstances. Added that in
case of unforeseen circumstances, all
professional team members are
interchangeable if required to support
any position.

Indicated that the project team
assigned will devote the necessary
time to meet schedules. Stated that
inspectors will devote 100% of time
to project and additional inspector
resources will be available as needed.

Did not directly address this item, but
indicated their ability to draw from
specialized employees around Texas
and throughout the nation to provide
support as needed.

Stated that on-time services can be
provided for any project for STC, but
if need to supplement work is
necessary, they have over 350 staff in
the state who can assist the local
office.

Pointed out firm's ability to expand
capacity by following two practices:
Sharing of work between all of firm's
offices and having staff work
overtime hours during heavy
workload periods.

Indicated their ability to expedite
services if requested by STC. They
stated that additional support can be
provided from other offices.

2.6.2 Firm's quality assurance
program.

Did not specifically address quality
assurance, but indicated their
laboratory's compliance with testing
standards and procedures.

Provided flowchart detailing the
firm's quality control process. Have
a quality control director and quality
control coordinator for construction
materials testing.

Indicated that quality control is
monitored in every aspect of work.
The QC program as been approved
by the American Association of State
Highway and Transportation

Indicated firm's internal QA program
which includes calibration programs
on equipment, technical training of
staff, certification of technicians, and
a corporate quality assurance audit

Described firm's internal QC
program, which shows how
investigations will be performed, the
training program for staff, and a peer
review program.

Firm maintains a Quality
Control/Quality Assurance policy
and procedures manual. Indicated
that specific levels of review have
been established depending on size

Stated that firm maintains an in-
house quality assurance program.
Testing equipment is calibrated in
accordance with general procedures

and manufacturer recommendations.

Officials (ASSHTO). program. and complexity of project.
TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 529.27 539.28 560.99 529.69 567.13 571.4 523.55
RANKING 6 4 3 5 2 1 7

136

Page 2 of 2



an

S8 00T 06 06 06 06 S8
(sutod 00T 03 dn)
S8 26 €6 06 16 98 S8 s|enpIAIpuUl A8 S1UBNSU0 JO 8siliadxa
pue aouaLiadxa Buimoys sewinsay ‘10sload
86 86 86 S6 96 S8 06 SIU} Joj AlljIge|IeAR S,JUBYNSUOYD JO JUSWAlR]S
‘s1eak g i1se| ul uo Jayiaho) paxlom aney
1206 ¢6 58'56 v6 YT'v6 56 26 v6 1'E6 ¢6 68 <6 v1'88 88 awid pue Juelnsuog 08fo1d ‘aoustiadxe
parejas pue ajo4 pasodoid siueyNsuoD
06 86 96 76 S6 06 06 ‘A10181Y Jauig apinoid pue Juelnsuod
3WEN :JUB}NSUOD Yoea pue wuly awd ayl Jo
6 56 6 06 6 06 06 s3]04 8y} ‘Buimoys 1eyd [euoneziuebio '€
06 v6 26 16 €6 06 68 wea 10sfoid €2
06 00T 06 06 g6 S8 g8
06 Z6 76 88 06 98 /8 (swiod 00T o1 dn)
88 86 86 €6 86 18 g8 siaquusw
£ 10} UOITROIUNWWIOD pue AJLioyine
12°68 06 12°S6 56 €6 v6 w'e6 6 6 <6 vT'/8 06 8z'/8 88 4O saul| pue sjuawuBIsse 19afold 222
06 6 06 % 6 06 68 sy0aloud Jejiwis Buipnjou) ‘siaquiaw
A9 J0 as1uadxa pue a2uaBdX3 T°2°2
06 56 06 56 56 06 06 wid swid 2'¢
06 96 56 26 56 88 /8
06 96 06 88 56 €6 26
68 6 Z6 16 06 06 /8 (swiod OT 03 dn)
98 66 G6 06 86 18 €8 wuoo.—o‘_n_ U0 8duslajald J0O I8pIQ ¥'T°¢
Jauuositad
158 06 Zr's6 56 zr'e6 56 S8'16 56 6 <6 1506 <6 68 06 A3 J0 UBWNWWOD pue ANjiqe|leAY £'T°Z
) % % % 63 % 26 sonsnels enodw] pue AIOISIH w4 2'T°Z
suoneaiylenb anbiun pue 1sa18lu| T'T°2
g8 56 56 56 06 56 06 1S9481U] JO JUBWBIRIS T'C
88 €6 Z6 88 06 88 68
A11n3s ' Aydinpy sa10]4 ' ablor euolly oipis| zadoT [ 10199H euwled |ney BZIRS) OJUIdRL nueD awrep 1OVINOD
9502-L6.-956 6.28-€8¢-956 /8YG-289-956 G€/5-€2¥-956 08T#-20L-956 8T06-595-956 T6t0-202-956 Xv4d
T€06-.6.-956 ¥5¢8-£82-956 2€€5-289-956 9¢89-£¢17-956 0058-20.-956 €186-G95-956 EvyC-8¢i7-956 INOHJ
6558 X1 ‘ellag e L1S8L X1 ‘Meyd T0G8. X1 ‘UBIIWIIN | 06582 XL ‘usbullieH | 0¥S8. XL ‘Banquip3 | 02682 XL ‘SapadJa | 09682 XL ‘uabullieH dIZ/31LVLS/ALID
€8 Aemssaldx3 3 706 | 4 S8IMD PIN 90ST AussgpoeH 3 008 c0¢g 6957 X049 O d €8 1S uosxder M\ OTTT ss3yaav
31S 66 doo1 N 0202 Aemssaidx3 M 00TC
au| "ou| ‘siuel|NsuoD "ou] ‘sjue)NSu0D "ou| ‘saLiasnpu| *ou| ‘dnolo sisaulbuz | ‘sisauibu3 Bunjnsuo) 071 ‘ooyue3 HOAN3IA
‘salIorelIoge] I'S'L uoge.Id | Jauisiy-eqey 90IAJSS [eUOISS3401d winiuusIA 9%

WNHO04 NOILVNTIVAST
850T-9T-¥T 'ON LO3rodd
ONILSIL STIVIHILVIN TVIOINHOI1L03O SIDIAYTAS ONIHGTINIONT
3937100 SVYX31L H1NOS

137



are

L T 14 S € 14 9 ONIMNVY
GG'€Cs V1.8 €T°L99 69°6¢S 66°095 8C'6€9 12’628 S1NIOd NOILVYNTIVAT VL0l
S6 66 06 Z6 S6 06 0.
88 €6 6 16 16 06 98
66 66 66 16 66 56 0L (surod 00T 03 dn)
weJlboud souelnsse Alijenb s,wli4 2'9'2
16 c6 Zr's6 56 15°€6 6 6 56 1226 €6 1S'T6 96 87'c8 06 uonanpo.d juawa|ddns pue sadiAIes| 9
88 S6 S6 16 68 6 06 aupadxa 01 Aljige pue ssaubulljIm 192
S3JIAJSS JO UOIINJAXT 9'Z
06 56 S6 06 06 S6 06
88 Z6 06 88 Z6 88 L8
SL €6 66 89 96 26 16
S. €6 66 89 96 Z6 16
6. €6 66 89 96 26 16 (swiod oot 01 dn)
Gl <6 66 39 % 26 6 siaquinu auoyd anIb pue anneuasalday
S, €6 66 89 96 Z6 16 $.J8UMO PUE JBUMO SWEN T'S'Z S
SL €6 66 89 96 6 16 S90UBRJY G2
S. €6 66 89 96 Z6 16
S. €6 66 89 96 Z6 16
Z8 00T 56 26 56 06 06
(syutod 00T 01 dn) asiuadxa J18y) pue swily
a8 €6 €6 06 16 98 9% JUBYNSU0D Jo sawen ‘1abeuey 108foid
6 66 66 66 66 08 6 ‘(3ua11o aup 01 81qIsuodsal enpiAlpul)
J19au1bu3 108lo.d ‘papinoid awinid saoinles
i 06 6 €6 i €6 i 6 26 . 26 |euoISS840.d ‘Uona|dwod enueisgns 40
v1'68 96 v6 cr'ee v1'e6 88 L5068 a1eq ‘UoIlppe 1o UOIBAOUSI ‘UOI1IdNIISUOD 4
68 86 S6 G6 16 06 €6 MaN ‘uonduasaq 198foud ‘1sumQ 108foid
‘uo11ed0] pue aweu 193fold :s18loid
06 S6 06 S6 06 06 06 aAlRIuasaldal G uo eyep o1419ads T2
s198l01d anneussaaday 'z
06 €6 €6 06 Z6 88 06
‘ou| ‘ou| ‘SIuelNsuoD "au| ‘S)uR}NSU0D ‘ou| ‘sausnpuy ‘ou] ‘dnou9 sisaulbul | ‘sieauibug Bunnsuod 'O ‘oQyueg HOAN3IA
‘saliojeloge I'S L uooela ] Jauisiy-eqey 90IAISS [BUOISS8J0.d wnuus|IA 9%

WNHO04 NOILVNTIVAST
850T-9T-¥T 'ON LO3rodd
ONILSIL STIVIHILVIN TVIOINHOI1L03O SIDIAYTAS ONIHGTINIONT
3937100 SVYX31L H1NOS

138



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 34

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Manager-At-
Risk Firms for the 2013 Bond Construction Program

Approval on selection of Construction Manager-at-Risk (CMR) firms for the 2013 Bond
Construction Program is requested.

As previously approved by the Board of Trustees, STC staff in collaboration with Broaddus &
Associates have completed the solicitation of proposals from contractors to provide Construction
Manager-at-Risk services for the 2013 Bond Construction projects. Solicitation of proposals for
this project began on March 1, 2015. A total of seven (7) proposals were received on March 25,
2013.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 1, 2015 Solicitation proposals began.

March 25, 2015 Seven (7) proposals were received.

Five STC staff members and three Broaddus & Associates representatives evaluated these
proposals and prepared the attached summaries. It was recommended that the top qualified
contractors be considered for Board approval.

The first summary attached outlines the top qualified contractors and the Project Groups they
are most interested in.

Broaddus & Associates has divided the 2013 Bond Construction Program projects which could
benefit from the Construction Manager-At-Risk procurement method into five groups, each group
including all relevant projects on a specific campus.

The Board Facilities Committee reviewed the recommended short list of highly qualified
respondents as prepared by Broaddus & Associates and staff. The Facilities Committee was
asked to recommend specific firms for specific project groups, or to authorize interviews with
firms as necessary.

Firms could be identified for more than one project group, and Broaddus & Associates stated
that the 2013 Bond Construction Program could see some benefit in negotiating with any CMR
firm that was assigned to several project groups.

Funds are available in the FY 2014-2015 Bond Construction budget to begin these projects.

139



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM

Page 35

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract Construction Manager-at-
Risk services with the following Construction Manager-at-Risk firms for each project group as

identified below:

Project Group Construction Manager-at- | Total Construction
Risk (CMR) Firm Budget

Group A — All projects on Pecan D Wilson Construction Co. $37,800,000
Campus

Group B — All projects on Nursing & D Wilson Construction Co. $17,700,000
Allied Health Campus

Group C — All projects on Technology | ECON $12,650,000
Campus

Group D — All projects on Mid Valley Skanska USA Building, Inc. $25,300,000
Campus

Group E — All projects on Starr County | D Wilson Construction Co. $19,400,000
Campus

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
contracting Construction Manager-at-Risk services with the identified Construction Manager-at-
Risk firms for each project group as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting
Construction Manager-at-Risk services with the identified Construction Manager-at-Risk firms
for each project group as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

140



[IV - 3 dnouo

000'000°002$ O0A
000°000°00S$ sseiomeds
000°000°000°€$ e)sue)s
000°000°051$ uos|IpA "d
000°000°0E$/ 000'000°028 NOD4
Auoede) buipuog
3 14 4 ) ] O0A
g 3 4 | 4 sse|omeds
g 3 14 4 € eysue)s
V/N } 4 V/N V/N uoog
14 q [4 2 € uosi|iph "d
1eys g dnoug| Asjiea piN @ dnolo ABojouysa| 9 dnoig BuisinN g dnolg uedad Yy dnoig J0]0B1U0D
suawubissy dnols) 198l0id 10] 8oUalajeld parels ,suiil4 Jo Arewwns
O0A ssejomeds sse|omedg sse|jomeds sse|9omedg | (Areonaqeydre paiapio) 4SIH-1e
sse|omedg eysueys uoo2g Beysue)S eysueysg| -siabeuely uonoNIISuOD
Uos|Ip 'd Uos|Ip 'd Uuos|IpA "d Uos|Ip "d uos|ipy "d pauiend doy
|
e s s () e 196png
000°00¥'61$ 000°00¢°52$ 00005921 $ 000°002°ZL% 000°008°2¢$ UOI1ONIISUOD) 210
sndured sndwe) Asjen sndwe) sndwe) sndwe)
Awnog Jrers IN @yl uo s1o8loid| ABojouyosal ayiuo | HYN 9yl uo s1oalold | uedad uo s1oaloid sndures
ayl uo syoaloud PIA8Y § : : Aq sdnou9 108loud
IV - @ dnoio s108o04d ||V - O dnoio IV - g dnoio IV - v dnoio

dnol9o Jad sl1o01oeNUOD 934yl do] Jo Arewwns

141


atfish
Text Box
$20,000,000 /$30,000,000

atfish
Text Box
Summary of Firms' Stated Preference for Project Group Assignments

atfish
Text Box
(ordered alphabetically)


)
V. Exhibit A"
> v{:? . .
Bond 2013 - List of Groups/Projects
COLLEGE
. . - Square
Group Construction Project Description Iq:eet Bldg Cost
Pecan Campus
1 - Construct new north academic building with classrooms, computer labs, and 61,267 $10,500,000
support space to accommodate student enrollment growth
2 - STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math) building with related 48,879 $8.500,000
A classrooms and labs
3 - Multi-purpose space for student support services and activities 33,042 $5,700,000
4 - Construct new south academic building with classrooms, computer labs, and 40,000 $6.800,000
support space to accommodate student enrollment growth
Subtotal Group A 183,188 $31,500,000
Nursing & Allied Health Campus
B 5 —_I\/_Iajor campus expan_smn_for ne\_/v and expanded_nursmg and allied health 87222 $16,600,000
training programs, hospital simulation center, and library
Subtotal Group B 87,222 $16,600,000
Technology Campus
C 6 - Expansion for tech.n!cal and workforce training programs in response to local 72,000 $12,000,000
employment opportunities
Subtotal Group C 72,000 $12,000,000
Mid Valley Campus
7 - Health prqfessmns, STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math) and 76,060 $13,500,000
other academic programs, labs, and related classrooms
D 8 - Expansion of facilities for: high-wage, high-demand workforce training 10,000 $1,750,000
9 - Expansion of library 10,369 $1,750,000
10 - Expansion of student advising and student services building 14,269 $2,500,000
Subtotal Group D 110,707 $19,500,000
Starr County Campus
11 - Construct Health Professions and Science Center with classrooms and labs to
offer nursing and allied health programs and STEM (Science, Technology, 48,690 $8,500,000
Engineering, and Math) programs
_12 - Expand technical workforce training facilities for high-wage, high-demand 9,302 $1.600,000
jobs
13 - Construct new library and renovate existing space for Cultural Arts Center 16,516 $2,800,000
14_- I?xpansmn of student services, advising, admissions, and financial services 5,000 $850,000
E building
15 - Expansion of student activities building 4,923 $850,000
Subtotal 84,431 $14,600,000
STC La Joya Teaching Site (Jimmy Carter ECHS )
17 - Develop STEM _(Smence, Technology, Engineering and Math) labs and entry 11,000 $1.900,000
level workforce training programs
Subtotal 11,000 $1,900,000
TOTAL Group E $16,500,000
Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence - Pharr
F 16 - Establish new Regional Center_for Public sa_fety Excellence to provide 16,000 $3,000,000
regional law enforcement, and public safety training
Subtotal Group F 16,000 $3,000,000
TOTAL 564,548 | $ 99,100,000
Note: Exhibit "A" shall be submitted as part of RFP response.

STC Exhibit "A" CMR
09/04/2014
142



8/T uedad v

08 06 08 08 JaumQ yum Buionid J03oe1U09gNns
JO UOITeWIJUOD 10} POYIBW [0JIUOI IS0 JNOA 8q11Isaq '€
G2'68 SL'T6 GLE06 G'/8 syoafoud Jo dnof pausayaud
56 56 56 06 INoA Joy saseyd uonoansuod pue ubisap ayr Buunp (Umop-mep) Moy
ysea Ajyiuow payoafoad ayy pue ueld jeroueuny 198foid noA aquiosaq g
26 G6 G6 ¥6 s198(0.d 40 dnoJb paiisyaid
1noA 1oy 186png s,18UMQ BU} UIYIM JINS 8y} Urelurew o azijin
111M noA sainpado.d Jeym pue Spoylswl [0J3U02 1509 IN0A aqLIsaq T
56 96 56 6 Papadaxa aq 10u |eys 196png 108fo.d
S,JBUMQ 3U3 TRy} 3NSSe |[IM Yd1yMm ‘Juswafieuewd UoroNIsuod ul
0/ 08 08 08 ‘ueld 103u09 1509 198f0id ® JO UonEZIIIN SuspUOdSaY UOLIBIID o
26 €6 €6 <6 (swiod 00T 01 dn)
76 G6 €6 S6 (ed) souued 108f01d BIOABWIY
Buizijnn waisAs Bulnpayds e apiaoid 01 Ajige JnoA aquaseq v
G6 €6 €6 16 s109(0.d Jo dnolb paiisyaid INoA
08 00T 06 06 10} puswWWwoal Jo aredidnue NoA uoraNsuod paseyd Aue aquasaq ‘S
. . . . uonaNIIsuod Bunp pue ‘ubissp Buunp ‘aiNpayos
Sco'es g6 5c9'e6 G6 s.8T16 G6 Scred G6 s, 18uMQ 8y Buluspoys Jo Bunsaw Joy ued uonndaxa JNoA aquaseq g
dnoub 198lo.d pauiayaid InoA uo asn o0} ssodold noA
16 S6 v6 56 ABojopouyiaw 1o waisAs Bulnpayds 198foud ayy relep ul 8quasaq ‘T
76 %6 76 76 Juawabeuew
uoI3aNIISU09 Jo Led se ‘saseyd uonoaNIISU0D pue ubisap ayl Inoybnoiyy
0L 08 08 06 Burnpayas 108foad Jo uonezijnn s uspuodsey :uoLIBIID 3
6 G6 6 6
(swrod oot 03 dn)
G6 6 6 6 suoneziueblo Jefiwis
pue a1nIsu| Ansnpul uonannsuo) ayi Aq pauigap se ,,saonoeld 1saq,,
5 % % 98 s,Ansnpui ay) Bunuswsajdwi 1oy sainpadosd s Wiy INoA 8quIaseq ‘9
sjuswalinbal ubisap sJaUMQ 3} 193W SPOYIBW UOHINIISUOD
pue ‘yuawdinba ‘sfersayew yeyy Burnsse Jo poyiaw JNoA aquasaq '§
0/ 08 06 00T JaUMQ pue Wea) 3/ ay) 03 3oeqpasy Buipinoid pue ssadold
Burisauibua anjea ‘A1j1geIONAISUO ‘SJUBLUNIOP UOIIINIISUOD pue
G/8'88 G'16 G516 GZ'€6 ubisap ay1 Buimainal 10y saAdalqo pue sainpadoid INoA aquIasaq v
96 56 06 96 Sjuawaiinbal 19BJU0I S JBUMO
ay1 s19aw ubisap 198fo.d ay) ey Burinsse 1oy uejd InoA aquiasaq '€
16 926 56 56 8Z1|1N |[IM W1 INOA Yd1ym SwiaisAs Juawabeuew uoiewioyul
pue ‘swilsAs Burioyiuow ‘suodal ‘spiodal Jo sadAl syl aquaseq g
sdnoJb 108fo.d passayaid
6 96 56 €6 InoA 1oy a[npayas pue uejd UOINIBXS UOHINISUOD INOA aqLIasaq ‘T
:JafeuBW UOIIONIISUOD B SE 32Ud)adWod [BIUYIs)
08 08 08 06 pue ‘a|npayas ‘uejd uonnaxa 10afoid s,juspuodsay :uolIBIID ‘A
¢6 S6 €6 €6
(swrod oot 03 dn)
3 3 3 3 sdnouf 108load paiisyaid sy} 1oy Wy
IN0A Aq papinoid aq 0] sao1AIes aseyd uonansuod-aid ayl aquassq "/
dnoub 108load pauiayaid INoA 1oy sainpadoid (sainpadoud
L6 96 V6 16 1N03s0]9) Buluolssiwwod pue dn-1els s,wily INoA aqlassq "9
$59204d UBISAP By} dIUBN|JUI
pue wes) ubisap ayl yum adegiaiul 03 asodosd noA moy aquiosaq °g
00t 00t 00t 00t dnoJb 198lo.ad pauiayaid INOA 1o} S|aAs)
. . . 11e 1e Buipjing wea) pue Buusupred Joy yoeoidde 1noA aquiasaq v
€6 % GL76 = G/E€6 % S.8'76 6 syoafoad 853U} 104 301440 BWOY Ul pakojdwa aq
D] 950U} pue 31Is uo pakojdws aq 01 jauuosiad Asy |[e Ajo1eledas 1517 'S
laumo Aq [enosdde/mainal Buipnjoul
06 96 96 96 $$3204d pJeme 10811U0D J0JOBIILOIYNS JO POYIBW INOA aqIasaq g
sJ1apinoJd |elIaleW pue SI0}0BJIU0INS
26 16 ¥6 S6 Buibeuew Joy welboid InoA spnjoul pue syoaloid asayp Jo
pasinbai siom ayy Buiwloyiad 1oy uejd Juswabeurw INoA aquasaq ‘T
:100l04d By Joy Sa0IAISS JuBWabeURW
08 08 08 06 UoII9NIISU0D 8y} Wioyiad o3 ANjigedes sjuspuodssy :UOLIBNID "D
T
00 e o ° (swurod 00T 0} dn)
56 56 56 56 (s)wred yo ainyeu ay) azirewwns aseald ‘sak | “uawAed-uou
10J 1Ins paj1} sJaijddns sjeLsleW J0 SI010BNU0I-gNS AUe aneH *
6 68 6 76 1 1INS paji) sisl| |etiay o€ q H'€
Jeak A1ana 1oy Ajoeded
0L 08 06 00T puoq a1ebaibibe s,wuly ayy apinoid ases|d ‘sieak anly 1sed 1o ‘g
G/£98 TAM G'T6 G2T'56 sjo8(oud
S6 86 16 S6
9SaY) 01 PaYe|al 1SOW 81 YJIYM S82IAISS MSl T Jabeurw
06 16 86 16 uonanasuod Buipinoid siypapiaoid sey wuly INOA yarym
J10J s198f04d US] JO WINWIXBW PUR BALJ JO WNWIUIW € 1SIT °T
06 86 86 96 5108[04d UOIINIISUOD YSIY Te Jabeuely UOIINIISUOD
0. 08 0. 06 Yum sousiadxa snoinaid s, Juspuodsay :uolIsID ‘g
€L°96 81'/8 L¥'26 00T
€L°96 81°/8 L¥'26 00T
€L°96 81'/8 L¥'26 00T
. . . (swurod 00T 03 dn) 8NPaYdS
- £L96 oTse sii8 Jv2e Lvee o1 00T Kianijaq pue BuIdLd ‘(D HAIYX) 9 UONISS 0 Jajay T
€L°96 87°/8 JAAS) 00T (D uqryx3) 9 uonoes
196 o118 7526 00T ul yuoy 19s saaj pasodoud s,Juspuodsay :UOIILBIID 'V
€L°96 87°/8 JAAAS) 00T
€L°96 87°/8 Ly'26 00T
uoduaneq@ uyor Apauuay| 013 uouue)d 10ds uos|im 1iid 1JV1INOD
6G0€-285-956 T8GE-CTY-956 €E€TE-LGP-998 042€-989-956 Xv4
8G0€-/85-956 0886-¢T¥-956 €G8E-GE€G-9G6 €166-989-956 IANOHd

T0S8L XL ‘UB|IVON

0658/ X1 ‘usburpiey

T0S8L XL ‘UB|IVON

T0S8L XL ‘UB|IVON

dIZ/3LV1S/ALID

L0T 9IS 3AVY aulwser 3 00TT

9TT# SsWl9 3 6067

€0¢ 9IS 3NV BUEION 60TT

PAIg ueded 3 60¢T

SS3yAaAv

07171 °00A

"JU] 'S1010BU0D
sse|omeds

U ‘bup|ing vsn
BYSueyS

Auedwo) uononisuo)
uosjim a

HOAN3IA

NHO4 NOILVYNTTVAL

SNdINVO NVO3d V dNOYUO S0T-9T-#T "'ON LO3C0dd
SADIAYIS MSIY LV YIOVNVIA NOILONYLSNOD
3937109 SYX3L HLNOS

143



8/c uedsd v

G Z € 5 3duaJa)add dnoao 12afoad mLSoEEoo_
1% 14 € T ONIMINVYH
£2'608 GG8G'8¢8 [4A 74 5'8€8 S1INIOd NOILVNTIVAI V101l
¥6 ¥6 €6 [43)
S6 S6 S6 S6
66 66 06 56 . (surod oot 01 dn)
s1sanbal Aluelsem Buissaippe usym saljddns ferarew
08 00T 08 06 pue $1010BJU02-gNS [€I0] BZIJIIN UBD WIS INOA YdIYM 0} JUSIXd
GZ'88 T3 G/8'€6 % G206 % G/8°€6 % 3yl aquIosa@ ‘a21Aas Ayuedrem Buipsebal Alifenb uononiisuod| 6
150d s,w1y IN0A 8g119Sap Yd1ym ‘siawolsnd 198loid snoinaid
06 06 06 06 WwioJy ‘s1a118] d9uaIa)al (£) 984U JO WNWIUIW B 8PIAOId °T
Joddns 82IA18S :UOLIBYLI
08 56 96 L6 ' S SIMeS MO
0L 08 08 06
16 ¥6 Z6 Z6
56 56 56 56
86 86 86 76 (siurod oot 01 dn)
sannp J1ay) pue wes) A1ajes ay) Ajnuap| 'z
G29'68 ” G/8C6 ” SCT'T6 ” Z6 > souet|dwo 8
66 66 66 66 u1 8q 1snw saakojdws yaiym ui saioijod Alages o119ads
s 3 3 3 pue uejd weiboid Alayes aus gol unoA aquioseq ‘T
weJboud Aayes auis qol s,uspuodsay :uolIBID "H
06 6 06 6
0. 08 08 08
06 6 6 6 (suiod 0o 01 dn)
G6 G6 G6 G6 s199(04d J0 dnolb paiiayaid JNOA 10} $1030e13U0IGNS INOA AQ pawloyiad
uonoNIISuU09 Jo Aljenb ay 1043U0d ayy asodoid NoA moy aquiasaq °§
G6 96 06 GL SJUBWNDOP UOIINIISUOD Jo Juatudojanap pue ssaod
08 06 06 06 ubisap ayy Burinp j03u09 Alljenb ayl 10ae |]1IM NOA Moy ag1iasaq “q
g8 S/8T6 6108 6160 SaNNP 118y} pue Wwiea} |013u0d Aljenb sy Ayuspl 'g ;
06 06 06 06 sjoafoud
Jo dnoif pa.lagald InoA 1oy saAalqo j03u0d Alifenb InoA aquaseq ‘g
€6 56 56 S6 Jre1ap ui s108foad Jo dnoub patiagaid Inok
%6 % 76 76 Joy aseyd yoea 1o} weiboid j015u02d Ayjenb s,winy INoA aquasaq ‘T
uoneanp 19sfoid ainua ayy Burinp ssaso.d
0L 08 08 08 103u09 Ajijenb e wioytad 03 Aljigqeded sjuspuodssy :UOIIBHID O
6 €6 €6 16
(syurod oot 01 dn)
6 G6 6 G6 Tewoy [SD Buisn wislsAs Buiewnss 1509 IN0A aquIsaq ‘9
sia1ddns
s|eliarew pue sio3oenuodgns ay o) ued JuswAed INoA aquIasaq ‘g
96 06 16 9L SWaSAs Juswabeuew Jap.o abueyd
pue Buisoel) pue Buniodal 1509 1oy sueld s,wiy INOA aquaseq v
‘0711 ‘DDA "ou| ‘s1039BAU0D ou| ‘Buipping vsn Auedwo) uononisuo) HOAN3IA
ssejomeds BYSUBYS uos|ip\ d

NHO4 NOILVYNTTVAL

SNdINVO NVO3d V dNOYUO S0T-9T-#T "'ON LO3C0dd
SADIAYIS MSIY LV YIOVNVIA NOILONYLSNOD
3937109 SYX3L HLNOS

144



/€ BuisinN g

06 v6 6 8 16 06 (swurod oot 03 dn)
syosfoud
6 6 6 0L 6 06 40 dnoub pauiagaid 1noA 1oy si010eU0IGNS INOA AQ pawioyiad
g6 56 06 69 G/ 6 uonaNIISU0d Jo Ajfenb ay [o13u0d sy} asodoid noA moy aquassq '
SJUBLUNIOP UONINAISUOI JO Juswdojansp pue ssedoud
08 06 06 09 06 09 ufisap sy Burinp [0ou0d Alpenb ays 108e [11M NoA Moy aquasaq
G'88 §/8'16 §/'06 §LE'SL G.'88 S8 S91INP J13U} pue wiea} [03U0d Altfenb sy Aynuap) g
06 06 06 06 06 S8 spafoud o
<6 56 56 78 56 56 dnoub pastagaid InoA 1oy saA13IGO |043U0d Alifenb noA aquoseq g
|1e3ap ui s3oafoud jo dnoab paussyaid 1nok
G6 96 6 08 76 €6 Joy aseyd yoea 1oy welboid [0u02 Afenb s,wuiy INoA aquasaq ‘T
uonesnp 193fo.d aius ayy Burinp sseaoud
0L 08 08 0L 08 0L Jo13u02 Ajijenb e wuopad 03 Anjiqeded sjuspuodsay :UoBNID 'O
6 €6 €6 08 16 06
(syutod 0ot 01 dn)
v6 S6 ¥6 0L S6 06 Jewoy 1S9 Buisn wialsAs Bunewnss 1509 1noA aquasaq ‘9
sse1jddns
S[eLiaJew pue s1030eU0dgns 8y} o} ueld JuswAed InoA aquaseq g
96 06 16 69 9L 68 SWia)sAs Juawabeuew Japio abueyd
pue Bupjoesy pue Buriodal 1509 1oy sueld s,wiy INOA 8quIsaq v
08 06 08 09 08 09 J3UMQ Ynm Buiorid 10joenuodgns
10 UOIJeWIJUOD 10} POUYIBLL [0.3U0D 502 INOA 8qLIIsaq 'S
GZ'68 GL'T6 GLE06 SLTL S8 G/8'€8 sj08foud Jo dnoub pasiagasd noA Joy
56 56 56 08 06 06 saseyd uononiisuod pue ubissp ayy Buunp (UMop-melp) Mojy ysed
Alypuow payoafoid ayy pue ueyd eroueuty 10sfosd noA aquosaq g
26 G6 G6 08 6 26 s108f0.d yo dnoub paussyeud
1noA 10} 396pNg S, J8UMO U UILIM dIND 8y} utejurew 0 azijin
M NOA $81nPa20id Jeym pue SPoYISW [0J3UOI 1509 IN0A aqLaseq ‘T
96 96 96 99 v6 06 Papaadxa aq Jou |[eys 386pnq 108foid
S,JaUMQ 83U} Jey} INSSE [JIM Yd1yMm ‘JusiusBeuew UoNoNAsuod ul
0L 08 08 0L 08 0L ‘eld 1013u02 1500 308f01d € JO UOIEZI|NN SAUBPUOSEY UOHBHID o
6 €6 €6 08 6 06 (swiod oot o1 dn)
6 S6 €6 0L G6 06 (€d) Jouueld 108f01d BI1dARWIIG
n walsAs Bulinpayds e apiaoid o A)jige JnoA aquasaq v
56 €6 €6 08 16 v6 s109f0.d J0 dnoub pausagaid 1noA 1oy
08 00T 06 09 06 09 puawwodal Jo ajed1dnue noA uondnAsuod paseyd Aue aquasaq g
X X i . . . uonoNNsuod Burnp pue ‘ubissp Burinp ‘8|NPayas s Jsumo
5e9'88 G6 §¢9'€6 G6 L8716 G6 STL G/ Seree G6 SLe's8 G6 8y Buiuapoys 1o Bunasw Joy uejd uoiN|Xa INOA aquIsaq 'z
dnoub 108foud pausayeud unoA uo esn 0 ssodoid noA
T6 S6 ¥6 8 S6 6 ABojopouyiaw 1o wialsAs Bulinpayds 108foad ays [1elsp ul 8quIsaq T
‘Juswabeuew uoNINIISUOD
26 86 L6 & L6 26 340 1ed se ‘saseyd uononuisuod pue ubissp syl Inoybnoiyy
0L 08 08 0L 06 0. Burnpayos 108foid 4o uopezi|nn sjuspuodsey uoLIBIID '
6 S6 6 ¥8 6 06
(syutod oot 01 dn)
S6 v6 6 0L ¥6 06 suoneziuefio Jejiwis
pue ajninsu| Anisnpuj uonanisuod eyl Aq pauyep se ,ssonoeid 1saq,,
s,Ansnpui ay) Bunuaws|dwi 1oy sainpadoid s,y INoA aquassq 9
€6 96 96 99 9% 16 sjuawalinbai ubisap s JaUMO 3} 183 SPOYIBW LONINAISUOD
pue Juswdinba ‘sjenajew Jey furinsse Jo poylsw InoA aqudseq G
0L 08 06 oy 00T 0S JaumQ pue wea) 3/ a1 01 3oeqpasy Buipinoid pue sseooid
BurisauiBus anjeA ‘AJ|IGeIONIISUOI ‘SJUSLUNIOP UOIINIISUOD pue
G/8'88 S'16 S'16 629'0L GZ'€6 GLE'E8 uBisep ayp Buimalaal 10} s3AR0a[GO pue saanpaooid INoA equoseq
96 6 06 L 96 06 sjuawialinbal 19BU09 S JBUMQO
3y syeaw ubisap 198foad ayy yeyy Butinsse 1oy uejd InoA aquosaq '€
16 96 G6 G8 S6 G6 N [[IM Wil IN0A Ya1ym stwiaisAs JusaBeuew uorjewiojul
pue ‘swalsAs Buniojuow ‘spodai ‘spiodal Jo sedAy ayy aquseq 'z
sdnoub 108foid pausagaid
6 96 56 SL €6 16 JInoA 10} 8]nNpayds pue uejd Uo1INdEXe UONINISUOI INOA 8quIseq ‘T
11afeueW UONINIISUOD € Sk 2U8)adLod [edluyds)
08 08 08 0L 06 0L pue ‘3|npayos ‘uejd uonnaaxa Josfoid suspuodsey UOLIBIID ‘A
6 S6 €6 €8 €6 06
(syurod 00T 01 dn)
sdnoub 108foud pausagaid ayy 4oy wiiy IN0A
56 56 56 0 56 {8 Aq papinoad aq 01 sao1AIes aseyd uononiisuod-aid ay) 8quasaq ‘L
dnouf 108foid pasagaid 1noA 1oy sainpassoud (sainpasoid
16 96 6 TL 16 26 1n08s0]9) Buruoissiwwod pue dn-1els s,wiy JnoA aquosaq 9
ssa204d ubisap ayy sauanjjul
pue wes} ubisap ay} ynm adeyaiul 03 asodoid noA moy aquasaq '
00T 00T 00T or 00T 0L dnoub 108foud pausagaid 1noA 1oy sjans|
. i . . i 1 e Buipjing wea) pue Hupiauired Joy yoeoidde anoA aquasaq v
€6 % S.'v6 6 GLE'E€6 % §/8'65 ) §/8'76 6 Ge1'e8 0L soalo1d asau 10y 891440 aoy Ul paojdwa aq o}
asoy) pue ays uo pakojdwis aq 01 [auuosiad Aoy |[e Ajareredas 1s1T g
Jaumo Aq fenoidde/mainal Buipnjoul
06 96 96 08 96 v6 $5900.d p.JeME 10B.1UOD J0JIBIUOIGNS JO POYISL INOA 8qLIIseq ‘2
sIapIn0ad [elIaTewW pue s10)Ienuodqns
26 16 76 0L 56 26 Buibeuew Joy weiboud 1noA apnjour pue sysfoid asay) Jo
paiinbai 1om sy Butwiopiad Joy ueld Juswabeuew InoA aquassq ‘T
:109(0.d 8y} oy S801IAIBS JUBWSBeUERW
08 08 08 0L 06 0L uonoaNIISU0d ayy wioyad 0y Aljiqedes sjuspuodsay :UOIIBIID "D
06 6 €6 08 16 S8
(swtod 0ot 01 dn) (s)wrejd
S6 S6 56 0 S6 S8 10 aunyeu ay) azurewiwns asea|d ‘sak 4| ‘JuswAed-uou Joy
6 58 6 6 76 % NS pa|iy s4a11ddns s[erIsiew J0 SI0}IBIIU0I-gNS AUe SABH '€
JeaA Aians Joy Anoedes puoq
0L 08 06 oy 00T 0S ayebaibbe s wuiy sy apinoad ases|d ‘sieak aaly 1sed Jo4 ‘2
§.E'98 S¢T'16 S'¢6 §/'9S G¢1'56 §¢9'LL sjosfod
56 86 L6 0s 56 s 958U} 0} Pare|al JSOW 8. UYIIYM S3IAISS XS1i Je Jafeuew
06 16 36 G/ 16 G8 uononusuod Buipinoid si/papiaoid sey Wiy INoA yaiym
104 S398{04d US) JO WINWIXBW PUE BAL JO WNWIUIW B ISIT T
06 86 86 0s 96 88 $193[0.1d UONANAISUOD XSIY Je Jafeury uoRINIISUOD
0L 08 0L 09 06 09 Yum soustiadxa snojaaad suspuodsay :uolIalID g
26'¢€8 2,08 G6'9L €899 00T €€'29
26'¢€8 2,08 G6'9L €899 00T €€'29
26'€8 2,08 G6'9L €899 00T €€'29
- - - - - (syurod 00T 03 dn) 8|npayds
. 26'¢€8 . 2,08 . G6'9L . €899 00T . €€'29 A1an1aq pue BurdLd ‘(D NGIYX3) 9 UORISS 0} Jayey T
e6es Z6¢8 eLos 7008 69 697 €899 €899 oot 00t £ee €€9 (0 NqIYX3) 9 UoNYES
768 2108 60l 599 00T ) Ul ynoy 18s a8} pasodoud sjuspuodsay :UoLIBIID Y
26'¢€8 2,08 G6'9L €899 00T €€'29
26'¢€8 2,08 G6'9L €899 00T €€'29
Joduaneq uyor Apauuayf o113 uouue) 102S OAJRIUOIN "D [9BYDIN uos|Im |lig 3000V M Uss|LIeH 1DVINOD
650€-285-996 18GE-CT1-996 €ETE-LG-998 G26¢-989-956 0,2€-989-956 ¢€66-161-0TC Xv4
850€-/85-956 0886-CT-956 €G8€-G€5-996 1062-989-956 €/56-989-956 G266-T6V-0T¢ 3ANOHd
T0S8L XL ‘U3IIWIN 05582 XL ‘usbuieH T0S8L XL ‘USJIWIN T0S8L XL ‘USJIWIN T0S8L XL ‘USIIWIN 09¢8. X1 ‘oluojuy ues dIZ/31VIS/ALID
£0T 81S 8AY sulwser 3 00TT 9TT# ssWl9 3 6061 €0¢ 31S 3AY BUB|ON 60TT 1S UleIA N 006 pAIg ued3d 3 602T py odouelg 058Y¢ ss3daav
0771 "00A "0U] 'S10J0BIU0D U] ‘Butpling vsn "P1 ‘JUOWBYd|oH Auedwod uononisuod  |uoneiodiod bulpiing eydly HOAN3A
sse|omeds BSUBRYS uos|Im d

NJO4 NOILVYNTIVAI

HLTV3IH A3V ANV ONISINN 9 dNOYO S¥0T-ST-¥T 'ON LO3C0dd
SADIAYIS MSIY LV HIOVYNVYIA NOILONYLSNOD
39377102 SVYXAL HLNOS

145



8/¥ BuisinN g

€ T z T T T 9ouaJaaid dnoao 108load m.LoHomLH:oo_
14 4 € 9 T S ONIMNVYH
2r'96L G60'CZ8 1°808 £€8'9€9 G'8€8 S0c'eeL S1INIOd NOILVNTIVAT TV10L
¥6 ¥6 €6 78 26 68
S6 S6 S6 q8 S6 6
66 66 06 % 66 06 (Swuiod oot 01 dn)
'sisanbal AQueltem Buissaippe uaym saijddns erssyew
08 00T 08 0L 06 09 pue S10}0BJJU0I-QNS [BI0] SZ1|1IN UEI Wil INOA Yd1ym 0} JUsIXs
Gz'88 %6 G/8'€6 % GZ'06 % Sv8 ) G/8'€6 % % 8y} aquasa@ "ad1Ales Auedsem Buiprebal Ajenb uoponisuod
150d S,Wwi1y INoA 3g1Iasap YaIym ‘siawolsnd 19afoid snoinaid
06 06 06 33 06 06 WOy ‘s1ang] 8ouaisyal (€) 984U} JO WNWIUIW e 3pIA0Id ‘T
1oddng 891AI8S :UOIIBLLID |
08 S6 96 S6 16 a8
0L 08 08 0L 06 08
16 ¥6 26 q8 26 68
S6 S6 S6 175 S6 S6
86 86 86 06 6 86 (swurod 0T 01 dn)
sannp 118y} pue wes) A1ayes ayp Ayuspl 'z
. 08 . 06 . 08 . 09 06 09 ooueldwoo
968 66 a8e6 66 B 66 908 66 % 66 66 ul 8q 1snw saakojdwa yarym ui sardijod Aiayes d1419ads
prs % 3 76 73 % pue uejd weiboid A1ajes ans qol InoA aquiasaq ‘T
welboud Arayes aus qol s uspuodsay :uoLIBIID "H
06 26 06 72 16 26
0L 08 08 0L 08 0L
071 00N "0 'SI0J0B1IUOD "ou] ‘Buip|ing vsn "PI JUoWaY|0H Auedwod uononnsuo)  [uoneiodiod Buiping eydly JOAN3IA
ssejomeds BYSUBNS uos|iMm d

NJO4 NOILVYNTIVAI

HLTV3IH A3V ANV ONISINN 9 dNOYO S¥0T-ST-¥T 'ON LO3C0dd

SIDINLIS MSIY LV 43IOVNVIN NOILONILSNOD
393717100 SYX3L HLNOS

146



8/S Y%L D

z [2 [2 z z z z 90Ua48ja.1d dnoao 108load m.gosmbcoo_
14 4 € L S T 9 ONIMINVY
10°28L S¥6'508 LE7E€6L L¥'529 GC1'8LL €928 STL'€CL SLINIOd NOILVNTIVAT V101
76 76 €6 78 88 6 68
S6 S6 S6 S8 76 S6 76
(sutod ot 01 dn)
66 66 06 S6 6 66 06 ‘sisanbal Ajuerrem Buissaippe usaym
sa11ddns [elialew pue $10108U0D-GNS [e20] 8ZI|IN
. 08 | oot § 08 . 0L | 08 | 06 i 09 UED WL INOA Y21YM 0) JUBIX8 U} 8q1I9Sa "891AISS|
52’88 6 §/8°€6 6 5206 6 S8 8 52988 58 S/8'€6 % SL°S8 6 fyueisem BuipseBai Ajjenb uonoNISU02 150d 5.l 6
InoA 8 1LI9Sap YIIym ‘s1awoysnd 10sfoid snoiaaid woly
06 06 06 88 06 06 06 'S1a)19] 90UBJaJa1 () 99U} JO WNWIUIW B BPINOIG T
08 56 96 56 96 16 58 Hoddng 801AI8S tUOLIBIID |
0L 08 08 0L 08 06 08
16 76 26 S8 88 26 68
S6 S6 S6 YL 56 S6 S6
(swutod 00T 03 dn)
8 8 8 06 o8 v6 8 senNp 418y} pue wes) A1ayes sy Aynusp| 'z
08 06 08 09 0L 06 09 aouel|dwod ul aq
§29'68 6 §/8'¢6 6 SCT'T6 6 52908 6 S29'v8 6 6 6 ST'/8 6 1snw saakojdwsa yorym ut sardtjod Ajoges alyioads| g
pue ued weiboid Aiayes ans gol oA squossq ‘T
¥6 S6 S6 26 88 S6 S6 weiboud
06 % 06 o 78 3 % Aiages auis qol s,juspuodsay :uoLIBIID "H
0L 08 08 0L 0L 08 0L
06 6 26 8 06 16 06 (swiod oot 01 dn)
s108foud jo dnoub passajaid
6 6 6 0L 06 6 06 INOoA 104 $1030B)U0OGNS INOA AQ paIoyad UORINIISUOD
56 56 06 69 6L [ €6 30 Anjenb ayy jo1uo ay} asodoid noA moy aqLIseq g
SJUBLUNJOP UOIINIISUOD JO Juswdojanap pue sseaoid ubisep
08 06 06 09 0L 06 09 ay) BuLinp jonuod Anjenb sy 19844e []1M NoA Moy aqLiasaq v,
588 S/8'16 SL°06 SLE'GL ST8 S.'88 S8 SaINP J13U} pue Wea) [0.4u0d Alfenb syl Ajnusp) g| L
06 06 06 06 06 06 S8 saload Jo dnosb
6 6 56 28 6 56 S6 pauiayaid anoA 1oy saAn0alqo josuod Apenb unoA aquassq ‘g,
|re3ap ut spafoud o dnoib paissyaid anoK oy sseyd
S6 96 6 08 6 6 €6 yoes 1oy weiboud jonuod Anjenb s,wiy InoA aquoseq T
uoneinp 1a8foid a1nus ayy burinp ssevoid j0nU0d
0L 08 08 0L 0L 08 0L Ayenb e wiopad 03 Anjigeded sjuspuodsay UOLIBIID 'O
<6 €6 €6 08 06 16 06
(swiod 0ot 03 dn)
6 S6 6 0L 06 S6 06 Jewlioy [SO Buisn wiaysAs Huewnss 1509 InoA aquIssq "9
s1a1ddns sjenajew
pue s10)0e1U00GNS 3y} 0} uejd JuswAed InoA aquasaq ‘g
9%6 06 16 69 9L 9L 68 SwaysAs Juawabeuew Japio abueyd pue;
Buroesy pue Bunodal 1509 10y sue|d s,wiiy oA aqLIasaq “p|
08 06 08 09 0L 08 09 18umQ yym Buioud Jojoesuoagns
10 UOIJRWLIIUOD 10} POYIBW [0J3UOI IS0 INOA 3q1I9saq €.
5268 SL'T6 SL€06 SLTL S29°€8 S/8 G/8°€8 s1afoid o dnoub passagaid oA 1oy saseyd uononasuod| 9
6 6 6 08 06 06 06 pue ubisap ayy BuLinp (UMOp-Mmelp) MO}y Used Ajyuow
pajoaloid ayy pue ueyd [eroueuly 10afoid nok aquaseq 'z
26 56 56 08 26 6 26 s108foud o dnoib paliagaid 1noA 1oy 186png
S, JaumQ ayi u M dIND aY}
$84npa20.4d Jeym pue SpoyIaL [03U03 3509 INOA 3qLIIsaq ‘T
G6 96 S6 59 16 ¥6 06 Papaaaxa ag Jou [feys 386png 108foid s JsumQ syl Jeyy
ainsse yo1ym ‘Juswsbeuew uononsuod ui ‘uejd jo1uo0d
0L 08 08 0L 0L 08 oL 1500 1980ud € Jo0 uomezZI|NIN SUBpUOdseY UOLIBIID "o
26 €6 €6 08 06 26 06
76 % 6 oL 6 % 6 uonannsuod Buuinp pue ubissp BuLINp 8|NPayds s,J8UMQ|
%6 6 6 08 78 6 6 a1 Buiuanioys Jo Bunsaw Joy uejd uonndaxs INoA wn_amﬁﬂ”_&w
G29'88 08 G29'E6 oot G/8'T6 06 STL 09 S8 0L GCT'E6 06 GL€'G8 09 308foud pawiagaud oA uo asn 0y asodoid noA ABojopoylew| g
G6 S6 S6 SL 08 S6 S6 10 wasAs Buiinpayos 19afoud sy |reep Ul 8qLseq ‘T
16 6 6 8 16 S6 6 “JuaLwafeuBWw UONINLSUOD
26 86 16 SS9 88 16 26 40 1ed se ‘saseyd uonaNASUOD pue ubisap ay) INoyBnoay)!
0L 08 08 0L 08 06 0L Buinpayos 303foid 40 uonezi|nn sjuspuodssy :uoMIBIID 'J
26 S6 26 8 06 6 06 (swutod 0ot 03 dn)
suoneziueio Jejiwis pue aymunsul Ansnpuj
uonannsuod ayy Aq paungap se ,saonoeld 1saq,, s Ansnput
3 6 6 0L 06 6 06 au Bunuawaidwi oy sainpaooid suuly INoA aqasad ‘9
sjuawiaiinbay ubisap
€6 96 96 99 8 98 16 $,JaUMQ 8} 193W SPOLI3LU UONINIISUO pue ‘Juswdinba
‘sleriatew Jey) Buninsse o pouyisw INoA 8qudsaq ‘s
13UMO pue
0L 08 06 o 09 00T 05 wiea) 3/ 8y 01 %oeqpaay Buipiaoid pue sseooud Butiasuibua:
. . . | . . anjeA ‘A11]1ge19n1sU0d ‘SIUSLUINIOP UOHINIISUOD Pue ubisap
5,888 96 S16 56 S16 06 Seo0L S 8 58 Se'ee 96 SLE'e8 06 ay) Buimainal 1oy s9AN93[go pue sainpadoid oA 8q1Isaqd ! v
S)UBWaIINDA 1981)U0I S48UMQ 8L} S19aW
ubisap 108f0ud au yey Burinsse 1oy ueld INoA aqLosaq ‘g
16 96 S6 S8 €6 S6 S6 ’ ke sl n azijn
11IM Wit In0A Ya1ym swiaisAs JuswaBeuew uonewioyul pue
76 96 56 [ 06 6 16 ‘swalsAs Burioyuow ‘suodal ‘spiodal Jo sadAy ay 8quaseq 'z
sdno.b 108f0id passayeid inokl
104 3NPaYS pue Uejd UONNI3X8 UONINIISUOD INOA aqLISAq ‘T
08 08 08 0L 08 06 0L 1aBeUBLY UONONISUOD B Se 30Ua1adLLI0D [BJIULYIS) PUB
‘aInpayds ‘uejd uonnaaxa 10afoid sjuapuodsay :uoBIID ‘Q
6 S6 €6 €8 06 €6 06
(swiod 0T 03 dn)
sdno.f 108f0id paiseyeid ayy 1oy wuiy 1nok Aq
6 6 6 0 06 6 28 papinoid aq 0} sa01Ass aseyd uonoNISU00-aid ayy aqOseq "L,
dnoub 198fod pausagaid unoA oy sainpadoud (seanpadoud
16 96 6 TL 88 6 26 1N0850}9) BuluoIssIWWOd pue dn-1Ie)s s,uily NoA 8quseq 9
$59001d UBIS8p 8y} 9duBN|JUI PUE LWEa);
uBisap aup ynm sdepalul 0) asodoid noA moy aquasaq ‘s
00T 00T 00T or 0L 00T 0z dnoJb 108fo1d passyaud InoK 10y S|ans| |[e Je!
. . . . . . Buipjing wea) pue Bunisupied Joy yoeosdde InoA aquoseq v
€6 86 SLY6 66 SLe'e6 S6 §.8'6S g9 S8 G/ SL86 66 Seres 0L s108f0ud asauy) oy 821J0 awioy ui pakojdws aq 0) asoy) pue €
ans uo pakojdwsa aq o) [auuosiad A8y |[e Ajoresedes 1s17 €
Jaumo Aq [enosdde/malnal Buipnjour sseood
06 96 96 08 6 96 6 PJeMme 19841U0D J01I.IUOIGNS JO POLPAW INOK GLIIsaq “Z|
s1apinoad [enssiew pue si0joenuoaqns buibeuew
26 16 76 0L 16 56 26 Joy weuBoud unoA apnjour pue syafoud asay Jo paiinbas
>jom ayy Buwioyad Joy ueyd Juswiabeuew unoA aquaseq ‘T
1108f01d 8y} Joy $821AI8S JuBLLBBEUBLU UONINIISUOD|
08 08 08 0L 08 06 0L ay) wiopiad o) Anpigedes sjuspuodsay :UOLIBIID D
06 6 €6 08 06 16 a8
(sutod oot 01 dn) (S)wie|d Jo ainjeu
S6 S6 S6 0 06 56 S8 3y azirewwins asea|d ‘sak §| “JuswAed-uou Joy 3ns
3 8 6 3 ) 75 % pajy sia1jddns sjeriejew 1o s10)0eU0-NS AUe SABH €
Jeak A1ans 1oy Anoeded puoq syebalbibe
0L 08 06 oy 09 00T 0S s,uuly 8y apinoad ases|d ‘sieak anly ised 104 ‘'z
S.€98 SCT'T6 56 SL°SS 78 SCT'S6 S29°LL syoafod asayp 03 pareal| g
56 86 L6 03 oL 56 st 1S0W 8. UDIYM S3OIAISS ¥SU Je Jafeurlu UOINASU0d
06 16 86 G/ 86 16 a8 Buipinoad si/papinocid sey wuiy InoA yaiym Joy syoafosd
U8) JO WNWIXBW PUB AL JO WNWIUIW B 18I T
06 86 86 0s 06 96 88 108014 UONONIISUOD YSIY e Jabeuely uononisuoD
0L 08 0L 09 08 06 09 ynm souatiadxa snotaaid sjuspuodsay (uoLIsIID g
yA<n7A 1Sv9 2979 L¥'SS 00T ¥8'L8 8¢S
yA<n7A 1Sv9 2979 L¥'SS 00T 8.8 8¢S
yA<n7A 1Sv9 2979 L¥'SS 00T 8°.L8 8¢S
- - - - - - (swutod 00T 01 dn) 8npayas AlsAlle@
. yA<R7A . 1S'v9 . 2979 . L¥'SS 00T . v8°L8 ] 8¢S pue BuidLd ‘(D NGIYX3) 9 UONIBS 0} J3jaY T
L5 15V 4579 1579 @19 29719 Lvss 1v'SS oot 00T 88 v8'.8 v8'es 82 (0 nqwux3) 9 uonoag ur yuoy| *
JA<R7A 1S'v9 2979 L¥'SS 00T v8°L8 8¢S 135 593} pasodoud s)uapuodsay :UOLIAID 'Y
JA<R7A 1SV9 2979 L¥'SS 00T v8°L8 8¢S
JA<R7A 1Sv9 2919 Ly'SS 00T 8'.8 v8'¢S
uoduaneq uyor Apauuay| o113 uouued noas OAJEJUOIN "D [3BYDIIN zanblu3 Waq|o uosiim 11ia Y200V "M Usa|yreH 1OVINOD
650€-285-956 T8GE-CT-956 €ETE-L5V-998 §¢62-989-956 6008-65¢-956 042€-989-956 2€66-T6V-0TC Xvd
850€-285-956 0886-CT1-956 £68€-9€5-956 T062-989-956 S008-65¢-956 €166-989-956 §¢66-T6V-0TC 3INOHd
T0G8L XL UBIIVON 0958, XL ‘usbuileH 70982 XL ‘UBIIVON 70982 XL UBIIVON 6€58. XL ‘Binquip3 70982 XL UBIIVON 0928, X1 ‘oluojuy ues dIZ/31LV1S/ALID
L0T 915 8AY dulwser 3 00TT 9TT# S8WLIO 3 6067 €02 9IS 9V BUBION 60TT 1S UIBIA N 006 py 1ebns S 5z0€ PAIg Ued3d 3 60¢T pY oduelg 05817 ss3yaav
D71 00N *oU] 'S10}0BJUOD “oul “Buipping vsn 'P¥7 JuowaydjoH NOD3 Auedwod uondnisuo)  |uonelodiod Buipjing eyd)y HOAN3IA
sse|omeds BSUBNS uosjImM a

NHO4 NOILVNTIVAT

SNdNVO ADOTONHO3L O dNOYO S0T-ST-¥T 'ON LO3ICOdd
SIOIAYIS XSIY LV HIDVNVIN NOILONILSNOD

3937702 SYX3L HLNOS

147



8/9 AajleA PIN

14 € T T %] 89uaJ8yald dnoao 108load m.‘_ouumbcoo_
14 4 € S T ONIPINVY
6€'C6L G88'G18 ¥1'808 SCT'8LL £€'2¢8 SAINIOd NOILVNIVAT VL0l
76 76 €6 88 6
S6 S6 S6 6 S6
(swurod o0t 03 dn)
66 66 06 6 66 ‘sisanbal AjueLrem Buissaippe uaym saiddns [eriarew
08 00T 08 08 06 pUe S10}0BJ3U0I-gNS [BI0] BZI|1IN UL WL INOA YDIYM 0} JUSIXa
52’88 % S.8€6 % 5206 % 529'88 8 5/8'€6 % aup aquasaq “ed1Alas AiueLrem BuipreBal Ajenb uononnsuod| 6
150d s,wiy INoA 3qLIasap yalym ‘siawolsnd 3asfoid snoinaid
06 06 06 06 06 TS ENET R IEIETED] Amv 931U} JO Wnwiuiw e 3pInoId T
08 6 % % 76 poddng 821AI8S (UOIBIID |
0L 08 08 08 06
16 76 6 88 6
S6 S6 S6 S6 S6
86 86 86 08 76 (sui0d 0T 01 dn)
08 06 08 0L 06 sannp Jisy) pue wea) Aages ayy Aynuap| 'z
52968 % G186 % AR % 52978 % 26 % 8ouel|dwod ur aq Jsnwi saakojdwis yarym ui sarafjod Ajeges|
a13193ds pue ue|d weiboid Ajayes ans gol oA aquoseq ‘T
6 56 S6 88 S6 weiboid Aiayes aus qof sjuspuodsay :UoLIBIID "H
06 6 06 18 16
0L 08 08 0L 08
06 ¥6 6 06 16
(suiod 0ot 03 dn)
G6 G6 G6 06 G6 s108f04d Jo dnoub pauseyaid 1noA oy s1010eAU0IGNS INOA A pawioyiad
uoNINISUOI Jo Afenb ayy [03u0d ayy asodoid NoA moy 8qLIsaq ‘g
56 56 06 6L SL S)UBLUNDOP UD1NINJISUOD JO JuaLidojansp pue
08 %6 %6 oL %6 ssa004d ubisap ay) Bulinp 0102 Aljenb ayy 1984 ||1M NoA Moy 8q1I9saq P!
. 1876 106 - g8 S81INp 13y} pue Wwea) [013U0d Axfenb sy Aynuap] ‘g J
06 06 06 06 06 s19foud
10 dnoub pausegaid oA 1oy saAnvalgo 0.1uod Alljenb Inok aquoseq 'z
€6 S6 S6 €6 S6 1resop ui syafold jo dnoub palisgeid
1noA 1oy aseyd yoes Joy weiBoud |0uod Alljenb s,y InoA aquiosaq ‘T
56 96 ve <6 ve uoneanp 108foud anua sy Butinp
0L 08 08 0L 08 558004d 0.3U00 Ajenb e wuoyad 01 Ajiqeded sjuspuodsay :UoLIBNID O]
6 €6 €6 06 16
v6 6 v6 06 6 (sutod oot 01 dn)
Jewlo} |SO Buisn waisAs Buiyewnss 1509 noA aquosaq 9
sJa11ddns sjerssiew pue s1039eu0gns 8y} 0} uejd JuswAed Inok aqioseq ‘g
96 06 16 9L 9L SWiaNsAs Juswabeuew Japio
abueyo pue Bupyoesy pue Buiniodal 1500 1oy sueyd s,wily InoA 8qLIoseq v
J3UMO yum Burand
08 06 08 0L 08 J0J0B.UOOQNS JO LONEWIUOD 0} POYIaU [0.3U00 1500 InoK 8qLI0seq '€
. . . . . s108f04d Jo dnoib
sces S6 SL16 S6 SLE'06 S6 Seo'es 06 528 06 pauayeud InoA Joy seseyd uonanisuod pue ubisep ayy Burinp (Umop-meup) 9
Mo} ysea Ajypuow paloafoid ay pue uejd [eroueuly 198foud noA aquoseq
s108f0ud
6 96 96 6 v6 10 dnou6 pauseyaid 1noA 1oy 196pNg S,48UMO B UIYIIM JIND BY) Ulejurew
019211111 ||t NOA S31NPadoud Jeym pue SPOLIBL (03U 109 INOK 8gLIIsad T
56 9% 56 16 76 Papsadxe aq 10U [[eys
196pnq 108f01d s,18UMQO 81 18U 3INSSE []IM YIIYM ‘JusluabeueLl UOIIdINISU0d
ur ‘ueyd |0.3u02 1500 3080.d ® JO UONEZININ S UBpUOdSaY :UOLIBIID "o
0L 08 08 0L 08
6 €6 €6 06 6
(sjuod 00T 01 dn)
76 56 €6 06 56 (gd) 18uue|d 10l01d
56 €6 <6 18 16 elanewld buizy 111ge InoA aq1Iasaq P!
syoafoud Jo dnob pausajeud
08 00T 06 0L 06 InoA Joj puswIoal Jo ajedionue noA uononlisuod paseyd Aue aquosaq '
52988 529'€6 S/8'16 S8 S2T'E6 uononsuod Butinp pue :ubissp Butinp 8ynpayds| g
56 6 56 08 6 s,JaumQ 3y} Bulusyioys Jo Huneaw oy uejd uonNIBXe INOA aqLIVseq g
16 56 76 16 56 dnoub 103fo.d pautayaid noA uo asn 0y ssodoad
noA ABojopoylaw 1o wislsAs Buinpayds 108foad sy |re1sp ui aquasaq T
6 86 16 88 16 “Juswabeuew uonINIISUOI Jo 1ied se ‘seseyd uonoNIISUOI pue ubisap!
ay3 Inoybnoayy Burnpayas 108foid Jo uonrezinn sjuspuodssy :UOLIBIID "J
0L 08 08 08 06
43 56 43 06 43
(swurod 00T 03 dn)
G6 6 6 06 6 suoneziuebio
JejiWIS pue aninsu| Ansnpuj uononaisuo) ay Aq pauyap se ,saonoeld
1580, sAnsnput ayy Bunuswsajduwi Joy seanpadoud s,uily InoA 8qLIdsaq 9|
€6 9% 9% v8 98 sjuawalinbal ubisep s,J0UMQ Y} 183W SPOYIBLU UOIINIISUOD!
pue ‘uswdinbs ‘sjerisyew Jey) Burinsse Jo poyisu InoA aqiIasaq ‘G|
0L 08 06 09 00T JBUMQ puUe Wes) 3/v 3y} 0} yoeqpas) Buipinoid
pue ssa00.d BurisauiBbua anfea ‘A3[1GeIONIISUOD ‘SIUBLLINIOP UOIINIISUOD
G/8'88 G'T6 G'T6 8 GZ'€6 pue ufiisap ayy Buimainal 1o} sannvslgo pue sainpadoid Inok aquoseq |
96 96 06 98 96 syuswalinbai 108U
s,JaumQ 3y} syeaw ubisap 108foud ayy Jeys Burinsse Joy uejd Inok aquoseq ‘€
16 96 S6 €6 S6 8Z11IN 1M WL INOA Yo1ym swid)sAs Jusiabeuew uonewojul
pue ‘swajshs Burioyiuow ‘spodal ‘sp102ai Jo sadAy sy 8q1I9seq ‘g
sdnoub 1osfoad
6 96 S6 06 €6 pauisyaid InoA 1oy 8|Npayds pue uejd UOIINIBXS UOIINIISUOD INOA 8qLIaseq ‘T
:19BeUBW UOIINIISUOD © Se 3oudladwod
08 08 08 08 06 [e21uys) pue ‘ajnpayds ‘uerd uonnasxs 10sfoid suspuodsay :uolIBIID 'Q
6 S6 €6 06 €6
(sutod 0ot 03 dn)
sdno.6 10efoud pasajaid ayy Joy,
56 56 56 06 56 wuiy InoA Aq papinoad aq 03 seoIAJes aseyd uonon.isuod-aid ay) 8quIosaq /|
dnoub 198fl0ud pausagaud InoA Joj seunpadoud
16 96 6 88 6 (s24npaooud 1n03s0[d) BuluoIssILIWOD pue dn-1iels s,Luiily INoA 3q1asaq 9
ssa004d ubisap ayy|
aouanjyul pue weay ubisap ayy ynm adeyiaiul 03 asodoud noA moy aqioseq ‘g
00T 00T 00T 0L 00T dnoJb 108f0.d paiayeud InoA|
3 ) 5 . 10} S|aA3] |1 Je Buipjing wes) pue Burauysed Joy yoeoidde unoA aquiasaq v,
€6 3 SL'v6 56 SLE'E6 % S8 S/ GL8'76 66 stoaloid asauy 1oj 2010 awoy ui pekordwa| €
80 0} asoy pue alis uo pakojduws aq 0) [auuosiad Ao |[e Ajsresedas 1s1T ‘€|
Jaumo Aq |enoidde/mainal
06 96 96 6 96 Buipnjoul $s800.d preae 19BJ3UCD J0IIBIIL0IGNS JO POLIBL INOK 8q1I9saq ‘2
siapinosd
6 16 76 16 56 |eLisyew pue s103enu0dgns Huibeuew oy weiboid noA apnjoul pue spafoid
asay} Jo pauinbai x1om ayy Burwioplad Joy uejd Juswabeuew InoA aquosaq ‘T
1198f0.d ay) 10y s301AI8S JuBWabeURW
08 08 08 08 06 uo19NSU0d 8y wuopad 01 Ajigeded suspuodssy :UOLIBILID D
06 6 €6 06 6
6 6 6 06 6 (swtod
00T 03 dn) (s)wireld Jo ainjeu ayy azirewwns asea|d ‘sak J| “JuswAed
16 68 66 88 L6 -uou 1oy }ns pa|iy s1a1jddns sjerislew 1o $1030813U09-gns Aue aAeH ‘€
Jeak A1ana Joy Ayoeded)
X 0L X 08 . 06 09 X oot puoq ayefaibbe s,uuy ay) apinoid ases|d ‘sieak sl 1sed 104 ‘g
698 S6 Serie 86 56 16 v8 9L Sers S6 s103f0.d 853y} 0} Pale|al 1SOW BJe YOIYM Sa0IAISS ¢
3sid 1e Jabeuew uondniisuod Buipinod si/papinoid sey wily 1noA
06 6 86 86 26 Ya1ym Joj s308foud U JO WNWIXEW pue 3A1 JO WNWIUIW B IS 'T
06 86 86 06 96 s108[01d UOIONIISUOD sty Je Jabeuely
uonoNJISU0D Yim adualiadxa snolnaid sjuspuodsay :uoLIalID g
0L 08 0L 08 06
686 18vL 6€9L 00T €888
686 18vL 6€9L 00T €888
68'6L 1SvL 6€9L 00T €888
- - - - (siured 00T 01 dn) 8INpayas
. oer . e . i oo . e K1anijaq pue BuIld ‘(0 NQIX3) 9 UONOBS 01 Jaje T
68'6. 6861 187 T5vL 6€°9L 559L 00T 00T £8'88 c5e8 (O naypa) T
751 571 501 oot T8 9 UOI03S Ul Y1I0J 19s $98) pasodoud suapuodsay :UOLIBIID V|
68'6L 1SvL 6€9L 00T £€8'88
68'6L 18vL 6€°9L 00T €8'88
Joduaneq uyor Apauuay| o113 uouueD 1003 zanbuu3 aqi9 uos|iM 11 1OVINOD
650€-285-956 185€-CTV-956 €ETE-LGV-998 6008-65¢-956 0.¢€-989-956 Xvd
850€-.85-956 0886-CT17-956 £68€-G€5-956 S008-65¢-956 £156-989-956 3INOHd

T0S8L X1 ‘UBIIVON

0568, X1 ‘usbuireH

T0S8L XL ‘UBIIVON

6€58. X1 ‘Bunquip3

T0S8L X1 ‘UBIIVON

dIZ/ALVLS/ALID

LOT 91S AV dulwser 3 00TT

9TT# S8WNO 3 6067

€0¢ 9)S 9AY BUBION 60TT

py 1ebns s Gz0e

PAIg Ueddd 3 60CT

ss3qdaav

0711 '00A

"ou] '$10J0RU0D
sse|jomeds

"auf ‘Buipiing vsn
BYSUBYS

NOO3

Auedwod uononsuo)
uosim @

JOAN3IA

INHO4 NOILVNTIVAT

SNdWVD AFTIVA dIN A dNOYO S¥0T-ST-¥T "ON LO3r0dd
SIOINYIS MSIY LV HIOVYNVIN NOILONYLSNOD

34937102 SYX31L HLNOS

148



8/, Jels 3

149

26 G6 26 26 (syurod 0T 03 dn)
suoleziueblo Jejiwis pue annsuj Ainsnpuj
uonanIsuo ayl Aq paulyap se ,saonoeld 1saq,, s,Aasnpul

56 v6 v6 v6 ay} Bunuawajdwi 4oy sainpadosd s,wiiy INoA aqLIasaq 9
syuawalinbal ubisap
6 926 96 98 S,/8UMQ 83U} 198 SPOYIdW UOIINIISUOI pue Juawdinba
‘sfenarew Jeyr Burinsse Jo poyiaw JnoA aquiaseq 'g
JaumQ pue
0L 08 06 00t wiea} 3/ ay) 03 oeqpasy Buipinoid pue ssadoid Burisauibua
. . . . anfeA ‘A11j1geIdnJIsuod ‘s)uswinIop UodNAISUod pue ubisap
5.8'88 96 ST6 G6 ST6 06 5¢'e6 96 3y Buimainal 1oy sannaalgo pue sainpadosd JnoA aquasaq v
Sjuawialinbal 19843U09 S JBUMQ 3y} S13aW
16 % %5 %6 ubisap 10aloid ayp 1eys Burinsse 1oy uejd JNoA mg_howw_n__:m
111 WIS INOA YdIym SwaisAs Juswiabeuew uolewiogul pue
6 96 G6 6 ‘swiasAs Burioyiuow ‘spodal ‘spaodal Jo sadAl syl aquioseq 'z
sdno.b 19s8load patiajaid InoA Joy
0B 0% 0B % m_:B.sow pue uejd uoNdaXa UOIONIISUOD JNOA 3g1I9saq ‘T
1Jafeuewl UOIIdNIISUOD B S 30Ua}adWod [eIIUYIa) pue
‘alnpayos ‘uejd uomnndaxa 19aloid sjuspuodsay :uolBlID 'd
6 S6 €6 €6
(swiod oot 01 dn)
% % % % sdnoub 108foad patiaaid sy 10} wiiy 1noA Aq papinoad

3 0] $32IAJ3S aseyd uonINISU0I-aid ayy aquIsaq *L
dnoub 198load patiajaid INoA 1oy saunpadosd (sainpadoid
16 96 6 16 1N08s0]2) BUIUOISSILIWIOD pue dNn-1e)s S, Wiy IN0A 8qIIasaq 9

ssa204d ubisap ay} aduanjjul pue wes)
ubisap ay1 yum adepiaiul 03 asodoud noA moy aquiasaq ‘g

00t 00t 00t 00t dnoub 108foad patsagaid INoA 1oy S|ana] 1B 18
. . . Buipjing wea) pue Hurisuited Joy yoeoadde anoA aquasaq v
€6 86 SLv6 66 SLee6 G6 5876 66 s109l04d asay Joy 921340 awoy ul pakojdwa aq 03 asoy) pue
a1ls uo paAojdwia aq 0} [auuosiad A3y |e Ajaresedss 151 '€
Jaumo Aq [enosdde/malnal Buipnjoul ssaooad
06 96 96 96

pJeme 19e13U09 J0310B1IU0IGNS JO POYIBW INOA 3qLIaseq '
slapinodd [erisrew pue siojoesuodgns Huibeuew

26 16 6 G6 Jo} wreiboid InoA apnjoul pue s10afoid asay Jo palinbai
Jom ay) Butwioyiad Joy uejd Juswabeuew JnoA aquasaq ‘T
:108f04d 8yp 40} SBIIAIBS JUBWIABRUERLW UOIONIISUOD

3yl wiopiad 01 Anjigedes sjuspuodsay :UOIIBID D

08 08 08 06

06 c6 €6 16 (syutod QoT 01 dn) (S)wied Jo ainyeu

S6 S6 S6 G6 3yl azlrewwns asea|d ‘saA J| ‘uswAed-uou 1oj 1ns
pajiy sia1jddns speriarew 1o $10319e4U09-gns Aue aneH 'S

16 68 66 L6 JeaAk A1ana oy Al1oeded puoq a1ebaibbe

0L 08 06 00T S,W1y 8y apinoad aseald ‘sreak anly ised 1o ‘gz

: : : : sy100loud asayy 01 pajejal
G.€98 6 GCT'T6 6 S'Z6 76 GCT'S6 <6 108l U3 031 pare|

1S0W aJe YdIyMm SadIAI8S XsI) Je Jabeuew UoONJISUOD
06 16 86 16 Buipinoid siypapinoid sey wiiy inoA yaiym oy syosloid
U} JO WNWIXeW pue dAl) JO WNWIUIW B IS17 T

06 86 86 96 waow.—ohn_ uol1oNsuoD sty 1e ._mm.m:.m_\/_ uononnasuo)
0. 08 0. 06 YuMm a3ualadxa snoinald s,juspuodsay :uolL81ID g
6188 19°€L 12'8L 00T
6788 19°€l 12'8L 00T
6188 19°€L 12'8L 00T
: : : (swuiod oot 01 dn) ajnpayas Alealjeg
. 6788 . 19°€L . 12'8L 00T pue mc_o_‘_n_ .AO H_g_sxmv 9 UOIN0BS 0} J8J3Y T
6188 61°88 198 19°€L Tesl T28L 0ot 00T (D MgIyx3) 9 UONIBS UI YLIO)
6788 19¢/ 178l 00T 195 $93) pasodoud s, Jusapuodsay :UOLIBUID 'Y
6188 19°€L 12'8L 00T
6788 19°€L 12'8L 00T
uodusAe@ uyor Apauuay ou3 uouueD 109S uos|Im II'g 1OVINOD
650€-.85-956 T18G€-CT1¥-956 €ETE-LG7-998 042¢€-989-956 Xv4
850¢€-/85-956 0886-¢1¥-956 £G8€-G€5-956 €/56-989-956 INOHd
T0S8. XL ‘UB[IWIN 0668/ X1 ‘usburlieH T0S8. XL ‘USJIWIN T0S8. XL ‘UB[IWIN dI1Z/A1LV1S/ALIO
10T 81S 8AY aulwser 3 00TT 9TT# SsWlI9 3 6061 €0¢ 31S aAY BUB|ON 60TT PAIg uedad 3 60¢T SS3dAav
07171 "00A "0U ‘s1030B1IU0D oul ‘Buipling vsn Auedwo) uononinsuo) HOAN3A
sse|omeds eYSuRYS uos|Iim a

NHO4 NOILVNTIVAT

sndweD Ayuno) JJels 3 dnoa Gr0T-ST-¥T "ON LOIr0dd
SADIAYIS MSIY LV HIDVYNVIN NOILONYLSNOD
3937109 SYX3L HLNOS



8/8 Mels 3

T q q 174 9ouaJia)aldd dnouo 123load m.._oHombcoO_
1% 4 € T ONIMNYYH
69°008 G86'V18 96'608 G'8€8 SINIOd NOILVNTIVAI TVLOL
v6 v6 €6 ¢6
s s s s (swurod QT 03 dn)
66 66 06 66 's1sanbau Auesrem Buissaippe usym
sa11ddns [ellarew pue $1019€11U0I-gNS [€I0] 8Z1]1IIN
08 00T 08 06 .
. ) . ) ued WUl INOA Y2IYM 0] JUSIX8 3Y] 801193 "dIIAISS
ac88 86 5.8'26 86 5206 86 SL8'E6 86 Auesrem Buipsebal Aiifenb uonanisuod 1sod s,wny
o6 o6 o6 o6 InoA aqL19sap Yyaym ‘siawioisnd 19afoid snoiaaid woay
‘s1a119] 92uala)al (£) 924yl JO WNWIUIW B 3PIAOId ‘T
08 S6 96 16 10ddng 82IAI8S :UOLIBYD |
0L 08 08 06
16 v6 ¢6 6
G6 G6 G6 G6
(siod QT 01 dn)
86 86 86 v6 S3INP 4184} pue Wes) K1ayes auyi Anusp| 'z
08 06 08 06 aouel|dwod u1 aq
529'68 5 5/8'26 55 52116 5 6 5 1snw ssakojdwa yarym ui saroljod Aages oiy10ads
pue ue|d weiboid A1ages sus gol InoA squoasaq ‘T
6 G6 G6 G6 weiboud
06 26 06 16 Kiayes as qol sjuspuodsay :uowisyID "H
0L 08 08 08
06 6 26 76 (swurod 0ot 03 dn)
s109/04d Jo dnoub patiayaid
56 56 56 56 INOA 10} $1010B13U09gNS INOA AQ pawogiad uonaNIISUod
56 S6 06 ) 10 Ajenb ayy j01u09 ayy asodoad noA moy aquiasaq '
SJUBWINJOP UO1INISUO J0 Juawdojanap pue ssadoid ubisep
08 06 06 06 ay1 Buunp jouod Aifenb a8y 1984 [11M NOA Moy aquasseq i
G'88 G/8'T6 G/.'06 G/'88 SaINP 118y pue wea) j043uod AJjenb ayy Aynuspl g
06 06 06 06 s109[04d Jo dnoub
<6 S6 S6 S6 pauiayaid InoA 1oy sennaalgo j03u0d Alfenb unoA squassq g
|re1ap ui s30afoud Jo dnoib pailagald InoA soy aseyd
S6 96 ¥6 ¥6 yoes Joy weJboid [01u0d Aujenb s,wiy INoA aquIsaq ‘T
uornenp 19afo.ad ainus ayy Bulinp ssadoud j013U0d
0L 08 08 08 Alfenb e wioylad 0] Ajigedes sjuspuodsay :UOIIBILID 'O
6 €6 €6 T6
(swiod oot 01 dn)
v6 G6 v6 G6 Tewuoy |SD Buisn waisAs Buirewniss 1509 JNoA aquaseq ‘9
s1a1jddns sjeriarew
pue siojoe.iu0aqgns ay) 01 uejd JuswAed InoA aquIasaq
96 06 16 9L Swia)sAs Juswabeuew Japlo abueyd pue
Bupjoesy pue Buniodal 1509 Joy sueld s,wiy INoA aquIasaq i
08 06 08 08 J8UmMQO ynm Burond 103oei3u0agns
JO UOITRWIIJU0D 10} POYISW |043U02 150 JNOA 3119saq 'S
G268 GL'16 G/€06 G'/8 s109[04d Jo dnoub patiayaid InoA Joy saseyd uooNIISUOD
56 56 56 06 pue ubisap ay) Bulinp (UMop-meIp) MOJJ Used Ajyiuow
payaaloud ayp pue ued jeroueuly 19afoid noA aquiosaq g
26 g6 g6 6 s109l04d Jo dnoub patiayaid noA Joy 19bpng
S,J8UMQ 8U} UILIIM dINID 8U3 UTEJUTeW 0] 8Z1|1N [[IM NoA
%6 % 6 s saInpad04d Jeym pue spoylawl |043U0 103 INOA 8qLIasaq ‘T
papaadxa aq Jou |[eys 196png 108loid s 1aumQ ays yeyy
aINsse |]IM ya1ym ‘uawafieuew uoloNAsuod Ul ‘uejd |0QU00
0L 08 08 08 1509 100f0ud ® Jo uoneZIjIIN SUspUOdsey :UOLIBYID o
FOToUU U T OF uTTy
¢6 €6 €6 ¢6 (ed) Jauue|d 198014 BIaNRWILIH BUiZINN
76 56 6 S6 wiarsAs Bulnpayas e apiaoid 0] Aljige JnoA aquasaq ‘v
s198foud Jo dnouf patsageld InoA 104 puswLIOdal
S6 €6 €6 16 1o ayedianue noA uononsuod paseyd Aue aquIsaq 'S
08 00T 06 06 tolon1isuios
. . . . Bunnp pue ‘ubisap Bulinp ‘8|NPayas s JaumQ ayy
5¢9'88 G6 5¢9'€6 G6 5.816 G6 Ser'ed G6 Bulusuioys 1o Bunsaw Joy uejd uonnIaxa INOA aquIsaq ‘g
dnoib
16 56 v6 56 198[04d pauiagaid JnoA uo asn 03 asodoud noA ABojopoyiaw
76 36 76 76 10 walsAs Bulnpayds 10afoid ayp |relsp ul aquIsaq ‘T
‘Juawalfeuew UoNINIISUOD
0L 08 08 06 Jo 1ed se ‘saseyd uonanuisuod pue ubisap ayr Inoybnoiyy
Auninnaiingnaln _l 10 110N Zinn cailant _DlOD(_ el M TaT N Fah T Eon Wi |
07171 "00A U] ‘siojoeu0) aul ‘Buipping vsn Auedwo) uononisuod HOAN3AA
sse|omeds B{sueys uosjipmy d

INHO4 NOILYN VAT
sndweD Ayuno) JJels 3 dnoa Gr0T-ST-¥T "ON LOIr0dd

3937102 SYX31L HLNOS

SADINAYIS MSIY 1LV HFOVNVIN NOILONHLSNOD

150



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 36

Review and Action as Necessary on Approval of Change Order for the
Nursing & Allied Health Campus Entry Drive

Approval of proposed Change Order No. 1 with Texas Cordia Construction, LLC for the Nursing
& Allied Health Campus Entry Drive project is requested.

Change Order No. 1 is needed to improve an existing irrigation line to comply with the Hidalgo
County Irrigation District No. 2 policy. This proposed change order item has been reviewed and
confirmed by the project design team at Perez Consulting Engineers and STC staff.

Nursing & Allied Health Campus Entry Drive

Change Item Description and Justification Cost/ Funding
Order Days Source
No.

e Description: A portion of the new Entry Drive
1 crosses an existing irrigation line and is a $9,982 | Construction
requirement of the Irrigation District that when
new construction occurs over an existing
outdated pipe, the section of pipe below the
new construction must be replaced to prevent
future demolition of the new construction.

Total Change Order No. 1 $9,982 Bond
0 days | Construction

A representative from Perez Consulting Engineers and STC staff attended the April 13, 2015
Facilities Committee meeting to respond to questions from the Facilities Committee members.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of proposed Change Order No. 1 in the
amount of $9,982 with Texas Cordia Construction, LLC for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Entry Drive project as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
proposed Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $9,982 with Texas Cordia Construction, LLC for
the Nursing & Allied Health Campus Entry Drive project as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes proposed Change
Order No. 1 in the amount of $9,982 with Texas Cordia Construction, LLC for the Nursing &
Allied Health Campus Entry Drive project as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

151



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 37

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Services for
the Pecan Campus Portable Buildings Infrastructure

Approval to select a contractor for the Pecan Campus Portable Buildings Infrastructure project
is requested.

The Board of Trustees previously approved design services with Melden & Hunt to prepare plans
and specifications for the portable buildings infrastructure. As plans develop for design and
construction of new facilities included in the 2013 Bond Construction Program, portable buildings
on the Pecan Campus will be relocated in order to make space available for construction. A
total of fourteen existing portable buildings are currently located in an area on campus where
the future STEM Building, South Academic Building, parking lot, and site improvements will be
constructed. As a result, civil engineers with Melden & Hunt have completed plans necessary
for the infrastructure required at the Pecan Campus where the ten portables will be relocated.

STC staff worked with Melden & Hunt to prepare and issue the necessary plans and
specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals. Solicitation of competitive
sealed proposals for this project began on March 2, 2015. A total of nine (9) sets of construction
documents were issued to general contractors, sub-contractors, and suppliers and a total of
three (3) proposals were received on March 26, 2015.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 2, 2015 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began.

March 26, 2015 Three (3) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and prepared the attached proposal summary. It is
recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for Board approval.

Funds are available in the FY 2014-2015 non-bond Construction budget for this project.

Source of Funding Budgeted Funds Highest Ranked Proposal
Non-Bond Construction $350,000 $333,249.80

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services with
Celso Gonzalez Construction, Inc. in the amount of $333,249.80 for the Pecan Campus Portable
Building Infrastructure project as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
contracting construction services with Celso Gonzalez Construction, Inc. in the amount of
$333,249.80 for the Pecan Campus Portable Building Infrastructure project as presented.

152



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 38

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting construction
services with Celso Gonzalez Construction, Inc. in the amount of $333,249.80 for the Pecan

Campus Portable Building Infrastructure project as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

153



4 S 14 T € ONIMNYY
V'Ll 219 €¢eL 188 8'q. SINIOd 9ONIMYNVY TVLOL
00'000'0EY 00'0€9'85¢€ 00'000'€2S $ | 08'6v72'cEE 0000002t INNOWNY TvSOdOdd V101l
SBA SAA SAA SA SBA puog pig| v
skeq Jepus|eD 08T sAeQ Jepus|ed 0ST sAe Jepus|ed 02T sAeq Jepus|ed 0vz skeQ Jepus|eD 09T UIUNAA YIOAN J0 uonajdwo)| €
sAe@ BUIOM 1T sAe@ Bujiop 0T sAe@ BujIoM £ sAe@ BuIIOAA OT UIYIAN Y10 uIbag| ¢
SNO3UR||3ISIIN pue
Buined ‘Jamas Aleliues ‘Ia1epn
‘d3IN ‘suonedIUNWIWOod3]8 |
:Sjuswanoaduwi
00°000'0EY 00°0€9'85E 00°000'€2S $ | 08'6v72'cEE 0000002 Buimoyjog ays sspnjoul| T
sBulp|ing
3]ge1I0d JO UoIeI0|aY J0)
aimonaiselyul sndwe) uedad
:Jesodoud aseg
pasodo.d pasodo.ad pasodo.d pasodo.d pasodo.d uondiiosag #
ZOounj\ [90N P ‘euad uenp OAJRIUCIA "D [9RYIIIN "I ZaJezuoo os|ad 92119160 ueq 1DVINOD
656€-.29-956 9066-085-956 G¢6¢-989-956 €///-985-956 G2€0-2.6-956 Xvd
L995-1€9-956 GTCE-122-956 T062-989-956 8778€-G85-956 T2€0-2.6-956 ANOHd
70882 XL ‘Us|IWIIN 72682 XL ‘UOISSIIN T0G8L XL ‘U3|IWIIN 2168/ X1 ‘UoIssIN €058. X1 ‘Us|IVIN A1LVIS/ALID
3AY PIY2IO 2202 1d maiAuwfed 09 1S UIeIAl N 006 Remuod N #T19 05 a1S AmH AreniIA M 0005 sS3daav
Bunoenuo)d NN "7 ‘uondNASU0D ‘P17 ‘JUOWaYd|oH *oU] ‘UoNdNASU0D uonoNsuo) plejing HOAN3IA
NOOC Z3|eZUos) 0S[8)

950T-ST-¥T 'ON LO3rodd

SONIATING 319VLH0d 40 NOILVYO013d d04 3N LONYLSVHANI SNdINVO NVO3d

393717100 S¥X31L HLNOS

154



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
PECAN CAMPUS INFRASTRUCTURE FOR RELOCATION OF PORTABLE BUILDINGS
PROJECT NO. 14-15-1056

Celso Gonzalez JCON
VENDOR Bullard Construction | Construction, Inc. Holchemont, Ltd. Construction, LLC. NM Contracting
ADDRESS 5000 W Military Hwy Ste 50 614 N Conway 900 N Main St 604 Palmview Dr 2022 Orchid Ave
CITY/STATE McAllen, TX 78503 Mission, TX 78572 McAllen, TX 78501 Mission, TX 78574 McAllen, TX 78504
PHONE/FAX 956-972-0321 956-585-3848 956-686-2901 956-227-3215 956-631-5667
FAX 956-972-0325 956-585-7773 956-686-2925 956-580-9906 956-627-3959
CONTACT Dan Ogletree Celso Gonzalez, Jr. Michael C. Montalvo Juan Pena, Jr. Noel Munoz
35.7 45 28.7 41.8 34.9
L 35.7 45 28.7 41.8 34.9
The Respondent's price proposal. |32 357 45 45 287 287 418 4138 34.9 34.9
(up to 45 points)
35.7 45 28.7 41.8 34.9
35.7 45 28.7 41.8 34.9
8 8 7 6 7
. 9 8 7 6 8
The Re§pondent's exper'lence and 8 85 8 84 9 81 55 66 85 83
reputation. (up to 10 points)
9 9 9 7 9
8.5 9 8.5 8.5 9
8 8 9 1 6
The quality of the Respondent's 10 9 6 1 6
goods or services. (up to 10 9 8.5 8 8.4 8 8.2 1 1.2 4 6.2
points) 8 9 9 2 7
7.5 8 9 1 8
45 4 35 0 35
4 4 4 0 5
The Respor}dent's safety record 35 43 2 a1 3 36 0 0.2 35 4
(up to 5 points)
5 4 4 1 4
45 45 35 0 4
6 7 6 1 7
The Respondent's proposed 6 8 7 1 7
personal. 6 6 6.5 7.1 7 6.7 1 1.2 6.5 7.2
(up to 8 points) 7 7 7 2 8
5 7 6.5 1 7.5
The Respondent's financial > ! 25 > 8
capabilitF))/ in relation to the size ! 6 ! 0 8
and the scope of the project. (up 4 51 U 12 6 66 5 4.2 8 8
to 9 points) 5 8 7 7 8
45 8 7.5 4 8
2 45 45 0 35
The Respondent's organization 4 5 4 1 4
and approach to the project. 1 24 5 5 5 44 0 0.4 4 4.1
(up to 6 points) 4 5 4 1 5
1 55 45 0 4
5.3 35 7 5.6 4.7
The Respondent's time frame for 5.3 35 7 5.6 4.7
completing the project. 5.3 5.3 3.5 35 7 7 5.6 5.6 4.7 4.7
(up to 7 points) 5.3 3.5 7 5.6 4.7
5.3 35 7 5.6 4.7
TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 75.8 88.7 73.3 61.2 77.4
RANKING 3 1 4 5 2

155




Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 39

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Services for
the Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along Alley Side of Building

Approval to select a contractor for the Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along Alley Side of
Building project is requested.

The Board of Trustees previously approved design services with Halff Associates to prepare
plans and specifications for this project. As a result, the civil engineering team at Halff
Associates completed the plans necessary for this deferred maintenance project.

Halff Associates has worked with STC staff in preparing and issuing the necessary plans and
specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals. Solicitation of competitive
sealed proposals for this project began on March 2, 2015. A total of six (6) sets of construction
documents were issued to general contractors, sub-contractors, and suppliers and a total of five
(5) proposals were received on March 24, 2015.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 2, 2015 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began.

March 24, 2015 Five (5) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and prepared the attached proposal summary. It is
recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for Board approval.

Funds are available in the FY 2014-2015 non-bond construction budget for this project and from
unused project savings.

Source of Funding Budgeted Funds Highest Ranked Proposal
Non-Bond Construction $75,000 $115,000

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services with 5
Star Construction in the amount of $115,000 for the Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along
Alley Side of Building project as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
contracting construction services with 5 Star Construction in the amount of $115,000 for the
Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along Alley Side of Building project as presented.

156



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 40

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting construction
services with 5 Star Construction in the amount of $115,000 for the Pecan Plaza Asphalt
Resurfacing Along Alley Side of Building project as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

157



ONIMNVY

59

99

€¢S

106

9'88

SINIOd ONIXYNVY TVLOL

sAeq Jepusied 06

sAeq Jepusjed gy

sheq Jepusfed g/

skeq Jepusjed 09

sAeq Jepusfed gg

UIYNAA HI0M SO Uonejdwo)| €

sAeq BujIopn ST

sAe@ BuIopn 0T

sAe@ Bujiopn 0T

sAeq BuiyIop ST

sAe@ Bujiopn 0T

UIYIAN SHOM ulBeg | 2

67°506'6TT$

00°006'62T$

00'68€'09T$

00°000'GTT$

00°056'9TT$

Buined

1jeydsy Jo nalj ul Buined ajesouod| T

:[esodoad aseq T# a1eulal|y

sAeq Jepusjed 06

sAeq Jepusjed Sy

skeq Jepusjed G/

sAeq Jepusjed 09

sAeq Jepusjed g

UILMAA SO J0 Uonsjdwod)| €

sAe@ BupIOp ST

sAe@ Bunjiopn 0T

sAe@ BupjIOpn OT

sAeq@ Bunjiopn ST

sAe@ BupjIOpn OT

Uy oM uibag| ¢

g Buipjing Jo apis As||v Buoly

25'286'€6$ 00°006'78$ 00'€28'SETS 00°006'62T$ 00'056'9TT$ Buroepinsay Jeydsy eze|d uedsd| T
:Jesodoud aseg
pasodoud pasodoid pasodoad pasodoid pasodoad 108l04d #
opeuopfeN ‘Q [anwes soAoHaq AJeuelq abeysio '3 ydasor AapfeQ uely alJag3 uoser 1OVINOD
€888-20.-956 LT16€-G.7-956 T068-9T€-956 §G06-665-956 6.7€-T9%-956 Xv4d
0888-20.-956 92¥5-205-956 0068-9T€-956 0%705-298-956 8.¥€-T91-956 INOHd
L/G8/L sexa] ‘Meyd 1/G8/ sexa] ‘leyd 6658. XL ‘00e|S9 ¥/G8/ Sexa ‘UOISSIIN L€58/ sexa] ‘euuoQ J1VIS/ALID
V 815 pAIg 8beD S 002 681071 pYd 9100\ 3 TOCT 6¢X090d u ApojaIN 60z€ 8¢0TX090d SS3dAav
Ul ‘'STINVS "D '81219U0D) pue 8IS *ou| ‘Bulned 1sowalo uoIdINIISU0D Jels § "ou| ‘sjelalelN aj4aq3 HOAN3IA

Had

LS0T-ST-¥T 'ON 123rodd
9 ONIATING 40 3AIS ATV ONOTV ONIOVIINSTIY L TVHASY VZV'1d NvO3d
39377102 SVX3L H1LNOS

158



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
PECAN PLAZA ASPHALT RESURFACING ALONG ALLEY SIDE OF BUILDING B
PROJECT NO. 14-15-1057
EVALUATION SUMMARY

RDH

VENDOR Eberle Materials, Inc. 5 Star Construction Foremost Paving, Inc. | Site and Concrete, LLC. SAMES, Inc.
ADDRESS P O Box 1028 3209 Melody Ln P O Box 29 1201 E Moore Rd Lot 170 | 200 S Cage Blvd Ste A
CITY/STATE Donna, Texas 78537 Mission, Texas 78574 Weslaco, TX 78599 Pharr, Texas 78577 Pharr, Texas 78577
PHONE/FAX 956-461-3478 956-867-5040 956-316-8900 956-502-5426 956-702-8880
FAX 956-461-3479 956-599-9055 956-316-8901 956-475-3917 956-702-8883
CONTACT Jason Eberle Alan Oakley Joseph E. Forshage Dianaly De Hoyos Samuel D. Maldonado
32.7 29.4 28.1 45 40.7
Base Proposal: 32.7 29.4 28.1 45 40.7
1 |The Respondent's price proposal. 327 32.7 294 29.4 28.1 28.1 415 45 20.7 40.7
{0 4 e 32.7 294 28.1 45 407
32.7 29.4 28.1 45 40.7
44.2 45 323 39.8 43.2
Alternate #1 Proposal: 44.2 45 32.3 39.8 432
1 [The Respondent's price proposal. 44.2 44.2 45 45 32.3 32.3 39.8 39.8 43.2 43.2
(up to 45 points) 44.2 45 323 398 432
44.2 45 32.3 39.8 43.2
9 9 7 4 6
The Respondent's experience and S S S 6 U
2 reputation. (up to 10 points) 9 88 8 e 8 8 4 a4 55 61
8 8 8 4 6
9 8 7 4 6
9 9 3 3 1
The quality of the Respondent's goods 85 S 2 2 2
8 or services. (up to 10 points) 8 8.1 9 e 3 28 2 22 0 0.6
7 9 3 2 0
8 8.5 3 2 0
5 4 1 2 1
The Respondent's safety record 4 35 0 0 0
4 (up to 5 points) 4 45 35 3.8 0 0.4 0 0.4 0 0.2
5 5 0 0 0
4.5 8 1 0 0
7 7 1 2 1
The Respondent's proposed personal. ! L 0 0 0
5 (up to 8 points) 6 6.2 6 6.4 1 0.8 1 0.6 1 0.4
6 6 1 0 0
5 6 1 0 0
6 8 4 1 1
The Respondent's financial capability 7.5 7.5 2 2 1
6 |in relation to the size and the scope of 6.5 6.2 75 7.4 3 3 1 1.2 1 0.6
the project. (up to 9 points) 5 7 3 0 0
6 7 3 2 0
5 6 2 1 1
The Respondent's organization and 4.5 5.5 0 0 0
7 |approach to the project. 5 4.9 5 515 1 1 1 04 1 0.4
(up to 6 points) 5 5 1 0 0
5 5 1 0 0
5.7 18] 4.2 7 35
The Respondent's time frame for 5.7 5.3 4.2 7 3.5
8 |completing the project. 57 5.7 5.3 5.3 4.2 4.2 7 7 35 35
(up to 7 points) 5.7 53 4.2 7 35
5.7 5.8 4.2 7 35
TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 88.6 90.7 52.3 56 55
RANKING 2 1 5 3 4

159




Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 41

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction Services for
the District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades

Approval to select a contractor for the District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades project is
requested.

The Board of Trustees previously approved design services with DBR Engineering to prepare
plans and specifications for this lighting upgrade project. As a result, the electrical engineering
team at DBR Engineering has completed plans necessary for this deferred maintenance project.
This parking lot lighting replacement project is in its first of several phases which will occur over
a four year period. The first phase will include replacement of lights on the original Starr County
Campus parking lot.

DBR Engineering has worked with STC staff in preparing and issuing the necessary plans and
specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals. Solicitation of competitive
sealed proposals for this project began on March 2, 2015. A total of three (3) sets of construction
documents were issued to general contractors, sub-contractors, and suppliers and a total of four
(4) proposals were received on March 26, 2015.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 2, 2015 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began.

March 26, 2015 Four (4) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and prepared the attached proposal summary. It is
recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for Board approval.

Funds are available in the FY 2014-2015 Renewals and Replacements budget for this project.

Source of Funding Budgeted Funds Highest Ranked Proposal
Non-Bond Construction $100,000 $50,691

The Facilities Committee noted that the top ranked contractor proposed starting the project
within 10 working days of the award and completing the project within 120 calendar days. The
Committee asked staff whether it was a concern that they proposed 120 calendar days, while
two other firms proposed completing the job in 30 days and a third firm proposed 90 days. The
top ranked firm also proposed a slightly higher fee to complete the work.

Mr. Gerry Rodriguez, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction, informed the Committee
that the type of lighting required for the project would likely need to be special ordered, and the
bid evaluation team was surprised to see that two firms expected to complete the project within
30 calendar days of start. In experience with previous projects, the team determined it was
unlikely that the firms proposing project completion within thirty days could reasonably meet that
timeline.

160



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 42

Mr. Rodriguez felt there was some room to negotiate the project time line, and if the Board
approved contracting with the top ranked firm, staff would attempt to secure a commitment to a
reasonably accelerated time frame.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services with
Metro Electric in the amount of $50,691 for District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades project
as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
contracting construction services with Metro Electric in the amount of $50,691 for District-Wide
Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades project as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting construction
services with Metro Electric in the amount of $50,691 for District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting
Upgrades project as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.

President

161



4 T € 1% ONIMNVY

g'es L'v8 L9 8'/9 S1NIOd NOILVNTIVAI V101

00°005'9¥ $ [ 00T69'0S $ | 00'008'8Y $ | 00°006'78 $ d3S0d0dd INNOWY 1vVL10Ll
sAeq Jepusfed 0g sAeq Jepusfed 0ZT sAeQ Jepusfed Og sAeq Jepus|ed 06 UIUMAN YJOAN JO uonsdwod
sAe@ BuIOM OT sAe@ Buiom 0T skeq Bupjiopn 0T sAeq Bupjiopn 0T UIYNAA YO uibag

107 Bupyled
00'00S'9¥ $ (001690 $ | 00°008'8Y $ [00'006'78 $ | Joy sapeibdn Bunybi spipn 10LISIA| T
:Jesodoud asegq

pasodoad pasodoad pasodo.d pasodo.d uondiiosag #
Buad N S9pJa9) |8BYIIN ©ZIe9) 3udy safelels) '3 oneISN9 1DVINOD
¢688-185-956 6G957-9¢9-956 0¥0.-£8¢-956 ¢0T€-2¢9-956 XVv4
6688-185-956 €¢€¢-989-956 L9GT-6£6-956 CVCE-229-956 3INOHd
7188 X1 ‘Malnwled 70G8. X1 ‘US[IWIIN 6£58. XL ‘Binquip3 0668/ XL ‘usburjreH dlIZ/31V1S/ALID
1a melaulfed 09 1d [eHasnpul TO6T 182 AMH SN S G2TS €0G# uaing UeA 3 ¢¢¢ SS3dAav
"7 ‘o1199|3 07 "0u] ‘9141993 0M18IN $10]92.1U0D 9799 BgP uonesodiod Buipjing JNVN
/0711 ‘sesudisug oY eyd|y

¢S0T-9T-#T "ON LO3r0dd
S1071 ONIXMHVd 404 SAAVHOdN ONILHOITT IAIM 1LO14d1SI1d
3937100 SVX31L HLNOS

162




SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
DISTRICT WIDE LIGHTING UPGRADES FOR PARKING LOTS
PROJECT NO. 14-15-1052

EVALUATION FORM

Alpha RG Enterprises, LLC./
VENDOR Building Corporation dba G&G Contractors Metro Electric, Inc. Zitro Electric, LLC.
ADDRESS 222 E Van Buren #503 5125 S US Hwy 281 1901 Industrial Dr 604 Palmview Dr
CITY/STATE Harlingen, TX 78550 Edinburg, TX 78539 McAllen, TX 78504 Palmview, TX 78574
PHONE 956-622-3242 956-929-1567 956-686-2323 956-581-8899
FAX 956-622-3102 956-283-7040 956-626-4559 956-581-8892
CONTACT Gustavo E. Grajales Rene Garza Michael Gerdes Mike Pena
24.6 42.9 41.3 45
The Respondent's price proposal. 24.6 42.9 41.3 45
1 (up to 45 points) 24.6 24.6 429 42.9 413 41.3 45 45
24.6 42.9 41.3 45
24.6 42.9 41.3 45
9 7 9
The Respondent's experience and 8 6 S
2 reputation. (up to 10 points) 9 84 8 66 9 92 7 4
8 5 10 7.5
8 7 9 7.5
8.5 7 8 7
The quality of the Respondent's 8 5 9 7
3 [goods or services. 8 8.3 7 6.2 9 8.8 7 7
(up to 10 points) 8 6 9 7
9 6 9 7
4.5 3 4.5 3
The Respondent's safety record. 45 L d 3
4 (up to 5 points) 4 4.3 3 24 4 4.3 3 2.4
4 2 5 1
4.5 3 4 2
7.5 6 7 6
The Respondent's proposed 5 4 i J
5 personnel. (up to 8 points) 7 72 6 5 7 68 75 62
7 4 6 5
7 5 7 6.5
7 6 8.5 6
The Respondent's financial 75 3 7 6
o e e | i [ | e o] w5 ] s
(up to 9 points) 4 8 5
5 8 5
5.5 4 4.5 3.5
The Respondent's organization 45 1 5 25
7 |and approach to the project. 6 5.4 3 2.4 5 4.8 35 31
(up to 6 points) 2 35
2 4.5 2.5
2.3 7 1.8 7
The Respondent's time frame for 23 7 1.8 7
8 |completing the project. 23 2.3 7 7 1.8 1.8 7 7
(up to 7 points) 23 7 18 7
2.3 7 1.8 7
TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 67.8 76.7 84.7 83.5
RANKING 4 3 1 2

163




Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 43

Review and Action as Necessary on Schematic Design for the Pecan
Campus Art Building Covered Area for Ceramic Arts

Approval of schematic design by EGV Architects, Inc. for the Pecan Campus Art Building
Covered Area for Ceramic Arts is requested.

As previously authorized by the Board of Trustees, EGV Architects, Inc. has coordinated with
the Planning & Construction Department staff and with STC Art Faculty to develop plans for this
renovation project.

Preliminary construction cost estimates indicate that the project cost will range between
$260,000 to 286,000. As part of the FY 2014-2015 construction budget, funds in the amount of
$325,000 are included for this project.

The following chart summarized the above information:

Source of Funding Amount Preliminary Cost
Budgeted Estimates
Construction $325,000 $260,000 to 286,000

Once schematic design is approved, EGV Architects, Inc. will proceed to prepare all necessary
architectural and engineering construction drawings and specifications in preparation for
solicitation of construction proposals. Attached are

e A site map showing the proposed location,

e a schematic floor plan,

e athree dimensional schematic rendering, and

e a photo of the current site with the proposed renovation space marked.

The drawings and specifications, which make up the construction documents, will be developed
using STC design standards as well as all applicable codes and ordinances. STC Facilities
Planning & Construction staff will review all construction documents to ensure compliance with
project needs. Construction documents will then be issued for solicitation of construction
proposals. Once received, construction proposals will be evaluated and submitted to the Board
of Trustees with a recommendation to award a construction contract.

When the Facilities Committee packet was developed and published staff only had a rough
sketch of the proposed facility, which was included in the Committee packet. Staff was asked
to have a well-developed rendering of the proposed expansion for presentation. Additionally,
there were concerns about the proposed location, which abuts the central mall of the Pecan
Campus. Because of the concerns, the Committee refrained from taking action, and this item
was deferred until the May 2015 Facilities Committee meeting.

Since the April Facilities Committee meeting, the Project Manager and the Department Chair of
Visual Arts and Music have determined that the project would need to be approved in April to
achieve completion in time for Fall 2015. |If this project is delayed for consideration until May
2015, it would not be feasible to complete the work on this schedule, and the project would be
delayed until Summer 2016.

164



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 44

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
the proposed schematic design of the Pecan Campus Art Building Covered Area for Ceramic

Arts as presented.
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed schematic
design of the Pecan Campus Art Building Covered Area for Ceramic Arts as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

165



Ue|d 23S DBWRYIS g

|
| 3 8ulpjing 1Ue|C

-
 [ewayL

‘m_.n,w 72
: \\
o

e
] EF T -3 .
\_‘ LE=1 0= «m\n._\ﬁ\.w.u.m s
[ )
E#DDDﬁHI.
l ﬁ .,

__
{ e
%H_,_ ™A
i i 5 /
) AP
et (g
AP
L9 2
B 2
L Q@

ge’ saoiuelda)

L

Py @1..

.@ ml.ﬂ— L= _. b= 7l 7— “-ml.v Rl I
.{%u

N® |

g Suip|ing Uy

UoI1ed0| pasodold

S}V dlwetd) Jo}
uolledo| pasodoud

Q¥¥A3TIN0OY N¥O3d

166



@ Ue|d J00|4 D11eWaYy2S

o N R [ LA AR |
S Eaihy ™ # ~ |
4 oA N ¥ " _
! o Loy _ |

.L.u. ; ,,.;%,_LJ_HIW i

S nfﬁ.n.ﬂhax o S e R

167



SulIapuUdY 211BWDYDIS

201 S103L1RIYN

]
duip|ing _ ue|d
Sy lewsay |

168



\-i._—.

SUOI}PUOD SUIISIXT




Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 45

Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial or Final Completion for the
Following Projects

1) Pecan Campus Buildings A, G, H, and X Electrical Disconnects
2) Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building Grants/Accountability Office
Improvements

Approval of substantial or final completion and release of final payment for the following projects
is requested.

Projects Substanfual Flnal_ Documents Attached
Completion Completion

1.| Pecan Campus Buildings A, G,/ Recommended May 2015 Substantial Completion
H, and X Electrical Certificate
Disconnects

2.| Pecan Campus Ann Previously Recommended Final Completion
Richards Administration Approved Letter
Building
Grants/Accountability Office
Improvements

1. Pecan Campus Buildings A, G, H and X Electrical Disconnects
It is recommended that substantial completion for this project with Metro Electric be approved.

Engineers with ACR and STC staff visited the site and developed a construction punch list. As
a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate of Substantial
Completion for the project was certified on March 26, 2015. Substantial Completion was
accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. A
copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate is attached.

Contractor Metro Electric will continue working on the punch list items identified and will have
thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for approval. It is
anticipated that final acceptance of this project will be recommended for approval at the May
2015 Board meeting.

2. Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building Grants/Accountability Office
Improvements

It is recommended that final completion and release of final payment for this project with 5 Star
Construction be approved.

Final Completion including punch list items were accomplished as required in the
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It is recommended that final completion and
release of final payment for this project with 5 Starr Construction be approved. The original cost
approved for this project was in the amount of $94,600.

170



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 46

The following chart summarizes the above information:

Construction Approved Net Total | Final Project Previous Remaining
Budget Proposal Change Cost Amount Paid Balance
Amount Orders
$24,000 $94,600 $2,263.80 | $96,863.80 | $86,296.10 | $10,567.70

On March 23, 2015, STC Planning & Construction Department staff along with EGV Architects
inspected the site to confirm that all punch list items were completed. Attached is a letter from
EGV Architects acknowledging all work is complete and recommending release of final payment.

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the substantial completion of the Pecan
Campus Buildings A, G, H, and X Electrical Disconnects project and the final completion and release
of final payment for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building
Grants/Accountability Office Improvements project as presented.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize the
substantial completion of the Pecan Campus Buildings A, G, H, and X Electrical Disconnects project
and the final completion and release of final payment for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards
Administration Building Grants/Accountability Office Improvements project as presented.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the substantial
completion of the Pecan Campus Buildings A, G, H, and X Electrical Disconnects project and the final
completion and release of final payment for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration
Building Grants/Accountability Office Improvements project as presented.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

171



. AI A Document G704" - 2000

Certificate of Substantial Completion

PROJECT: PROJECT NUMBER: 14V20/ OWNER: [X]
(Name and address) CONTRACT FOR: Pecan Campus Electrical
STC Pecan Campus Electrical Disconnects from Building A,G,H, and X ARCHITECT: IE

Disconnects Building A, G, H, and X CONTRACT DATE: 10/07/2014

CONTRACTOR: [X]
3201 W. Pecan Blvd

McAllen, Texas 78501 FIELD: []

TO OWNER: TO CONTRACTOR: .
OTHER:

(Name and address) (Name and address) [

South Texas College Metro Electric

3200 W. Pecan Blvd. 1901 Industrial Drive

Bldg. N., Ste 145 McAllen, Texas 78504

McAllen, Texas 78501

PROJECT OR PORTION OF THE PROJECT DESIGNATED FOR PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE SHALL INCLUDE:
STC Pecan Campus Electrical Disconnects from buildings A,G.H and X

The Work performed under this Contract has been reviewed and found, to the Architect’s best knowledge, information and belief,
to be substantially complete. Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion
is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for its
intended use. The date of Substantial Completion of the Project or portion designated above is the date of issuance established by
this Certificate, which is also the date of commencement of applicable warranties required by the Contract Documents, except as
stated below:

Warranty Date of Commencement

ACR Engineering, Inc. / /(’ / £ ﬂ /é/ % March 26, 2015
BY ) !

ARCHITECT DATE OF ISSUANCE
A list of items to be completed or corrected is attached hereto. The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise agreed to in

writing, the date of commencement of warranties for items on the attached list will be the date of issuance of the final Certificate of
Payment or the date of final payment.

Cost estimate of Work that is incomplete or defective: $0.00

The Contractor will complete or correct the Work on the list of items attached hereto within Six (6) days from the above date of
Substantial Completion.

Metro Electric

CONTRACTOR BY DATE

The Owner accepts the Work or designated portion as substantially complete and will assume full possession at 5:00p.m. (time) on
3/26/15 (date).

South Texas College

OWNER BY DATE

The responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance shall
be as follows:

(Note: Owner’s and Contractor’s legal and insurance counsel should determine and review insurance requirements and coverage.)

AlA Document G704 ™ - 2000. Copyright © 1963, 1978, 1992 and 2000 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA®
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA™ Document, or any
portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was
produced by AlA software at 09:54:53 on 04/10/2015 under Order No.6899367491_1 which expires on 04/08/2016, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1230064441)

172



} 40 | - SjusWWO) U8D)
26Ly-62v (9G6) xed 00vL-5Zv (956) (oL

woo Buaioe mmm
woo Bualoe@pew uabuyieH ‘ucisnoy ‘ugsny — out ‘Buussulbul MOV

afid 4 4 ) i ynsuop JSEITETVNRCE1 o)
zanbupoy iney Ag paubig

GL02/ve/e0 ®ed

“Airadoad .
pue Ajeely 8s0[o pue uado jjim sioop jey} os do) [ejow J9ays JaAod Jaauuodsip jsnipe Aadold wXa. "BPIE 4
‘Kiadoad wey) jo asodsip pue pieoqpied pue SuLio) 9}812U0Dd POOM b X, Z ancwiay! |, H. ‘Bpig I

"SLIQOP UOHINIISUOD WO} UB3|D 918 SBale ||B aInsugy

soads tad se Buijaqe| uoneoyyuapl Juswdinba buissiw apiaold
‘goads Jad se ped ejoiouod Jo/pue

aimongs Buysixe o) payoeye Jo/pue paloysue ‘pajunows ‘papoddns s) Juswdinba jje ainsugy
‘soads l1od Se S|eLIOJBI BIIXS 18UMO 0} OPIAOId

‘soads Jod se sjenuew adsurUdjUIRW pue suoljeiado Juqng

s3ads Jod Se SJUBWINIOP JB|IWIS PUB SUONEIYISD
|euy ‘sjuswasibe 9d1Alas asusuSjUiRW ‘Spuoq dIYSUBUIIOM ‘SajueLIEM DYidads Juiqng

‘SINJWIWOD TVHINID

%38uD A/v uopeoyusn  eleq uonaidwio) uondiosag (easy) #WO0Y  # W
JUOII08.110D uoneso

NOILDOIdSNI ININD3SENS V % 40 JuvD NIMVYL NI38 ONIAVH SWA LT 40 ISNOLSTY NILLIHM SAAIAOHC JOLOVHINOD TLLNM NddO NIVINY

T SHRIL SIUewnaop JOBHUD SU} YIM SIUBPIOIDE Ul YJom e 9j9idwiod 0} Jojoenuod oy jo Ajiqisucdsal aus JS)e Jou S80p Is!| iy} uo s}l Aue apnjoul o} ‘aAisn|auL-|ie

aq jou ABUl JSY| SIYL "Uuou Uejd WOy 818 UOIDBIP 0) SB0UBIS)aY “uooadsul 8)is Juanbasqns B 1o} 30440 N0 Ajjou 8ses|d "PIoq Ul Paledipul ie JISIA Pajep Siy} JO JNSal B Se Swial MON

-ajqesidde se sBuipjing yaes uo SjUSLILIOD J19ads Jo Led aie ooy Pa)jsl] SUSLILIOD [EISUSD "UOIISLI0D J0 Uofja|dwod 1o} JOJDBNUOD BY} JO LONUSNE ay) a.nbal swiay Bumolio) syl

V5 7 Ubsad dIW o 10BAu0D
0ZAFT Jequinp 1oaloid I OLS :tdump) oy
SLocveie 9jeq USIA BlS
SO BUISSUBUT U5V (3/v) Woi4 (XL ‘ualyo) S19auU0dSI eaLydBlT-sndwe) uedad OLS 198foid
== (uoneAlasqQ) Hoday pjold

173



SATA pocument 6701" - 2001

Change Order

PROJECT (Name and address): CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 002 OWNER: ]
STC Pecan Campus Electrical DATE: 3/30/2015 .
Disconnects Building A, G, H, and X ARCHITECT: [
3201 W. Pecan Blvd CONTRACTOR: []
McAllen, Texas 78501 [
TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address): ARCHITECT’S PROJECT NUMBER: 14V20 FIELD:
Metro Electric CONTRACT DATE: 10/07/2014 OTHER: D
1901 Industrial Drive CONTRACT FOR: Pecan Campus Electrical Disconnects

McAllen, Texas 78504 from Building A.G.H, and X

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS:

(Include, where applicable, any undisputed amount attributable to previously executed Construction Change Directives)

1. Furnish and maintain 35 KW generator for Building X IT pane! and Building H for refrigerators panel. Refer to attached sheet
for additional information.

2. Furnish and install break metal for Building H. Refer to attached sheet for additional information.

3. Adjust the contract sum by the Contingency Allowance balance.

Beginning Contingency Allowance: $5.000.00

Less this change Order <§$2,241.00>

Ending Contingency Allowance: $2,759.00

Beginning Contingency Allowance: $2.759.00

Less this change Order <$2,759.00>

Ending Contingency Allowance: $0

The original Contract Sum was $ 101,121.00
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders $ 0.00
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was $ 101,121.00
The Contract Sum will be decreased by this Change Order in the amount of $ 2,759.00
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be $ 98.362.00

The Contract Time will be unchanged by Zero (0) days.
The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is unchanged.

NOTE: This Change Order does not include changes in the Contract Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have

been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and
Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive.

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER.

ACR Engineering, Inc Metro Electric South Texas College
ARCHITECT (Firm name) CONTRACTOR (Firm name) OWNER (Firm name)
1221 N. 77 Sunshine Strip 1901 Industrial Drive 2300 W. Pecan Blvd.
Harlingen, Texas 78350 McAllen, Texas 78504 McAllen, Texas 78501
/DJSS [ % ADDRESS ADDRESS
BY (Signature) © 7 7 = BY (Signature) BY (Signature)
Miles Ponder Michael Gerdes Dr. Shirley A. Reed
(Typed name) (Typed name) (Typed name)

/4D / 5
DATE DATE DATE

AlA Document G701 ™ - 2001. Copyright © 1979, 1987, 2000 and 2001 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNSNG This AIA®
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any
portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was
produced by AlA software at 09:50:18 on 04/10/2015 under Order No.6899367491_1 which expires on 04/08/2016, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1697659188)

174



Change Price Request Cost Analysis

PROJECT: __ STC Disconnect Replacements Buildings A, G, H, and X
CLIENT __South Texas College

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE: _ Furnish and maintain 35 KW generator for building X IT panel.
Leads from generator are in place and ready to connect.

Metro Electric, Inc. CPR #01

Description g::g: Material Cost| Unit || Material Total :22?; Unit LabcT:o:;tl-:l)urs l:.raol:;);'
Week 35 KW Generator 1.00(% 728.74 E $ 728.74 0.001{3% -
Diesel 6000 & 3.00 E $ 180.00 000§ -
Fueling, Generator/Panel Connect and Disconnect 8.00 $ - 1.00 E 600153 197.34
I\FAL?;iengenerator to Bidg. H Connect/Disconnect & 6.00 s B 100l E 5.00 | $ 197 34
Diesel 16.00 || 8 3.00 $ 48.00 0008 -
3 - 0.00} 8 -
3 - 0008 -
3 - 0.00| 8% -
$ - 00018 -
$ - 0.00 % -
$ - 0.00]8 -
$ - 0008 -
$ - 0.00 |8 -
$ - 0.00|$ -
§ - 00018 -
$ - 0.00{$ -
3 - 0.00| 8% -
$ - 000} 8% -
$ - 00018 -
$ - 0.00 |8 -
Subtotals $ 956.74 12.00 | § 394.68
Sales Tax $ -
Subtotal w/ Tax $ 956.74
Bond $ -
Subtotal (Material and Labor)

Plus 15.00 % of (Material and Labor) For Overhead
, Labor and Overhead)
Plus 10.00 % of (Material, Labor, and Overhead) For Profit 3 155.41

Total (Material, Labor, Overhead, and Profit)

TOTAL

175



PROJECT:
CLIENT

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:

METRO ELECTRIC, INC.

Change Price Request Cost Analysis

STC Disconnect Replacements Buildings A, G, H, and X

South Texas College

Furnish and install break metal for Bidg. H

Metro Electric, Inc. CPR #2

Description g::g: Material Cost| Unit || Material Total LTaot;;’Ir
6" x 6" x 91" 12 ga. Angle metal 1001 $ 95.00 E $ 95.00 || $ -
GE ANS| TSP61 Spray Paint 20008 16.58 E 3 33.16 || $ -
Krylon Primer 200 $ 8.88 E $ 17.76
Anchors & Screws 500 % 2.16 E $ 1080 $ -
Labor 1.00 $ - $ 263.12
3 - s -
$ - $ -
8§ - s -
$ - 8 -
$ - $ -
3 - $ -
$ - I8 -
$ - s -
$ - $ -
$ - IS -
$ - s -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
3 - ] -
Subtotals $ 156.72 11 $ 263.12
Sales Tax $ -
Subtotal wi/ Tax $ 156.72
Bond 5 -
Subtotal (Material and Labor) $ 41984
Plus 15.00 % of (Material and Labc $ 6298
Subtota Labor and Overhead) $
Plus % of (Material, Labor, ai $
Total (M bor, Overhead, and Profi $

176




ARCHITECTS, INC.

April 6, 2015

South Texas College

Mr. Robert Cuellar

Facilities Planning and Construction
P. O. Box 9701

McAllen, TX 78501

Re:  STC Pecan Campus — Grants / Accountability Office Improvements
RFP #13-14-1044

Dear Mr. R. Cuellar,

To the best of our knowledge, all work has been performed as per manufacturer’s specifications.
We recommend release of final payment to 5-Star Construction for the above referenced project.

5-Star Construction, has completed the punch list items and submitted their closing documents.
If you have any questions please call at (956) 843-2987.

Sincerely,

o

Eduardo G. Vela, Architect

XC: Gerry Rodriguez, Architect

P.O. Box 8627 « 220 S. Bridge St. « Hidalgo, TX 78557
Tel: (956) 843-2987 « Fax: (956) 843-9726 « E-mail: edvela@flash.net

177



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 47

Discussion and Action as Necessary Regarding STC vs Chubb Insurance
for Hail Damage Claim Settlement

The College is in discussion with Chubb Insurance regarding the Hail Damage Claim Settlement,
and this item is included to provide legal counsel with an opportunity to update the Board of any
updates on the claim.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize
any appropriate action as recommended by legal counsel.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes any appropriate action
as recommended by legal counsel.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

178



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 48

Update on Status of Non-Bond Program Construction Projects
The Facilities Planning & Construction staff prepared the attached design and construction
update. This update summarizes the status of each capital improvement project currently in
progress, not including 2013 Bond Construction Program projects.

This item is for the Board’s information only. No action is requested.

179



[e101 19 - dn 1els Bulpuad gz pue pais|dwod usaq aney g7 ‘ssaiboid ul Apualind aue syosfoid puog-uou 9z ‘ST0Z-710Z A4 104

a8l VN[ P VIN SqeT T JoIL i ueID I'SH - M
asL VIN| g VN[ VIN abeudis euondang - ma|  100-9-ST
agl] Buuesuibuz yga| usqoy @31 01 sepeubidn Bunybr s107 bunyred - ma T10-9-vT
VIN VYN[ Aeo paunbay 1ebuo oN saurm ando Jagid oy aimpniselul - ma T10-9-vT
aalL buseuibu3 wnequautea| sqoy _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 11 aseyd Aiqisseoay vay buiping o buiping - ma | 010941
sjuawanoiduw apIA 1013SIa
agaL agl| Auweo 191ua) ereq 3 Buipjing Joj Jojelsuss) dnyoeg |feisul - LelS MaN
Butool yaapauul VIN|  uyor 0% 9'v sbuiping wawaoeiday 1adie - ueis | T04-G-GT
211108[3 o7 Buussuibuz yov|  ory Bunybi aAu@ yinos pue G 107 Bunyied - el £00-G-¥T
sndwe) Aluno) 1eis
au0lS % a|1L abewuIA yeIs O1S|  sqoy VIN| VIN| V/IN| VN (4) Buin 1sam - 11 uawade|day 19dsed - HYN | T00Y-7-ST
aImaejnuep Hesols| oy VIN| VIN| VIN| VIN ealy ApnS 10ind) Areiqr 1o} S|fem - HYN ¢e0ST
VIN sivauibu3 Buninsuod zasad|  uyop VIN| VIN| VIN| VIN| VIN| VIN| VIN| V/N VIN| VIN Je|d UOISIAIpANS - HYN S00-7-T
aal] ubisea dss|  uyor VIN| VIN sapelfdn waisAs uonebiul| - HYN | ¥00d-v-¥T
®IpI0D SeXa| sigauibuz bunnsuod zased|  uyor uoisuedx3 107 Bupyed - HYN T00-¥-¥T
sndwe) yijesH pal||y pue BuisinN
W00y 8dualsjuo) 9 Bul ng-J1
Juswaoe|day awel4 pue siooq urely g bupjing - 91
slousj| % slooj4 zelq HeiIsO1S| Weqoy . g Buipjing ut Buniooy} jo Juswadeiday - 91 T004-€-ST
Yoa1-0id S3JeI0SSY JileH | Holy Juswadeday JamoL BuIloo) OYAH - OL [  9004-E-¥T
agl saoualos buiping yosiwy|  uaqoy Buyool-ay Buipjing olwapedy 1S9M - 0L | 200d-E-+T
sndwe) ABojouyoa]
4EIS O1S wsois] o | [ T T T T T T T T T T T T T wNwm ] Wooy 04U0D UoReINWIS - AW YN
sndwe) AsjeA pIN
agl S8Jeloossy JjeH p ik 3PIS deg uo m:_om_._:wmm ﬂ_m_._&m< - BZe|d Uedad ¥00-T-GT
aal S3JeID0SSY JeH|  yoIy Joresauas) Aouabiew3 Juswuedaq 821jod - BZe|d Uedad £00-T-GT
‘10D Buiping eydjy s3Iy seles uosdwis ssnoybunnog|  Lagoy uoleAouay adeds uoneanp3 Buinunuo) - ezed uedad | 9T0-T-vT
UoNoNASU0D JBIS § SPAUYIIY Nad| oIy ] uonerouay adeds Juswiedaq 921jod - BZe|d Uedad | 700-T-ET
aaL SANYAIY ADT|  UBGoY ue4 isneyx3 ¢ buipjing - uedad VIN
uyop wawade|day Jodie v bulpjing - uesad 204-T-ST
JeIs aLs VIN| VIN VN[ VIN sluawanoiduwi 8010 Juawdojaasq euoissejold - Uedad VIN
#eIs aLs VIN| uyor VIN| VIN VIN| VIN SjuaweA0Idw| TTTO ge Bulurel L Juel '|'S'H - Uedsdd VIN
agaL Buusauibu3 zauenno "d|  uyor VIN U0IeI0[3Y Y[MBpIS pue Al 80IM8S SHOTY - Uedad 020-T-ST
aaL P3Nyl seles uosdwis ssnoybunnog|  yary SUOIIEIYIPOIN 100} IST “BPIg SBIINIBS JUBPMIS - UBID LT-T-6T
aaL Butsauibuz ewbis|  Aueg S3UI JaMO [8911193]3 JO UONEIO[OY - Uddd | ETO-T-ST
aaL wunH 7 usple|  uyor sBuipjing a|qepOd JO UOITRIO0[8) IO} BINJINIISEIU] - URIDd Z10-T-5T
opeuopiep yeisols|  uyor . VIN VIN s108(0.d puog 1o} Saa1) BunsIxa Jo [eroway - UeIdd TT0-T-ST
aall bupsauibuz yga|  uyor Bunybi pieid suods - uessd L00-1-5T
agL|  swanyowy sare9 uosduis 1aqoy SUOIPPY SW00Y ApMIS AreiqiT - uedsd | 900-T-ST
aaL ANV ADT| B0y SU|IY SHY DIWEIRD) 10} BaIY PaIaN0) - Uedad 200-T-5T
FEEERE Buussuibuz ¥ov| uyor S193UU09SI 211991 X B H ‘O ‘v Buipjing - uedad T20-T-vT
UOINASUOD Prelng SANYdIY 03| oIy Suonealyipojy Bp|g SeoIAIaS 1UBpMIS - Uedad | STO-T-+T
uonaNAsuo Jels § SI08HYAIV ADT|  Haqoy sjuawanoidw] 3210 ANIGEIUN0IIY/AURIS) XBUUY - Uedad 10141
aal] YIN| e ubis aanbrep [eybiq - uesad 200-T-€T
eze|d uedad pue sndwed uedad
o |7 |e 215157 RN 2
3 g 123 A ERERERE 5
2| |z 2|5 |8 El138]52 3
El 2 g (g (8 R ERERERE]
9 =~ |8 |& 5 (218 |2 |3 NOILdI¥OS3A 1O3r0¥d
2 217 |72
Jabeuey sfesodoid
10)0B4U0D Jaaulbuznoanyory waloig aseyd uondNIIsu0D aseyd ubisaqg jswdojanaq 198014

ST0Z ‘€T [MAY - 1MOdIY SSTHO0Hd S103r0Ud NOILONYLSNOD

180



¥ jo T a8ed

S131dwioo s| s10c %00T sbuip|ing s|gelod
99'v0.'2$ SO'evE’L2$ TL'/¥0'0€$ 005'25$ slesodoid uononnsuod jo uonendljos 'z | Arenigad 0 " 10 UoTed0OY

aseyd ubisap-ay T 4 : |
10J ainjonaselju]

‘ ‘ ‘ 819/dwW0o U uoonASUoY 'z awwﬂw %00T uo1oNIISUOD puo
0% AR TAS crT'12% 000°'S¢$ aseyd uononisuod T C 13onJy O puogd
10J S9a1] JO [eAoway
. . . . Bunybi
000'9T$ 0% 000'9T$ 000'0€$ ssaifoud urubisaa 'z | STOZ Mdy %56 Yy Q.._
aseyd ubiseaq T SPIgl4 siods
A
agl 0$ aglL 000'7S$ ssaiboid urubiseq gz | §TOZ Bunc %G mco_m_Eoom\Cm_ﬂB_m
oseyd ubisoq 1 [feuonippy Areiqi’
. . . ssaiboud ur ubise : 1ud 0

052'6¢%$ 0% 052'6¢%$ 0S.'87$ mwmsa. cm_mmm m S10¢ MV 7609 SU|IM SUV Jdlwelad
: 10J eaJe 190D
T9'/85'99% 6S'E€ES'VES TCT'TOT$ 000'00T$ a18|dwoo ST0¢ %00T S103uuo03sig
Alrenueisgns sl uononisuo) g yoren [ea11199(3
aseyd uononisuo)d T X ® ‘H 'O ‘v sbulpjing
0$ 0v'096'20v$ | 0v'096'20v$ | 000°€SES s1(duioo u uoponasuo 7 | (ST . %001 SUOIIEOLIPOI
aseyd uononnsuod T sa21JO Bulpjing
S92IAJ9S 1UBpPNIS
0/,'/95'0T$ 01'962'98% 08'€98'96% 000'v2$ a19|dwod sI uondNNsSuUo) g GT0C %00T siuswanoldw] 82110

aseyd uonaonnsuo) T Arenuer X :
11]1geIUN022V/1uel

1S
. Aq lenosdde pue mainal loy ubisap
agl 0$ adgl 000'08$ Areuiaid parojdwoo sey lopusp  z | SY0% [udy %56 ubis sanburep [enbig
aseyd juawdojprag 109foid T

oduejeg

pred
wunowy

wunowy
19€41U0D

sndwe) uedad

ANANOY JUBLIND

GT0Z |dY

919|dwo)

01 areq

ssalbold ul sy10aloug uononiisuo) puog-uon Jo

a19|dwo)

%

snlels

1293l0ud

181



¥ Jo g @8ed

ssaiboid ul YJ0M ON

sndwe) Aaj|jeA pIN

919|dwo sI
588'6% 0% 588'6% 000'8$ | sfesodoud uononnsuoo jo uomeolos g | 2 T0¢ BN | %600T < 5 °PIS
al9|dwos ubiseg ¢ S|l U0 buldepnsay
aseyd cm_mmn_ T 1jeydsy eze|d uedad
. lolelaua
ssalboid ul ubisa Ae 0
8T'80€'9€$ 0$ 8T'S0E'9E |  000'0ES Ul upaad & | STozAEN %08 Kouabiaws
yaubisea 1
1uswredaq
921|0d BzZe|d Uedad
00g‘ees 0$ 0og‘ees 0$ ssalfoid ur uononiisuod "z | STOZ IUdy %08 moﬂMu__oMﬂmmwwu_ﬂwmm
aseyd uononisuo)d I : L
. sfesodo.d ud 0 juswaoe|day
aal 0$ aal 000°09% JO uoneoljos Joj buedaud s1 yeris ‘¢ S10¢ Mdv 705 19due)d v Buipjing
aseyd uawdojanag 109foid T
000°'0T$ agl agl 000°'0T$ a19/dwod uoRdNISuoY - 2 510¢ %00T wo_tOwM“w%Mwﬁ_HM%m_
aseyd uononnsuo) T | Arenige4 0 :
[euolssajold
. GTOC Ssjuswanoidwy
a19|dwod uononisuo)d g %00T
) 0$ asl eI aseyq uononisuosy T | enaed TTTO qe’
Bururel] 1uels |SH
. . . ssaiboid utubiseagq 'z | STOZ |UdY %09 uoneosojey
€67'6% 0% €67'6$ 000°6% aseyd uBiseq T A[eMapIS pue
8ALIQ 82IAI8S SHOAY
. . . ssalboud ul ubiseq ¢ SUOIRIIIPON
STARTA 0$ STAR A 00S°.€$ aseyd ubiseg T g10Z A2y %0T 1004 ,sT Buipjing
S92IAJSS 1UapNIS
ssaiboud ul ylom ubisag g 510z 1dy %452 soul
05'28€'/$ 0$ 05'28¢€'/$ 0S2'TT$ a18|/dwod suonenobau 1enuod g . ’ JOMOd [2911108]
aseyd ubiseaq T d [€91193]3

oduejeg

pred
wunowy

wunowy
19€41U0D

ANAINOY JUBLIND

919|dwo)
01 ared

a19|dwo)
%

10 UoNE20|9Y

1293l0.d

182



v Jo € 938ed

0S5°c$ 0% 0S5°e$ 000°¢$ a19/dwoo siom ubiseg 'z STOZ Ydorein %00T sopeJBdn
aseyd ubiseq 1 Wwoa1sSAS uonebil)

0€'¢Te'26vS 0S'€EE'€9T$ | 08'G¥S'SS9$ 000'0%.$ ssalboid ul uononisuod ‘g
painoaxa 1oenuo) ‘g ST0Z Judv %05 uoisuedx3g Bupjred

aseyd uononisuo)d T

sndwe) yijeaH pal||v pue BuisinN
agl 0% adl 009°6$ GT10¢ stoz Ainc %0 uonippy
UoJen ul wiiy 3y panoidde preog g W00y 99U3I8JU0)D
aseyd ubiseq 1 D Buipjing
. G102 uswaoe|dal
asal 0% asil 00S'2$ yoJel ul wliy 3y panoidde preog g stoz Ainc %0 awel4 pue
aseyd ubiseg I looq urepy g buipjing
0% GT'2oV'ST$ GT'2oV'ST$ 000°05$ S10¢ %00T d
919|dwod s uononisuc) g Arenuer 0 Buipjing ui Buliool4
aseyd uononnsuo) T J0 Juswaoe|day
8/'898'cvT$ 22'1ET'25¢$ 000°'96€$ 000'STV$ ssalfoid ul uononisuod 'z d 1uswaoe|day
ase . STOC |udy %GL

yd uononasuod T Jlamo] Buijood DVAH

. . . ) ‘ . lojoenuod panosdde preog ¢

GZ'189'TES 000°G.$ GZ'T8T 90T$ 000'SZT$ a10/dwod fesodoud jo uoneolos € | ST0Z yorew %001

al9|dwos ubisag ¢ Buijool-ay bBulp|ing
aseyd ubiseg T JIWapeIY 1SOM

aoueeg

pred
junowy

unowy
19811U0D

sndwe) ABojouyds |

ANAINOY JUBLIND

a1o|dwo)
01 a1eQ

a19|dwo)
%

1293l0.d

183



v Jo ¢ 98ed

T9 [e101 — 1els Buipuad gz pue palajdwod usaq aney ZT ‘ssaiboud ul Apualing are s19afoid puog-uou 9z ‘GTOZ-¥T0Z Ad 104

agaL 0% agl 0% ssaifoid uo yopy "z | STOZ IHdy %0¢ SUOISIBAUOD Qe auQ
wawdojanap 108loid T Jall 9AI4 —uelo I'S'H
agl 0$ adgl 000'SZ$ ssaifoid uospop, g | STOZAINC %0 sorepdn
juswdojonsp 109fold T abeubis reuonoalig
ssaiboid ui sI
00t'z$ 009'G$ 000'8$ 000'ST$ sfesodoid UonoNIISUOD JO UOIENDNOS  °E ST0Z %00T
a19|dwoo yiom ubiseq g Areniqa- 0 a3 o1 sepelbdn
aseyd ubiseg 1 Bunybig s107 Bujred
Il 8seyd
. . . . . ‘ ‘ ud 0 sjuswanoiduw
67'820'T9% WA ISWARY €0'96£'8.% 000'09% ssaiboud uj sispom ubiseq  °z GT0¢ |udy 060€E A111SS890Y YAV
aseyd ubiseg ‘T Buipjing 01 Buip|ing
9pIM 12113s1a
ssalboid urubisg g £n 0 JEIIE TS}
adal 0% asal 0$ Jaauibus jo [enosdde preog ¢ stoc ANt 70 BleQ 10} JolRIDUdD
aseyd ubiseg T dnyoeg Jo uole|jeisu|
sndwe) Aluno) Jels
. . . ‘ ‘ d G10¢
Ve EV9'STS 0% vEeY9'STS 000°G¢$ 9]9|dwod £ren. %0T
. gad
S| s|lem paresLge)-ald Jo uone|eisu| ‘g ealy Apnis 18Ind
aseyd uononnsuo) T Alelqi 1o} s|rem
us|Ivan Jo AnD Aq nwiad
. . . \ asn [euonipuod jo [enoidde Buipusd v G102
06.°9T$ 006'C$ 069°'6T$ 000°'02$ o19/dwoo s sisAfeuy 10edw| el g Areniga4 %G6
Te|d uoisiaipgns azijeuly
01 Joauibua ayl yum Bunjiom sl gers ‘g S2J0V €99
‘aseyd ubiseg T 10} Je|d UOISIAIpgNS

aoueeg

pred
junowy

unowy
19811U0D

ANAINOY JUBLIND

al|dwo)

01 areq

a19|dwo)d
%

1293l0.d

184



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 49

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports

Board action is requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports for the
month of March 2015. The approval is for checks submitted for release in the amount greater
than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00 that were released as
authorized by Board Policy No. 5610.

Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, will provide a
review of the Financial Report for the month of March 2015, and will respond to questions posed
by the Board.

The checks and the financial reports submitted for approval are included in the Board
packet under separate cover.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the submitted checks for release in an
amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as authorized by Board Policy #5610,
and the financial reports submitted for the month of March 2015.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the submitted checks
for release in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as authorized by
Board Policy #5610 and the financial reports submitted for the month of March 2015.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

185



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 50

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports

The Checks and the Financial Reports presented for approval are included in the Board Packet
under SEPARATE COVER:

A.

B.

o

ZZIrARS~-I@OMMO

Release of Checks for $25,000.00 to less than $125,000.00
Released Prior to Board Approval for March 2015
Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above
Board of Trustees Approval Required for March 2015
Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above
Released Prior to Board Approval (Policy 5610) for March 2015
Release of Construction Fund Checks for March 2015
Quarterly Investment Report for March 2015
Summary of Revenue for March 2015

. Summary of State Appropriations Income for March 2015

Summary of Property Tax Income for March 2015

Summary of Expenditures by Classification for March 2015

Summary of Expenditures by Function for March 2015

Summary of Auxiliary Fund Revenues and Expenditures for March 2015
Summary of Grant Revenues and Expenditures, March 2015

. Summary of Bid Solicitations

Check Register for March 2015

186



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 51

FINANCIAL REPORTS

The Financial Reports are included in your
Board packet under separate cover.

187



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 52

Update Regarding Cause No. CL-14-3342-A; Thelma Saldana vs. South
Texas College

Legal action was taken against the College by Thelma Saldana. The lawsuit was submitted to
the College’s insurance carrier, TASB. TASB assigned Edward Garza from Esparza & Garza,
L.L.P to handle the case.

Mr. Garza will provide an update in executive session.

188



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 53

Update Regarding Cause No. CL-14-1526-B; Veronica Flores vs. South
Texas College

Legal action was taken against the College by Veronica Flores. The lawsuit was submitted to
the College’s insurance carrier, TASB. TASB assigned Edward Garza from Esparza & Garza,
L.L.P to handle the case.

Mr. Garza will provide an update in executive session.

189



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 54

Review and Action as Necessary on the Assessment of the College
President and the Self-Assessment of the Board of Trustees

Approval to conduct the assessment of the College President and the self-assessment of the
Board of Trustees by the Trustees was granted by the Board on January 27, 2014. The
evaluations were distributed with addressed, postage-paid envelopes to the Board Members
and were returned to Mr. Roy de Leo6n, Board Chair.

Mr. de Ledn is asked to review and discuss the results of the assessments with the Board of
Trustees, and to take action to accept the results of the assessments as necessary.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees accept the results of the assessment of the
College President and the self-assessment of the Board of Trustees, as conducted by the
Board of Trustees.

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College accepts the results of the assessment of the
College President and the self-assessment of the Board of Trustees, as conducted by the
Board of Trustees.

Approval Recommended:

Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D.
President

190



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 55

Informational Items

e President’s Report

e Board Committee Meeting Minutes from April 13, 2015:

o0 Education and Workforce Development
o Facilities
o Finance and Human Resources

191



President’s Report

192



Y. SOUTH TEXAS hesédent s
vV g pnd

COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

The College signed an articulation agreement with Texas A&M Health Science Center. This signing
makes access to a Bachelor of Science in Public Health a reality for our students!

fe -
E:
Bz
2
W
34
(TR

IT'S A PRETTY BIG SCHOOL.

Don't waitto register for classes! Gettheones | With a little over a month until the start of the Summer
thatare right for you, not the ones that are left. |  semester there's no better time to register. Popular

n courses fill up fast so students are encouraged to register
; "'vc?-‘ﬁ or face missing out on much needed courses.

Z

.;“Sw::"’*«eh ~v:..

X;

2 DUALZDEGREE
HIGH SCHOOL SENIOR &
h 12 : d stud ill
lean how cual courses ave them money. High school PARENT BULLEGE I]AY
seniors and their parents were highly encouraged to
attend the Dual2Degree events held at the Mid Valley,
Starr County and Pecan Campuses. High school students

are encouraged to get ready to cash in their College
credits and register for Summer and Fall.

SEATING IS LIMITED, 50 PLEASE CALL1-800-742-7822
TO RESERVE YOUR SEAT TODAY.
discover.sonthtexascollege.edn

193


https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10152935898008579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10152935898008579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10152935898008579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10152935898008579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10152935898008579/?type=1
http://buzz.mw/bq2t7_n

Yo, SOUTH TEXAS President s Report

®.\0 Y @
vvV COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

High school students from across the Rio Grande Valley got a jump start on their education at the South
Texas College’s Manufacturing Career and Expo held April 8, 2015 at the Tech Campus.

@v;?;,( MANUFACTURING
sogims  CAREER AND EXPO

Precision Manufacturing Technology (PMT) April 2018

Come join us!

‘You are invited to join us for the 57 annual Manufacturing Career and Expo at MlsiRacH P
South Texas College. Manufacturers and Vendars from all over Texas are

gathering to discuss new products, current technology and have direct con-
tact with students of the Precisicn Manufacturing Program

Save the date
April 8th. 2015

From 8:00 am to 12:00 pm

STC Technology Campus, 3700 W. Miitary Hwy., McAllen TX, 78503

Contact Information

Mario Ofivera—PMT Inatrucior, (955) 872-5304; molivers @southtaxascollegs.edu

Asthur Barber—PMT Instructor; (956) 8728142, abarber@southtexascoliege adu

YG‘thm
in the Highlights
+ Recruitment Opportunities
+ Product Showcase

+ Indusiry Presentations

» Manufacturing News

» Networking

An Information Techology Career Expo was held on Thursday, April 23" at the Tech Campus, Building
B Atrium. Attendees had an opportunity to meet local IT professionals and learn about IT careers,
explore IT degrees, and receive advising from IT faculty.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
CAREER EXPO 2015

§ NETWORKING SPECIALIST

INFORMATION SECURITY
SPECIALIST

194


https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152935256033579/10152935254003579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152935256033579/10152935254003579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152935256033579/10152935253948579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152935256033579/10152935253993579/?type=1

Y., SOUTH TEXAS President s Report

®.N\0 . 0®
vvyY COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

Representatives from UT-RGV, Texas State University-San Marcos, and Texas A&M Kingsville-
College of Engineering were available to assist students with transfer information. The events were held
April 9, April 20, and April 23™ at the Pecan Campus.

Meet your
Texas State Rep!

your
Apnl 23 8. May ?

STC Pecan Campu:
Building H Student Lounqe
11 B~ 4 p m.

] | L Where:
April 239, 2015 UNIVERSITY Pecan Campus
11am—1pm T STAR of T Building H

CAS AL g

!

- JOIN JAVELINA NATION
RIO GRANDE VALLEY ENGINEERING INITIATIVE

STUDENT TRANSFER INFORMATION SESSION
- 5

COLLEGE OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

MBA Program

Graduates will leam:

+ Langsage of Masagement » Managing Teams and Leadership
ruscs e M arieg ¥
Snancial and AnAQMTN! KCOUTL
S * Siratagic Thinking
*+ Management Amlytics Mt criizal and sratagie fhinking skl
" Possies arayical sl nouos sisical anaiyss
REFRESHMENTS WILL BE SERVED modaing, and koeacusting.

ADMISSION/FINANCIALAID REPRESENTATIVES WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR ASSISTANCE - ﬁDMNIsI RATION
Learn more about the MBA program! Campus visit: Tues., April 14,2 p.m. - & p.m.
Far meore informasion, contact: Kim London at 361-593-2501 or Kim.Loncon@tamuk ecu Misit: www.lamuk edu/cha

On Monday, April 27, representatives from the National American University were on the Pecan
Campus to answer questions regarding a great opportunity for students. Namely, those who wish to
pursue a master’s degree.

“Welcome Friday” events were scheduled for April 171"
and 24™ at the Pecan, Starr and Mid Valley Campuses.

New, current or students who perhaps started at the THINKING ABOUT COMING BACK?
College, but could not continue due to certain life events, PR - —
were invited to attend. Those attending had the advantage {E FIRST STEPTO SUCCESS STARTS WITH V!
of meeting with advising, counseling, financial aid, career ‘fmﬁ““mﬁf‘

services and student activities specialists.

SEEE - -QY [ YR
L

195



Y., SOUTH TEXAS President’s Repont

vvyY COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

The
3rd Ammual
Pursuing Higher Education Fair The Mid-Valley Community was invited

s s R g to the South Texas College 3rd Annual
', ke K S Pursuing Higher Education Fair held

: iy, April 22, from 10 AM to 1 PM at the

Mid-Valley Campus Library.
Pick a Major
't‘_-‘.l.l 11‘-5 day, April sand 2015 S (‘lmo 2.:(::0[01-‘9
joam- ipm W Tree Food 3] '
) , Library wMovie Showing =

ralley
» MID-V2Xe:
_-"\t 1—1““ ‘l\ For more information coutact:
Ralulilly Elizonds-Webe
Relizondal 7 =

Event brought
with tlye mid-v:
houte.

No persanad shall be excluded in, denled the berefit of, of be subject to decimination urder any program of activity sponsored o conducted by 5TC ¥
“South Taxas Colloge on the bass of race, color, national origin, religion, 3o, age, veteran status or disablity. LIBRARY

Open to the Public

South Texas College held the Jaguars Get Hired “career expos” on April 15th at the Starr County
Campus, April 21% at Pecan, and April 29" at the Mid Valley Campus. All faculty and staff were asked
to encourage students to attend one of three Career Expos. It was an opportunity for students to network
with potential employers, and submit their resumes.

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE

2015 SPRING CAREER EXPO

“JAGUARS GET HIRED!™

Top Talent + Business Community = Unlimited Opportunities

April 15, 2015 April 21, 2015 April 29, 2015
10:00a.m. - 2:00p.m. 10:00a.m. - 2:00p.m. 10:00a.m. - 2:00p.m.
Somith Taeas College Starr County Campus Pecan Campus Mid-Valley Campus
142 FM 3167- Rio Grande City, TX 3200 W. Pecan Blvd. - McAllen, TX 400 N. Border - Weslaco, TX
Bldg. H Cafeteria & Student Lounge Cooper Center Bldg. F Lobby & Game Room

*BUSINESS ATTIRE REQUIRED = BRING COPIES OF YOUR RESUME  <INF0: 872-2190  #JaguarsGetHired

Career Expo
——— '

=

ey I Ry ﬁ
-ﬁﬂal FULABLE

196



Y., SOUTH TEXAS President s Repont

8 N\0/ 0
vvv COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

A Holocaust Martyrs' and Heroes'
Remembrance Day event was held April 15t
and 16" at the College’s Mid Valley Campus.
The Mid-Valley History Capstone Class, with
contributions from other history students,
created an exhibit with images and personal
stories from the United States Holocaust
Memorial Museum. The exhibit was free and
open to the public.

South Texas College Culinary Arts students hosted South Texas College faculty and staff to enjoy
Hawaiian cuisine on Tuesday, April 7. Those who attended had an opportunity to enjoy delicious
salads, entrees and desserts.

Congratulations to all the teams who participated in the
Culinary Wars Iron Chef competition! Team #1 received
medals for a Caribbean cuisine where the secret
ingredient vanilla was at the forefront of their dishes!
We are all so proud of these future chefs.



https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777413579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777413579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777393579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777393579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777398579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777398579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777408579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777408579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777413579/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10152933780078579/10152933777393579/?type=1

Y., SOUTH TEXAS Dresident's Teport

vvyY COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

South Texas College’s Ballet Folklo6rico was
invited to Ciudad de Guanajuato by the
Universidad de Guanajuato Mexico. The Ballet
Folklorico had an opportunity to perform at
various venues while in Guanajuato.

South Texas College
Fine & Performing Arts Presents:
. oy .- . Philip Hii, Guitari
A recital by Philip Hii was held on April 10" @ 7:30 el g
PM at the Cooper Center on the Pecan Campus in 7:30 p.m
. Cooper Center Theatre
McAllen. The event was free and open to the public.

The Office of Comprehensive Advising and Mentoring
Services hosted JagFest on April 9th, an event for
students to learn more about the many student support
services available at South Texas College.

o The Office of
Comprahenstve Advising
& Maentoring Services
Pecan Campus.
Bldg. K1.600

Phone: (956) 5728355 Thursday, April 9%

Fan: (956) 872 6477 1100 o - 1:00 p.om.

Pecan Campus
Swdent Lounge
Bldg. H

The Office of Safety and Security provided
emergency response training to interested

faculty and staff on Friday, April 17th at the 2015 BUILDING RESPONDER
Cooper Center on the Pecan Campus. .: TRAINING

COOPER CENTER AUDITORIUM

FRIDAY, APRIL 17, 2015
@ 9:00 A.M. - 12:00 NOON

KNOWLEDGE FOR STC. KNOWLEDGE FOR LIFE.

198


https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1
https://www.facebook.com/BalletFolkloricoSouthTexasCollege/photos/a.345572422240104.1073741828.188788454585169/617944955002848/?type=1

Y, SOUTH TEXAS President s Report

'}»’ *N\E
vvyY COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

The College’s Counseling Department held Community Resources
Day on Wednesday, April 22" at the Pecan Campus, Building K.
Students attending this event benefited from connecting to the
College and other community resources such as the food bank,
medical and counseling services, emergency assistance, etc.
Wednesday, April 22, 2015 Students interested in attending were encouraged to set up an
8 am- 5pm appointment or simply as a walk in.
STC Pecan Campus, Building K

25 Child Care &
Early Childhood
Seminar
Saturclay Aprii 18, 2015

The South Texas College Child Development Department invited all
interested parties to their 4" Annual “Autism Speaks - Light it Up
Blue” Child Care and Early Childhood Seminar. The Seminar was
held on Saturday, April 18, 2015 at the Cooper Center on the Pecan ;.
Campus. ‘:@

SESIOMES EN ESPANOL
P Claudia Garci
Autismo y safud mental:
Burscondo lay sefales — Porfe 1y 2

e ey The Starr County Campus Psychology Club hosted
gilmrs M]nl nru 6pm-8pm == STC Starr Co. mnllurlum Sn a‘mmmmn the Got Talent 7 competition on April 23rd at the
4 South Texas College Starr County Campus
Auditorium. Contestants included dancers,
singers, and dance groups from all over Starr
county. The contestants were judged by a
celebrity panel of judges that included Comedian,
Raymond Orta, Singer Ben De Leonel, TV Hosts
of Univision’s Alegre Despertar, Mayra Montoyo
and Brian Lozano, La Voz Kids contestant and La
Grulla native, Alexis Chapa, and Grammy
nominated composer, Roy Escobedo. Every
contestant was given a certificate of appreciation
for participating and the proceeds from the event
will be awarded in the form of a scholarship to a South Texas College May 2015 graduate by the
Psychology Club.

the darection of advison, arc responaible for produsiong and publashing thas msmmkm
prodiection and i costests 3o nol pecesarnily reflect the opinioas and beliefs of the South Tewas College faculty, o Emwmlmd'm

199



Yo, SOUTH TEXAS President s Report
vVvyY COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

Bo R DE R Dr. George Diaz joined the South Texas College Library to discuss the
history of smuggling across the U.S.-Mexico border based on the
research for his book Border Contraband: A History of Smuggling

Across the Rio Grande. On April 6™ he visited the Mid-Valley and
A WISTORY OF SMUGGLING ACROSS Pecan Campuses, and ended his visit on April 7" at the Starr County

THE RIO GRANDE

. Campus. Following his discussions, there was an opportunity to
pwvor |4 purchase his book and have Dr. Diaz, the author, sign it.

fall
George 1. Diaz

ASI? iraining

Faculty and staff were encouraged to attend training sessions on Microsoft PowerPoint 11: Viewing a
Presentation, Formatting a Presentation, Working with Objects, Working with Tables, Working with
Charts and SmartArt, Applying Transition and Animation Effects, Outlook 2013 Part 11: Working with
Contacts, Using the Calendar, Collaborating with Other Users, Working with Tasks, Using the Journal
and Notes, Word 2013 Part 11: Working with Shapes, Pictures, WordArt, SmartArt, Charts, Tables,
Mailings, and how to use Collaborative Editing Tools., and Excel 2013 Part I1: Creating and Working
with Charts, Managing Workbooks.. Sessions were held at the Pecan campuses, in Building M.

SoutH Texas COLLEGE
FINE AND PERFORMING ARTS PRESENTS:
“An Evening oF Soprano DueTs”
FRIDAY APRIL 17, 2015

7:30P.M
Cooprer CENTER THEATRE

Suaron O'Leary, Marika Kyriskos,
Lyric Sopraxo Lyric CoLoraTURA

The Fine and Performing Arts at South Texas College presented an evening of soprano duets on Friday
April 17" @ 7:30 PM in the Cooper Center on the Pecan Campus. Special guest artist Marika Kyriakos,
lyric coloratura, joined faculty artist Sharon O’Leary, lyric soprano, in an evening of music by Rossini
and Schumann. Ms. Kyriakos’ visit to South Texas College included a special master class for vocal
students currently studying at the College. Ms. Kyriakos completed her Doctor of Musical Arts degree
in vocal performance at the University of Texas in Austin. She also holds a Master of Music degree in
vocal performance from the University of Missouri-Columbia and the Bachelor of Music degree in
piano performance from the University of Missouri-Kansas City Conservatory. Sharon O’Leary is the
vocal instructor and Assistant Chair of the Music Department at South Texas College.

200



SOUTH TEXAS President’s Deport

Y.
N\
vVv COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

G The Fine and Performing Arts at South Texas
i T T College also presented OPUS, a chamber
OPUS Chamber Orchestra f orchestra, in an evening concert of Baroque
William buhidar, Conductar music on Friday April 24 at 7:30 pm in the
Friduy Agpril 24, 2015 7:15p.m. - Cooper Center Theatre on the Pecan
Coaper Center Theatre
Campus. The concert was free and open to
the public.

The Conductor, Mr. William Buhidar, is also the Music Director and Conductor of OPUS. The chamber
orchestra has its residency at South Texas College and has presented concerts over the last couple of
years that included “Mozart Madness” and “Viva Vivaldi”. Mr. Buhidar’s extensive conducting
background includes a wide spectrum of music that has included symphonic and chamber orchestra
concerts, complete dramatic opera and ballet productions, choral programs, and a wide variety of “pops”
concerts.

Jaime Garcia, guitar instructor at STC, and Hector Rodriguez, guitar instructor at UT-RGV, teamed up
in a performance of Vivaldi’s Concerto for Two Guitars. Mr. Garcia, who heads a growing and
successful guitar program at STC, recently traveled to Spain where he trained in the art of flamenco
guitar technique. Mr. Rodriguez is a graduate of the Conservatorio de Musica de Puerto Rico and is an
active performer. Additionally, graduating STC music student Yajaira Lara-Sanchez was in the
spotlight as viola soloist in Telemann’s Viola Concerto in G Major. Ms. Lara-Sanchez is a graduate of
Edinburg North High School and excelled as a member of that high school’s award winning orchestra
program. The concert included Entrance of the Queen of Sheba by Handel and selected movements
from Bach’s Orchestral Suite No. 3 in D Major.

' . | UnitedHealthcare, the College’s insurance provider, presented an online
)) UnitedHealthcare| \yeninar on April 22™ entitled; “There’s a Better Way to Sit! Everyone was
invited to listen in and understand what ergonomics is and how we can apply it to our work
environment.

= Provided a welcome at the College’s ADA Awareness Day and High School Transition Fair on
March 31, which began at the Cooper Center on the Pecan Campus. Eight school districts and
approximately 250 students participated at this event. Breakout sessions included Financial Aid
and Student Activities, Admissions and Testing, and Counseling and ADA information.
Following the breakout sessions, students went on a tour of the Pecan Campus and participated in
activities held in the courtyard, and in Building H, Student Lounge.

= Attended the State Employees Charitable Campaign (SECC) Award Ceremony, coordinated by
United Way of South Texas. Ms. Lizette Moreno, Human Resources Staffing Specialist, serves
as the College’s State Employee Charitable Campaign (SECC) Co-Coordinator, and as the Vice-
Chair of the local SECC.

201



Yo, SOUTH TEXAS hesident's Repont

v COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

The State Employee Charitable Campaign is a
program set up by the Texas Comptroller, and allows
state employees to set up payroll deductions to
support qualified charities of their choice. South
Texas College employees pledged $41,268 in
donations for 2014, with a total of 143 employees
participating.

The local campaign is managed by the United Way of
South Texas and on April 1, 2014, the United Way
recognized Ms. Moreno for her outstanding efforts to the campaign which resulted in South Texas
College receiving the following awards:

1. SECC Lone Star Award for the Largest Contributing Agency

2. #1 State Supporter” for 2014

3. Highest Contributions” for 2014

Kudos to Ms. Moreno for all of her efforts with the SECC at South Texas College!

Worked with key College staff as well as with the City of Pharr to prepare testimony on HB 1887,
relating to the establishment of a regional center for public safety excellence in the Rio Grande
Valley by Representative Sergio Mufioz, Jr., before the Committee on Homeland Security and
Public Safety, at the Capitol in Austin.

Traveled to Austin on Monday, 4/6 and Tuesday 4/7 to provide testimony before the Committee
on Homeland Security and Public Safety. Joining me from South Texas College were Mario
Reyna, Dean of Business and Technology, and Victor Valdez, Program Chair, Law Enforcement
Program, as well as City of Pharr Chief of Police Ruben Villescas. The Committee heard the
testimonies and did not have any issues.

Together with Mary G. Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, Legal
Counsel, Chuy Ramirez, met with representatives from Duke Energy who were on campus to
present a proposal for consideration by the College for a Tax Abatement in Starr County.

I was interviewed by Rebecca Weber, a journalist working on an article for the American
Association of Community College's 21st Century Center, about best practices for early college high
schools and their partnerships with community colleges. She was interested in learning about South
Texas College’s partnerships in this area as a result of our successes.

Met with Superintendent Blaha, Hidalgo 1SD, who was on campus to discuss early college high
schools. He is especially interested in offering dual enrollment technical certificates.

Attended the UTRGV Spring 2015 Leadership Alliance in Edinburg. Presentations included:
e Admissions, Scholarships and Orientation Update
o Student Service Centers

10
202



Yo, SOUTH TEXAS hesident's Repont

v COLLEGE March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

« Financial Aid

e Student Academic Success

e Jump Start Flyer

o Frequently Asked Questions from Students About UTRGV

Traveled to San Antonio to attend the American Association of Community Colleges (AACC) Board
and Committee meetings, as well as the AACC 95™ Annual Convention taking place at the Grand
Hyatt San Antonio and Henry B. Gonzalez Convention Center. This year, South Texas College
nominated Rep. Henry Cuellar for the American Association of Communlty Colleges (AACC) 2015
Outstanding Alumni Award. The award is given ]
annually to community college alumni in recognition of ﬁ
excellence in their field and contribution to their -~ L‘INL“‘
communities. The AACC selected Rep. Cuellar as one
of seven recipients nationwide, and honored them at the "‘JJJ‘ ]
Outstanding Alumni Awards brunch held April 21. Rep.
Cuellar was not able to attend because of previous

7l

commitments in D.C., and asked that I accept the award | RER HENRY CUELLAR
on his behalf. (D) Texas

Traveled to Austin to provide testimony on several bills impacting South Texas College. The House
of Representatives Committee on Higher Education called a hearing for Wednesday, April 22, and
continued on Thursday, April 23, at the Capitol in Austin. Representative Sergio Mufioz, Jr.
presented HB 1574, relating to limitations imposed on baccalaureate degree programs offered by
public junior colleges, and Representative Ryan Guillen presented HB 935, relating to the approval
by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board of baccalaureate degree programs offered by
public junior colleges. The agenda also included other bills relating to the baccalaureate degree
programs by public junior colleges. Of course, we are in favor of these bills.

The Committee’s agenda included HB 382 by Representative Terry Canales, relating to public
junior college district branch campuses, including a requirement that the South Texas Community
College District establish a branch campus in a certain location. Strong representation from the
Delta, including representation by Congress Ruben Hinojosa, testified on the need for a campus in
the Delta. Testimony was similar to their presentation to the Board of Trustees. | also provided
testimony.

Provided welcome remarks at the College’s 2"* Annual Junior Jaguar Conference on April 24" at the
Cooper Center on the Pecan Campus. | also had the opportunity to participate in the “pinning” of
the Junior Jaguars at the closing of their event. Each participating school brought ten 5™ grade
students — for a total of 80 Junior Jaguars. The participating districts and schools were:

e Edinburg CISD - Lincoln Elementary

La Joya ISD - Evangelina Garza Elementary
Mercedes ISD — Taylor Elementary
McAllen ISD — Roosevelt Elementary
Mission CISD — Marcell Elementary

11
203



SOUTH TEXAS President’s Deport

B, 4
Vv COLLEGE

March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

Progreso ISD — Progreso West Elementary
PSJA ISD - Cesar Chavez Elementary
Rio Grande City CISD — North Grammar Elementary

Coordinated the agendas and back-up materials for the April 2015 Education & Workforce
Development Committee, Facilities Committee, and Finance & Human Resources Committee
meetings, and the Regular Board meeting.

Continue to meet with STC’s President’s Cabinet to:

— facilitate administrative planning on a weekly basis;

— review and address issues of concern;

— formulate strategic direction and problem solving; and

— provide communication and feedback among the President and the Vice Presidents

— prepare for FY 2015-2016 revenue projections, budget, staffing plan, and operational plan

Continue to meet with STC’s President’s Administrative Staff. The purpose of the President’s
Administrative Staff is to communicate information to all administrative staff and to provide the
opportunity for discussion on areas of concern regarding the leadership and strategic direction for
the College.

Continue to meet with the College’s Vice Presidents, Administrators, Planning and Development
Council, Coordinated Operations Council, and other Councils to address immediate concerns and
issues facing the College. Topics covered from March 31, 2015 thru April 28, 2015 included:

e Discussion of Possible Nominations for the Examples of Excelencia 2015 Award Due
April 24, 2015

e Discussion of Enrollment Planning Assumptions and Next Steps
e Updates on Legislative Session:

- HB1-- Community college funding
e Discussion of Issuance of Faculty Letters of Appointment Prior to Finalizing Salary
e Discussion of Proposed Revision to Policy 4118: Provision of Faculty Letters of Appointment
e Recruitment of Candidates:
- Vice President of Student Affairs and Enroliment Management
- Director of Facilities, Planning and Construction
Discussion of Policy 4306: Vacation Leave Accrual
Discussion of FY 2016 to 2017 Appropriations Summary
Discussion of FY 2015-2016 Preliminary Revenue and Expenditures
Continued Discussion of Planning Assumptions for Prioritizing/Forecasting Student Enroliment
for the Next Five Years
Discussion of Status of Comprehensive Plan Submittals
Update on Legislative Session
Review and Discussion of Policy #4111: Volunteers
Discussion of Performance Appraisals
Feedback on Discussion at UTRGV Leadership Alliance

204



Yo, SOUTH TEXAS WL
) wedédent o
s COLLEGE P Refpor

March 31, 2015 to April 28, 2015

Update on May 2015 Commencement Ceremonies

Discussion of Preliminary Budget for FY 2015-2016

Discussion of Preliminary Staffing Plan for FY 2015-2016
Discussion of Preliminary Salary Adjustments for FY 2015-2016
Discussion of Unfilled Positions for FY 2014-2015

Continued Discussion of Future Facility Needs

Update on Facility Needs for Kinesiology

Update on Status for Proposed New Library for the Pecan Campus
Discussion of Policy #4306: Vacation Leave Accrual

Update on Design of Pecan Campus Marquee Sign

Update on Bond Construction Preliminary Designs

Update on Bond Construction Program Overall Project Schedule
Update on Non-Bond Projects Schedule

Discussion and Feedback on TASB Training

Review and Discussion of 2014 IPEDS Report

Review of Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board Accountability Update
Discussion and Review of Fall to Spring Persistence Rates
Discussion of Planning Assumptions for Projecting / Forecasting Student Enrollment for the
Next Five Years

Review of Project Intake Management Solution

Update and Discussion on Developmental Plan

Review and Discussion of Mandatory Training Seminars

Review and Discussion of CLE Student Success Outcomes
Overview of Student Orientation Program

13
205



Fducation and Workforce
Development Committee
Minutes

April 13", 2015

206



Education and Workforce Development Minutes
April 13,2015 @ 3:00 p.m.
Page 1, Revised 04/22/2015 @ 4:59 PM

South Texas College
Board of Trustees
Education and Workforce Development Committee
Ann Richards Administration Building, Board Room
Pecan Campus
Monday, April 13, 2015
@ 3:30 p.m.
McAllen, Texas

MINUTES

The Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting was held on Monday,
April 13, 2015 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at the Pecan
Campus in McAllen, Texas. The meeting commenced at 3:33 p.m. with Mrs. Graciela
Farias presiding.

Members present: Mrs. Graciela Farias, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., and Mr. Gary Gurwitz
Other Trustees present: Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez
Members absent: None

Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Dr. Ali Esmaeili, Mr. Mario
Reyna, Mrs. Laura Boyer Sanchez, Ms. Sara M. Lozano, and Mr. Andrew Fish.

Approval of Minutes for Thursday, March 19, 2015 Committee Meeting

Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Gary Gurwitz, the Minutes
for the Education and Workforce Development Committee meeting of March 19, 2015
were approved as written. The motion carried.

Presentation on March 26, 2015 Women in Technology Event

On March 26, 2015 South Texas College hosted the 8" Annual Women in Technology
event at the Technology Campus, an initiative to build the education and motivation of
women to explore opportunities for careers in the various technology fields offered at
South Texas College.

Dr. Anahid Petrosian introduced Mr. Mario Reyna, Dean of Business & Technology, and
Ms. Sara M. Lozano, Assistant Professor of Computer Assisted Drafting & Design
(CADD) Technology. Mr. Reyna reviewed the background of the Women in Technology
event and its successes in motivating female students to consider and succeed in
traditionally male-dominated fields in technological areas.

207 E.W.D. Committee Minutes 04-13-2015



Education and Workforce Development Minutes
April 13,2015 @ 3:00 p.m.
Page 2, Revised 04/22/2015 @ 4:59 PM

Ms. Lozano spoke as Chair of the committee that oversees this event and provided more
detail about the great success of the 2015 Women in Technology event and the increase
to the scope of the event over previous years, outreach to local partnerships, and plans
for future Women in Technology events.

The Women in Technology annual event started in 2008 as “Ladies in Technology Night”
and was designed to bring females from the community onto the Technology Campus to
learn about the technological fields and careers they could pursue at South Texas
College. This was borne out of recognition that female professionals were
underrepresented in many high-skilled technical fields. The event provided students and
prospective students with an opportunity to hear from and meet females in high-skilled
technology professions and to encourage these women to consider a wide range of
careers.

In 2015, the event was renamed to Women in Technology, and was expanded to a full
day of work sessions, presentations, and opportunities, including day time breakout
sessions specifically for three hundred high school students and evening sessions for the
community at large.

Due to space and time limitations, only three hundred high school students from the
school districts in Hidalgo and Starr County were able to participate. All area high schools
were invited to send 25 students, and the first respondents up to the set capacity were
accepted. Plans for subsequent years will include considerations to expand the capacity
to serve additional participants. Additionally, sponsorships from the community will be
sought to help support the addition of live entertainment and refreshments for attendees.

In addition to the daytime program that specifically served local high school students,
there were evening sessions for the general community. Ms. Lozano reported that there
were many high school students from the daytime session that brought their friends and
families back to the evening to share the wonderful and inspiring programs.

Many local partners were brought on board to support the program, and showcases of
our technology programs were provided to engage and encourage participants. Current
students in these programs were on hand to provide a “Model your Career” fashion show,
which comprised entirely of female South Texas College students participating in
technical programs. These students represented their chosen field of study, carrying the
tools of the trade and providing concrete examples of women pursuing, and succeeding,
in high-skilled technical trades.

Dr. Vanessa Nelson, DNA Analyst with the Texas Department of Public Safety Crime Lab,
was the keynote speaker, and Dr. Nelson also provided a break out session entitled So
You Want to be a Forensic Scientist. Dr. Nelson was joined by several female members
of her team in the Crime Lab, and they also hosted a Q&A session with attendees.

The March 2016 event was scheduled to be expanded to two full days, and coordinators

are reaching out to community partners to develop further support for this expanded
offering.

208 E.W.D. Committee Minutes 04-13-2015



Education and Workforce Development Minutes
April 13,2015 @ 3:00 p.m.
Page 3, Revised 04/22/2015 @ 4:59 PM

In addition to providing a review of the event and plans for the future, Mr. Reyna and Ms.
Lozano shared the data on increased enrollment of female students in technical
programs. Ms. Lozano shared that uniform standards are upheld for each program, and
female students are achieving tremendous success competing on an equal basis with
male colleagues in the same programs.

Presentation on Building a Pathway to the Baccalaureate Degrees

Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President for Academic Affairs, introduced Dr. Ali Esmaeili,
Dean of Math, Science, and Bachelor Programs, and Mrs. Laura Boyer Sanchez,
Associate Dean of Curriculum and Student Learning. This team presented on the
College’s pathway to baccalaureate degrees.

Dual Enrollment

The “pathway to a baccalaureate degree” starts for many students with developmental
education and dual enrollment opportunities to help students on the pathway toward a
successful college career. South Texas College had the largest dual enrollment program
in the State of Texas, serving 23 districts at 77 sites in Hidalgo and Starr counties. This
included 26 Early College High Schools and 6 Academies, each of which provided
opportunities for students to earn a certificate or associate’s degree concurrently with
their high school diploma. Over 12,500 high school students completed over 1,500
college course sections this semester.

Stackable Credentials
Stackable Credentials were designed to provide clear value for recipients and to directly
build toward a subsequent credential. From the first earned credit through the completion
of a bachelor degree, students were provided many opportunities to attain a new
credential, each of which could help them compete for a new job or earn new opportunities
with a current employer.

e Marketable Skills e Associate’s Degree
e Certificates e Advanced Certificate

These credentials were designed to provide the students with marketable value in the
regional work force, and the College worked closely with advisory committees and
independent labor market research to keep the programs aligned with regional need.
Additionally, the College worked with its school district partners to align credentials with
high school endorsements as developed under state law.

Bachelor Programs

In April 2015, the College offered four baccalaureate degrees. In May 2015, the College
anticipated it would have conferred 917 bachelor degrees since the beginning of these
programs in 2005.

The Committee packet included additional details showing the demographics of bachelor
degree program graduates, including information on prior developmental coursework by
graduates, dual enroliment credits held by graduates, and current baccalaureate degree

209 E.W.D. Committee Minutes 04-13-2015



Education and Workforce Development Minutes
April 13,2015 @ 3:00 p.m.
Page 4, Revised 04/22/2015 @ 4:59 PM

graduates with stackable credentials. This data was compiled for the 802 baccalaureate
degrees awarded thus far, and did not include the 115 expected graduates for May 2015.

These items were for the Committee’s information and feedback to staff, and no action
was requested.

Adjournment

There being no further business to discuss, the Education Workforce Development
Committee Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees adjourned at 4:00 p.m.

| certify that the foregoing are the true and correct Minutes of the April 13, 2015 Education
and Workforce Development Committee of the South Texas College Board of Trustees.

Mrs. Graciela Farias
Presiding

210 E.W.D. Committee Minutes 04-13-2015



Facilities Committee
Minutes
April 13", 2015

211



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 1 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

South Texas College
Board of Trustees
Facilities Committee
Ann Richards Administration Building, Board Room
Pecan Campus
Monday, April 13, 2015
@ 4:00 PM

McAllen, Texas

MINUTES

The Facilities Committee Meeting was held on Monday, April 13, 2015 in the Ann
Richards Administration Building Board Room at the Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.
The meeting commenced at 4:09 p.m. with Mr. Gary Gurwitz presiding.

Members present: Mr. Gary Gurwitz, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Ms.
Rose Benavidez, Mr. Jesse Villarreal, and Mrs. Graciela Farias

Members absent: Mr. Roy de Ledn

Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mr. Chuy Ramirez, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Dr. David
Plummer, Mr. Gerry Rodriguez, Mr. George McCaleb, Mr. Cody Gregg, Mr. Ricardo de la
Garza, Mr. Robert Cuellar, Ms. Alicia Gomez, Dr. James Broaddus, Mr. Gilbert Gallegos,
Mr. Rolando Garcia, Ms. Diana Bravos, Mr. Eddie Vela, Mr. Robert Saenz, Mr. Ben
Macias, Mr. Jaime Enriquez, Mr. Gilbert Enriquez, Mr. Kelley Heiler-Vela, Mr. Mario
Reyna, Mr. Juan Delgado, Mr. Chris Pennington, Mr. Bill Wilson, and Mr. Andrew Fish

Approval of March 19, 2015 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr.. the
Minutes for the Facilities Committee meeting of March 19, 2015 were approved as
written. The motion carried.
Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program

Mr. Gilbert Gallegos from Broaddus & Associates provided an update on the status of the
2013 Bond Construction Program.

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

212



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 2 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Review and Recommend Action on Approval of Additional Services for Library
Design Consultant for the 2013 Bond Construction Program for Nursing & Allied
Health Campus Library

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval of additional services
with ERO Architects for library consultant services provided by 720 Design, Inc. at the
April 28, 2015 Board meeting.

Specialized design services are typically approved under the project architect’s contract
as an additional service and was an option available to STC. For the Bond Construction
Program, specialized design services with ERO Architects for library design was
recommended for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus Expansion library. Additional
services for design of Mid Valley Campus and Starr County Campus libraries would be
submitted for Board review and approval at a later date.

Below are some of the advantages of having a single source for specialized library design
services:

Consistency in space development and design by function

Consistency in plans and specifications

Reduced consultant fees due to multiple project contracts

Efficiency in design process while working with STC staff and each architect
Quiality control in use and implementation of innovative library functions

Quiality control in updating library technology systems and standards

Efficient STC staff time and effort during design, construction phase, and future
operations

STC'’s Library staff along with Broaddus & Associates staff have reviewed the proposed
scope of related additional services design work to be included in the Bond Program.
After several rounds of negotiation and scope of services, it was recommend that the
proposed additional services be approved to support the project architect. Having a
specialized design consultant would allow for development of design standards which can
be used from project to project.

Analyze current library spaces and functions

Provide recommendations on master planning for long term needs

Provide recommendations on most beneficial spaces

Provide direction on best use of available and proposed space

Provide recommendations on furniture to best support library functions
Coordinate with Program Manager, project architects, and STC staff during design
and construction phases

e Coordinate with each architect to develop plans and specifications for each library
project

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

213



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 3 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

The collaboration of South Texas College library staff with a single source of library design
solutions, 720 Design, Inc. increased the likelihood that proposed solutions are congruent
with the strategic directions and goals set by the College for service excellence and
scalability. Additionally, the College would benefit during the design and construction
phases by having a centralized, accountable point of contact and standardization across
multiple construction projects, effectively reducing total cost of operations in the long-
term.

The packet included an additional services proposal submitted by ERO Architects in the
amount of $26,400. Broaddus & Associates representatives and STC staff attended the
April 13, 2015 Board Facilities Committee meeting to address questions by the committee
related to this recommendation.

The Committee expressed several concerns about the proposed additional services:

e The architect knew the project scope included specialized facilities, and could have
included appropriate specialists in the design team as part of their qualifications
and negotiated contract.

e The architect proposes a 10% coordination fee to implement the consultant’s
recommendations into the project design.

e The library projects at other campuses are being designed by another architect,
and the Committee asked whether that architect had another preference for a
consultant services firm.

e The Committee was concerned about what other consultant specialists would be
brought to the Committee and Board for later projects.

Gilbert Gallegos addressed the concerns with the Committee, stating that the anticipated
design consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Program remained as previously
presented.

Mr. Gallegos stated that the architects’ contract provided for the option to include
additional consultant services, and that such services could include a 10% coordination
fee as proposed.

Mr. Jesus Ramirez, legal counsel, clarified with Mr. Gallegos that the contract allowed the
architectural firms to propose consultant services, including coordination fees as
appropriate, but that the Board had sole discretion to approve or deny any proposal. In
the event that the Board did not approve a consultant, the architect remained responsible
to complete the design project to the best of its ability without utilizing the consultant.

Mr. Gary Gurwitz asked Mr. Gallegos whether the architect could be asked to consider
waiving the coordination fee, and Mr. Gallegos concurred that the architect could

voluntarily waive such a fee and still work with a consultant. Mr. Gallegos agreed to make
that request of ERO Architects at the direction of the Committee.

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

214



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 4 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Upon a motion by Mrs. Graciela Farias and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the
Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the additional services proposals
submitted by ERO Architects in the amount of $26,400, for specialized library design
services provided by 720 Design, Inc. For the 2013 Bond Construction Program Nursing
& Allied Health Campus Expansion library as presented.

Review and Recommend Action on Selection of Firms for Geotechnical
Engineering and Materials Testing Services for the 2013 Bond Construction
Program

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval of selection of firms
to provide geotechnical engineering and materials testing services for the 2013 Bond
Construction program at the April 28, 2015 Board meeting.

These services would be necessary during the design and construction phases of these
construction projects. It was recommended that a minimum of four firms be contracted
and assigned projects as follows:

Recommended Project Assignments
Campuses Top Ranked Firms

1 | Pecan Campus Terracon Consultants, Inc.

Nursing & Allied Health Campus and

2 Technology Campus Millennium Engineering Group
Mid Valley Campus and Regional Center for . .

3 Public Safety Excellence L&G Consulting Engineers, Inc.

4 Starr County Campus and La Joya Teaching Raba Kistner Consultants, Inc.

Site

On March 2, 2015 a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for solicitation of these services was
made available and responses were received on March 25, 2015. A total of seven (7)
firms submitted responses to the RFQ. The evaluation team including staff and Broaddus
& Associates prepared a summary of scoring and ranking for review by the Facilities
Committee. This summary was included in the packet.

Once firms have been selected and approved by the Board of Trustees, the firms would
be available to provide the College with geotechnical engineering and materials testing
services as assigned for Bond construction projects. Staff in consultation with Broaddus
& Associates would recommend use of firms from the proposed pool. Some of the
anticipated engineering services which may be provided were as follows:

e Testing of soil conditions for proper foundation design
e Testing of select fill dirt for proper compaction
e Testing of concrete samples during concrete pours

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

215



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 5 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Testing of sub-grades, caliche base, and asphalt for parking areas
Testing of structural steel reinforcing

Testing of steel welding

Testing of floors for levelness

Testing of fireproof materials

Testing of environmental conditions including air quality

Testing for identifying asbestos containing materials

Fees for these services could range from $5,000 to $45,000 depending on the scope and
complexity of each construction project and testing needed. As part of the fee negotiations
process, each firm would be asked to provide unit costs for a standard list of possible
services. These unit costs would be used as basis for each future project fee proposal.

Upon a motion by Ms. Rose Benavidez and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Facilities
Committee recommended Board approval of the selection of the top four (4) ranked firms
to provide geotechnical engineering and materials testing needed for the 2013 Bond
construction projects for the period beginning April 29, 2015 through April 28, 2016 with
the option to renew for two one-year periods as presented. The motion carried.

Presentation on Construction Manager-at-Risk Construction Delivery Method for
2013 Bond Construction Program

Dr. James Broaddus representing Broaddus & Associates reviewed the benefits and
recommended use of the Construction Manager-at-Risk Construction procurement
method, which was recommended for most of the 2013 Bond Construction Program. Dr.
Broaddus responded to questions about this procurement method.

Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Construction Manager-At-
Risk Firms for the 2013 Bond Construction Program

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval of the selection of
Construction Manager-at-Risk firms for the 2013 Bond Construction Program at the April
28, 2015 Board meeting.

Mr. Gary Gurwitz disclosed that Atlas Hall, & Rodriguez, L.L.C., the law firm at which Mr.
Gurwitz is a partner, represents Enriquez Construction and D. Wilson Construction.
Furthermore, the a partner at Mr. Gurwitz’s firm has personal interest in SpawGlass. Mr.
Gurwitz announced that he does not personally work on any projects related to these
firms and he has no personal interest in them. Mr. Gurwitz verified with the College’s
legal counsel that neither state law nor Board policy required him to abstain from the
discussion or action, and Board policy simply required his disclosure as provided.

As previously approved by the Board of Trustees, STC staff in collaboration with
Broaddus & Associates have completed the solicitation of proposals from contractors to

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

216



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 6 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

provide Construction Manager-at-Risk services for the 2013 Bond Construction projects.
Solicitation of proposals for this project began on Marchl, 2015. A total of seven (7)
proposals were received on March 25, 2013.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 1, 2015 Solicitation proposals began.

March 25, 2015 Seven (7) proposals were received.

Five STC staff members and three Broaddus & Associates representatives evaluated
these proposals and prepared summaries, which were included in the packet. It was
recommended that the top qualified contractors be considered for Board approval. The
first summary outlined a short list of the three top qualified contractors for each Project
Group and the Project Groups each firm was most interested in.

The Board Facilities Committee was asked to recommend approval from the attached
evaluation summaries or recommend that the Board of Trustees interview a short listed
set of top qualified contractors prior to making the final selection. Funds were available
in the FY 2014-2015 Bond Construction budget to begin these projects.

The Facilities Committee chose to make a separate motion for each recommendation of
a Construction Manager-at-Risk services firm to a Project Group. Furthermore, they
clarified with Broaddus & Associates that one firm could be recommended for more than
one Project Group, and that the College may be able to negotiate better fees from a firm
based on volume of construction assigned.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez the
Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of Enriquez Construction Group, LLC
for Project Group C — all projects on the Technology Campus. The motion carried.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez the Facilities
Committee recommended Board approval of D. Wilson Construction Company for Project
Group A — all projects on the Pecan Campus. The motion carried.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias the
Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of D. Wilson Construction Company
for Project Group B — all projects on the Nursing & Allied Health Campus. The motion
carried.

Upon a motion by Ms. Rose Benavidez and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez the

Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of D. Wilson Construction Company
for Project Group E — all projects on the Starr County Campus. The motion carried.

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

217



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 7 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Representatives from Enriquez Construction Group, LLC were in attendance at the
meeting, and the Facilities Committee asked them to verify their firm’s bond capacity. As
presented to the Committee, the firm would only be eligible for $15,000,000 in
construction projects. The Group A project already assigned would nearly satisfy that
limit by itself, potentially leaving the firm inellible for further award. Mr. Gilbert Enriquez
informed the Committee that their bond capacity was higher than presented and that with
the staggered timeline of construction, he believed the firm would be sufficiently bonded,
and could support, additional projects if so awarded. The Committee instructioned Mr.
Gallegos with Broaddus & Associates to review the issue and prepare an update for the
Board.

The Board would be able to hear any further information, and then could choose whether
to act in accordance with the Facilities Committee recommendation.

Upon a motion by Mr. Jesse Villarreal and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez the Facilities
Committee recommended Board approval of Skanska USA Building, Inc. for Project
Group D — all projects on the Mid Valley Campus. The motion carried.

Review and Discussion on Updated Facilities Space Programs for 2013 Bond
Construction Program

During the master planning process completed in 2010, facilities space programs were
created for each proposed Bond construction project. These space programs include a
detailed list of all spaces within each building along, with the square footage and number
of occupants for each.

The total of all spaces per building made up the assignable, or net square footage, which
was then converted to gross square footage. The gross square footage was used to
calculate the Construction Cost Limitation or CCL for each building project. Both the total
gross square footage and the CCL’s were forwarded to each architect to be used as
controls during the design phase. The CCL'’s will also be forwarded to the contractors
once they have been contracted.

With the architects working with STC’s Facilities Advisory Council members and with
Broaddus & Associates to develop the schematic designs of each Bond project, each
facilities space program was being updated as needed. Updates were based on current
student enrollment demands and efficiency in use of space. The packet included a set of
current space programs for each Bond Construction Program project.

This information was provided to the Committee as an update, no action was required.

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

218



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 8 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Review and Recommend Action on Schematic Design for the Pecan Campus Art
Building Covered Area for Ceramic Arts

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval of the schematic
design by EGV Architects, Inc. for the Pecan Campus Art Building Covered Area for
Ceramic Arts at the April 28, 2015 Board meeting.

As previously authorized by the Board of Trustees, EGV Architects, Inc. coordinated with
the Planning & Construction Department staff and with STC Art Faculty to develop plans
for this renovation project. Mr. Eddie Vela from EGV Architects, Inc. attended the
Facilities Committee meeting to address questions regarding the schematic design of the
proposed renovation.

Preliminary construction cost estimates indicated that the project cost would range
between $260,000 to 286,000. As part of the FY 2014-2015 construction budget, funds
in the amount of $325,000 were included for this project.

The following chart summarized the above information:

Source of Funding Amount Preliminary Cost
Budgeted Estimates
Construction $325,000 $260,000 to 286,000

The Committee packet included a schematic floor plan and a three dimensional view of
the proposed renovation space. The three dimensional view was a rough sketch
proposed by the architect. Formal drawings were not available at the time of the packet
publication.

Furthermore, there were concerns about the proposed location of the Pecan Campus Art
Building Covered Area for Ceramic Arts. The Facilities Committee asked staff to work
with EGV Architects to address these concerns and bring the item back to the Committee
at a later meeting for further review. No action was taken.

Review and Recommend Action on Approval of Change Order for the Nursing &
Allied Health Campus Entry Drive

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval of proposed Change
Order No. 1 with Texas Cordia Construction, LLC for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Entry Drive project at the April 28, 2015 Board meeting.

Change Order No. 1 was necessary to improve an existing irrigation line to comply with
the Hidalgo County Irrigation District No. 2 policy. This proposed change order item was

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

219



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 9 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

been reviewed and confirmed by the project design team at Perez Consulting Engineers
and STC staff.

Nursing & Allied Health Campus Entry Drive

Change Item Description and Justification Cost/ Funding
Order Days Source
No.

e Description: A portion of the new Entry Drive
1 crosses an existing irrigation line and is a $9,982 | Construction
requirement of the Irrigation District that when
new construction occurs over an existing
outdated pipe, the section of pipe below the
new construction must be replaced to prevent
future demolition of the new construction.

Total Change Order No. 1 $9,982 Bond
0 days | Construction

A representative from Perez Consulting Engineers and STC staff attended the April 13,
2015 Facilities Committee meeting to respond to questions from the Facilities Committee
members.

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Facilities
Committee recommended Board approval of proposed Change Order No. 1 in the amount
of $9,982 with Texas Cordia Construction, LLC for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus
Entry Drive project as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Construction Services for the
Pecan Campus Portable Buildings Infrastructure

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval to select a contractor
for the Pecan Campus Portable Buildings Infrastructure project at the April 28, 2015
Board meeting.

The Board of Trustees previously approved design services with Melden & Hunt to
prepare plans and specifications for the portable buildings infrastructure. As plans
developed for design and construction of new facilities included in the 2013 Bond
Construction Program, portable buildings on the Pecan Campus would be relocated in
order to make space available for construction. A total of fourteen existing portable
buildings were currently located in an area on campus where the future STEM Building,
South Academic Building, parking lot, and site improvements will be constructed. As a

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

220



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 10 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

result, civil engineers with Melden & Hunt completed plans necessary for the
infrastructure required at the Pecan Campus where the portables would be relocated.

STC staff worked with Melden & Hunt to prepare and issue the necessary plans and
specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals. Solicitation of
competitive sealed proposals for this project began on March 2, 2015. A total of nine (9)
sets of construction documents were issued to general contractors, sub-contractors, and
suppliers and a total of three (3) proposals were received on March 26, 2015.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 2, 2015 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began.

March 26, 2015 Three (3) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and prepared a proposal summary, whch was included
in the packet. It was recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for
Board approval.

Funds were available in the FY 2014-2015 non-bond Construction budget for this project.

Source of Funding Budgeted Funds Highest Ranked Proposal
Non-Bond Construction $350,000 $333,249.80

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the
Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services with
Celso Gonzalez Construction, Inc. in the amount of $333,249.80 for the Pecan Campus
Portable Building Infrastructure project as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Construction Services for the
Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along Alley Side of Building

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval to select a contractor
for the Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along Alley Side of Building project at the April
28, 2015 Board meeting.

The Board of Trustees previously approved design services with Halff Associates to
prepare plans and specifications for this project. As a result, the civil engineering team
at Halff Associates completed the plans necessary for this deferred maintenance project.
Halff Associates has worked with STC staff in preparing and issuing the necessary plans

and specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals. Solicitation of
competitive sealed proposals for this project began on March 2, 2015. A total of six (6)

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

221



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 11 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

sets of construction documents were issued to general contractors, sub-contractors, and
suppliers and a total of five (5) proposals were received on March 24, 2015.

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 2, 2015 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began.

March 24, 2015 Five (5) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and prepared a proposal summary, which was included
in the packet. It was recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for
Board approval.

Funds were available in the FY 2014-2015 non-bond construction budget for this project
and from unused project savings.

Source of Funding Budgeted Funds Highest Ranked Proposal
Non-Bond Construction $75,000 $115,000

Upon a motion by Mr. Jesse Villarreal and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Facilities
Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services with 5 Star
Construction in the amount of $115,000 for the Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing Along
Alley Side of Building project as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Construction Services for the
District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval to select a contractor
for the District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades project at the April 28, 2015 Board
meeting.

The Board of Trustees previously approved design services with DBR Engineering to
prepare plans and specifications for this lighting upgrade project. As a result, the
electrical engineering team at DBR Engineering completed plans necessary for this
deferred maintenance project. This parking lot lighting replacement project was in its first
of several phases which would occur over a four year period. The first phase would
include replacement of lights on the original Starr County Campus parking lot.

DBR Engineering worked with STC staff in preparing and issuing the necessary plans
and specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals. Solicitation of
competitive sealed proposals for this project began on March 2, 2015. A total of three
(3) sets of construction documents were issued to general contractors, sub-contractors,
and suppliers and a total of four (4) proposals were received on March 26, 2015.

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

222



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 12 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals

March 2, 2015 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began.

March 26, 2015 Four (4) proposals were received.

Staff evaluated these proposals and prepared a proposal summary, which was included
in the packet. It was recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for
Board approval.

Funds were available in the FY 2014-2015 Renewals and Replacements budget for this
project.

Source of Funding Budgeted Funds Highest Ranked Proposal
Non-Bond Construction $100,000 $50,691

The Facilities Committee noted that the top ranked contractor proposed starting the
project within 10 working days of the award and completing the project within 120
calendar days. The Committee asked staff whether it was a concern that they proposed
120 calendar days, while two other firms proposed completing the job in 30 days and a
third firm proposed 90 days. The top ranked firm also proposed a slightly higher fee to
complete the work.

Mr. Gerry Rodriguez, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction, informed the
Committee that the type of lighting required for the project would likely need to be special
ordered, and the bid evaluation team was surprised to see that two firms expected to
complete the project within 30 calendar days of start. In experience with previous
projects, the team determined it was unlikely that the firms proposing project completion
within thirty days could reasonably meet that timeline.

The firm that offered a more likely time frame of 90 calendar days for project completion
proposed a fee $34,209 higher than the top ranked respondent.

Mr. Rodriguez felt there was some room to negotiate the project time line, and if the Board
approved contracting with the top ranked firm, staff would attempt to secure a
commitment to a reasonably accelerated time frame.

Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias, the
Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services with

Metro Electric in the amount of $50,691 for District-Wide Parking Lot Lighting Upgrades
project as presented. The motion carried.

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

223



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 13 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Review and Recommend Action on Substantial or Final Completion for the
Following Projects

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval of substantial or final
completion and release of final payment for the following projects at the April 28, 2015
Board meeting:

Projects Substanfual Flnal. Documents Attached
Completion Completion

1.| Pecan Campus Buildings A, G,/ Recommended May 2015 Substantial Completion
H, and X Electrical Certificate
Disconnects

2.| Pecan Campus Ann Previously Recommended Final Completion
Richards Administration Approved Letter
Building
Grants/Accountability Office
Improvements

1. Pecan Campus Buildings A, G, H and X Electrical Disconnects

It was recommended that substantial completion for this project with Metro Electric be
approved.

Engineers with ACR and STC staff visited the site and developed a construction punch
list. As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate of
Substantial Completion for the project was certified on March 26, 2015. Substantial
Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor
agreement for this project. A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate was included
in the packet.

Contractor Metro Electric would continue working on the punch list items identified and
would have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for
approval. It was anticipated that final acceptance of this project would be recommended
for approval at the May 2015 Board meeting.

2. Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building Grants/Accountability
Office Improvements

It was recommended that final completion and release of final payment for this project
with 5 Star Construction be approved.

Final Completion including punch list items were accomplished as required in the
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It was recommended that final completion

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

224



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 14 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

and release of final payment for this project with 5 Starr Construction be approved. The
original cost approved for this project was in the amount of $94,600.

The following chart summarizes the above information:

Construction Approved Net Total | Final Project Previous Remaining
Budget Proposal Change Cost Amount Paid Balance
Amount Orders
$24,000 $94,600 $2,263.80 | $96,863.80 | $86,296.10 | $10,567.70

On March 23, 2015, STC Planning & Construction Department staff along with EGV
Architects inspected the site to confirm that all punch list items were completed. The
packet included a letter from EGV Architects acknowledging all work was complete and
recommending release of final payment.

Upon a motion by Mrs. Graciela Farias and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Facilities
Committee recommended Board approval of the substantial completion of the Pecan
Campus Buildings A, G, H, and X Electrical Disconnects project and the final completion and
release of final payment for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building
Grants/Accountability Office Improvements project as presented. The motion carried.

Update on Status of Non-Bond Construction Projects
The Facilities Planning & Construction staff included a design and construction update.
This update summarized the status of each capital improvement project currently in

progress. Gerry Rodriguez was present to respond to questions and address concerns of
the committee. No questions were asked.

Executive Session:

The South Texas College Board Facilities Committee convened into Executive Session
at 5:50 p.m. in accordance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code for the
specific purpose provided in:

» Section 551.071, Consultations with Attorney

1. Discussion and Action as Necessary Regarding STC vs Chubb Insurance for
Hail Damage Claim Settlement

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

225



Minutes
April 13, 2015
Page 15 of 15, 4/17/2015 @ 2:06 PM

Open Session:

The South Texas College Board Facilities Committee returned to Open Session at 6:09
p.m. No action was taken in Executive Session.

Discussion and Action as Necessary Regarding STC vs Chubb Insurance for Hail
Damage Claim Settlement

The Facilities Committee discussed the legal settlement with Chubb Insurance for Hail
Storm Damage insurance claim with legal counsel. No action was taken.

Adjournment

There being no further business to discuss, the Facilities Committee Meeting of the South
Texas College Board of Trustees adjourned at 6:10 p.m.

| certify that the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the April 13, 2015 Facilities
Committee Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees.

Mr. Gary Gurwitz, Chair

Facilities Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

226



Finance & Human
Resources Committee
Minutes
April 13", 2015

227



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 1, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

South Texas College
Board of Trustees
Finance and Human Resources Committee
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room
Pecan Campus
Monday, April 13, 2015
@ 5:30 p.m.
McAllen, Texas

Minutes

The Finance and Human Resources Committee Meeting was held on Monday, April 13,
2015 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at the Pecan Campus in
McAllen, Texas. The meeting commenced at 6:14 p.m. with Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr..

Members present: Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, and Ms. Rose Benavidez
Other Trustees Present: Mr. Gary Gurwitz, and Mrs. Graciela Farias
Members absent: Mr. Roy de Ledn
Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Dr. David Plummer, Mrs. Wanda
Garza, Mrs. Becky Cavazos, Mr. Matt Hebbard, Mr. Larry Barroso, Mr. George McCaleb,
Ms. Alicia Gomez, Mr. Cody Gregg, Judge Eloy Vera, Mr. Robert Pena, Mr. Graham
Furlong, Mr. Jeff Neves, Mr. Gustavo Martinez, Mr. Cris Vela, and Mr. Andrew Fish
Approval of March 19, 2015 Finance and Human Resources Committee Minutes
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the
Minutes for the Finance and Human Resources Committee Meeting of March 19, 2015
were approved as written. The motion carried.

Presentation on Los Vientos Wind Project by Duke Energy

Duke Energy Renewable Wind, LLC presented Los Vientos Wind Project in Starr County to
the Committee.

Mr. Graham Furlong, Head of Development for Duke Energy Renewable Wind, LLC, Mr.
Robert Pefa, Vice President for Texas Energy Consultants, and Mr. Jeff Neves, Head of
Development for Amshore US Wind, LLC attended the Committee meeting and presented
a brief review of the project and its economic impact on Starr County.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

228



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 2, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

Starr County Judge Eloy Vera also attended the meeting and spoke about the importance
of this renewable energy project. Beyond the revenue generated by the wind energy
production, this project has provided economic stimulus throughout the county, in terms of
job creation during construction and maintenance as well as local spending.

No action was required from the Committee. This item was presented for information and
feedback to staff.

Executive Session:

The South Texas College Board Finance and Human Resources Committee convened into
Executive Session at 6:28 p.m. in accordance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government
Code for the specific purpose provided in:

» Section 551.071, Consultations with Attorney

1. Legal Counsel updated the Committee on legal matters related to the Los
Vientos Wind Project by Duke Energy

Open Session:

The South Texas College Board Finance and Human Resources Committee returned to
Open Session at 7:05 p.m. No action was taken in Executive Session.

Discussion and Action as Necessary on Hidalgo County Tax Resale Properties
and Resolution Authorizing Tax Resale

The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval
of the Hidalgo County Tax Resale Properties and the Resolution Authorizing the Tax
Resale at the April 28, 2015, Board meeting.

The law offices of Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP requested consideration and
possible action on the tax resale of twenty-two (22) properties.

On February 3, 2015 Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP held a Tax Resale Auction
at the Hidalgo County Clerk Records Management Facility for struck off properties located
within Hidalgo County. The tax resale auction was published in The Monitor and several
other newspapers throughout Hidalgo County.

The total amount the College would receive was $16,157.09.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

229



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 3, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP submitted the analysis of the bids received for
the Committee’s consideration.

The Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale was provided in the packet for the Committee’s
review. A listing of the bids, the legal description for each property, as well as the amount
of the bid, the South Texas College amount, and the Analysis of Bids Received were
included under separate cover for your information and review.

Gus Matrtinez from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP attended the meeting.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the
Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the Hidalgo
County Tax Resale Bids and the Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale to Linebarger
Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP as presented. The motion carried.

Update on Municipal Bond Market, Bond Issuance Debt Structure,
and Proposed Timeline

Mr. Cris Vela from First Southwest Company attended the Finance and Human Resources
Committee meeting to provide the Board Committee and administration with an up-to-date
presentation on the current bond market conditions and possible bond issuance debt
structure. Mr. Vela also reviewed two options of the proposed timeline of events related to
the sale of the limited tax bonds.

On November 5, 2013, the voters of Hidalgo and Starr County approved the sale of $159
million in bonds for the construction and equipping of College buildings and a 3 cents
additional annual tax for the maintenance and operations of the College.

On January 28, 2014, the College issued bonds in an amount to fund $60 million of
construction and renovations.

First Southwest Company prepared information for the proposed sale of the limited tax
bonds in the amount of $99,020,000.

Mr. Cris Vela discussed the Municipal Bond Market Update, Tax Rate Impact Analysis
scenarios, and proposed timeline for a bond issuance of $99,020,000.

A Municipal Bond Market Update, the Tax Rate Impact Analysis scenarios, and the
Proposed Timelines were included in the packet for the Committee’'s review and
information.

No action was required from the Committee. This item was presented for information and
feedback to staff. The Committee asked Mr. Vela and staff to coordinate any item as
necessary for the Board’s review at the April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting to allow for
the recommended bond issuance.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

230



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 4, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

Review and Recommend Action on Award of Proposals,
Purchases, and Renewals

The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval
of the following proposal awards, purchases, and renewals at the April 28, 2015 Board
meeting:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

District Wide Special Event Venue Audio Visual Upgrades (Award): award the
proposal for the district wide special event venue audio visual upgrades to Audio
Visual Aids Corp (San Antonio, TX), at a total cost of $157,743.50;

Programmable Direct Connect Power Supply (Award): award the proposal for
programmable direct connect power supply to Mouser Electronics (Mansfield, TX), at
a total cost of $16,438.00;

Video Projectors (Awards): award the proposal for video projectors to Audio
Visual Aids Corp (San Antonio, TX), at a total cost of $35,964.00;

Computers, Laptops, and Tablets (Purchase): purchase of computers, laptops,
and tablets from the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
approved vendors Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX) and from the National Joint
Powers Alliance approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon Hills, IL), in the total
amount of $144,153.15;

Computer Server Appliance (Purchase): purchase a computer server appliance
from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information
Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $17,661.76;

Furniture (Purchase): purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award
Schedule (TXMAS), U. S. Communities and Provista approved vendors, at a total
amount of $172,577.99;

# Vendor Amount

A Allsteel, Inc./ $41,371.40
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

B | Computer Comforts, Inc. (Kemah, TX) $11,946.96

c Cramer, LLC./ $1,056.80
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

D Exemplis Corporation/ $8,056.90
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

E Herman Miller/ $19,853.41
Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)

= The Hon Company/ $2,784.06
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

G Kruger International/ $49,064.29
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

4 National Office Furniture/ $36,971.29
Workplace Resources (San Antonio, TX)

| VIA, Inc./ $1,472.88
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX)

Total $172,577.99

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

231



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 5, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

7) Monitoring Hardware and Software (Purchase): purchase monitoring hardware
and software from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Multiple Award
Schedule (TXMAS) approved vendor, at a total cost of $17,682.46;

8) Network Hardware (Purchase): purchase network hardware from Insight Public
Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information
Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $19,250.00;

9) Phones and Network Devices (Purchase): purchase phones and network
devices from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period
beginning April 29, 2015 through August 31, 2015, at an estimated cost of
$25,000.00;

10)Armored Car Services (Renewal): renew the contract for armored car services
with American Surveillance Co., Inc. (Brownsville, TX) for the period beginning June
1, 2015 through May 31, 2016, at an amount not to exceed $1,328.70 per month or
$15,944.40 per year. Special trips will scheduled on an as needed basis at an
estimated cost of $10,305.15. The total approximate cost for armored card services
for the year is $26,249.55;

11)Clean Address Software Support and Maintenance Subscription (Renewal):
renew the clean address software support and maintenance subscription with
Runner Technologies, Inc. (Boca Raton, FL), a sole source vendor, for the period
beginning March 6, 2015 through March 5, 2016, at a total cost of $10,011.29;

12)Software Maintenance and Support Agreements (Renewal): renew the software
maintenance and support agreements with Evisions (Irvine, CA), a sole source
vendor, for the period of April 1, 2015 through July 31, 2016, at a total cost of
$20,379.00;

13)Graduation Facility (License Agreement): lease the graduation facility from the
City of Hidalgo- Texas Municipal Facilities Corporation (State Farm Arena) (Hidalgo,
TX), an interlocal license agreement for December 11, 2015 beginning at 8:00 a.m.
through December 12, 2015 at midnight, at an estimated cost of $14,500.00;

14)Internal Auditor Services (Contract Extension): contract extension for purchase
of internal auditor services with Burton McCumber & Cortez, LLP. (McAllen, TX), for
the period beginning September 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015, at a cost of
approximately $10,000.00.

SUMMARY TOTAL:
The total for all proposal awards, purchases, and renewals was $687,610.70
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the

Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the proposal
award, purchases, and renewal as presented. The motion carried.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

232



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 6, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

Review and Recommend Action to Renew the Hidalgo County Agreement
for Tax Assessment and Collection

The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval
to renew the Hidalgo County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current
and delinquent taxes collected from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016 at the
April 28, 2015 Board meeting.

According to Texas Property Tax Code, Sec. 6.27 (c) Compensation for Assessment and
Collection, the assessor or collector is entitled to a reasonable fee, not to exceed actual
costs incurred, for which it assesses and collects taxes. The Inter-Local Cooperation
Agreement requires the County, after reviewing actual collection costs, to submit a
proposed fee to the College, which may include a cost increase of no more than 5% per
year, prior to May 1st. The College would then have until June 1st to accept the
recommended fee.

The Board of Trustees approved the Inter-Local Cooperation Agreement for Tax
Assessment and Collection with Hidalgo County on March 11, 1996 with an option to
renew for subsequent tax years. The contract was last renewed on April 22, 2014, and the
annual fee approved was $98,304.00, which represented a cost increase of 5%, or
$4,678.00, as allowed per the Inter-Local Cooperation Agreement for Tax Assessment and
College. Mr. Pablo Villarreal, Jr., RTA for Hidalgo County, has advised the College that
the annual fee for tax year 2015 would remain at $98,304.00. The monthly collection fee
of approximately $8,192.00 is reduced from taxes collected during the month and the
remaining funds are wired to the South Texas College’s bank depository account.

Below is a summary of Hidalgo County assessment and collection fee charges and
corresponding fee increase percentages for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 through Fiscal Year
2015-2016.

Seven Year History of Fees for Hidalgo County Tax
Assessment and Collection

Increase over

Year Fee Previous Year
2015 - 2016 $98,304.00 0%
2014 - 2015 $98,304.00 5%
2013 - 2014 $93,626.00 0%
2012 - 2013 $93,626.00 0%
2011 - 2012 $93,626.00 0%
2010 - 2011 $93,626.00 5%
2009 - 2010 $89,167.20 0%

233

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 7, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

The Inter-local Cooperation Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection was provided in
the packet for the Committee’s review and information.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the
Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the renewal
of the Hidalgo County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and
delinquent taxes collected at an annual fee of $98,304.00, representing a 0% increase,
from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016 as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Recommend Action to Renew the Starr County Agreement
For Tax Assessment and Collection

The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval
to renew the Starr County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and
delinquent taxes collected from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016 at the April
28, 2015 Board meeting.

According to Texas Property Tax Code, Sec. 6.27 (c) Compensation for Assessment and
Collection, the assessor or collector is entitled to a reasonable fee, not to exceed actual
costs incurred, for which it assesses and collects taxes. The Inter-Local Cooperation
Agreement requires the County, after reviewing actual collection costs, to submit a
proposed fee to the College, which may include a cost increase of no more than 5% per
year, prior to May 1st. The College would then have until June 1st to accept the
recommended fee.

The Board of Trustees approved the Inter-Local Cooperation Agreement for Tax
Assessment and Collection with Starr County on June 18, 2001, with an option to renew
for subsequent tax years. The contract was last renewed on April 22, 2014, and the
annual fee approved was $87,886.00. Mr. Carmen Pefia, RTA for Starr County, advised
the College that the annual fee for tax year 2015 would remain at $87,886.00 and was
scheduled to be approved by the Starr County Commissioners Court on April 13, 2015
which is before the April 28, 2015 Board meeting. The monthly collection fee of $7,323.83
is reduced from taxes collected during the month and the remaining funds collected are
paid to the College.

Below is a summary of Starr County assessment and collection fee charges and

corresponding fee increase percentages for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 through Fiscal Year
2015-2016.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

234



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015

Page 8, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

Seven Year History of Fees for Starr County Tax
Assessment and Collection

Increase over

Year Fee Previous Year
2015 - 2016 $87,886.00 0%
2014 - 2015 $87,886.00 0%
2013 - 2014 $87,886.00 0%
2012 - 2013 $87,886.00 0%
2011 - 2012 $87,886.00 0%
2010 - 2011 $87,886.00 0%
2009 - 2010 $87,886.00 0%

The Amendment to the Inter-local Cooperation Agreement for Tax Assessment and
Collection for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 was not available at the time of publication but would
be presented to the Board for review and action as necessary.

Starr County would provide the FY 2015-2016 Inter-local Cooperation Agreement prior to
the April 28, 2015 Board Meeting.

Upon a motion by Ms. Rose Benavidez and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the
Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the renewal
of the Starr County Agreement for Tax Assessment and Collection for current and
delinquent taxes collected at an annual fee of $87,886.00 from September 1, 2015 through
August 31, 2016 as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Recommend Action to Revise Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty
Letter of Appointment
The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval
to revise Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment at the April 28, 2015
Board meeting.

The revisions to the policy were requested for the following reasons:

e To update the method of issuance to include electronic distribution due to
automation of services within the Office of Human Resources.

e To stipulate the acceptance of letter of appointment is due by stated deadline on
offer and failure to do so would constitute a rejection of the offer.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

235



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 9, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

e To clarify procedure of providing adequate notice to resign in good standing as it is
not limited to the end of the contract period.

The revised policy was provided in the packet for the Committee’s information and review.
The additions to the policy were highlighted in yellow and the deletions were designated
with a red strikeout.

Dr. Salinas provided a few suggestions for additional non-substantive revisions to the
proposed policy and asked Dr. Reed to review them with staff and legal counsel, and to
include any changes as appropriate in the recommendation to the Board.

The revised policy has been reviewed by staff, the President’'s Cabinet, and by South
Texas College’s legal counsel.

Upon a motion by Ms. Rose Benavidez and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the
Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed
revisions to Policy #4118: Provision of Faculty Letter of Appointment as presented and
which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. The motion carried.

Review and Recommend Action on Disposal of Surplus Property

The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval
dispose of surplus property valued at $1,000 and over through a live auction at the April 28,
2015 Board meeting.

The surplus property went through an evaluation process by the departments to determine
if the items were damaged beyond repair and unable to be utilized district wide.

The auction items were located at the South Texas College Receiving Department, 3700
W. Military Hwy., McAllen, TX. The auction would be scheduled during the month of June.

A listing of the items to be auctioned was provided in the packet for the Committee’s
review and information.

The items valued at $1,000 and over were included in the College’s inventory through the
Banner system.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the
Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the disposal
of surplus property valued at $1,000 and over through a live auction as presented. The
motion carried.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

236



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 10, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

Review and Action as Necessary to Issue a Request for Proposals for
Call Center Services

The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval
to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit call center services at the April 28, 2015
Board meeting.

The College wished to solicit Call Center Services to support and enhance all Student
Enroliment Services (Financial Aid, Admissions, Registration, Payment, General Advising,
and General College Information). Call Center Services would also be utilized to increase
Enrollment Services hours through a 24/7 schedule, support for students on all campuses
and online.

During peak enrollment times, the college experienced high inbound call volumes in the
existing Call Center, Financial Aid, Admissions, Cashier's and Distance Learning
departments. Mrs. Wanda Garza, Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment
Management, stated that the College received over 247,000 calls the previous year.

While many calls were answered and/or transferred to the appropriate service area,
departments were not able to handle the high-volume demand during peak periods.
Additionally, the existing services were utilized to maximum capacity for outbound calls
including enroliment, payment and financial aid drives, returned calls and general student
inquiries.

Call Center services would be used to meet the demand of inbound calls and outbound
campaigns at various stages of the student lifecycle increasing the likelihood that
prospective students completed the enrollment process and persisted to degree
completion. A committee drafted a Request for Proposals which was reviewed by the
following college departments: Student Financial Services, Distance Learning, College
Connections and Admissions, Technology Resources, and the Purchasing Office.

The proposed timeline for the Request for Proposals (RFP) was as follows:

May 4, 2015 Advertisement of RFP

May 19, 2015 Deadline for responses

May 20-27, 2015  Evaluation of responses by staff
June 11, 2015 Review by Finance Committee
June 23, 2015 Approval by Board of Trustees

The agreement for the Call Center Services would be for the period beginning July 1, 2015
and ending August 31, 2016, with an option to renew for two additional two (2) year
periods.

A draft of the Request for Proposals (RFP) was included in the packet for the Committee’s
review and information.

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

237



Finance and Human Resources
Minutes — April 13, 2015
Page 11, Revised 4/24/2015 @ 8:07:33 AM

Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez recommended that staff call other institutions utilizing such Call
Center Services to test the customer service, professionalism, and general functioning of
such services. Staff agreed that such a test would be a good idea. Mrs. Graciela Farias
volunteered to make a few test calls as well.

Results of the test calls would be provided to the Board for review and consideration as
part of their deliberation of the proposed RFQ for Call Center Services.

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the
Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of
administration's request to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit call center
services as presented. The motion carried.

Review and Discussion of Position Vacancy Report for FY 2014-2015

The Staffing Plan Position Vacancy Report for FY 2014-2015 was included in the packet
for the Committee’s information and review. Information was current as of April 10, 2015.

The Position Vacancy Report for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 was presented for information and
review by the Committee. No action was required from the Committee.

Adjournment

There being no further business to discuss, the Finance and Human Resources Committee
Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees adjourned at 7:42 p.m.

| certify that the foregoing are the true and correct Minutes of the April 13, 2015 Finance
and Human Resources Committee Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees.

Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr.
Presiding

Finance and Human Resources
Committee Minutes 04-13-2015

238



Motions — April 28, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Revised 4/24/2015 12:26:32 PM
Page 56

Announcements

A. Next Meetings:

e Thursday, May 14, 2015

» 3:30 p.m. — Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting
» 4:30 p.m. — Facilities Committee Meeting
» 5:30 p.m. — Finance and Human Resources Committee Meeting

e Tuesday, May 26th, 2015
» 5:30 p.m. — Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees

B. Other Announcements:

e South Texas College will be holding its 20" Annual Spring Commencement Ceremony
with Graduations on Friday, May 15, 2015 and Saturday, May 16, 2015 at the State Farm

Arena in Hidalgo, Texas:

Friday, May 15, 2015

11:00 a.m. Business and Technology Division
Information Technology Graduates

3:00 p.m. Liberal Arts Division

6:00 p.m. Social & Behavioral Sciences

Saturday, May 16, 2015

10:00 a.m. Math, Science, and Bachelor Programs Division
Business and Technology Division

2:00 p.m. Nursing and Allied Health Division

e South Texas College will be closed Monday, May 25, 2015 in observance of Memorial
Day.

239





